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CERTAIN DEFINITIONS
The following oil and gas measurements and industiy other terms are used in this Form 10-K. Asl iieein, production volumes
represent sales volumes, unless otherwise indicated
Bakken Shale-means the Bakken Shale oil play in the WillistaasB and can include the Upper Three Forks formatio
Barrel —means one barrel of petroleum products that egifald.S. gallons.
BBtu—means one billion BTUs.
BBtu/d—means one billion BTUs per day.

Bcfe—means one billion cubic feet of gas equivalenedained using the ratio of one barrel of oil, comglge or NGLS to six
thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

Bcf/d—means one billion cubic feet per day.
Boe—means barrels of oil equivalent.
Boe/d—means barrels of oil equivalent per day.

British Thermal Unit or BTU—means a unit of energy needed to raise the teryperaf one pound of water by one degree
Fahrenheit.

FERC—means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Fractionation—means the process by which a mixed stream of @lagas liquids is separated into its constituentlpcts, such as
ethane, propane and butane.

LOE —means lease and other operating expense exclpdioigiction taxes, ad valorem taxes and gatherimggssing and
transportation fees.

Mbbls—means one thousand barrels.

Mbbls/d—means one thousand barrels per day.
Mboe/d—means one thousand barrels of oil equivalent pgr d
Mcf—means one thousand cubic feet.

Mcfe—means one thousand cubic feet of gas equivalémg tise ratio of one barrel of oil, condensate &L to six thousand
cubic feet of natural gas.

MMbbls—means one million barrels.
MMboe—means one million barrels of oil equivalent.
MMBtu—means one million BTUs.
MMBtu/d—means one million BTUs per day.
MMcf—means one million cubic feet.
MMcf/d—means one million cubic feet per day.

MMcfe—means one million cubic feet of gas equivalenbgshe ratio of one barrel of oil, condensate ol N® six thousand
cubic feet of natural gas.

MMcfe/d—means one million cubic feet of gas equivalentdasr using the ratio of one barrel of oil, condé@asa NGLs to six
thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

NGLs—means natural gas liquids; natural gas liquidaltésom natural gas processing and crude oil iefjrand are used as
petrochemical feedstocks, heating fuels and gasaliitives, among other applications.
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PART |

In this report, WPX (which includes WPX Energy, kutd, unless the context otherwise requires, fatlus subsidiaries) is at times
referred to in the first person as “we,” “us” or “ar.” We also sometimes refer to WPX as the “CompamnyWPX Energy.”

Throughout this report we “incorporate by refereficertain information in parts of other documeniied with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (t“SEC”). The SEC allows us to disclose importanbimhiation by referring to it in that manner. Pleasder to such
documents for information.

We are making forward-looking statements in thigoré In “Item 1A: Risk Factors” we discuss somelu# risk factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those si@in the forward-looking statements.

ltem 1. Business

SEPARATION FROM THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

On December 31, 2011 (the “Distribution Date”), WEKergy, Inc. became an independent, publicly ttagenpany as a result of a
distribution by The Williams Companies, Inc. (“Wéins”) of its shares of WPX to Williams’ stockhotdeOn the Distribution Date, Williams’
stockholders of record as of the close of busioesBecember 14, 2011 (the “Record Date”) receives share of WPX common stock for
every three shares of Williams’ common stock hald&the Record Date (the “Distribution”). WPX igroprised of Williams’ former natural
gas and oil exploration and production business.d@mmon stock began trading “regular-way” undertibker symbol “WPX" on the New
York Stock Exchange on January 3, 2012.

Our principal executive offices are located at @iliams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172. Our teleghoumber is 855-979-2012.

WPX ENERGY, INC.

We are an independent natural gas and oil exptoraind production company engaged in the exploitatind development of long-life
unconventional properties. We are focused on @tolfitexploiting our significant natural gas resarbase and related NGLs in the Piceance
Basin of the Rocky Mountain region, and on develgmnd growing our positions in the Bakken Shal@laiy in North Dakota and the
Marcellus Shale natural gas play in Pennsylvania.dher areas of domestic operations include tveder River Basin in Wyoming and the
San Juan Basin in the southwestern United Statexldition, we own a 69 percent controlling owngrshterest in Apco Oil and Gas
International Inc. (“Apco”), which holds oil and gaoncessions in Argentina and Colombia and tradeghe NASDAQ Capital Market under
the symbol “APAGF.” Our international interests reakp approximately 3 percent of our total provesktrees. In consideration of this
percentage, unless specifically referenced hetteéninformation included in this section relatesydn our domestic activity.

We have built a geographically diverse portfolicnatural gas and oil reserves through organic dpveént and strategic acquisitions.
Our proved reserves at December 31, 2012 were 860 comprised of 4,491 Bcfe in domestic researed 159 Bcfe in net international
reserves. Our domestic reserves reflect a mix df gércent natural gas, 14.8 percent NGLs and d€r@nt crude oil. During 2012, we
replaced our domestic production for all commoditi¢ a rate of 28 percent. For oil and NGL aloneyeplaced 148 percent of our oil and
NGL production. Our Piceance Basin operations firenmajority of our proved reserves and currentpetion, providing a lo-cost, scalable
asset base.

We report financial results for two segments, aumdstic segment and our international segmentir®@emational segment primarily
consists of Apco. Except as otherwise specificadited, either by a reference to Apco or to oth@rirvational operations, the following
description of our business is focused on our dtimesgment, which is our dominant segment and kvlicentral to an understanding of our
business taken as a whole.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to increase shareholdiee g finding and developing reserves and produaitural gas, oil and NGLs at costs
that generate an attractive rate of return on uestment.

Efficiently Allocate Capital for Optimal PortfoliReturns. We expect to allocate capital to the most prbféapportunities in our
portfolio based on commodity price cycles and otharket conditions, enabling us to continue to goawreserves and production
in a manner that maximizes our return on investmardetermining which drilling opportunities togsue, we target a minimum
after-tax internal rate of return on each operateli we drill of 15 percent. While we have a sigedint portfolio of drilling
opportunities that we believe meet or exceed adurmgargets even in challenging commodity pricei@mments, we are
disciplined in our approach to capital spending aiibdadjust our drilling capital expenditures bdsen our level of expected cash
flows, access to capital and overall liquidity piasi.

Continue Our Cost-Efficient Development Approabtie focus on developing properties where we catyaggvelopment practices
that result in cost-efficiencies. We manage cogtibusing on establishing large scale, contigumarsage blocks where we can
operate a majority of the properties. We believe $krategy allows us to better achieve econonfiesale and apply continuous
technological improvements in our operations. Weeh&plicated these cost-efficient approachesarMarcellus Shale and intend
to do so in the Bakken Sha

Target a More Balanced Commodity Mix in Our ProduetProfile through development and exploratioWith our Bakken Shale
and our liquids-rich Piceance Basin assets, we haignificant drilling inventory of oil- and liqds-rich opportunities that we
intend to develop in order to achieve a more badrmommodity mix in our production. We refer to fieeance Basin as “liquids-
rich” because our proved reserves in that basisisbaof “wet,” as opposed to “dry,” gas and haw@gmificant liquids component.
We will continue to pursue other oil- and liquidskr organic development and acquisition opportasithat meet our investment
returns and strategic criter|

Maintain Substantial Financial Liquidity and Mana@@mmodity Price Sensitivi. We plan to maintain substantial liquidity
through a mix of cash on hand and availability ur@e credit facility. In addition, we have engagaw will continue to engage in
commodity derivative hedging activities to maintaidegree of cash flow stability. Typically, weger hedging approximately

50 percent of expected revenue from domestic ptamuduring a current calendar year in order tikstan appropriate balance of
commodity price upside with cash flow protectiolthaugh we may vary from this level based on ouceptions of market risk. A
of February 25, 2013, our estimated domestic nafya® production revenues were approximately 50grerhedged for 2013 and
our estimated domestic oil production revenues \WB8rpercent hedged for 201

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions with Significant Rese Potentiathrough exploration activitiesWe have a history of acquiring
undeveloped properties that meet our disciplinéarmerequirements and other acquisition criteriaxpand upon our existing
positions as well as acquiring undeveloped acréagew geographic areas that offer significant uvese potential. We expect to
opportunistically acquire acreage positions in @eeas where we feel we can establish significaalesand replicate our cost-
efficient development approac
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SIGNIFICANT PROPERTIES

Our principal areas of operation are the Piceara®rB Bakken Shale/Williston Basin, Marcellus Skabpalachian Basin, Powder River
Basin, San Juan Basin and, through our ownershdgpob, Colombia and Argentina.

Piceance Basin

We entered the Piceance Basin in May 2001 wittatigpiisition of Barrett Resources and since thas tiave grown to become the larg
natural gas producer in Colorado. Our PiceancerBasiperties currently comprise our largest areeootentrated development drilling.

During 2012, we operated an average of 5.4 driltigg in the basin, including 4.4 in the Piceanedléy and one in the Piceance
Highlands. We expect to operate five rigs in theeBhce Basin in 2013. We had an average of 673 ket gas production from our
Piceance Basin properties along with an avera@¥ & Mbbls/d of NGLs and 2.3 Mbbls/d of condensatmvered from our Piceance Basin
properties. Capital expenditures were approximek8B7 million which included the completion of 2dbss (209 net) wells in 2012. As of
December 31, 2012, another 15 gross wells weretimgyaiompletions. A large majority of our naturalsgproduction in this basin currently is
gathered through a system owned by Williams Pasthd?. (“Williams Partners”) and delivered to maskthrough a number of interstate
pipelines.

The Piceance Basin is located in northwestern @dlmrOur operations in the basin are divided i areas: the Piceance Valley and
the Piceance Highlands. Our Piceance Valley a@ades operations along the Colorado River vallay ia the more developed area where w
have produced consistent, repeatable results. itkafte Highlands, which are those areas at higlegations above the river valley, contain
vast development opportunities that position ud feelgrowth in the future as infrastructure expsamhd efficiency improvements continue.
Our development activities in the basin are pritgddcused on the Williams Fork section within tklesaverde formation. The Williams Fork
can be over 2,000 feet in thickness and is compagseveral tight, interbedded, lenticular sandstienses encountered at depths ranging
6,000 to 9,000 feet. In order to maximize produaisigs and recovery of natural gas reserves we Imydsaulically fracture the well using a
fluid system comprised of 99 percent water and sAddancements in completion technology, including use of microseismic data have
enabled us to more effectively stimulate the resieland recover a greater percentage of the nagasaln place.

We recently announced a successful discovery ifNtbbrara formation which has the potential to ffigantly increase our natural gas
reserves and daily production in future years. diseovery well produced an initial high of 16 nalti cubic feet per day at a flowing pressure
of 7,300 pounds per square inch. The Niobrara aaddds Shales are generally located at depths 80Q@ 13,000 feet. We have the lease
rights to approximately 180,000 net acres of thebiira/Mancos Shale play that underlies our exparsasehold position in the Piceance
Basin. Substantial gathering and processing infregire is in place to accommodate additional gdsmes from the area, as is take-away
capacity from the basin. Gas produced from the Nigband Mancos Shales can be processed withouficatidn to existing gas treatment
facilities.

Bakken Shale/Williston Basin

In December 2010, we acquired leasehold positibapproximately 85,800 net acres in the Willistoasi. All of these properties are
the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation in North Dakahd we are the primary operator. Based on odogiednterpretation of the Bakken
formation, the evolution of completion techniquest own drilling results as well as the publiclyadable drilling results for other operators in
the basin, we believe that a substantial portioourfWilliston Basin acreage is prospective inBa&ken and Three Forks formation, the
primary targets for all of the well locations inrawrrent drilling inventory.
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During 2012, we operated an average of 5.7 rigsusrBakken properties and we had an average ofNMbd®/d of net production from
our Bakken Shale wells. Capital expenditures wemr@imately $521 million which included the comtia of 41gross (27 net) wells in 20
As of December 31, 2012, another 5 gross wells wefating completion.

We are developing oil reserves through horizontiflirey in the Middle Bakken and plan to develogttpper Three Forks Shale oil
formations utilizing drilling and completion expisg gained in part through experience in our obfasins. Based on our subsurface geologica
analysis, we believe that our position lies in dénea of the basin’s greatest potential recoverpBfitken formation oil. Currently our Bakken
Shale development has the highest incrementaln®tfrany of our drilling programs.

Williston Basin is spread across North Dakota, Bddkota, Montana and parts of southern Canada&ricmyvapproximately
202,000 square miles, of which 143,000 square railesn the United States. The basin producesdilratural gas from numerous producing
horizons including the Bakken, Three Forks, Madiand Red River formations. A report issued by th®.&Geological Survey in April 2008
classified the Bakken formation as the largestioous oil accumulation ever assessed by it irctrgiguous United States.

The Devonian-age Bakken formation is found witlia Williston Basin underlying portions of North Bdf and Montana and is
comprised of three lithologic members referredsdhee Upper, Middle and Lower Bakken Shales. Theédion ranges up to 150 feet thick
is a continuous and structurally simple reservilire upper and lower shales are highly organicptlly mature and over pressured and ca
as both a source and reservoir for the oil. ThediéidBakken, which varies in composition from aysdblomite to shaly limestone or sand,
serves as the productive formation and is a ctiteservoir for commercial production. Generallye Bakken formation is found at vertical
depths of 8,500 to 11,500 feet.

The Three Forks formation, generally found immegliatinder the Bakken formation, has also proverot@ain productive reservoir
rock. The Three Forks formation typically consisténterbedded dolomites and shale with local depelent of a discontinuous sandy membe
at the top, known as the Sanish sand. The ThrdesFomation is an unconventional carbonate plawil&r to the Bakken formation, the
Three Forks formation has recently been exploitditing the same horizontal drilling and advanaaanpletion techniques as the Bakken
development. Drilling in the Three Forks formattmegan in mid-2008 and a number of operators arewmtly drilling wells targeting this
formation. Based on our geologic interpretatiohaf Three Forks formation and the evolution of ctatipn techniques, we believe that most
of our Williston Basin acreage is prospective ia Three Forks formation.

Our acreage in the Bakken Shale, as well as agpoofi our acreage in the Piceance Basin and PoRider Basin, is leased to us by or
with the approval of the federal government oaggncies, and is subject to federal authorityNtonal Environmental Policy Act
(“NEPA"), the Bureau of Indian Affairs or other ngigtory regimes that require governmental agertoievaluate the potential environmental
impacts of a proposed project on government owaedd. These regulatory regimes impose obligatiorth® federal government and
governmental agencies that may result in legallehgés and potentially lengthy delays in obtairpngject permits or approvals and could
result in certain instances in the cancellatioexéting leases.

Marcellus Shale/Appalachian Basin

Our Marcellus Shale acreage is located in fourgipia areas of the play within Pennsylvania: thethtremast portion of the play in and n
Susquehanna County; the southwest in and arounthWesdand County; centrally in Clearfield and Cerffounties and the east in Columbia
County. We have expanded our position since ouy émtio the Marcellus Shale in 2009, both orgarycahd through third-party acquisitions.
We are the primary operator on our acreage fdoal areas and plan to develop our acreage usingdmal drilling and completion expertise
in part gained through operations in our otherrmdA third party gathering system providing thanrteunkline out of the Susquehanna area
was completed in December 2011 and compressioging ladded to the system to serve expected voluovetly.
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During 2012, we operated an average of 2.1 riggwrMarcellus Shale properties and we had an arevh§3 MMcfe/d of net
production from our Marcellus Shale wells. Prodoictievels were hampered for much of 2012 by higé firessures on the aforementioned
third party gathering system. Capital expendituvese approximately $356 million which included tw@mpletion of 54 gross (33 net) wells in
2012 . As of December 31, 2012, another 25 grodls were awaiting completion.

The Marcellus Shale formation is the most expanshade gas play in the United States, spanningtabes in the northeastern United
States. The Marcellus Shale is a black, organitsiale formation located at depths between 4,66B&00 feet, covering approximately
95,000 square miles at an average net thicknes8 fefet to 300 feet.

Powder River Basin

We own a large position in coal bed methane resarvethe Powder River Basin and together with aideveloper, Lance Oil & Gas
Company Inc., control 887,555 acres, of which ounership represents 398,470 net acres. We sharatmpes with our co-developer and both
companies have extensive experience producing Gaahformations in the Powder River Basin datirandrits earliest commercial growth in
the late 1990s. The natural gas produced is gathmra system owned by our co-developer.

During 2012, we had an average of 209 MMcfe/d ¢fpmeduction from our Powder River Basin propertiéapital expenditures were
approximately $7 million which included the compdet of 150 gross (92 net) wells in 2012 . The migjasf these wells were drilled in prior
years and completed the dewatering process in 202013, we expect a level of expenditures simiaour 2012 expenditures. Our Pow
River Basin properties are located in northeastéyoming. Our development operations in this basinfacused on coal bed methane plays ir
the Big George and Wyodak project areas. Initialbal bed methane wells typically produce watea process called dewatering. This proces
lowers pressure, allowing the natural gas to flowht wellbore. As the coal seam pressure declthesyells begin producing methane gas at
an increasing rate. As the wells mature, the prodinpeaks, stabilizes and then begins declinifg dverage life of a coal bed methane we
the Powder River Basin ranges from 5 to 15 yeatslét¥hese wells generally produce at much lowtrsavith fewer reserves attributed to
them when compared to conventional natural gassvielthe Rocky Mountains, they also typically hamgher drilling success rates and lower
capital costs.

The coal seams that we target in the Powder RiasirBhave been extensively mapped as a resultarfiety of natural resource
development projects that have occurred in theoredndustry data from over 25,000 wellbores ddifterough the Ft. Union coal formation
allows us to determine critical data such as thimkextent, thickness, gas saturation, formatimsgure and relative permeability of the coal
seams we target for development, which we beliegmficantly reduces our dry hole risk.

San Juan Basin

We acquired our San Juan Basin properties as p#tlilams’ acquisition of Northwest Energy in 198Bhese properties represented the
first major area of natural gas exploration andeflgyment activities for Williams. Our San Juan Bagsioperties include holdings across the
basin producing primarily from the Mesa Verde, Band Coal and Mancos Shale formations which aee@minantly gas bearing. We operate
two units in New Mexico (Rosa and Cox Canyon) all aseseveral non-unit properties, and we operathree major areas of Colorado
(Northwest Cedar Hills, Ignacio and Bondad). We ala/n properties operated by other operators in Niexico and Colorado. Approximate
60 percent of our net San Juan Basin productioresdnom our operated properties.

During 2012, we had an average of 133 MMcfe/d a¢fpmeduction from our San Juan Basin propertiegit@bexpenditures were
approximately $14 million which included the contfea of 11 gross (6 net) wells.

7



Table of Contents

According to a September 2010 Wood Mackenzie refieetSan Juan Basin is one of the oldest and pnobtic coal bed methane plays
in the world. The Fruitland coal bed extends tothepf approximately 4,200 feet with net thicknesmsging from zero to 100 feet. The Mesa
Verde play is the top producing tight gas playhe basin with total thickness ranging from 500 80D feet. The Mesa Verde is underlain by
the upper Mancos Shale and overlain by the Lew#eSh

International

We hold an approximate 69 percent controlling gauiterest in Apco. Apco in turn owns interestsaveral blocks in Argentina,
including concessions in the Neuquén, Austral, Neest and San Jorge Basins, and in three explarpéanits in Colombia, with its primary
properties consisting of the Neuguén and AustraiBeoncessions. Apco’s oil and gas reserves anogjmately 58 percent oil, 38 percent
natural gas and 4 percent liquefied petroleum gas.

During 2012, Apco had an average of 13.3 Mboe/fdedfproduction.

Apco participated in the drilling of 37 gross watiserated by its partners in 2012. Apco spentit$adirect ownership interest,
approximately $59 million in capital expenditures.

The government of Argentina has implemented prargrol mechanisms over the sale of natural gasoard gasoline prices in the
country. As a result of these controls and oth&pas by the Argentine government, sales priceiza@bns for natural gas and oil sold in
Argentina are generally below international matkgels and are significantly influenced by Argeetgovernmental actions.

We also hold additional international assets irtneest Argentina that are not part of Apco’s hotgin

Other Properties

Our other holdings, amounting to less than onegrgrof our assets, are comprised of gas resertbég iGBreen River Basin of southwest
Wyoming.

Acquisitions and Divestitures

In 2012, we disposed of our holdings in the BarBéidle and the Arkoma Basin for $306 million. Threrrigett Shale properties included
approximately 27,000 net acres, interests in 32G6waed 91 miles of pipeline. The Arkoma properiieduded approximately 66,000 net ac
interests in 525 wells and 115 miles of pipeline.

Our acquisitions during 2012 consisted of misceltars leasehold purchases of $111 million with matiassociated production. The
majority of these purchases were for oil explorateaseholds. We may from time to time disposerofipcing properties and undeveloped
acreage positions if we believe they no longeinfid our strategic plan.

Title to Properties

Our title to properties is subject to royalty, av@ing royalty, carried, net profits, working anther similar interests and contractual
arrangements customary in the natural gas andahilstry, to liens for current taxes not yet due @nother encumbrances. In addition, leases
on Native American reservations are subject to Buigf Indian Affairs and other approvals uniquéhiose locations. As is customary in the
industry in the case of undeveloped propertiegnidd investigation of record title is made at ttle of acquisition. Drilling title opinions are
usually prepared before commencement of drillingrapons. We believe we have satisfactory titlsubstantially all of our active properties
accordance with standards generally accepted inaheal gas and oil industry. Nevertheless, weararelved in title disputes from time to tir
which can result in litigation and delay or lossoof ability to realize the benefits of our leases.
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Reserves and Production Information

We have significant oil and gas producing actigifgimarily in the Rocky Mountain, northeast andiMbntinent areas of the United
States. Additionally, we have international oil ayab producing activities, primarily in ArgentirRroved reserves and revenues related to
international activities are approximately 3 petcamd 4 percent, respectively, of our total intéioreal and domestic proved reserves and
revenues from producing activities. Accordinglylass specifically stated otherwise, the informatiothe remainder of this Item 1 relates ¢
to the oil and gas activities in the United States.

Oil and Gas Reserves

The following table sets forth our estimated doneastt proved developed and undeveloped reserny@essed by product and on a gas
equivalent basis for the reporting periods Decen3fie2012, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 201

Gas NGL Oil Equivalent
(MMcf) (Mbbls) (Mbbls) (MMcfe)(a) %
Proved Developed 2,170,68. 64,91( 23,74( 2,702,57 60%
Proved Undevelope 1,198,39; 45,44¢ 52,80" 1,787,92 40%
Total Prove-Domestic 3,369,07. 110,35¢ 76,547 4,490,50
As of December 31, 201
Gas NGL Oil Equivalent
(MMcf) (Mbbls) (Mbbls) (MMcfe)(a) %
Proved Developed 2,497,29. 72,13¢ 13,55¢ 3,011,45 59%
Proved Undevelope 1,485,64. 61,93¢ 33,56¢ 2,058,67! 41%
Total Prove-Domestic 3,982,93! 134,07 47,12 5,070,13:
As of December 31, 201
Gas NGL Oil Equivalent
(MMcf) (Mbbls) (Mbbls) (MMcfe)(a) %
Proved Developed 2,368,46! 48,68¢ 3,97: 2,684,43. 58%
Proved Undevelope 1,545,73! 47,16¢ 20,30z 1,950,56 42%
Total Prove-Domestic 3,914,20. 95,85 24.27" 4,634,99:

(&) Oil and NGLs converted to MMcfe using the raticooke barrel of oil, condensate or NGLs to six thodseubic feet of natural ga

The following table sets forth our estimated doneastt proved reserves for our largest areas ofigcexpressed by product and on a
gas equivalent basis as of December 31, 2012 .

As of December 31, 201

Gas NGL Oil Equivalent
(MMcf) (MBbls) (MBbls) (MMcfe)

Piceance Basin 2,338,55: 103,09 8,75¢ 3,009,65!I
Bakken Shal 34,07¢ 6,79( 67,46¢ 479,59!
Marcellus Shalt 322,40( — — 322,40(
Powder River Basil 235,12 17 11C 235,89(
San Juan Basi 419,96° 45¢ 78 423,18:
Other 18,95: — 141 19,79:
Total Prove-Domestic 3,369,07. 110,35¢ 76,547 4,490,50
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We prepare our own reserves estimates and apprtim®® percent of our reserves are audited by @ikthd, Sewell & Associates, Inc.
(“NSAI").

We have not filed on a recurring basis estimatesuofiotal proved net oil, NGL, and gas reserveh wny U.S. regulatory authority or
agency other than with the U.S. Department of Enargl the SEC. The estimates furnished to the Dmyeat of Energy have been consistent
with those furnished to the SEC.

Our 2012 year-end estimated proved reserves weneedaising an average natural gas price of $2e83Mzf, an average oil price of
$82.32 per barrel and average NGL price of $37d1bprrel. These prices were calculated from thenb8th average, first-of-the-month price
for the applicable indices for each basin as adguir locational price differentials. During 201®e added 634 Bcfe of additions to our
proved reserves. During 2012, we participated éndtilling of 548 gross wells at a net capital aoisapproximately $1,130 million.

Proved reserves sensitivity by price scenario

The SEC disclosures rules allow for optional ressrsensitivity analysis, such as the sensitivigy til and natural gas reserves have to
price fluctuations. We have chosen to compare domesoved reserves from the 2012 SEC case to twridte Price Scenario which applies
prices from the 2011 SEC case to the 2012 SEC case.

The 2012 SEC case was derived using the pricingqusly described. The Alternate Price Scenariteot$ prices used for our year-end
2011 reserves which were calculated using the 1@t#maverage, first-of-the-month price during 20ad the applicable indices for each basin,
as adjusted for local price differentials. Applyithg prices used for our year-end 2011 reserveetgear-end 2012 reserves resulted in an
average natural gas price of $3.68 per Mcf, anageepil price of $86.75 per barrel, and an aveN@e price of $51.83 per barrel. This
sensitivity scenario was not audited by a thirdyar

The following table shows domestic proved reseuntéizing the 2012 SEC case compared with an AligrPrice Scenario. Both of the
cases assume that proved undeveloped reservesli@a within five years. No changes were made fierating costs assumptions in the
Alternate Price Scenario. Total capital expendgwmeuld be increased by $1,035 million associatitd 800 Bcfe of additional proved
undeveloped locations in the Alternate Price Sdenar

2012 SEC cas! Alternate Price Scenario

Gas NGL Oll Equivalent Gas NGL Oil Equivalent

MMcf Mbbl Mbbl MMcfe MMcf Mbbl Mbbl MMcfe
Piceance Basin 2,338,55. 103,09 8,75t 3,009,65 2,772,54' 124,20¢ 11,02¢ 3,583,92
Bakken Shal 34,074 6,79C 67,46: 479,59: 34,30: 6,83t 67,91 482,77"
Marcellus Shal 322,40( — — 322,40( 389,31 — — 389,31¢
Powder River Basil 235,12° 17 11C 235,89( 324,30 17 111 325,07:
San Juan Basi 419,96° 45¢ 78 423,18 526,06: 56E 77 529,91!
Other 18,95: — 141 19,79: 26,53¢ — 20C 27,73¢
Total Prove-Domestic 3,369,07. 110,35¢ 76,54. 4,490,50 4,073,070 131,62. 79,32¢ 5,338,74

Total domestic proved reserves increase by 848 iBdfee Alternate Price Scenario as compared t@@& SEC case.
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Proved reserves reconciliation

PROVED L.5. RESERVES RECONCILIATION

Befe
5,500
+6 -225
5,000
496 +634 +848
-498
4,500
- 5,339

4000 L SNOFON
3,500
3,000

YE2011 Production Extensions & Purchases Divestiuras Revisions YE2012 Price Alternate Price

SEC case Discoverias SEC oase Ravisions and Scanario

Extenslons

The 634 Bcfe of Extensions and Discoveries refl@2ts Bcfe added for drilled locations and 405 Badeled for new proved undevelof
locations. The extensions and discoveries weregpifynin the Williston Basin, Appalachia Basin aRteance Basin. The 225 Bcfe of
Divestitures primarily represents the holdingshie Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basin that were sofDiP. The overall negative revisions of
498 Bcfe reflects 572 Bcfe that were uneconomictdue decline in the 12-month average naturalbgasnatural gas liquids price partially
offset by a net increase related to proved undgeeldocations under the SEC five year rule. The Bdf@ related to Price Revisions and
Extensions in the table above represents 600 Btdted to proved locations at year-end 2011 tha¢ weeconomic under the prices used for
the year-end 2012 reserves and additional provddvetoped locations associated with our 2012 dglfirogram that are economic at the
Alternate Price Scenario. The remaining amounteslto the extension of the productive life of prdveserves at December 31, 2012 under
the Alternate Price Scenario.

Reserves estimation process

Our reserves are estimated by deterministic methsithg) an appropriate combination of productiorfgrerance analysis and volumetric
techniques. The proved reserves for economic ueddibcations are estimated by analogy or voluroallif from offset developed locations.
Reservoir continuity and lateral pervasivenessuftight-sands, shale and coal bed methane resergastablished by combinations of
subsurface analysis and analysis of 2D and 3D seidata and pressure data. Understanding resaquality may be augmented by core
samples analysis.

The engineering staff of each basin asset teanigesthe reserves modeling and forecasts for thspective areas. Various department
also participate in the preparation of the year+&seérves estimate by providing supporting inforamasuch as pricing, capital costs, expenses
ownership, gas gathering and gas quality. The dmeaits and their roles in the year-end reservesegsare coordinated by our reserves
analysis department. The reserves analysis depatttmesponsibilities also include performing atemmal review of reserves data for
reasonableness and accuracy, working with NSAlthaedsset teams to successfully complete the esandit, finalizing the year-end
reserves report and reporting reserves data taiatog.

11
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The preparation of our year-end reserves reparfasmal process. Early in the year, we begin witleview of the existing internal
processes and controls to identify where improvemean be made from the prior year's reporting&ychter in the year, the reserves staffs
from the asset teams submit their preliminary nesedata to the reserves analysis department. deftggw by the reserves analysis departn
the data is submitted to NSAI to begin their audiiger this point, reserves data analysis anchienteview are conducted and iterated betwee
the asset teams, reserves analysis department@fd M early December, reserves are reviewed sétior management. The process
concludes upon receipt of the audit letter from NSA

The reserves estimates resulting from our processubjected to both internal and external contm{sgromote transparency and accul
of the year-end reserves estimates. Our intersalves analysis team is independent and does mktwithin an asset team or report directly
to anyone on an asset team. The reserves anafymastohent provides detailed independent revieweaitehsive documentation of the yesard
process. Our internal processes and controls egsréhate to the year-end reserves, are reviewgdipdated as appropriate. The compensatio
of our reserves analysis team is not directly ltht@reserves additions or revisions except tettient that reserves additions are a componer
of our all-employee incentive plan.

Approximately 99 percent of our total year-end 2db2hestic proved reserves estimates were auditéSiiy. When compared on a
well-by-well basis, some of our estimates are gneand some are less than the NSAI estimates. Mstisfied with our methods and
procedures in preparing the December 31, 2012ves@&stimates and future revenue, and noted nottiiag unusual nature that would cause
NSAI to take exception with the estimates, in thgragate, as prepared by

The technical person primarily responsible for eeeing preparation of the reserves estimates anithitid party reserves audit is the
Director of Reserves and Production Services. Tinecibr's qualifications include 30 years of reserves etin experience, a B.S. in geolc
from the University of Texas at Austin, an M.SHhysical Sciences from the University of Houstod amembership in the American
Association of Petroleum Geologists and The So@éfetroleum Engineers.

Proved undeveloped reserves

The majority of our reserves is concentrated inomwentional tight-sands, shale and coal bed gasveiss. We use available geoscience
and engineering data to establish drainage areheearrvoir continuity beyond one direct offsetrira producing well, which provides
additional proved undeveloped reserves. Inheretitamethodology is a requirement for significaeiivdensity of economically producing
wells to establish reasonable certainty. In genéigdtls where producing wells are less concentrataly direct offsets from proved producing
wells were assigned the proved undeveloped resetassification. No new technologies were usedstign proved undeveloped reserves.

At December 31, 2012, our proved undeveloped resamere 1,788 Bcfe, a decrease of 271 Bcfe ovebeoember 31, 2011 proved
undeveloped reserves estimate of 2,059 Bcfe. D@1, 220 Bcfe of our December 31, 2011 provecuelbped reserves were converted tc
proved developed reserves at a cost of $333 milAenadditional 250 Bcfe of proved developed resemwas added to total proved reserves
due to the development of unproved locations. A304f2 year-end, we have reclassified a 143 Bcim fopooved to probable reserves due to th
SEC five year rules. An additional 534 Bcfe thateveneconomic at 1&onth average pricing used in 2012 were also reifiag from proved
Combined additions and revisions of proved undeyedadrillings locations were 692 Bcfe of which 48&e were additions or extensions of
previously unproved locations and the remainder pvasarily due to the restoration of reserves thete reclassified to probable reserves in
prior years due to the SEC five year rules. Theskassified reserves under the SEC five year melgpeedominately in the Piceance Basin
where we have a large inventory of drilling locagoAdditionally, our divestiture in 2012 of ourltimgs in the Barnett Shale and Arkoma
Basin accounted for a 48 Bcfe decline in provedewtbped reserves.

All proved undeveloped locations are scheduledetepgud within the next five years.
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Oil and Gas Production, Production Prices and Prodation Costs
The following table summarizes our net productiales for the years indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Production Sales Data:
Natural Gas (MMcf)
u.s.
Piceance Basi 246,17¢ 247,70( 230,27¢
Other(a) 151,30:  141,08(  141,21(
International(b 7,061 7,38¢ 7,08¢
Total 404,54  396,16¢ 378,57
NGLs (Mbbls)
u.S.
Piceance Basi 10,07t 9,90z 8,00t
Other(a) 317 15t 51
International(b’ 181 182 162
Total 10,57 10,24( 8,21¢
Oil (Mbbls)
u.S. 4,394 2,657 82¢
International(b’ 2,17¢ 2,05¢ 1,98(
Total 6,57 4,70t 2,80¢
Combined Equivalent Volumes (MMcfe)( 507,41t  485,84( 444,72
Combined Equivalent Volumes (Mba 84,56¢ 80,97 74,12:
Average Daily Combined Equivalent Volumes (MMcfe
u.S.
Piceance Basi 852 85t 77E
Other(a) 47€ 41¢ 38¢
International(b 58 57 55
Total 1,38¢ 1,331 1,21¢

(a) Excludes production from our Barnett Shale and Arkdasin operations, which were the subject okpatition in 2012
(b) Includes approximately 69 percent of Apco’sdurction (which corresponds to our ownership inteireg\pco) and other minor directly
held interests
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The following tables summarize our domestic sat&sepand cost information for the years indicated.

Domestic realized average price per unit(a)
Natural gas, without hedges (per M
Impact of hedges (per Mc
Natural gas, with hedges (per M
NGL, without hedges (per Bb
Impact of hedges (per Bt
NGL, with hedges (per Bb
Oil, without hedges (per Bb
Impact of hedges (per Bt
Oil, with hedges (per Bb
Price per Boe, without hedgesi
Price per Boe, with hedges(
Price per Mcfe, without hedges(

Price per Mcfe, with hedges(

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ 2.32 $ 3.4¢ $ 3.6¢

1.0€ 0.84 0.9¢
$ 3.3¢ $ 4.3 $ 4.5¢
$28.5¢ $40.17 $35.02
$28.5¢ $40.17 $35.02
$83.3¢ $84.91 $65.9¢

2.2¢ 0.3¢ —
$85.5¢ $85.3( $65.9¢
$19.57 $25.5¢€ $24.0¢
$24.91 $29.7¢ $28.7¢
$ 3.2¢ $ 4.2¢ $ 4.01
$ 4.1¢ $ 4.9¢ $ 4.7¢

(8) Excludes our Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basin opmratiwhich were the subject of a disposition in22(
(b) Realized average prices reflect realized markeeprinet of fuel and shrin

Domestic expenses per Mcfe(a):
Operating expense
Lifting costs and workovet
Facilities operating expen:
Other operating and maintenar
Total LOE
Gathering, processing and transportation che
Taxes other than incon

Production cos
General and administrati
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat

Year Ended December 31

(a) Excludes our Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basin opmratiwhich were the subject of a disposition in22(

Productive Oil and Gas Wells
The table below summarizes 2012 productive wellartsa(a).

Piceance Basin
Bakken Shal
Marcellus Shalt
Powder River Basil
San Juan Basi
Other(b)

Total

14

Gas Wells

2012 2011 2010
$0.4¢ $0.4z $0.41
0.0: 0.0z 0.1z
0.0t 0.0t 0.04
$0.52 $0.51 $0.57
1.04 1.0t 0.7t
0.1¢ 0.24 0.2t
$1.7¢ $1.8C $1.57
$0.5¢€ $0.57 $0.5¢
$1.9:2 $1.8¢ $1.87
Gas Wells Oil Wells Oil Wells
(Net) (Gross) Net
4,101 — —
— 101 62
65 — —
2,21z — —
887 — —
2€ — —
7,291 101 62
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(&) We use the term “gross” to refer to all wellsaoreage in which we have at least a partial wrkiterest and “net” to refer to our
ownership represented by that working inter
(b) Other includes Green River Basin and miscellansoedler properties

At December 31, 2012, there were 233 gross and&flproducing wells with multiple completions.

Developed and Undeveloped Acreage
The following table summarizes our leased acreagd ®ecember 31, 2012.

Developed Undeveloped Total
Gross Acres Net Acres Gross Acres Net Acres Gross Acres Net Acres
Piceance Basin 126,76: 99,68: 159,03! 117,14¢ 285,79¢ 216,82¢
Bakken Shalt 56,84¢ 51,47¢ 34,36: 32,721 91,20 84,20¢
Marcellus Shal 25,66¢ 17,67( 123,96¢ 96,39’ 149,63 114,06°
Powder River Basil 641,27: 291,28 246,28. 107,18: 887,55! 398,47(
San Juan Basi 228,51t 114,78: 48,40¢ 40,69 276,92! 155,47
Other(a) 24,31; 3,171 218,31. 150,71¢ 242,62 153,89(
Total 1,103,37! 578,07( 830,36° 544,86:. 1,933,74 1,122,93

(@) Other includes Green River Basins, other WillisBasin acreage and miscellaneous smaller prope

Drilling and Exploratory Activities

We focus on lower-risk development drilling. Ouvdmpment drilling success rate was 100 perceB0iR and approximately
99 percent in both 2011 and 2010.

The following table summarizes the number of domestlls drilled for the periods indicated.

2012 2011 2010
Gross Wells Net Wells Gross Wells Net Wells Gross Wells Net Wells
Piceance Basin 23¢ 20¢€ 38t 361 39¢ 36C
Bakken Shalt 41 27 25 20 — —
Marcellus Shalt 54 33 36 17 8 3
Powder River Basil 15C 92 52¢ 22t 531 244
San Juan Basi 11 6 56 33 43 15
Other(a) 52 — 212 34 177 38
Productive, developme! 547 36€ 1,23 69C 1,157 66C
Productive, exploratio 1 1 2 2 — —
Total Productive 54¢ 367 1,23¢ 692 1,157 66C
Dry, developmen — — 2 1 5 4
Dry, exploration — — — — — —
Total Drilled 54¢ 367 1,241 69:< 1,16 664

(&) Other includes Green River Basin and miscellanasoualler properties

Total gross operated wells drilled were 423 in 20/BB in 2011 and 656 in 2010.

Present Activities

At December 31, 2012, we had ten gross (sevenwedl§ in the process of being drilled. As previgusbted in Significant Properties, \
also have a large number of wells that are awatorgpletion.
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Scheduled Lease Expirations

Domestic. The table below sets forth, as of December 312201t gross and net acres scheduled to expiretlwerext several years.
The acreage will not expire if we are able to d&hlproduction by drilling wells on the lease prio the expiration date. We expect to hold
substantially all of the Bakken Shale acreage biirdy prior to its expiration. We expect to holdost of the Marcellus Shale acreage through
combination of drilling, lease extensions and realew

2013 2014 2015 2016 + Total
Piceance Basin 3,157 15,59¢ 77¢ 13,71¢ 33,25(
Bakken Shals 3,40 874 40 97¢ 5,297
Marcellus Shalt 38,467 11,567 22,63¢ 29,51¢ 102,18t
Powder River Basil 13,64 1,87¢ — 1,70¢ 17,23:
San Juan Basi — — — 8,16: 8,16:
Other 14,96: 30,08: 12,45¢ 82,08 139,58’

Total (Gross Acres 73,63t 60,00 35,91: 136,16' 305,71!

2013 2014 2015 2016 + Total

Piceance Basin 2,047 8,32: 39¢ 12,08: 22,85(
Bakken Shals 3,34¢ 491 20 97¢ 4,83¢
Marcellus Shalt 29,38¢ 8,227 19,66¢ 22,46 79,74
Powder River Basil 6,722 932 — 872 8,527
San Juan Basi — — — 8,16: 8,16:
Other 14,16« 29,35( 12,21: 82,08 137,81

Total (Net Acres 55,66 47,32« 32,30( 126,64. 261,93(

International. In general, all of our concessions have expiratiates of either 2025 or 2026, except for two cesioas that expire
beyond 2030 and four that expire in 2015 and 2@\diéh respect to these four, we are negotiatingytesw- extensions for which we have
contractual rights. These four concessions repteggroximately 169,000 acres net to Apco or apipnately 116,000 acres net to WPX basec
on our 69 percent ownership in Apco. Our remaigirgperties in Argentina and Colombia are all exglimn permits or exploration contracts
that have much shorter terms and on which we haderexploration investment commitments that mustdmepleted. These areas will expire
between 2013 and 2017 unless discoveries are mhdee are opportunities to extend exploration tefians year with good technical
justification. We can either declare the portiohthese blocks where we have made discoveries coamhand convert that acreage t
concession or exploitation acreage with a spectenh for production of 25 to 35 years, or relirgfua portion or the balance of the acreage if
we are not willing to make further exploration coitments.

Gas Management

Our sales and marketing activities include the e&leur natural gas, NGL and oil production alonighvthird party purchases and sales o
natural gas, which includes natural gas purchased forking interest owners in operated wells atietparea third party producers. Through
May 1, 2012, this activity included sales of natgas to Williams Partners for use in its midstrdausiness. Our sales and marketing activitie:
also include the management of various naturatgjated contracts such as transportation, storadeeated price risk management activity.
We primarily engage in these activities to enhaheevalue received from the sale of our naturalagakoil production. Revenues associated
with the sale of our production are recorded iraoidl gas revenues. The revenues and expenses telather marketing activities are reportec
on a gross basis as part of gas management revende®sts and expenses.

Delivery Commitments

We hold a long-term obligation to deliver on a fibasis 200,000 MMBtu/d of natural gas to a buyeghatWhite River Hub
(Greasewood-Meeker, Colorado), which is the majarket hub exiting the Piceance Basin.
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The Piceance, being our largest producing basimergges ample production to fulfill this obligatiasithout risk of nonperformance during
periods of normal infrastructure and market opereti While the daily volume of natural gas is laage represents a significant percentage of
our daily production, this transaction does notespnt a material exposure. This obligation expie€014.

Purchase Commitments

In December 2010, we agreed to buy up to 200,00k of natural gas at Transco Station 515 (Mdusebhale) priced at market
prices from a third party. Purchases under theddt-gontract began in January 2012. We expeciltthisenatural gas in the open market and
may utilize available transportation capacity tolftate the sales.

Seasonality

Generally, the demand for natural gas decreasésgdiie spring and fall months and increases dutiegvinter months and in some
areas during the summer months. Seasonal anorsatibsas mild winters or hot summers can lessemtensify this fluctuation. Conversely,
during extreme weather events such as blizzardschoes, or heat waves, pipeline systems can be¢emporary constraints to supply
meeting demand thus amplifying localized price epidn addition, pipelines, utilities, local distition companies and industrial users utilize
natural gas storage facilities and purchase somteeafanticipated winter requirements during themwer months. This can lessen seasonal
demand fluctuations. World weather and resultaicegrfor liquefied natural gas can also affectvdles of competing liquefied natural gas
into this country from abroad, affecting the pridelomestically produced natural gas. In additeayerse weather conditions can also affect
our production rates or otherwise disrupt our opena.

Hedging Activity

To manage the commodity price risk and volatiligaciated with owning producing natural gas, NGt erude oil properties, we enter
into derivative contracts for a portion of our egsal future production. See further discussiorMiatiagement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Customers

Qil, NGLs and natural gas production is sold thitoogr sales and marketing activities to a variétgurchasers under various length
contracts ranging from one day to muyléar at market based prices. Our third party custerimclude other producers, utility companies, g«
generators, banks, marketing and trading compameésnidstream service providers. In 2012, natwaalgples to BP Energy Company
accounted for approximately 10 percent of our cbdated revenues. During 2012, Williams accountadlf percent of our consolidated
revenue. We believe that the loss of one or mo@uoturrent natural gas, oil or NGLs purchasersldimot have a material adverse effect on
our ability to sell our production, because anyivitial purchaser could be readily replaced by laeopurchaser, absent a broad market
disruption.

REGULATORY MATTERS

The oil and natural gas industry is extensivelyufated by numerous federal, state, local and faraigthorities, including Native
American tribes in the United States. Legislatitfeaing the oil and natural gas industry is undemstant review for amendment or expansior
frequently increasing the regulatory burden. Ataemerous departments and agencies, both federaitaie] and Native American tribes are
authorized by statute to issue rules and regulstidmding on the oil and natural gas industry asdhdividual members, some of which carry
substantial penalties for noncompliance. Althoughregulatory burden on the oil and natural gasstrgt increases our cost of doing business
and, consequently, affects our profitability, thbsedens generally do not affect us any differeatlyo any greater or lesser extent than they
affect other companies in the industry with simtigres, quantities and locations of production.
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The availability, terms and cost of transportasignificantly affect sales of oil and natural géke interstate transportation and sale for
resale of oil and natural gas is subject to fedemllation, including regulation of the terms, ditions and rates for interstate transportation,
storage and various other matters, primarily byRERC. Federal and state regulations govern tloe jamd terms for access to oil and natural
gas pipeline transportation. The FERC's regulationsnterstate oil and natural gas transmissiosdame circumstances may also affect the
intrastate transportation of oil and natural gas.

Although oil and natural gas prices are currentiyegulated, Congress historically has been aatitké area of oil and natural gas
regulation. We cannot predict whether new legistatb regulate oil and natural gas might be progoadat proposals, if any, might actually
be enacted by Congress or the various state lagista and what effect, if any, the proposals mighte on our operations. Sales of condensat
and oil and NGLs are not currently regulated amdnaade at market prices.

Drilling and Production

Our operations are subject to various types ofletigun at federal, state, local and Native Ameritidmal levels. These types of regulat
include requiring permits for the drilling of welldrilling bonds and reports concerning operatidsst states, and some counties,
municipalities and Native American tribal areas vehee operate also regulate one or more of thevidtig activities:

» the location of wells

» the method of drilling and casing wel

« the timing of construction or drilling activitieadluding seasonal wildlife closure

» the employment of tribal members or use of trib@hed service businesst

» the rates of production “allowables”

» the surface use and restoration of properties wgoch wells are drilled

e the plugging and abandoning of we

* the notice to surface owners and other third psiriad

» the use, maintenance and restoration of roads 1éahgels used during all phases of drilling and pudigun.

State laws regulate the size and shape of drifiimjspacing units or proration units governingpbeling of oil and natural gas
properties. Some states allow forced pooling aggrdation of tracts to facilitate exploration whilther states rely on voluntary pooling of lands
and leases. In some instances, forced poolingitization may be implemented by third parties arad/meduce our interest in the unitized
properties. In addition, state conservation lavial#sh maximum rates of production from oil andunal gas wells, generally prohibit the
venting or flaring of natural gas and impose regmients regarding the ratability of production. Thkesvs and regulations may limit the
amount of oil and natural gas we can produce framwells or limit the number of wells or the loaats at which we can drill. Moreover, each
state generally imposes a production or severanceith respect to the production and sale of @éigas, oil and NGLs within its jurisdiction.
States do not regulate wellhead prices or engagthar similar direct regulation, but there cambeassurance that they will not do so in the

future. The effect of such future regulations maytd limit the amounts of oil and natural gas thaty be produced from our wells, negatively
affect the economics of production from these weligo limit the number of locations we can drill.

Federal, state and local regulations provide dsdaquirements for the abandonment of wells, ¢tosu decommissioning of production
facilities and pipelines, and for site restorationareas where we operate. Most states have amiathative agency that requires the posting o
performance bonds to fulfill financial requiremefds owners and operators on state land. The Ariop€of Engineers and many other state
and
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local authorities also have regulations for pluggamd abandonment, decommissioning and site réistorélthough the Army Corps of
Engineers does not require bonds or other finaasislirances, some state agencies and municipdlitieave such requirements.

Natural Gas Sales and Transportation

Historically, federal legislation and regulatoryntémls have affected the price of the natural gagpvoduce and the manner in which we
market our production. The FERC has jurisdictiorrathe transportation and sale for resale of nagasin interstate commerce by natural ga
companies under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 andNttaral Gas Policy Act of 1978. Various federaldaenacted since 1978 have resulted ir
the complete removal of all price and non-pricetaaa for sales of domestic natural gas sold ist fdales, which include all of our sales of our
own production. Under the Energy Policy Act of 208t FERC has substantial enforcement authoriprdbibit the manipulation of natural
gas markets and enforce its rules and orders,dimguthe ability to assess substantial civil peealt

The FERC also regulates interstate natural gaspmatation rates and service conditions and estadsithe terms under which we may
use interstate natural gas pipeline capacity, waftdcts the marketing of natural gas that we pcegdas well as the revenues we receive for
sales of our natural gas and release of our nagasapipeline capacity. Commencing in 1985, the EpRomulgated a series of orders,
regulations and rule makings that significantlytéoed competition in the business of transportimd) marketing natural gas. Today, interstate
pipeline companies are required to provide nonglisnatory transportation services to producers kaigrs and other shippers, regardless of
whether such shippers are affiliated with them. FE®C'’s initiatives have led to the developmend @bmpetitive, open access market for
natural gas purchases and sales that permitsralhasers of natural gas to buy directly from thpedty sellers other than pipelines. However,
the natural gas industry historically has been Vyexgvily regulated; therefore, we cannot guaratitaethe less stringent regulatory approach
currently pursued by the FERC and Congress wiltinae indefinitely into the future nor can we detare what effect, if any, future regulat
changes might have on our natural gas relateditesiv

Under the FERC's current regulatory regime, trassion services must be provided on an open-aceesdjscriminatory basis at cost-
based rates or at market-based rates if the trailasipo market at issue is sufficiently competitiGathering service, which occurs upstream o
jurisdictional transmission services, is regulaigdhe states onshore and in state waters. Althdagtolicy is still in flux, the FERC has in tl
past reclassified certain jurisdictional transnuadiacilities as non-jurisdictional gathering féa#ls, which has the tendency to increase our
costs of transporting natural gas to point-of-sadations.

Oil Sales and Transportation

Sales of crude oil, condensate and NGLs are nottly regulated and are made at negotiated privegertheless, Congress could
reenact price controls in the future.

Our crude oil sales are affected by the availahitérms and cost of transportation. The transgiortaf oil in common carrier pipelines
also subject to rate regulation. The FERC reguiatiesstate oil pipeline transportation rates urtterinterstate Commerce Act and intrastate
oil pipeline transportation rates are subject tjutation by state regulatory commissions. The bfasigtrastate oil pipeline regulation, and the
degree of regulatory oversight and scrutiny giveimtrastate oil pipeline rates, varies from statetate. Insofar as effective interstate and
intrastate rates are equally applicable to all caraple shippers, we believe that the regulationildfansportation rates will not affect our
operations in any way that is of material differefiom those of our competitors.

Further, interstate and intrastate common carriqrijpelines must provide service on a non-discniatory basis. Under this open access
standard, common carriers must offer service tehifipers requesting service on the same termsahet the same rates. When oil pipelines
operate at full capacity, access is governed byatimming provisions set forth in the pipelineshtished tariffs. Accordingly, we believe that
access to oil pipeline transportation services galyewill be available to us to the same extentaasur competitors.
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Operation on Native American Reservations

A portion of our leases are, and some of our fukesses may be, regulated by Native American trilmeaddition to regulation by vario
federal, state, and local agencies and authordiegntirely separate and distinct set of lawsragdlations applies to lessees, operators and
other parties within the boundaries of Native Aroani reservations in the United States. Variousriddgencies within the U.S. Departmen
the Interior, particularly the Bureau of Indian aiffs, the Office of Natural Resources Revenue amgé®. of Land Management (“BLM”), and
the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), togathvith each Native American tribe, promulgate antbrce regulations pertaining to oil
and gas operations on Native American reservatibmsse regulations include lease provisions, rgyabtitters, drilling and production
requirements, environmental standards, Tribal eympént contractor preferences and numerous othderaat

Native American tribes are subject to various fatistatutes and oversight by the Bureau of Indi#ai¥s and BLM. However, each
Native American tribe is a sovereign nation andthasight to enact and enforce certain other lamg regulations entirely independent fr
federal, state and local statutes and regulatemigng as they do not supersede or conflict witthdederal statutes. These tribal laws and
regulations include various fees, taxes, requirdsiEnemploy Native American tribal members or uidml owned service businesses and
numerous other conditions that apply to lessees;adprs and contractors conducting operations withé boundaries of a Native American
reservation. Further, lessees and operators watiNative American reservation are often subjethéoNative American tribal court system,
unless there is a specific waiver of sovereign imityuby the Native American tribe allowing resobutiof disputes between the Native
American tribe and those lessees or operatorsdor da federal or state court.

Therefore, we are subject to various laws and egiguis pertaining to Native American tribal surfavenership, Native American oil and
gas leases, fees, taxes and other burdens, obtigand issues unique to oil and gas ownershipperhtions within Native American
reservations. One or more of these requirementglalys in obtaining necessary approvals or penmitsuant to these regulations, may
increase our costs of doing business on Native Agaeitribal lands and have an impact on the ecoaembility of any well or project on
those lands.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations are subject to numerous federdé,dtacal, Native American tribal and foreign laarsd regulations governing the
discharge of materials into the environment or otige relating to environmental protection. ApphtaU.S. federal environmental laws
include, but are not limited to, the Comprehen&wgironmental Response, Compensation, and Lialfldy(“CERCLA”), the Clean Water
Act (“CWA") and the Clean Air Act (“CAA”). These las and regulations govern environmental cleanupdstals, require permits for air,
water, underground injection, solid and hazardoastevdisposal and set environmental compliancerieitin addition, state and local laws ¢
regulations set forth specific standards for drglivells, the maintenance of bonding requiremantsder to drill or operate wells, the spacing
and location of wells, the method of drilling arebing wells, the surface use and restoration gdgat@s upon which wells are drilled, the
plugging and abandoning of wells, and the prevendiod cleanup of pollutants and other matters. \&@tain insurance against costs of clean
up operations, but we are not fully insured agaafistuch risks. Additionally, Congress and federad state agencies frequently revise the
environmental laws and regulations, and any chatigegsesult in delay or more stringent and cogdymitting, waste handling, disposal and
clean-up requirements for the oil and gas industiyld have a significant impact on our operatingt€oAlthough future environmental
obligations are not expected to have a materiahohpn the results of our operations or financdmdition, there can be no assurance that
future developments, such as increasingly stringamironmental laws or enforcement thereof, will cause us to incur material environme
liabilities or costs.

Public and regulatory scrutiny of the energy indukis resulted in increased environmental reqaiadind enforcement being either
proposed or implemented. For example, EPA’s 202013 National Enforcement Initiatives include Enekxtraction and “Assuring Energy
Extraction Activities Comply with Environmental
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Laws.” According to the EPA’s website, “some teatuds for natural gas extraction pose a significaftto public health and the
environment.” To address these concerns, the E§dgsis to “address incidences of noncompliancenfratural gas extraction and productior
activities that may cause or contribute to sigaifitharm to public health and/or the environmehhé EPA has emphasized that this initiative
will be focused on those areas of the country wleaergy extraction activities are concentrated,thedocus and nature of the enforcement
activities will vary with the type of activity arttie related pollution problem presented. Thisatiitie could involve a large scale investigation
of our facilities and processes, and could legobtential enforcement actions, penalties or injivactelief against us.

Failure to comply with these laws and regulatiora/mesult in the assessment of administrativel| ain criminal fines and penalties and
the imposition of injunctive relief. Accidental eglses or spills may occur in the course of ouraifmers, and we cannot assure you that we wil
not incur significant costs and liabilities as aul¢ of such releases or spills, including anydiparty claims for damage to property, natural
resources or persons. Although we believe thatre@énasubstantial compliance with applicable enwinental laws and regulations and that
continued compliance with existing requirementd mitt have a material adverse impact on us, thanebe no assurance that this will continue
in the future.

The environmental laws and regulations that coalkeha material impact on the oil and natural ggdogation and production industry
and our business are as follows:

Hazardous Substances and Wast€&RCLA, also known as the “Superfund lawiposes liability, without regard to fault or treghlity
of the original conduct, on certain classes of gesshat are considered to be responsible forelease of a “hazardous substance” into the
environment. These persons include the owner aratqeof the disposal site or sites where the sdaacurred and companies that transporte
or disposed or arranged for the transport or delpaisthe hazardous substances found at the stesoRs who are or were responsible for
releases of hazardous substances under CERCLA ensytiject to joint and several liability for thestoof cleaning up the hazardous
substances that have been released into the emardgrand for damages to natural resources, aadhdtiuncommon for neighboring
landowners and other third parties to file corregfiog common law claims for personal injury andpey damage allegedly caused by the
hazardous substances released into the environment.

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCR&herally does not regulate wastes generatedebgxgbloration and production
of natural gas and oil. The RCRA specifically extda from the definition of hazardous wadgteilfing fluids, produced waters and other wa:
associated with the exploration, development odpetion of crude oil, natural gas or geothermakgné However, legislation has been
proposed in Congress from time to time that woeldassify certain natural gas and oil exploratind production wastes as “hazardous
wastes,” which would make the reclassified wastdgest to much more stringent handling, disposdl@aan-up requirements. If such
legislation were to be enacted, it could have aiiant impact on our operating costs, as welhasnatural gas and oil industry in general.
Moreover, ordinary industrial wastes, such as paagtes, waste solvents, laboratory wastes andwést may be regulated as hazardous
waste.

We own or lease, and have in the past owned oedea@mshore properties that for many years have bsed for or associated with the
exploration and production of natural gas andAdthough we have utilized operating and disposatpices that were standard in the industry
at the time, hydrocarbons or other wastes may baee disposed of or released on or under the giepewned or leased by us on or under
other locations where such wastes have been takelisposal. In addition, a portion of these préiperhave been operated by third parties
whose treatment and disposal or release of wastesat under our control. These properties anevistes disposed thereon may be subject
CERCLA, the CWA, the RCRA and analogous state lawsler such laws, we could be required to remowemediate previously disposed
wastes (including waste disposed of or releasegrioy owners or operators) or property contamimaiacluding groundwater contamination
by prior owners or operators), or to perform rerabgiugging or closure operations to prevent futtoatamination.
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Waste DischargesThe CWA and analogous state laws impose restnigtémd strict controls with respect to the discaargpollutants,
including spills and leaks of oil and other substam into waters of the United States. The disehafgollutants into regulated waters is
prohibited, except in accordance with the terma pérmit issued by the EPA or an analogous starcyg The CWA and regulations
implemented thereunder also prohibit the dischafgiredge and fill material into regulated watéms)uding jurisdictional wetlands, unless
authorized by an appropriately issued permit. pélvention, control and countermeasure requiresneffiederal laws require appropriate
containment berms and similar structures to hedygmt the contamination of navigable waters byteofmim hydrocarbon tank spill, rupture
or leak. In addition, the CWA and analogous stateslrequire individual permits or coverage underegal permits for discharges of storm
water runoff from certain types of facilities. Fealeand state regulatory agencies can impose aslmative, civil and criminal penalties as well
as other enforcement mechanisms for non-compliasittedischarge permits or other requirements ofGN¥A and analogous state laws and
regulations. On February 16, 2012, the EPA isshedihal 2012 construction general permit (“CGR¥) $tormwater discharges from
construction activities involving more than oneeavhich will provide coverage for a five year eki The 2012 CGP modifies the prior CGP
to implement the new Effluent Limitations Guidelkinend New Source Performance Standards for thet@otisn and Development Industry.
The new rule includes new and more stringent i&giris on erosion and sediment control, pollutioevpntion and stabilization, although a
numeric turbidity limit for certain larger consttion sites has been stayed as of January 4, 2011.

Air Emissions.The CAA and associated state laws and regulatesisicts the emission of air pollutants from maowyrces, including o
and gas operations. New facilities may be requipasbtain permits before construction can begin, existing facilities may be required to
obtain additional permits and incur capital costsiider to remain in compliance. More stringenutations governing emissions of toxic air
pollutants and greenhouse gases (“GHGs") have teesloped by the EPA and may increase the costsmpliance for some facilities. In
2012, the EPA issued federal regulations affeabmgoperations under the New Source PerformancelStds (“NSPS”) provisions (new
Subpart OOOO) and expanded regulations under ratenission standards for hazardous air polluthiE SHAP”), although
implementation of some of the more rigorous requésts is not required until 2015.

Qil Pollution Act. The Qil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended (“OPAf)d regulations thereunder impose a variety ofireqents on
“responsible parties” related to the preventiowibspills and liability for damages resulting frasuch spills in United States waters. A
“responsible party” includes the owner or operatioan onshore facility, pipeline or vessel, or légsee or permittee of the area in which an
offshore facility is located. OPA assigns liabilttyeach responsible party for oil cleanup costsamariety of public and private damages.
While liability limits apply in some circumstancesparty cannot take advantage of liability linmiftthe spill was caused by gross negligence o
willful misconduct or resulted from violation offaderal safety, construction or operating reguratlbthe party fails to report a spill or to
cooperate fully in the cleanup, liability limitkéwise do not apply. Few defenses exist to thédlilmbmposed by OPA. OPA imposes ongoing
requirements on a responsible party, includingptiegaration of oil spill response plans and prddfrancial responsibility to cover
environmental cleanup and restoration costs thaltddee incurred in connection with an oil spill.

National Environmental Policy ActOil and natural gas exploration and productionvéigs on federal lands are subject to the Nationa
Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”"). NEPA requiresdeeral agencies, including the Department of Intetmevaluate major agency actions
having the potential to significantly impact theveanment. The process involves the preparatiogither an environmental assessment or
environmental impact statement depending on whekteespecific circumstances surrounding the propésaeral action will have a significe
impact on the human environment. The NEPA proagssives public input through comments which caerate nature of a proposed project
either by limiting the scope of the project or riging resourcespecific mitigation. NEPA decisions can be appe#iedugh the court system
process participants. This process may resultlayiey the permitting and development of projeirisrease the costs of permitting and
developing some facilities and could result in @erinstances in the cancellation of existing lease
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Endangered Species Acthe Endangered Species Act (‘ESA”) restricts dti¢is that may affect endangered or threatenedepec
their habitats. While some of our operations majobated in areas that are designated as hahitagshflangered or threatened species, we
believe that we are in substantial compliance WithESA. However, the designation of previouslydentified endangered or threatened
species could cause us to incur additional costeoome subject to operating restrictions or barike affected states.

Worker Safety. The Occupational Safety and Health Act (“OSHA"Hartomparable state statutes regulate the protegfitire health and
safety of workers. The OSHA hazard communicatiandard requires maintenance of information abop&itious materials used or produced
in operations and provision of such informatioretoployees. Other OSHA standards regulate specdikev safety aspects of our operations.
Failure to comply with OSHA requirements can leadhie imposition of penalties.

Safe Drinking Water ActThe Safe Drinking Water Act (*SDWA”) and comparalstate statutes restrict the disposal, treatnmereiease
of water produced or used during oil and gas devetnt. Subsurface emplacement of fluids (includiisposal wells or enhanced oil recowv
is governed by federal or state regulatory auttesrithat, in some cases, includes the state oibasdegulatory authority or the state’s
environmental authority. These regulations mayedase the costs of compliance for some facilities.

Hydraulic Fracturing. We ordinarily use hydraulic fracturing as a memsiaximize the productivity of our oil and gas lseh all of the
domestic basins in which we operate. Our net aerpagition in the basins in which hydraulic fragtgris utilized total approximately 690,000
acres and represents approximately 64 percentrafa@uestic proved undeveloped oil and gas reseAldsugh average drilling and
completion costs for each basin will vary, as Wil cost of each well within a given basin, on agerapproximately 30 percent of the drilling
and completion costs for each of our wells for wahice use hydraulic fracturing is associated witbrhaylic fracturing activities. These costs
are treated in the same way that all other costkilihg and completion of our wells are treatewiare built into and funded through our
normal capital expenditure budget.

The protection of groundwater quality is extremietportant to us. We follow applicable standard sty practices and legal
requirements for groundwater protection in our afiens. These measures are subject to close ssjperby state and federal regulators
(including the BLM with respect to federal acreggefich conduct many inspections during operatitias include hydraulic fracturing.
Industry standards and legal requirements for giawater protection focus on six principal areasp(gssure testing of well construction and
integrity, (ii) lining of pits used to hold watené other fluids used in the drilling process isethfrom surface water and groundwater,

(iii) casing and cementing practices for wells is@e separation of the production zone from grauatelr, (iv) disclosure of the chemical
content of fracturing liquids, (v) setback requiesits as to the location of waste disposal areas(\@npre- and post-drilling groundwater
sampling. The legal requirements relating to theqmtion of surface water and groundwater vary fetate to state and there are also federal
regulations and guidance that apply to all dome#kiltng. In addition, the American Petroleum litste publishes industry standards and
guidance for hydraulic fracturing and the protettid surface water and groundwater. Our policy prrattice is to follow all applicable
guidelines and regulations in the areas where wdwatt hydraulic fracturing.

In addition to the required use of and specificatifor casing and cement in well construction, Wwseove regulatory requirements and
what we consider best practices to ensure wellindegrity and full isolation of any underground &gts and protection of surface waters.
These include the following:

» Prior to perforating the production casing and hawdic fracturing operations, the casing is pressested

» Before the fracturing operation commences, allaagfequipment is pressure tested, which includewéiihead and all pressurized
lines and connections leading from the pumping@gent to the wellhead. During the pumping phasekehydraulic fracturing
treatment, specialized equipment is utilized to iworand record surface pressures, pumping ratégmes and chemical
concentration:
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to ensure the treatment is proceeding as desigmtha wellbore integrity is sound. Should any jpeabbe detected during the
hydraulic fracturing treatment, the operation istsown until the problem is evaluated, reported mmediatec

As a means to protect against the negative impdeny potential surface release of fluids assediatith the hydraulic fracturing
operation, special precautions are taken to enmorger containment and storage of fluids. For eXangmy earthen pits containing
non-fresh water must be lined with a synthetic inafmis liner. These pits are tested regularly, iancertain sensitive areas have
additional leak detection systems in place. Attltas feet of freeboard, or available capacity, hhespresent in the pit at all times.
In addition, earthen berms are constructed arongctorage tanks, any fluid handling equipment, iargbme cases around the
perimeter of the location to contain any fluid eddes. These berms are considered to be a “secdfoianyof containment and
serve as an added measure for the protection ahgveater

We conduct baseline water monitoring in many oftilisins in which we use hydraulic fracturii

In Colorado, baseline water monitoring is requibgdhe Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commis§io@GCC") and may be
required by BLM as a condition of approval for thvdlling permit.

In Pennsylvania, we perform baseline water monigppursuant to Pennsylvania Department of Envirartaid®rotection
requirements

There are currently no regulatory requirementsotudeict baseline water monitoring in the Bakken Slaalthe New Mexico portio
of our San Juan Basin assets. We plan to begimtaoily conducting water monitoring in the Bakkemag. The majority of our
assets in the San Juan Basin are on federal landghere are few cases where water wells arenathé to two miles of our wells,
which is outside the range that we would typicalynple.

Once a pipe is set in place, cement is pumpedfigtaovell where it hardens and creates a permaisefdting barrier between the steel
casing pipe and surrounding geological formatidimss aspect of the well design essentially elimésat “pathway” for the fracturing fluid to
contact any aquifers during the hydraulic fractgraperations. Furthermore, in the basins in whiehcanduct hydraulic fracturing, the
hydrocarbon bearing formations are separated figyruaable underground aquifers by thousands ofofdietpermeable rock layers. This wide
separation serves as a protective barrier, prengatiy migration of fracturing fluids or hydrocarsoupwards into any groundwater zones.

In addition, the vendors we employ to conduct hyticaracturing are required to monitor all pumpesand pressures during the
fracturing treatments. This monitoring occurs aeal-time basis and data is recorded to ensuregtioh of groundwater.

The cement and steel casing used in well construcén have rare failures. Any failure in isolatismeported to the applicable oil and
gas regulatory body. A remediation procedure istemiand approved and then completed on the widtdany further operations or
production is commenced. Possible isolation faguray result from:

Improper cementing worl This can create conditions in which hydraulic fraing fluids and other natural occurring substanear
migrate into the surrounding geological formatiBnoduction casing cementing tops and cement bdedtiefeness are evaluated
using either a temperature log or an acousticakogtnond log prior to any completion operationshé cement bond or cement top
is determined to be inadequate for zone isolatiemedial cementing operations are performed taffijl voids and re-establish
integrity. As part of this remedial operation, tasing is again pressure tested before fractugpegations are initiate«

Initial casing integrity failure The casing is pressure tested prior to commermangpletion operations. If the test fails due to a
compromise in the casing, the applicable oil argirggulatory body will be notified and a remediatpyocedure will be written,
approved and completed before any further operstioe conducted. In addition, casing pressuremargtored throughout the
fracturing treatment and any indication of failwi result in an immediate shutdown of the operat
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»  Well failure or casing integrity failure during pduoction. Loss of wellbore integrity can occur over timeenf the well was
correctly constructed due to downhole operatingrenments causing corrosion and stress. Duringypriioin, the bradenhead,
casing and tubing pressures are monitored andirgcdasiure can be identified and evaluated. Remali could include placing
additional cement behind casing, installing a aagiatch, or plugging and abandoning the well, dassary

*  “Fluid leakoff” during the fracturing processFluid leakoff can occur during hydraulic frachgioperations whereby some of the
hydraulic fracturing fluid flows through the artifally created fractures into the micropore or pgpaces within the formation,
existing natural factures in the formation, or drfralctures opened into the formation by the pressuthe induced fracture. Fluid
leakoff is accounted for in the volume design adnheevery fracturing job and “pump-in” tests afeea conducted prior to
fracturing jobs to estimate the extent of fluidketi. In certain situations, a very fine grain sas@dded in the initial part of the
treatment to se-off any small fractures of micropore spaces andgaui fluid lea-off.

Approximately 99 percent of hydraulic fracturingifls are made up of water and sand. We utilize nfajdraulic fracturing service
companies whose research departments conduct gndeuelopment of “greener” chemicals that are uisdhcturing. We evaluate, test, and
where appropriate adopt those products that are emrironmentally friendly. We have also chosepadicipate in a voluntary fracturing
chemical registry that is a public websitevw.fracfocus.orgit which interested persons can find out informmatibout fracturing fluids. This
registry is a joint project of the Ground Waterteation Council and the Interstate Oil and Gas Cach@ommission and provides our indus
with an avenue to voluntarily disclose chemicaksduis the hydraulic fracturing process. The Compauystered with the FracFocus Chemica
Disclosure Registry in April 2011 and began uplogdiata when the registry went live on April 11120To date, we have loaded data on
more than 800 wells, including data relating tolsvélactured since January 1, 2011, to the sit&s{3tent with other industry participants, we
are not planning to add data on wells drilled pt@2011. The information included on this webgteot incorporated by reference in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In 2012, we used 100 percent recycled water folhgdraulic fracturing operations in our largestsaoé development, the Piceance Bg
This recycling process lessens the demand on tatatal water resources. Any water that is recal@reur operations that is not used for out
hydraulic fracturing operations is safely disposedccordance with the state and federal rulesregdlations in a manner that does not impac
underground aquifers and surface waters. In thedllas, we use a blend of recycled water from quiraulic fracturing operations with water
from natural sources.

Despite our efforts to minimize impacts on the emwment from hydraulic fracturing activities, iglit of the volume of our hydraulic
fracturing activities, we have occasionally beegaged in litigation and received requests for imfation, notices of alleged violation, and
citations related to the activities of our hydradtacturing vendors, none of which has resulteann material costs or penalties.

Recently, there has been a heightened debate dxether the fluids used in hydraulic fracturing ntaytaminate drinking water supply
and proposals have been made to revisit the emaigatal exemption for hydraulic fracturing under 8IBWA or to enact separate federal
legislation or legislation at the state and localgrnment levels that would regulate hydraulic tindag. Both the United States House of
Representatives and Senate have considered FracResponsibility and Awareness of Chemicals AERAC Act”) bills and a number of
states, including states in which we have operatiare looking to more closely regulate hydrautictfuring due to concerns about water
supply. The recent congressional legislative effegek to regulate hydraulic fracturing to Undeugibinjection Control program
requirements, which would significantly increasdlwapital costs. If the exemption for hydrauli@éturing is removed from the SDWA, or if
other legislation is enacted at the federal, siatecal level, any restrictions on the use of laydic fracturing contained in any such legislation
could have a significant impact on our financiahdition and results of operations.

Federal agencies are also considering regulatitwyarfaulic fracturing. The EPA recently assertatkfal regulatory authority over
hydraulic fracturing involving diesel additives wrdhe SDWA'’s Underground Injection
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Control Program, and on May 10, 2012, the EPA shield its proposed guidance on the issue. The pedrienent period for the proposed
permitting guidance closed on August 23, 2012,tarcEPA has yet to issue any final guidance. Ol@at21, 2011, the EPA announced its
intention to propose regulation by 2014 under théACto regulate wastewater discharges from hydréfdicturing and other natural gas
production. The EPA is also collecting informat@s part of a study into the effects of hydraulacfuring on drinking water. The results of -
study, which are expected to be published in a deabrt for public and peer review in 2014, corgdult in additional regulations, which could
lead to operational burdens similar to those dbedrabove. In connection with the EPA study, weshaeeived and responded to a request fc
information from the EPA for 52 of our wells locdtm various basins that have been hydraulicaigtiired. The requested information covers
well design, construction and completion practieaspng other things. We understand that similanests were sent to eight other companies
that own or operate wells that utilized hydrautacturing.

In addition to the EPA study, the Shale Gas Subcitieenof the Secretary of Energy Advisory Boardiess a report on hydraulic
fracturing in August 2011. The report concludeg tha risk of fracturing fluids contaminating dring water sources through fractures in the
shale formations “is remote.” It also states thatedopment of the nation’s shale resources hasupsatimajor economic benefits. The report
includes recommendations to address concernsddltateydraulic fracturing and shale gas productinaluding but not limited to conducting
additional field studies on possible methane leakagm shale gas wells to water reservoirs and ippew rules and enforcement practices
to protect drinking and surface waters. The Govemimccountability Office is also examining the @ommental impacts of produced water
and the Counsel for Environmental Quality has lysstitioned by environmental groups to develop ggmammatic environmental impact
statement under NEPA for hydraulic fracturing. Thated States Department of the Interior is alsestaering whether to impose disclosure
requirements or other mandates for hydraulic fr@mguon federal land.

Several states, including Pennsylvania, ColoradwiiNDakota, New Mexico and Wyoming, have adoptedre considering adopting,
regulations that could restrict or impose additlarguirements related to hydraulic fracturing. Egample, on December 13, 2011, the Texas
Railroad Commission adopted Statewide Rule 29, vhéquires public disclosure of the chemicals tparators use during hydraulic
fracturing in Texas for all operators that receavgermit on or after February 1, 2012. Pennsylvalsa requires that detailed information be
disclosed regarding the hydraulic fracturing flyiokeluding but not limited to, a list of chemicdditives, volume of each chemical added, an
list of chemicals in the material safety data shie®ince June 2009, Colorado has required all agerto maintain a chemical inventory by v
site for each chemical product used downhole aedtéor use downhole during drilling, completiordamorkover operations, including
fracture stimulation in an amount exceeding 500npiswluring any quarterly reporting period. Coloradopted its final hydraulic fracturing
chemical disclosure rules on December 13, 2011.Mityg requires public disclosure of chemicals uselyidraulic fracturing. Disclosure of
chemicals used in the hydraulic fracturing proaesdd make it easier for third parties opposinghiéraulic fracturing process to initiate legal
proceedings based on allegations that specific efadsnused in the fracturing process could advemsiéct groundwater. A number of states
have also adopted regulations increasing the detiegiirements, or are in the process of rulematoreddress the issue, including Colorado,
New Mexico and Pennsylvani

In addition, a number of local governments in Catlr have imposed temporary moratoria on drillingrps within city limits so that
local ordinances may be reviewed to assess thequaty to address such activities, while some ataddocal governments in the Marcellus
Shale and San Juan Basin in New Mexico have comsid® imposed temporary moratoria on drilling @piens using hydraulic fracturing
until further study of the potential environmerdald human health impacts by the EPA or the relatiate agencies are completed.
Additionally, publicly operated treatment worksifdaies in Pennsylvania have ceased taking wastesfadm hydraulic fracturing operations,
and we are now recycling this wastewater and utijzt in subsequent hydraulic fracturing operasioft this time, it is not possible to estim
the potential impact on our business of these staddocal actions or the enactment of additioedéfal or state legislation or regulations
affecting hydraulic fracturing.
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Global Warming and Climate Chang®&ecent scientific studies have suggested thatsémnis of GHGs, including carbon dioxide and
methane, may be contributing to warming of therésuidtmosphere. Both houses of Congress have piglyiconsidered legislation to reduce
emissions of GHGs, and almost one-half of the sthtee already taken legal measures to reduceiengsst GHGs, primarily through the
planned development of GHG emission inventories@aneégional GHG cap and trade programs. The EPblegun to regulate GHG
emissions. On December 7, 2009, the EPA publistseithdings that emissions of GHGs present an egetanent to public heath and the
environment. These findings allow the EPA to adopd implement regulations that would restrict eroiss of GHGs under existing provisio
of the CAA. The EPA issued a final rule that wantbieffect in 2011 that makes certain stationaryses and newer modification projects
subject to permitting requirements for GHG emissiddn November 30, 2010, the EPA published itd finle expanding the existing GHG
monitoring and reporting rule to include onshord affshore oil and natural gas production facititend onshore oil and natural gas proces
transmission, storage, and distribution facilitiReporting of GHG emissions from such facilitiedl Wwe required on an annual basis, and our
reporting began in 2012 for emissions occurringda1. We are required to report our GHG emissigmeuthis rule but are not subject to
GHG permitting requirements. Several of the EPAMGSrules are being challenged in court proceedamgsdepending on the outcome of
such proceedings, such rules may be modified eirrdsd or the EPA could develop new rules.

Because regulation of GHG emissions is relatively nfurther regulatory, legislative and judiciavéépments are likely to occur. Such
developments may affect how these GHG initiativékimpact our operations. In addition to theseukadory developments, recent judicial
decisions have allowed certain tort claims allegingperty damage to proceed against GHG emissmungas and may increase our litigation
risk for such claims. New legislation or regulatpnpgrams that restrict emissions of or requiremuory of GHGs in areas where we operate
have adversely affected or will adversely affeat @perations by increasing costs. The cost inceagdar have resulted from costs associate
with inventorying our GHG emissions, and furthestsamay result from the potential new requiremémtsbtain GHG emissions permits,
install additional emission control equipment andrecreased monitoring and record-keeping burden.

Legislation or regulations that may be adopteddidrass climate change could also affect the mafketsur products by making our
products more or less desirable than competingceswf energy. To the extent that our productanepeting with higher GHG emitting
energy sources such as coal, our products woulsthbeenore desirable in the market with more strib¢jeritations on GHG emissions. To the
extent that our products are competing with lowklGzemitting energy sources such as solar and wimdproducts would become less
desirable in the market with more stringent limidas on GHG emissions. We cannot predict with asyainty at this time how these
possibilities may affect our operations.

Finally, it should be noted that some scientisteeh@oncluded that increasing concentrations of GHiGlse Earth’s atmosphere may
produce climate changes that have significant glaysffects, such as increased frequency and $gweérstorms, floods and other climatic
events. If any such effects were to occur, theydcadversely affect or delay demand for the oihatural gas or otherwise cause us to incur
significant costs in preparing for or respondingtose effects.

Foreign Operations.Our exploration and production operations outsiideUnited States are subject to various typesgilations
similar to those described above imposed by thegowuents of the countries in which we operate,raay affect our operations and costs
within those countries. For example, the Argenfd@partment of Energy and the government of theipo®g in which Apco’s oil and gas
producing concessions are located have environinesmérol policies and regulations that must beeadt to when conducting oil and gas
exploration and exploitation activities. Future eammental regulation of certain aspects of ourrapens in Argentina and Colombia that are
currently unregulated and changes in the lawsgulagions could materially affect our financial cition and results of operations.
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COMPETITION

We compete with other oil and gas concerns, inalgidinajor and independent oil and gas companidgeinlévelopment, production and
marketing of natural gas. We compete in areas aaatquisition of oil and gas properties and obtginecessary equipment, supplies and
services. We also compete in recruiting and ratgiskilled employees.

In our gas management services business, we compettly with large independent energy marketararketing affiliates of regulated
pipelines and utilities and natural gas producéfs.also compete with brokerage houses, energy Haddes and other enerdyased compani
offering similar services.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2012 , we had approximately 1,20etime employees.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS

See Iltem 8—Financial Statements and Supplementatg-BNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Mdtef our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for financiabinfation with respect to our segments’ revenuasijtpror losses, and total assets.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

See Iltem 8—Financial Statements and Supplementatg-BNote 17 of our Notes to Consolidated Finarsfatements for amounts of
revenues during the last three fiscal years frotaraal customers attributable to the United Stateball foreign countries. Also, see Note 1
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsformation relating to long-lived assets during thst three fiscal years, located in the
United States and all foreign countries.

WEBSITE ACCESS TO REPORTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our websitvw.wpxenergy.com/investgreur annual reports on Form kKQ-quarterly report
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxatesnents, other reports filed under the Secutiiehange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”)
and all amendments to those reports simultaneausdg soon as reasonably practicable after suckrialas electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC. Our reports are also aviailibe of charge on the SEC’s websiteyw.sec.gov You may inspect and copy our reports
at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F StkeEt, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEB00) SEC-0330 for further
information on the Public Reference Room. Also ¢ free of charge on our website are the follmniorporate governance documents:

« Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora
* Restated Bylaw
» Corporate Governance Guidelir

» Code of Business Conduct, which is applicable it X Energy directors and employees, includingghacipal executive office
the principal financial officer and the principaicaunting officel

* Audit Committee Charte
» Compensation Committee Char
* Nominating and Governance Committee Che
All of our reports and corporate governance documeray also be obtained without charge by contgdtimestor Relations, WPX
Energy, Inc., One Williams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma72.

We maintain an Internet site at www.wpxenergy.cévie. do not incorporate our Internet site, or thernfation contained on that site or
connected to that site, into this Annual ReporForm 10-K.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
FOR PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARBOR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 199 5

Certain matters contained in this Annual ReporForm 10-K include forwardeoking statements that are subject to a numbesks an
uncertainties, many of which are beyond our confrbkese forward-looking statements relate to guditeid financial performance,
management’s plans and objectives for future omersitbusiness prospects, outcome of regulatorygeaings, market conditions and other
matters.

All statements, other than statements of histofeetls, included in this report that address atitisj events or developments that we
expect, believe or anticipate will exist or may acm the future, are forward-looking statementsvard-looking statements can be identified
by various forms of words such as “anticipates,”
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“believes,
“targets,

” " ou ” w ” o ” w ” w ” w ” w ”

seeks,” “could,” “may,” “should,” “catinues,” “estimates,” “expects,” “forecasts,” “imes,” “might,” “goals,” “objectives,”

" “planned,” “potential,” “projects,” “saduled,” “will” or other similar expressions. Thefeeward-looking statements are based on

management’s beliefs and assumptions and on intfameurrently available to management and inclaseong others, statements regarding:

Amounts and nature of future capital expenditu
Expansion and growth of our business and operat
Financial condition and liquidity

Business strateg'

Estimates of proved gas and oil resen

Reserve potentia

Development drilling potentia

Cash flow from operations or results of operatic
Acquisitions or divestiture

Seasonality of our business; ¢

Natural gas, natural gas liquic*NGLs") and crude oil prices and demal

Forward-looking statements are based on numerausrgrions, uncertainties and risks that could céuisee events or results to be
materially different from those stated or impliedtiis report. Many of the factors that will detémmthese results are beyond our ability to
control or predict. Specific factors that could saactual results to differ from results contengaldty the forward-looking statements include,
among others, the following:

Availability of supplies (including the uncertaies inherent in assessing, estimating, acquiringdendloping future natural gas ¢
oil reserves), market demand, volatility of prieewl the availability and cost of capit

Inflation, interest rates, fluctuation in foreignchange and general economic conditions (incluélihgre disruptions and volatility
in the global credit markets and the impact of ¢hegents on our customers and supplit

The strength and financial resources of our cortgsti
Development of alternative energy sourc
The impact of operational and development haz:

Costs of, changes in, or the results of laws, gowent regulations (including climate change regoaand/or potential additional
regulation of drilling and completion of wells),\@ronmental liabilities, litigation and rate prockegs;

Changes in maintenance and construction ¢
Changes in the current geopolitical situati
Our exposure to the credit risk of our custom

Risks related to strategy and financing, includiestrictions stemming from our debt agreementsiréuthanges in our credit
ratings and the availability and cost of cre

Risks associated with future weather conditic
Acts of terrorism; an

Other factors described in “Management’s Discussioth Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations” and
“Busines¢’
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All forward-looking statements attributable to uspersons acting on our behalf are expressly dedlif their entirety by the cautionary
statements set forth above. Given the uncertaiatidsrisk factors that could cause our actual tesaldiffer materially from those contained in
any forward-looking statement, we caution investasto unduly rely on our forward-looking statertser-orward-looking statements speak
only as of the date they are made. We disclaimadfigation to and do not intend to update the abist@r to announce publicly the result of
any revisions to any of the forward-looking statetseo reflect future events or developments, exttethe extent required by applicable laws.
If we update one or more forward-looking statememésinference should be drawn that we will makeitaahal updates with respect to those
or other forward-looking statements.

In addition to causing our actual results to diffee factors listed above and referred to below o@aise our intentions to change from
those statements of intention set forth in thioreBuch changes in our intentions may also causeesults to differ. We may change our
intentions, at any time and without notice, basgdnuchanges in such factors, our assumptions henetse.

Because forward-looking statements involve risks amcertainties, we caution that there are impoftetors, in addition to those listed
above, that may cause actual results to differ nadliefrom those contained in the forward-lookisgtements. These factors are described in
“Risk Factors.”
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiisgs, which we believe are the principal riskatttve face and of which we are
currently aware, and all of the other informationthis report. Some of the risks described beldatego our business, while others relate to
our separation from Williams. Other risks relatérmmipally to the securities markets and ownersHipur common stock. If any of the follow
risks actually occur, our business, financial cdrmi, cash flows and results of operations coulifesumaterially and adversely. In that case,
the trading price of our common stock could deglared you might lose all or part of your investment

Risks Related to Our Business

Our business requires significant capital expermgisuand we may be unable to obtain needed capitish@ncing on satisfactory terms
at all.

Our exploration, development and acquisition atiégirequire substantial capital expenditures. Weet to fund our capital expenditu
through a combination of cash flows from operatiand, when appropriate, borrowings under our cffaditity. Future cash flows are subject
to a number of variables, including the level afguction from existing wells, prices of natural gasl oil and our success in developing and
producing new reserves. If our cash flow from ofiers is not sufficient to fund our capital expendé budget, we may have limited ability to
obtain the additional capital necessary to sugiaimoperations at current levels. We may not be abbbtain debt or equity financing on terms
favorable to us or at all. The failure to obtaimléidnal financing could result in a curtailmentair operations relating to exploration and
development of our prospects, which in turn coaltlito a decline in our natural gas and oil pradoatr reserves, and in some areas a loss ¢
properties.

Failure to replace reserves may negatively affestlisiness.

The growth of our business depends upon our alidifind, develop or acquire additional natural gad oil reserves that are
economically recoverable. Our proved reserves géljatecline when reserves are produced, unlessonwduct successful exploration or
development activities or acquire properties caonigi proved reserves, or both. We may not alwayaldbe to find, develop or acquire
additional reserves at acceptable costs. If nagaslor oil prices increase, our costs for addilioeserves would also increase; conversely if
natural gas or oil prices decrease, it could makeore difficult to fund the replacement of oureases.

Exploration and development drilling may not resalcommercially productive reserves.

Our past success rate for drilling projects shaultlbe considered a predictor of future commesuatess. Our decisions to purchase,
explore, develop or otherwise exploit prospectproperties will depend in part on the evaluationlafa obtained through geophysical and
geological analyses, production data and engingetundies, the results of which are often inconetusr subject to varying interpretations.
The new wells we drill or participate in may notdmmmercially productive, and we may not recoveoabny portion of our investment in
wells we drill or participate in. Our efforts whle unprofitable if we drill dry wells or wells thate productive but do not produce enough
reserves to return a profit after drilling, opengtiand other costs. The cost of drilling, complgtmd operating a well is often uncertain, and
cost factors can adversely affect the economiespybject. Further, our drilling operations maycoetailed, delayed, canceled or rendered
unprofitable or less profitable than anticipatecaesult of a variety of other factors, including:

* Increases in the cost of, or shortages or delatfseimvailability of, drilling rigs and equipmestpplies, skilled labor, capital or
transportation

» Equipment failures or acciden
» Adverse weather conditions, such as floods or atitg;
» Title and lease related problen
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» Limitations in the market for natural gas and

» Unexpected drilling conditions or problen

» Pressure or irregularities in geological formatic

* Regulations and regulatory approv:

» Changes or anticipated changes in energy price

« Compliance with environmental and other governniaeguirements

If natural gas and oil prices decrease, we maydipiired to take writ@lowns of the carrying values of our natural gas aiigroperties

Accounting rules require that we review periodigalie carrying value of our natural gas and oilpemties for possible impairment. Ba
on specific market factors and circumstances atitthe of prospective impairment reviews and thetiocming evaluation of development plans,
production data, economics and other factors, we lmeaequired to write down the carrying value of natural gas and oil properties. A
writedown constitutes a non-cash charge to earnirgsexample, as a result of annual and interisessments for impairments of our proved
and unproved properties and due to significantideslin forward natural gas prices, we recordecainmpents of capitalized costs of certain
natural gas properties of $225 million in 2012atfdition to those long-lived assets for which innpegant charges were recorded, certain other
were reviewed for which no impairment was requifEtese reviews included other domestic producingg@rties and costs of acquired
unproved reserves, and utilized inputs generalhsistent with those described above. Judgmentassumptions are inherent in our estimate
of future cash flows used to evaluate these asBe¢suse of alternate judgments and assumptiorld cesult in the recognition of different
levels of impairment charges in the consolidatadritial statements. For the other producing asseieswed, but for which impairment char
were not recorded, we estimate that approximakebetpercent could be at risk for impairment ififard prices across all future periods
decline by approximately 11 percent to 12 percemtaverage, as compared to the forward commoditgpat December 31, 2012. We
estimate that approximately 31 percent could bésktfor impairment if forward commodity prices ass all periods decline by approximately
16 percent to 18 percent. A substantial portiothefremaining carrying value of these other aggeimarily related to assets in the Piceance
Basin) could be at risk for impairment if forwardqes across all future periods decline by apprataty 23 percent, on average, as compared
to the prices at December 31, 2012 . We may inopairment charges for these or other propertiglsarfuture, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations fopagods in which such charges are taken.

Estimating reserves and future net revenues ingalveertainties. Decreases in natural gas and vdgs, or negative revisions to
reserve estimates or assumptions as to future abgiars and oil prices may lead to decreased eamsyit@gses or impairment of natural
gas and oil assets.

Reserve estimation is a subjective process of atiafyiunderground accumulations of oil and gas¢hahot be measured in an exact
manner. Reserves that are “proved reserves” ase thstimated quantities of crude oil, natural gasNGLs that geological and engineering
data demonstrate with reasonable certainty arevezable in future years from known reservoirs uredésting economic and operating
conditions and relate to projects for which thea@otion of hydrocarbons must have commenced oopleeator must be reasonably certain tha
it will commence the project within a reasonabiedi

The process relies on interpretations of availgkel@ogical, geophysical, engineering and produdtiata. There are numerous
uncertainties inherent in estimating quantitiepraived reserves and in projecting future ratesofipction and timing of developmental
expenditures, including many factors beyond thdrcbof the producer. The reserve data includeithis report represent estimates. In addit
the estimates of future net revenues from our praeserves and the present value of such estiraegdsased upon certain assumptions abous
future production levels, prices and costs that matyprove to be correct.
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Quantities of proved reserves are estimated basegda@nomic conditions in existence during the pedbassessment. Changes to oil an
gas prices in the markets for such commaodities haase the impact of shortening the economic liveseofain fields because it becomes
uneconomic to produce all recoverable reservesion fields, which reduces proved property resestienates.

If negative revisions in the estimated quantitieproved reserves were to occur, it would haveetffiect of increasing the rates of
depreciation, depletion and amortization on theaé&d properties, which would decrease earningssoit in losses through higher
depreciation, depletion and amortization expenkese revisions, as well as revisions in the assongof future cash flows of these reserves
may also be sufficient to trigger impairment lossescertain properties which would result in a rasiccharge to earnings.

The development of our proved undeveloped resemagsake longer and may require higher levels giteh expenditures than we
currently anticipate.

Approximately 40 percent of our total estimatedvaebreserves at December 31, 2012 were proved alapmd reserves and may not be
ultimately developed or produced. Recovery of pcdovrdeveloped reserves requires significant capipénditures and successful drilling
operations. The reserve data included in the resemgineer reports assumes that substantial cagjtehditures are required to develop such
reserves. We cannot be certain that the estimaigd of the development of these reserves areatectinat development will occur as
scheduled or that the results of such developméhbevas estimated. Delays in the developmentunfreserves or increases in costs to drill
and develop such reserves will reduce the PV-10evaf our estimated proved undeveloped reservesutine net revenues estimated for suct
reserves and may result in some projects beconmiaganomic. In addition, delays in the developmédméeserves could cause us to have to
reclassify our proved reserves as unproved reserves

The present value of future net revenues from oawgd reserves will not necessarily be the santb@asalue we ultimately realize of ¢
estimated natural gas and oil reserves.

You should not assume that the present value ofdutet revenues from our proved reserves is threrumarket value of our estimated
natural gas and oil reserves. In accordance with @fuirements, we have based the estimated dissmiuture net revenues from our proved
reserves on the 12-month unweighted arithmeticameeof the first-day-of-the-month price for theqading twelve months without giving
effect to derivative transactions. Actual futureé revenues from our natural gas and oil propentiise affected by factors such as:

» actual prices we receive for natural gas anc
» actual cost of development and production experest
» the amount and timing of actual production;
* changes in governmental regulations or taxa
The timing of both our production and our incurrend expenses in connection with the developmeditpaaduction of natural gas and
oil properties will affect the timing and amountaaftual future net revenues from proved reservesilaus their actual present value. In

addition, the 10 percent discount factor we usenrdeculating discounted future net revenues mayadhe most appropriate discount factor
based on interest rates in effect from time to téme risks associated with us or the natural gdsodrindustry in general.

Certain of our domestic undeveloped leasehold assetsubject to leases that will expire over thetrseveral years unless production is
established on units containing the acreage.

The majority of our acreage in the Marcellus Sh&leot currently held by production. Unless prodéutin paying quantities is
established on units containing these leases dthiigterms, the leases will expire. If we do ertend our leases and our leases expire and \
are unable to renew the leases, we will lose @intiio develop the related properties. Our drillphgns for these areas are subject to change
based upon various factors,
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including drilling results, natural gas and oilqas, availability and cost of capital, drilling apbduction costs, availability of drilling service
and equipment, gathering system and pipeline tatesjion constraints and regulatory and lease sssue

Prices for natural gas, oil and NGLs are volatiéad this volatility could adversely affect our fir@al results, cash flows, access to
capital and ability to maintain our existing busase

Our revenues, operating results, future rate ofvtirand the value of our business depend primapiyn the prices of natural gas, oil anc
NGLs. Price volatility can impact both the amour keceive for our products and the volume of prtglue sell. Prices affect the amoun
cash flow available for capital expenditures andahility to borrow money under our credit facility raise additional capital.

The markets for natural gas, oil and NGLs are Jikelcontinue to be volatile. Wide fluctuationsprices might result from relatively

minor changes in the supply of and demand for tbesamodities, market uncertainty and other factioas are beyond our control, including:

*  Weather conditions

* The level of consumer demar

» The overall economic environmel

*  Worldwide and domestic supplies of and demand &unal gas, oil and NGL:

*  Turmoil in the Middle East and other producing cet;

» The activities of the Organization of Petroleum &sting Countries

» Terrorist attacks on production or transportatieses

» Variations in local market conditions (basis diéfetial);

e The price and availability of other types of fue

e The availability of pipeline capacit

e Supply disruptions, including plant outages andgpmrtation disruption:

e The price and quantity of foreign imports of natwas and oil

» Domestic and foreign governmental regulations ands;

» Volatility in the natural gas and oil marke

» The credit of participants in the markets wheredpads are bought and sold; &

» The adoption of regulations or legislation relatioglimate change

Our business depends on access to natural gaandiNGL transportation systems and facilities.

The marketability of our natural gas, oil and NGbqguction depends in large part on the operatieailability, proximity, capacity and
expansion of transportation systems and facili@aed by third parties. For example, we can promid@ssurance that sufficient transporta
capacity will exist for expected production fronetBakken Shale and Marcellus Shale or that webeilhble to obtain sufficient transportation
capacity on economic terms.

A lack of available capacity on transportation syss and facilities or delays in their planned exsj@ms could result in the shut-in of
producing wells or the delay or discontinuancerdfidg plans for properties. A lack of availabylibf these systems and facilities for an
extended period of time could negatively affect mwenues. In addition, we have entered into cotdr@r firm transportation and any failure
to renew those contracts on the same or better evaimhterms could increase our costs and our expds the risks described above.
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We may have excess capacity under our firm traigpon contracts, or the terms of certain of thasatracts may be less favorable tt
those we could obtain currently.

We have entered into contracts for firm transpameathat may exceed our transportation needs. Aog®s transportation commitments
will result in excess transportation costs thatidmegatively affect our results of operationsatidition, certain of the contracts we have
entered into may be on terms less favorable thas we could obtain if we were negotiating therauatent rates, which also could negatively
affect our results of operations.

We have limited control over activities on propestive do not operate, which could reduce our proda@nd revenues.

If we do not operate the properties in which we @mrinterest, we do not have control over normafating procedures, expenditures or
future development of underlying properties. Thkufa of an operator of our wells to adequatelyfguan operations or an operator’s breach of
the applicable agreements could reduce our praztuetid revenues or increase our costs. As of DeeeBih 2012 , we were not the operator
of approximately 14 percent of our total domes#t production. Apco generally has outsmgerated interests in its properties. The sucaed
timing of our drilling and development activities properties operated by others depend upon a nuohifectors outside of our control,
including the operator’s timing and amount of calp@xpenditures, expertise and financial resouioekjsion of other participants in drilling
wells and use of technology. Because we do not hawajority interest in most wells we do not operate may not be in a position to remove
the operator in the event of poor performance.

We might not be able to successfully manage tke associated with selling and marketing productthe wholesale energy markets.

Our portfolio of derivative and other energy contsaincludes wholesale contracts to buy and sélirabgas, oil and NGLs that are
settled by the delivery of the commodity or cashhé values of these contracts change in a dine@ manner that we do not anticipate or
cannot manage, it could negatively affect our itssoil operations. In the past, certain marketing) taading companies have experienced se
financial problems due to price volatility in theezgy commodity markets. In certain instances\blatility has caused companies to be un
to deliver energy commodities that they had guaeshunder contract. If such a delivery failure wiereccur in one of our contracts, we might
incur additional losses to the extent of amoufisny, already paid to, or received from, counteips. In addition, in our business, we often
extend credit to our counterparties. We are exptstite risk that we might not be able to colletibants owed to us. If the counterparty to
such a transaction fails to perform and any calldtihat secures our counterparty’s obligatiomadiequate, we will suffer a loss. Downturns ir
the economy or disruptions in the global creditkets could cause more of our counterparties tddgierform than we expect.

Our commodity price risk management and measuresysitems and economic hedging activities mighbedaffective and could
increase the volatility of our results.

The systems we use to quantify commodity price aissociated with our businesses might not alwaysellmeved or might not always be
effective. Further, such systems do not in thenesefaanage risk, particularly risks outside of auntwol, and adverse changes in energy
commodity market prices, volatility, adverse caatigln of commodity prices, the liquidity of markethanges in interest rates and other risks
discussed in this report might still adversely efffeur earnings, cash flows and balance sheet wamdicable accounting rules, even if risks
have been identified. Furthermore, no single hegigimangement can adequately address all commudiity risks present in a given contract.
For example, a forward contract that would be ¢iffean hedging commodity price volatility risks wigl not hedge the contract’s counterparty
credit or performance risk. Therefore, unhedgeksnigill always continue to exist.

Our use of derivatives through which we attempetuce the economic risk of our participation imoaodity markets could result in
increased volatility of our reported results. Chesiin the fair values (gains
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and losses) of derivatives that qualify as hedgeleuGAAP to the extent that such hedges are tigtdtfective in offsetting changes to the
value of the hedged commaodity, as well as changései fair value of derivatives that do not quabifyhave not been designated as hedges
under GAAP, must be recorded in our income. Théais the risk of volatility in earnings even ifemnomic impact to us has occurred
during the applicable period.

The impact of changes in market prices for natgaal, oil and NGLs on the average prices paid @ived by us may be reduced based
on the level of our hedging activities. These hedgirrangements may limit or enhance our margitieiimarket prices for natural gas, oil or
NGLs were to change substantially from the pridat@shed by the hedges. In addition, our hedgmargements expose us to the ris|
financial loss if our production volumes are ldsat expected.

The adoption and implementation of new statutony mgulatory requirements for derivative transaagacould have an adverse impact
on our ability to hedge risks associated with ousibess and increase the working capital requireiémconduct these activities.

In July 2010, federal legislation known as the Dé&ddnk Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection(the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was
enacted. Among other reasons, the Dodd-Frank Astemacted to establish federal oversight and régnlaf the over-the-counter derivatives
market and entities, such as us, that participatiat market. The Dodd-Frank Act provides for retatutory and regulatory requirements for
derivative transactions in the major energy markatduding swaps, hedging and other transactidnsong other things, the Dodd-Frank Act
provides for the creation of position limits forrtan derivatives transactions, as well as reqgithrat certain transactions be cleared on
exchanges, for which transactions cash or othaidigollateral will be required. Moreover, certaithe transactions required to be cleared
have to be executed on boards of trade. The poditiots rule was vacated by the United Statesrigis€ourt for the District of Columbia in
September of 2012, although the Commaodities Fuflirading Commission (“CFTC") has stated that ithappeal the District Court’s
decision.

The final impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our hedgactivities is uncertain at this time due to féduet that the SEC, the CFTC and other
federal regulatory bodies that have involvemerthis area have yet to complete the rules and régnfimplementing the new legislation.
Although we believe the derivative contracts thatemter into should not be impacted by positioritsirand that we should generally be elig
to elect the exception from any requirement torcbea hedging transactions through a central exgbatie impact upon our businesses will
depend on the outcome of the implementing regulatamopted by the CFTC and other federal regulagioneng other factors.

Depending on the rules adopted by the CFTC and &tleral regulatory bodies, the cost of enterittg and maintaining derivative
contracts could significantly increase, includingnfi costs associated with swap recordkeeping gattiag requirements, and because we
might in the future be required to provide caslotbier liquid collateral for our commodities hedgingnsactions under circumstances in which
we do not currently do so. Posting of such add#tiaash or illiquid collateral could impact ouruidity and reduce our cash available for
capital expenditures and reduce our ability to atebedges to reduce commodity price uncertaindytans protect cash flows. The Dodd-
Frank Act and related swaps regulations could riadherlter the terms of derivative contracts, regthe availability of derivatives to protect
against risks we encounter, and reduce our ahdityjonetize or restructure our existing derivateatracts. To the extent we do enter into
derivatives transactions, the Dodd-Frank Act amdréfated swaps regulations may also require thategparties to our derivative instruments
to spin off some of their derivatives activitiessparate entities, which may not be as creditwaththe current counterparties and therefore
increase our exposure to less creditworthy pariege reduce our use of derivatives as a resuthefDodd-Frank Act and regulations, our
results of operations may become more volatileraag be otherwise adversely affected and our castsfimay be less predictable.
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Any of these consequences could have a materigrse\effect on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations and cash
flows.

We are exposed to the credit risk of our custoraatscounterparties, and our credit risk managenmay not be adequate to protect
against such risk.

We are subject to the risk of loss resulting froompayment and/or nonperformance by our customeatsannterparties in the ordinary
course of our business. Our credit procedures aficigs may not be adequate to fully eliminate ocostr and counterparty credit risk. We
cannot predict to what extent our business woulaipacted by deteriorating conditions in the ecoppimcluding declines in our customers’
and counterparties’ creditworthiness. If we faibtbequately assess the creditworthiness of existifigture customers and counterparties,
unanticipated deterioration in their creditworthlis@nd any resulting increase in nonpayment andtgperformance by them could cause us t
write-down or write-off doubtful accounts. Such te@rdowns or write-offs could negatively affect arerating results in the periods in which
they occur and, if significant, could have a matleaidverse effect on our business, results of tipesa cash flows and financial condition.

We face competition in acquiring new propertiesrkating natural gas and oil and securing equipmamd trained personnel in the
natural gas and oil industry.

Our ability to acquire additional drilling locatisrand to find and develop reserves in the fututiedepend on our ability to evaluate and
select suitable properties and to consummate triinea in a highly competitive environment for aitang properties, marketing natural gas
and oil and securing equipment and trained perdoWe may not be able to compete successfully énftiure in acquiring prospective
reserves, developing reserves, marketing hydroaartaitracting and retaining quality personnel mising additional capital, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our operations are subject to operational hazardd anforeseen interruptions for which they maybwadequately insured.

There are operational risks associated with dglfior, production, gathering, transporting, storgecessing and treating of natural gas
and oil and the fractionation and storage of NGhsluding:

* Hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, extreme weatheritiond and other natural disaste

e Aging infrastructure and mechanical proble:

» Damages to pipelines, pipeline blockages or otiplipe interruptions

» Uncontrolled releases of natural gas (including g&s), oil, NGLs, brine or industrial chemice

*  Operator error

* Pollution and environmental risk

» Fires, explosions and blowou

» Risks related to truck and rail loading and unlaggiand

e Terrorist attacks or threatened attacks on oultitiasi or those of other energy compan

Any of these risks could result in loss of humde, Ipersonal injuries, significant damage to propesnvironmental pollution, impairme

of our operations and substantial losses to uactéoerdance with customary industry practice, wentai insurance against some, but not a
these risks and losses, and only at levels wevetebe appropriate. The location of certain segmef our facilities in or near populated

areas, including residential areas, commercialnassi centers and industrial sites, could incrdestetvel of damages resulting from these r
In spite of our precautions, an event such as tbeseribed above could cause considerable
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harm to people or property and could have a méatadieerse effect on our financial condition andutessof operations, particularly if the event
is not fully covered by insurance. Accidents orestbperating risks could further result in losseifvice available to our customers.

We do not insure against all potential losses amala be seriously harmed by unexpected liabilitieby the inability of our insurers to
satisfy our claims.

We are not fully insured against all risks inher@nbur business, including environmental accidéis do not maintain insurance in the
type and amount to cover all possible risks of.loss

We currently maintain excess liability insurancattbovers us, our subsidiaries and certain of tfiliages for legal and contractual
liabilities arising out of bodily injury or propgrdamage, including resulting loss of use to tipiadties. This excess liability insurance includes
coverage for sudden and accidental pollution lighil

Although we maintain property insurance on cergdigsical assets that we own, lease or are resperisimsure, the policy may not
cover the full replacement cost of all damagedtasse addition, certain perils may be excludedrfrooverage or sub-limited. We may not be
able to maintain or obtain insurance of the typd @amount we desire at reasonable rates. We malytelself insure a portion of our risks. All
of our insurance is subject to deductibles. Ifgm#icant accident or event occurs for which we moefully insured it could adversely affect our
operations and financial condition.

In addition, any insurance company that providestage to us may experience negative developmieattsduld impair their ability to
pay any of our claims. As a result, we could beosel to greater losses than anticipated and maythasbtain replacement insurance, if
available, at a greater cost.

Potential changes in accounting standards mightseaus to revise our financial results and disclesun the future, which might change
the way analysts measure our business or finapeaebrmance.

Regulators and legislators continue to take a reddwaok at accounting practices, financial andme=sedisclosures and companies’
relationships with their independent public acconmfirms and reserves consultants. It remainsaaralvhat new laws or regulations will be
adopted, and we cannot predict the ultimate imp&tiat any such new laws or regulations could h&avaddition, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board or the SEC could enact new acemustandards that might impact how we are requoedcord revenues, expenses, assets
liabilities and equity. Any significant change iocaunting standards or disclosure requirementsidoave a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢adi

Our investments and projects located outside ofthited States expose us to risks related to tivs laf other countries, and the taxes,
economic conditions, fluctuations in currency ragealitical conditions and policies of foreign gomments. These risks might delay or
reduce our realization of value from our internat# projects.

We currently own and might acquire and/or dispdseaterial energy-related investments and projeatside the United States,
principally in Argentina and Colombia. The econopgolitical and legal conditions and regulatory ieonment in the countries in which we
have interests or in which we might pursue acqaisior investment opportunities present risks #ratdifferent from or greater than those in
the United States. These risks include delays mstraction and interruption of business, as wellisiss of war, expropriation, nationalization,
renegotiation, trade sanctions or nullificatioreafsting contracts and changes in law or tax poliegluding with respect to the prices we
realize for the commaodities we produce and selé Wihcertainty of the legal environment in certairefgn countries in which we develop or
acquire projects or make investments could mak®rie difficult to obtain nonrecourse project finargcor other financing on suitable terms,
could adversely affect the ability of certain cuséss to honor their obligations with respect tohspiojects or investments and could impair
our ability to enforce our rights under agreemealating to such projects or investments.
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Operations and investments in foreign countries eds) present currency exchange rate and convigytibiflation and repatriation risk.
In certain situations under which we develop ordregprojects or make investments, economic andeataoy conditions and other factors cc
affect our ability to convert to U.S. dollars oareings denominated in foreign currencies. In daldijtrisk from fluctuations in currency
exchange rates can arise when our foreign subigdiarpend or borrow funds in one type of curreiey,receive revenue in another. In such
cases, an adverse change in exchange rates cae i@guability to meet expenses, including debtiserobligations. We may or may not put
contracts in place designed to mitigate our foreigmency exchange risks. We have some exposuaear not hedged and which could resul
in losses or volatility in our results of operason

In 2012, the Argentine government asserted thaaiceexploration and production companies operatingrgentina had not invested
sufficiently to overcome Argentina’s domestic protion declines, thereby leading to reduced levétsland natural gas production as well as
reductions in oil and natural gas proved reser@esthat basis, six provinces rescinded certainegdsRl YPF S.A.’s (“YPF”") and other
producers’ concessions. In addition, the federabgament expropriated a majority interest in YRg kargest oil producing company in
Argentina. If the government subjectively deterrsitigat we have not sufficiently invested in ourg@udies, it could take action with regard to
our concessions before our contract terms expire.

Our operating results might fluctuate on a seas@ral quarterly basis.

Our revenues can have seasonal characteristiosay parts of the country, demand for natural gasaher fuels peaks during the
winter. As a result, our overall operating resiudtthe future might fluctuate substantially on as@nal basis. Demand for natural gas and othe
fuels could vary significantly from our expectatsotiepending on the nature and location of ourifesland the terms of our natural gas
transportation arrangements relative to demandexiday unusual weather patterns.

Our debt agreements impose restrictions on usrtiat limit our access to credit and adversely aféectability to operate our business.

Our credit facility contains various covenants tregtrict or limit, among other things, our abilitygrant liens to support indebtedness,
merge or sell substantially all of our assets, nmiakestments, loans or advances and enter intaindredging agreements, make certain
distributions, incur additional debt and enter ioéotain affiliate transactions. In addition, ouedit facility contains financial covenants and
other limitations with which we will need to compynd which may limit our ability to borrow undeetFacility. Similarly, the indenture
governing the Notes restricts our ability to grirs to secure certain types of indebtedness arderor sell substantially all of our assets.
These covenants could adversely affect our alidifynance our future operations or capital needsngage in, expand or pursue our business
activities and prevent us from engaging in certansactions that might otherwise be considereéfi@al to us. Our ability to comply with
these covenants may be affected by events beyanebatrol, including prevailing economic, financald industry conditions. If market or
other economic conditions deteriorate, our curessumptions about future economic conditions tutrtmbe incorrect or unexpected events
occur, our ability to comply with these covenangsyrbe significantly impaired.

Our failure to comply with the covenants in our tdaggreements could result in events of default.rJfh@ occurrence of such an event of
default, the lenders could elect to declare all ant® outstanding under a particular facility toilenediately due and payable and terminate al
commitments, if any, to extend further credit. @gripayment defaults or an acceleration under eh¢ ayreement could cause a cross-defaul
or cross-acceleration of another debt agreemeh &wross-default or crossceleration could have a wider impact on our dgyithan migh
otherwise arise from a default or acceleration sihgle debt instrument. If an event of defaultwsc or if other debt agreements cross-default
and the lenders under the affected debt agreeraeogderate the maturity of any loans or other deldtanding to us, we may not have
sufficient liquidity to repay amounts outstandingder such debt agreements.
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Our ability to repay, extend or refinance our deftifgations and to obtain future credit will depearimarily on our operating
performance, which will be affected by general eguit, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatpbusiness and other factors, many of
which are beyond our control. Our ability to refica our debt obligations or obtain future credit also depend upon the current condition
the credit markets and the availability of credihgrally. If we are unable to meet our debt sergld@ations or obtain future credit on
favorable terms, if at all, we could be forcedéstructure or refinance our indebtedness, seekianai equity capital or sell assets. We may b
unable to obtain financing or sell assets on satiefy terms, or at all.

Difficult conditions in the global capital markethe credit markets and the economy in generalctcoebatively affect our business and
results of operations.

Our business may be negatively impacted by adwsrseomic conditions or future disruptions in glofiaé&ncial markets. Included
among these potential negative impacts are redered)y demand and lower commodity prices, increddédulty in collecting amounts
owed to us by our customers and reduced accesedit markets. Our ability to access the capitalkats may be restricted at a time when we
would like, or need, to raise financing. If finangiis not available when needed, or is availablg on unfavorable terms, we may be unable tc
implement our business plans or otherwise takergtelge of business opportunities or respond to ctitiygepressures.

We are subject to risks associated with climatengea

There is a growing belief that emissions of grearsiecgases (“GHGs'hay be linked to climate change. Climate changethedosts thi
may be associated with its impacts and the reguiatf GHGs have the potential to affect our busriesnany ways, including negatively
impacting the costs we incur in providing our produand services, the demand for and consumptionrgbroducts and services (due to
change in both costs and weather patterns), anecttreomic health of the regions in which we operaiteof which can create financial risks.

In addition, legislative and regulatory responsgated to GHGs and climate change create the patémt financial risk. The
U.S. Congress has previously considered legislai@hcertain states have for some time been camsgidearious forms of legislation related
to GHG emissions. There have also been interndtédfats seeking legally binding reductions in esidons of GHGs. In addition, increased
public awareness and concern may result in mote,stgional and/or federal requirements to reduagritigate GHG emissions.

Numerous states have announced or adopted progosstebilize and reduce GHGs, as well as their mporting requirements. On
September 22, 2009, the EPA finalized a GHG repgntile that requires large sources of GHG emissiormonitor, maintain records on, and
annually report their GHG emissions. On Novembe&(,0, the EPA also issued GHG monitoring and témpregulations that went into
effect on December 30, 2010, specifically for eilanatural gas facilities, including onshore andladre oil and natural gas production
facilities that emit 25,000 metric tons or morecafbon dioxide equivalent per year—the GreenhowseReporting Program (“GHGRP”). The
rule requires reporting of GHG emissions by regddhcilities to the EPA by March 2012 for emissialuring 2011 and annually thereafter.
We are required to report our GHG emissions td&RA each year in March under this rule. The EPAliphbs the data on its website. The
EPA also issued a final rule that makes certaitiostary sources and newer modification projectgestlio permitting requirements for GHG
emissions, beginning in 2011, under the CAA.

The recent actions of the EPA and the passageydiederal or state climate change laws or regutatimould result in increased costs to
(i) operate and maintain our facilities, (ii) inktaew emission controls on our facilities and)(@minister and manage any GHG emissions
program. If we are unable to recover or pass tHraugignificant level of our costs related to coyimgy with climate change regulatory
requirements imposed on us, it could have a matdigerse effect on our results of operations amahtial condition. To the extent financial
markets view climate change and GHG emissionsfimaiacial risk, this could negatively impact ourstof and
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access to capital. Legislation or regulations thay be adopted to address climate change couldfilstt the markets for our products by
making our products more or less desirable thanpetimg sources of energy.

Our operations are subject to governmental laws geglilations relating to the protection of the enviment, which may expose us to
significant costs and liabilities that could excerarent expectations.

Substantial costs, liabilities, delays and othgnigicant issues could arise from environmentaldamd regulations inherent in drilling ¢
well completion, gathering, transportation, andage, and we may incur substantial costs and iligsilin the performance of these types of
operations. Our operations are subject to exterfsikeral, state and local laws and regulations gorg environmental protection, the
discharge of materials into the environment andstraurity of chemical and industrial facilities.€He laws include:

» Clean Air Act “CAA") and analogous state laws, which impose obligatieladed to air emission

» Clean Water Act (“CWA"), and analogous state lawkich regulate discharge of wastewaters and stoatenfrom some our
facilities into state and federal waters, includingtlands;

« Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatiahl.iability Act (“CERCLA”"), and analogous stdeavs, which regulate
the cleanup of hazardous substances that may le@verbleased at properties currently or previoosiyed or operated by us or
locations to which we have sent wastes for dispi

* Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“‘RCRA"Y analogous state laws, which impose requirement$hé handling and
discharge of solid and hazardous waste from otilitfes;

» National Environmental Policy Ac"NEPA”"), which requires federal agencies to stuitglly environment impacts of a proposed
federal action before it is approved, such asidglbn federal lands

» Safe Drinking Water Act (“SDWA”), which restricthe disposal, treatment or release of water prodaceded during oil and gas
development

» Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), and analogous #ats, which seek to ensure that activities dojempardize endangered or
threatened animals, fish and plant species, ndradesr modify the critical habitat of such speciasd

* Oil Pollution Act (“OPA”) of 1990, which requiresistorage facilities and vessels to submit tofdderal government plans
detailing how they will respond to large dischargesjuires updates to technology and equipmentjaign of above ground
storage tanks and sets forth liability for spilisresponsible partie

Various governmental authorities, including the Ef¥ U.S. Department of the Interior, the Burefilndian Affairs and analogous st:
agencies and tribal governments, have the powenftirce compliance with these laws and regulatiomsthe permits issued under them,
oftentimes requiring difficult and costly actiozilure to comply with these laws, regulations pednmits may result in the assessment of
administrative, civil and criminal penalties, tlmepiosition of remedial obligations, the impositidrstricter conditions on or revocation of
permits, the issuance of injunctions limiting oeypenting some or all of our operations, delaysranting permits and cancellation of leases.

There is inherent risk of the incurrence of envinemtal costs and liabilities in our business, sofm&hich may be material, due to the
handling of our products as they are gatheredspaited, processed and stored, air emissions delatur operations, historical industry
operations, and water and waste disposal practiog® and several, strict liability may be incuin@ithout regard to fault under certain
environmental laws and regulations, including CERCRCRA and analogous state laws, for the remeghiatf contaminated areas and in
connection with spills or releases of natural gélsand wastes on, under, or from our propertiebfagilities. Private parties may have the righi
to pursue legal actions to enforce compliance dksasdo seek damages for non-compliance with envirental laws and regulations or for
personal injury or property damage arising from
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our operations. Some sites at which we operatiaated near current or former thipawty oil and natural gas operations or faciliteesd ther:
is a risk that contamination has migrated from ¢hsites to ours. In addition, increasingly straair$, regulations and enforcement policies ¢
materially increase our compliance costs and tisé @foany remediation that may become necessanyinr@urance may not cover all
environmental risks and costs or may not providéicsent coverage if an environmental claim is madginst us.

In March 2010, the EPA announced its National Ecdarent Initiatives for 2011 to 2013, which include®ergy Extraction and
“Assuring Energy Extraction Activities Comply wittnvironmental Laws.” According to the EPA’s webslt®ome techniques for natural gas
extraction pose a significant risk to public heatid the environment.” To address these concdra£PA’s goal is to “address incidences of
noncompliance from natural gas extraction and pectidn activities that may cause or contribute gmgicant harm to public health and/or the
environment.” This initiative could involve a largeale investigation of our facilities and processad could lead to potential enforcement
actions, penalties or injunctive relief against us.

Our business may be adversely affected by increesstd due to stricter pollution control equipmeaguirements or liabilities resulting
from non-compliance with required operating or ottegyulatory permits. Also, we might not be abl®kdain or maintain from time to time all
required environmental regulatory approvals for gperations. If there is a delay in obtaining aeguired environmental regulatory approvals.
or if we fail to obtain and comply with them, thpasation or construction of our facilities could frevented or become subject to additional
costs.

We are generally responsible for all liabilitiesasiated with the environmental condition of ouwiliies and assets, whether acquired or
developed, regardless of when the liabilities aasgwhether they are known or unknown. In conoaatiith certain acquisitions and
divestitures, we could acquire, or be requiredrtivigle indemnification against, environmental llaias that could expose us to material los
which may not be covered by insurance. In additibe,steps we could be required to take to brimirefacilities into compliance could be
prohibitively expensive, and we might be requireghut down, divest or alter the operation of thasdities, which might cause us to incur
losses.

We make assumptions and develop expectations glbgaible expenditures related to environmental itimmd based on current laws ¢
regulations and current interpretations of thosesland regulations. If the interpretation of lawsegulations, or the laws and regulations
themselves, change, our assumptions may changergntew capital costs may be incurred to compth wiich changes. In addition, new
environmental laws and regulations might adveraéigct our products and activities, including dinigj, processing, storage and transportation
as well as waste management and air emissionsngtance, federal and state agencies could impidianal safety requirements, any of
which could affect our profitability.

Our exploration and production operations outsidelnited States are subject to various typesgflagions similar to those described
above imposed by the governments of the countni@ghich we operate, and may affect our operatiomscasts within those countries.

Legislation and regulatory initiatives relating hydraulic fracturing could result in increased costnd additional operating restrictions
or delays.

Hydraulic fracturing involves the injection of watsand and additives under pressure into rockdtions in order to stimulate natural
gas production. We find that the use of hydrauticfuring is necessary to produce commercial gtiesf natural gas and oil from many
reservoirs. Recently, there has been heighteneat@ebout the hydraulic fracturing process and gsals have been made to revisit the
environmental exemption for hydraulic fracturingdenthe SDWA or to enact separate federal legisiatr legislation at the state and local
government levels that would regulate hydraulictinaing. If adopted, this legislation could establan additional level of regulation and
permitting at the federal, state or local levefs] aould make it easier for third parties opposethé hydraulic fracturing process to initiate
legal proceedings based on allegations that specifi
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chemicals used in the fracturing process could s affect the environment, including groundwasail or surface water. Scrutiny of
hydraulic fracturing activities continues in ottveays, with the EPA having commenced a multi-yeadgbf the potential environmental
impacts of hydraulic fracturing. The EPA publishtsd‘Status Report” in December 2012 and expecfutdish results for public and peer
review in 2014. On October 21, 2011, the EPA annedrits intention to propose regulations by 201deuthe CWA to regulate wastewater
discharges from hydraulic fracturing and other reltgas production. In addition to the EPA studig, $hale Gas Subcommittee of the
Secretary of Energy Advisory Board issued a reporiydraulic fracturing in August 2011, which indes recommendations to address
concerns related to hydraulic fracturing and shake production, including but not limited to contilng additional field studies on possible
methane leakage from shale gas wells to waterveiserand adopting new rules and enforcement mregtio protect drinking and surface
waters.

Several states have adopted or considered legislaguiring the disclosure of fracturing fluidsdasther restrictions on hydraulic
fracturing, including states in which we operatg (é/Wyoming, Pennsylvania, Colorado, North Dakantd New Mexico). The U.S. Departm
of the Interior is also considering disclosure iegments or other mandates for hydraulic fractuondederal land, which, if adopted, would
affect our operations on federal lands. If new fater state laws or regulations that significamégtrict hydraulic fracturing are adopted, such
legal requirements could result in delays, eliménzgrtain drilling and injection activities, makeriore difficult or costly for us to perform
fracturing and increase our costs of compliancedwidg business as well as delay or prevent theldpment of unconventional gas resource:s
from shale formations which are not commercial withthe use of hydraulic fracturing.

Our ability to produce gas could be impaired if are unable to acquire adequate supplies of wateotw drilling and completion
operations or are unable to dispose of the wateuseat a reasonable cost and within applicablérenmental rules.

Our inability to locate sufficient amounts of water dispose of or recycle water used in our exgtlon and production operations, could
adversely impact our operations, particularly wéhpect to our Marcellus Shale, San Juan Basirkdaghale and Piceance Basin operations
Moreover, the imposition of new environmental iiives and regulations could include restriction®ar ability to conduct certain operations
such as hydraulic fracturing or disposal of wasteluding, but not limited to, produced water, lilnd) fluids and other wastes associated with
the exploration, development or production of natgas. The CWA imposes restrictions and strictrods regarding the discharge of produ
waters and other natural gas and oil waste intagahle waters. Permits must be obtained to disehpajjutants to waters and to conduct
construction activities in waters and wetlands. ThWgA and similar state laws provide for civil, ciimal and administrative penalties for any
unauthorized discharges of pollutants and unawbdrdischarges of reportable quantities of oil atter hazardous substances. Many state
discharge regulations and the Federal NationaliRoit Discharge Elimination System general perieised by the EPA prohibit the discha
of produced water and sand, drilling fluids, deilittings and certain other substances relatecetoatural gas and oil industry into coastal
waters. The EPA has also adopted regulations fieguiertain natural gas and oil exploration anddpation facilities to obtain permits for
storm water discharges. In addition, on October2P11, the EPA announced its intention to propeselations by 2014 under the CWA to
regulate wastewater discharges from hydraulic @irdmgy and other natural gas production. Compliamite current and future environmental
regulations and permit requirements governing thiedsawal, storage and use of surface water orrghaater necessary for hydraulic
fracturing of wells may increase our operating s@std cause delays, interruptions or terminatiosuofoperations, the extent of which cannot
be predicted.
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Legal and regulatory proceedings and investigatimeiating to the energy industry, and the complexegnment regulations to which ¢
businesses are subject, have adversely affectedumimess and may continue to do so. The operafionr businesses might also be
adversely affected by changes in regulations dhéir interpretation or implementation, or the inttuction of new laws, regulations or
permitting requirements applicable to our businesseour customers.

Public and regulatory scrutiny of the energy indubis resulted in increased regulations beingejthoposed or implemented. Adverse
effects may continue as a result of the uncertahgngoing inquiries, investigations and courtqaedings, or additional inquiries and
proceedings by federal or state regulatory agemwig@sivate plaintiffs. In addition, we cannot piedhe outcome of any of these inquiries or
whether these inquiries will lead to additionaldegroceedings against us, civil or criminal fimegpenalties, or other regulatory action,
including legislation or increased permitting reguients. Current legal proceedings or other matigamst us, including environmental
matters, suits, regulatory appeals, challengesitgermits by citizen groups and similar mattergymresult in adverse decisions against us.
The result of such adverse decisions, either iddaily or in the aggregate, could be material alag not be covered fully or at all by
insurance.

In addition, existing regulations might be revisgdeinterpreted, new laws, regulations and peimgittequirements might be adopted or
become applicable to us, our facilities, our cugtsnour vendors or our service providers, andéuthanges in laws and regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our financiabldam, results of operations and cash flows. B@meple, several ruptures on third party
pipelines have occurred recently. In responsepuariegislative and regulatory reforms associatitld pipeline safety and integrity have been
proposed, including new regulations covering gattigepipelines that have not previously been sulifeceégulation. Such reforms, if adopted,
could significantly increase our costs.

Certain of our properties, including our operatiomsthe Bakken Shale, are located on Native Amartdhdal lands and are subject to
various federal and tribal approvals and regulatiorvhich may increase our costs and delay or prevenefforts to conduct planned
operations.

Various federal agencies within the U.S. Departnoéiihe Interior, particularly the Bureau of IndiAffairs, Bureau of Land
Management (“BLM”") and the Office of Natural Resces Revenue, along with each Native American tpb@nulgate and enforce
regulations pertaining to gas and oil operation®ative American tribal lands. These regulationd approval requirements relate to such
matters as lease provisions, drilling and producteruirements, environmental standards and rogaltgiderations. In addition, each Native
American tribe is a sovereign nation having thétig enforce laws and regulations and to grant@agls independent from federal, state and
local statutes and regulations. These tribal lawgsragulations include various taxes, fees, requérgs to employ Native American tribal
members and other conditions that apply to lessgesators and contractors conducting operatiorsative American tribal lands. Lessees
and operators conducting operations on tribal lamdggenerally subject to the Native American trdmart system. In addition, if our
relationships with any of the relevant Native Anoari tribes were to deteriorate, we could face it risks to our ability to continue the
projected development of our leases on Native Acaeriribal lands. One or more of these factors menease our costs of doing business on
Native American tribal lands and impact the vidhibf, or prevent or delay our ability to condustir natural gas or oil development &
production operations on such lands.

Tax laws and regulations may change over timeutiolg changes to certain federal income tax dedusticurrently available with
respect to oil and gas exploration and production.

Tax laws and regulations are highly complex andemitio interpretation, and the tax laws and retiuis to which we are subject may
change over time. Our tax filings are based uparirdarpretation of the tax laws in effect in vargjurisdictions for the periods for which the
filings are made. If these laws or regulations gearor if the taxing authorities do not agree waitin interpretation, it could have a material
adverse effect on us.
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President Obama has proposed changes to certarafécome tax provisions currently available icand gas exploration and
production companies. Such changes include, buta@rlmited to, (i) repeal of the percentage dépteallowance for oil and gas properties;
(i) elimination of the ability to fully deduct iangible drilling and development costs in the yiraurred; (iii) repeal of the manufacturing
deduction for certain U.S. production activitiesddiv) extension of the amortization period fortag geological and geophysical
expenditures. It is unclear, however, whether arthshanges will be enacted or how soon such clsacmeéd be effective. Changes to federal
tax deductions, as well as any changes to or thesition of new state or local taxes (includingdarction, severance, or similar taxes) could
negatively affect our financial condition and resulf operations.

Our acquisition attempts may not be successfulay raesult in completed acquisitions that do noffgen as anticipated.

We have made and may continue to make acquisitibhesinesses and properties. However, suitableisitign candidates may not
continue to be available on terms and conditionsimeeacceptable. The following are some of th&giassociated with acquisitions, including
any completed or future acquisitions:

* some of the acquired businesses or properties wigyraduce revenues, reserves, earnings or castaflanticipated levels or
could have environmental, permitting or other peof$ for which contractual protections prove inadeep

* we may assume liabilities that were not disclosedst or that exceed our estimat

* properties we acquire may be subject to burderigtlerthat we were not aware of at the time of asitjon or that interfere with our
ability to hold the property for productio

* we may be unable to integrate acquired businesmegssfully and realize anticipated economic, dperal and other benefits in a
timely manner, which could result in substantiadtsaand delays or other operational, technicalhantial problems

* acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing businesstract management, divert resources and makdittudifto maintain our current
business standards, controls and procedures

* we may issue additional equity or debt securiti#ated to future acquisition

Substantial acquisitions or other transactions cbrdquire significant external capital and couldactge our risk and property profile.

In order to finance acquisitions of additional pohg or undeveloped properties, we may need & attincrease our capitalization
substantially through the issuance of debt or ggéturities, the sale of production payments bewnineans. These changes in capitalization
may significantly affect our risk profile. Additiatly, significant acquisitions or other transacta@an change the character of our operations
and business. The character of the new propertigsha substantially different in operating or ggidal characteristics or geographic location
than our existing properties. Furthermore, we matybe able to obtain external funding for futurguisitions or other transactions or to obtain
external funding on terms acceptable to us.

Failure of our service providers or disruptionsdar outsourcing relationships might negatively iropaur ability to conduct our
business.

Some studies indicate a high failure rate of outsiag relationships. A deterioration in the timelés or quality of the services performed
by the outsourcing providers or a failure of alpairt of these relationships could lead to losimstitutional knowledge and interruption of
services necessary for us to be able to condudbuginess. The expiration of such agreements drdhsition of services between providers
could lead to similar losses of institutional knedge or disruptions.
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Certain of our accounting services are currentbvigled by our outsourcing provider from serviceteesioutside of the United States.
The economic and political conditions in certaimicies from which our outsourcing providers magyile services to us present similar risk:
of business operations located outside of the dr8t&ates, including risks of interruption of busisewar, expropriation, nationalization,
renegotiation, trade sanctions or nullificatioreafsting contracts and changes in law or tax policgt are greater than in the United States.

Our assets and operations can be adversely affdntedeather and other natural phenomena.

Our assets and operations can be adversely affegthdrricanes, floods, earthquakes, tornadoesotrat natural phenomena and
weather conditions, including extreme temperaturesirance may be inadequate, and in some instahoegy not be available on
commercially reasonable terms. A significant disikupin operations or a significant liability fornich we were not fully insured could have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultgpefations and financial condition.

Our customers’ energy needs vary with weather ¢mmdi. To the extent weather conditions are affbteclimate change or demand is
impacted by regulations associated with climatengbacustomers’ energy use could increase or dezidpending on the duration and
magnitude of the changes, leading either to ine@asvestment or decreased revenues.

Acts of terrorism could have a material adverseafbn our financial condition, results of operatsoand cash flows.

Our assets and the assets of our customers an otlag be targets of terrorist activities that dadisrupt our business or cause
significant harm to our operations, such as fulbartial disruption to the ability to produce, pess, transport or distribute natural gas, oil, or
NGLs. Acts of terrorism as well as events occurigesponse to or in connection with acts of tésr could cause environmen
repercussions that could result in a significartrelase in revenues or significant reconstructioreorediation costs.

Risks Related to Our Separation from Williams
We may not realize the potential benefits fromsmparation from Williams.
We may not realize the benefits that we anticipéteich our separation from Williams. These benéfitdude the following:
« allowing our management to focus its efforts onlousiness and strategic prioritit
« enhancing our market recognition with invest
» providing us with direct access to the debt andtegapital markets
* improving our ability to pursue acquisitions thrbuttpe use of shares of our common stock as coragidey anc
* enabling us to allocate our capital more efficigr
We may not achieve the anticipated benefits fromseparation for a variety of reasons. For exangithpugh we have direct access to
the debt and equity capital markets following thpagation, we may not be able to issue debt otyequniterms acceptable to us or at all. The
availability of shares of our common stock for aseconsideration for acquisitions also will notumesthat we will be able to successfully
pursue acquisitions or that the acquisitions wellsbiccessful. Moreover, even with equity compeasdtéed to our business we may not be abils
to attract and retain employees as desired. Wenadgonot fully realize the anticipated benefitaffrour separation if any of the matters

identified as risks in this “Risk Factors” sectiwere to occur. If we do not realize the anticipdtedefits from our separation for any reason,
our business may be materially adversely affected.
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We have a short operating history as an indepengberddlicly traded company, and our historical firtéad information may not be
representative of the results we would have achiegea stand-alone public company and may not tedi@ble indicator of our future
results.

The historical financial information that we haweluded in this report may not necessarily refleleat our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows would have been had we Bréndependent, stand-alone entity during themgepresented or those that we will
achieve in the future. We were not operated, a&parate, stand-alone company for each of the Riatqgreriods presented. The costs and
expenses reflected in our historical financial infation include an allocation for certain corporatections historically provided by Williams,
including executive oversight, cash managementm@asury administration, financing and accounttag, internal audit, investor relations,
payroll and human resources administration, infatimnatechnology, legal, regulatory and governméfatiis, insurance and claims
administration, records management, real estatdaailidies management, sourcing and procuremeatl, print and other office services, and
other services, that may be different from the caraple expenses that we would have incurred haopeeated as a stand-alone company.
These allocations were based on what we and W#lieomsidered to be reasonable reflections of tstefical utilization levels of these
services required in support of our business. We Imat adjusted our historical financial informatim reflect changes that will occur in our
cost structure and operations as a result of ansition to becoming a stand-alone public compamyuding changes in our employee base,
potential increased costs associated with reducedognies of scale, the provision of letters of @riedlieu of Williams’ guarantees to support
certain contracts and increased costs associathdhvei SEC reporting and the NYSE requirementsréfbee, our historical financial
information may not necessarily be indicative ofatvbur financial position, results of operationcash flows will be in the future. For
additional information, see “Selected Historicat&icial Data” and “ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esult
of Operations,” and our financial statements atated notes included elsewhere in this report.

Our costs increase as a result of operating as laipicompany, and our management is required tmtiegubstantial time to complying
with public company regulations.

Prior to our separation from Williams, we operabedl business as a segment of a public company.stana-alone public company, we
incur additional legal, accounting, compliance attter expenses that we have not incurred histdyidAle are now obligated to file with the
SEC annual and quarterly information and other nspghat are specified in Section 13 and otheri@esof the Exchange Act. We are required
to ensure that we have the ability to prepare fir@rstatements that are fully compliant with aGreporting requirements on a timely basis.
In addition, we are subject to other reporting earporate governance requirements, including eerquirements of the NYSE, and certain
provisions of Sarbanes-Oxley and the regulationshpiigated thereunder, which will impose significaaimpliance obligations upon us.

Sarbanes-Oxley, as well as new rules subsequengilemented by the SEC and the NYSE, have impos#dased regulation and
disclosure and required enhanced corporate goveeramactices of public companies. We are commtitiedaintaining high standards of
corporate governance and public disclosure, aneéfborts to comply with evolving laws, regulatioasd standards in this regard are likely to
result in increased marketing, selling and admiaiste expenses and a diversion of managementesaind attention from revenue-generating
activities to compliance activities. These changegiire a significant commitment of additional nesees.

Our agreements with Williams require us to assumeepiast, present, and future liabilities relatedbtor business and may be less
favorable to us than if they had been negotiatetl wnaffiliated third parties.

We negotiated all of our agreements with Williarssaavholly-owned subsidiary of Williams. If thesgreements had been negotiated
with unaffiliated third parties, they might haveebemore favorable to us. Pursuant to the separatidrdistribution agreement, we have
assumed all past, present and future liabilitigsgjothan tax liabilities which will be governed the tax sharing agreement as described he
related to our business, and we will agree to indgnWilliams for these liabilities, among other tteas. Such liabilities include unknown
liabilities that could be significant. The alloaatiof assets and liabilities between Williams asdnay not reflect the allocation that would h
been reached between two unaffiliated parties.
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We may increase our debt or raise additional cdpitahe future, which could affect our financiadith, and may decrease our
profitability.

We may increase our debt or raise additional chipitde future, subject to restrictions in our tlereements. If our cash flow from
operations is less than we anticipate, or if osha@quirements are more than we expect, we mayresgpore financing. However, debt or
equity financing may not be available to us on anceptable to us, if at all. If we incur additibdebt or raise equity through the issuance o
our preferred stock, the terms of the debt or safgured stock issued may give the holders rightesferences and privileges senior to those of
holders of our common stock, particularly in the®tvof liquidation. The terms of the debt may atepose additional and more stringent
restrictions on our operations than we currentlyeh#f we raise funds through the issuance of @mftil equity, your ownership in us would be
diluted. If we are unable to raise additional calpithen needed, it could affect our financial Hgalthich could negatively affect your
investment in us.

If there is a determination that the spin-off igahle for U.S. federal income tax purposes bectuséacts, assumptions, representations
or undertakings underlying the tax opinion are irreat or for any other reason, then Williams anslstockholders could incur
significant income tax liabilities, and we coulatur significant liabilities.

The spin-off was conditioned on Williams’ receifitam opinion of its outside tax advisor reasonaalgeptable to the Williams’ Board of
Directors to the effect that the spin-off would nesult in the recognition, for federal income paxposes, of income, gain or loss to Williams,
and Williams’ stockholders under section 355 aradise 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, except for cashrpagts made to stockholders in lieu of
fractional shares. In addition, Williams receiveprivate letter ruling in which the IRS made vasaulings, including that the spin-off will not
result in the recognition, for federal income taxgnses, of income, gain or loss to Williams andigns’ stockholders under section 355 and
section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, except for camjympents made to stockholders in lieu of fracticheres. The private letter ruling and
opinion relied on certain facts, assumptions, regméations and undertakings from Williams and garding the past and future conduct of the
companies’ respective businesses and other mdftars; of these facts, assumptions, representgti@mnundertakings are, or become, incorrec
or not otherwise satisfied, Williams and its stoaklers may not be able to rely on the private tetiéng or the opinion of its tax advisor and
could be subject to significant tax liabilities.dddition, an opinion of counsel is not binding mpbe IRS, so, notwithstanding the opinion of
Williams' tax advisor, the IRS could conclude upmrdit that the spin-off is taxable in full or inrpa

Our tax sharing agreement with Williams may limit ability to take certain actions and may requirg to indemnify Williams for
significant tax liabilities.

Under the tax sharing agreement, we agreed toréslemnable action to ensure that the spin-off fieslior tax-free status under
section 355 and section 368(a)(1)(D) of the InteRevenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”). We also ga&peasentations and agreed to various
other covenants in the tax sharing agreement ietktwl ensure the tax-free status of the spin-¢fést covenants restrict our ability to execute
certain transactions for a limited period of tineldwing the spin-off without first consulting wittV/illiams. For example, we will consult with
Williams before we sell assets outside the ordiranyrse of business, issue or sell additional comstock (including securities convertible
into our common stock), or enter into certain ott@porate security transactions during this lighitiene period.

Further, under the tax sharing agreement, we grgrezl to indemnify Williams against certain taxated liabilities that may be incurred
by Williams relating to the spin-off, to the extaratused by our breach of any representations @mants made with respect to the spin-off.
These liabilities include the substantial tax-retaliability that would result if the spin-off ofio stock to Williams’ stockholders failed to
qualify as a tax-free transaction.
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We will not have complete control over our tax dieeis and could be liable for income taxes oweMiifams.

For any tax periods ending on or before the spinveé and our U.S. subsidiaries were included iflig¥ns’ consolidated group for
federal income tax purposes as well as any combowtsolidated or unitary tax returns of Willianos $tate or local income tax purposes.
Under the tax sharing agreement, for each periahinch we were consolidated or combined with Witigfor purposes of any tax return, a
forma tax return was prepared for us as if we fded own consolidated, combined or unitary retexgept that such pro forma tax return did
not include any carryovers or carrybacks of logssezedits and was calculated without regard tdfekeral alternative minimum tax. For any
adjustments to the pro forma tax returns followtimg spin-off we will reimburse Williams for any datdnal taxes shown on the pro forma tax
returns, and Williams will reimburse us for redoats in the taxes shown on the pro forma tax retumaddition, Williams will effectively
control all of our tax decisions in connection wéthy Williams consolidated, combined or unitaryame tax returns in which we are included.
Thus Williams will be able to choose to contesipoomise or settle any adjustment or deficiencypsed by the relevant taxing authority
manner that may be beneficial to Williams and detrital to us.

Moreover, notwithstanding the tax sharing agreeimér8. federal law provides that each member afresalidated group is liable for the
group’s entire tax obligation. Thus, to the extdfiliams fails to make any U.S. federal income payments required by law, we could be
liable for the shortfall with respect to periodsoptto the spin-off. Similar principles may applyrfforeign, state or local income tax purposes
where we were included in combined, consolidatednitary returns with Williams.

Third parties may seek to hold us responsibleifdailities of Williams that we did not assume imr agreements.

Third parties may seek to hold us responsibledtained liabilities of Williams. Under our agreertgewith Williams, Williams agreed to
indemnify us for claims and losses relating to ¢hetained liabilities. However, if those liab#isi are significant and we are ultimately held
liable for them, we cannot assure you that we véllable to recover the full amount of our lossemfWilliams.

Our prior and continuing relationship with Willianexposes us to risks attributable to business#gilibms.

Williams is obligated to indemnify us for losseatla party may seek to impose upon us or our &t for liabilities relating to the
business of Williams that are incurred througheabh of the separation and distribution agreemeany ancillary agreement by Williams or
its affiliates other than us, or losses that atrgbatable to Williams in connection with the spiff-or are not expressly assumed by us under o
agreements with Williams. Any claims made agairssthat are properly attributable to Williams in @@tance with these arrangements would
require us to exercise our rights under our agre¢sneith Williams to obtain payment from Williamé/e are exposed to the risk that, in these
circumstances, Williams cannot, or will not, make tequired payment.

Our directors and executive officers who own shafesommon stock of Williams, or who hold optiamadquire common stock of
Williams or other Williams equity-based awards, rhaye actual or potential conflicts of interest.

Ownership of shares of common stock of Williamsjays to acquire shares of common stock of Williaand other equity-based
securities of Williams by certain of our directensd officers may create, or appear to create, fiateonflicts of interest when those directors
and officers are faced with decisions that couldehdifferent implications for Williams than they far us.
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The spin-off may expose us to potential liabiliagising out of state and federal fraudulent coraugge laws and legal dividend
requirements.

The spineff is subject to review under various state artefal fraudulent conveyance laws. Under these ldwas;ourt in a lawsuit by €
unpaid creditor or an entity vested with the powafesuch creditor (including without limitation austee or debtor-ipossession in a bankrupt
by us or Williams or any of our respective subsiéis) were to determine that Williams or any ofsitdsidiaries did not receive fair
consideration or reasonably equivalent value fetrithiuting our common stock or taking other actisrpart of the spin-off, or that we or any of
our subsidiaries did not receive fair consideraboneasonably equivalent value for incurring ingelmess, including the new debt incurred by
us in connection with the spin-off, transferringets or taking other action as part of the sgfrand, at the time of such action, we, Willian:
any of our respective subsidiaries (i) was insaharwould be rendered insolvent, (ii) had unreadiy small capital with which to carry on its
business and all business in which it intendecdhtgage or (iii) intended to incur, or believed itwa incur, debts beyond its ability to repay
such debts as they would mature, then such coultl eid the spin-off as a constructive frauduleansfer. If such court made this
determination, the court could impose a numberiftéregnt remedies, including without limitation, iding our liens and claims against
Williams, or providing Williams with a claim for nmey damages against us in an amount equal to ffleeetice between the consideration
received by Williams and the fair market value of company at the time of the spin-off.

The measure of insolvency for purposes of the fudard conveyance laws will vary depending on whigfsdiction’s law is applied.
Generally, however, an entity would be considenswlivent if the present fair saleable value o&gsets is less than (i) the amount of its
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) ofif the amount that will be required to pay its lpable liabilities on its existing debts as they
become absolute and mature. No assurance candre ggvo what standard a court would apply to deter insolvency or that a court would
determine that we, Williams or any of our respexgubsidiaries were solvent at the time of or afteing effect to the spin-off, including the
distribution of our common stock.

Under the separation and distribution agreemeist) eaWilliams and we are responsible for the delimbilities and other obligations
related to the business or businesses which it @wdsoperates following the consummation of tha-gff. Although we do not expect to be
liable for any such obligations not expressly assdifoy us pursuant to the separation and distribitgyeement, it is possible that a court
would disregard the allocation agreed to betweerpttties, and require that we assume respongifalitobligations allocated to Williams,
particularly if Williams were to refuse or were tneto pay or perform the subject allocated obiayet.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
There is not a long market history for our commturtls and the market price of our shares may flutetwédely.

We cannot predict the prices at which our commonksinay trade. The market price of our stock magttlate widely,,depending upon
many factors, some of which are beyond our conimoluding those described above in “—Risks Reldate@ur Business” and the following:

» changes in financial estimates by analy
» the inability to meet the financial estimates o&lgsts who follow our common stoc
e strategic actions by us or our competit

e announcements by us or our competitors of significantracts, acquisitions, joint marketing relagbips, joint ventures or capital
commitments

e variations in our quarterly operating results amose of our competitor

» general economic and stock market conditic

» risks related to our business and our industnjudiog those discussed abo
e changes in conditions or trends in our industryrk@ts or customer:
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» terrorist acts
» future sales of our common stock or other secsrit@ad
» investor perceptions of the investment opportuagtyociated with our common stock relative to otfreestment alternative

These broad market and industry factors may méiereduce the market price of our common stocgareless of our operating
performance. In addition, price volatility may begter if the public float and trading volume of @@ammon stock is low.

Future issuances of our common stock may depressrite of our common stock.

In the future, we may issue our securities in catina with investments or acquisitions. The amafrghares of our common stock
issued in connection with an investment or acqgoisitould constitute a material portion of our tleeristanding shares of our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying any dividends on ounrmn stock in the foreseeable future. As a regolt,will need to sell your shares of
common stock to receive any income or realize @medn your investment.

We do not anticipate paying any dividends on oumcmn stock in the foreseeable future. Any declamaéind payment of future
dividends to holders of our common stock may bétdichby the provisions of the Delaware General Goapon Law (“DGCL”"). The future
payment of dividends will be at the sole discretddmur Board of Directors and will depend on médagtors, including our earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition and other consitiens that our Board of Directors deems relevAsta result, to receive any income or
realize a return on your investment, you will néedell your shares of common stock. You may natlile to sell your shares of common st
at or above the price you paid for them.

Provisions of Delaware law and our charter docunsemiay delay or prevent an acquisition of us thatlgholders may consider
favorable or may prevent efforts by our stockhadderchange our directors or our management, whimkld decrease the value of your
shares.

Section 203 of the DGCL and provisions in our anaghdnd restated certificate of incorporation anérhed and restated bylaws could
make it more difficult for a third party to acquiue without the consent of our Board of Directdiisese provisions include the following:

» restrictions on business combinations for a thres-yperiod with a stockholder who becomes the ligiakbwner of more than 15
percent of our common stoc

» restrictions on the ability of our stockholdergémove directors
e supermajority voting requirements for stockholderamend our organizational documents;
» aclassified Board of Director
Although we believe these provisions protect oaclsolders from coercive or otherwise unfair talexaactics and thereby provide an
opportunity to receive a higher bid by requiringeydial acquirers to negotiate with our Board ofetors, these provisions apply even if the
offer may be considered beneficial by some stoadrsl Further, these provisions may discouragenfiat@cquisition proposals and may

delay, deter or prevent a change of control ofammpany, including through unsolicited transactithe some or all of our stockholders might
consider to be desirable. As a result, efforts lmystockholders to change our directors or our ament may be unsuccessful.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties
Information regarding our properties is includedtem 1 of this report.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
See Item 8—Financial Statements and Supplementatg-BNote 11 of our Notes to Consolidated Finariatements for the
information that is called for by this item.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not Applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Our common stock began trading on January 3, 20d2salisted on the New York Stock Exchange unHerticker symbol “WPX”". The
following table sets forth, for the periods indiedt the high and low sales prices per share ofommmon stock as reported by the New York

Stock Exchange:

Common Stock

High Low
Year ended December 31, 201
Fourth Quarte $18.31 $14.4:%
Third Quartel $17.7¢ $14.1¢
Second Quarte $18.9( $13.22
First Quarte! $19.7¢ $14.2(

At February 26, 2013, there were 8,725 holdergobird of our common stock.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividendsuorommon stock. Any decision as to future payneéiividends is subject to the

discretion of our Board of Directors.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following financial data at December 31, 2008 2011, and for each of the three years in thegended December 31, 2012,
should be read in conjunction with the other firiahinformation included in Part Il, Item Rlanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operaticand Part I, Item 8Financial Statements and Supplementary Dstthis Form 10-K. All other
financial data has been prepared from our accogiméioords. The financial statements included is Barm 10-K may not necessarily reflect
our financial position, results of operations aadltflows as if we had operated as a stand-aldogcpmompany during all periods presented.
Accordingly, our results for periods prior to 20dt®uld not be relied upon as an indicator of oturiperformance.

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Millions, except per share amounts

Statements of operations data

Revenue! $3,18¢ $3,88: $ 3,93¢ $3,58¢ $6,047
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (239) $ (150 $ (937) $ 182 $ 784
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 22 (142) (34€) (42 (56)
Net income (loss (2117) (292 (1,287) 14C 72¢

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenetsts 12 10 8 6 8
Net income (loss) attributable to WPX Ene $ (22t $ (302 $(1,29)) $ 134 $ 72C
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $(1.27) $(0.87) $ (4.80 $ 0.8¢ $ 3.9¢

Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 0.11 $(0.72) $ (1.75) $(0.2]) $(0.29)

As of December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Millions)

Balance sheets dat
Notes payable to Willian—current(c) $ — $ — $2,261 $ 1,21¢ $ 92t
Long-term debi 1,50¢ 1,50¢ — — —
Total asset 9,45¢ 10,43: 9,84¢ 10,55 11,62«
Total equity(c) 5,371 5,75¢ 4,48¢ 5,39( 5,49:

(@ Income (loss) from continuing operations fa ylear ended December 31, 2012 includes $225 mitfompairment charges related to
producing properties and costs of acquired unprogsérves in the Green River Basin, Piceance BasthPowder River Basin. Income
(loss) from continuing operations for the year ehBecember 31, 2011 includes $367 million of impeant charges related to producing
properties and costs of acquired unproved resénv® Powder River Basin. Income (loss) from comitig operations for the year enc
December 31, 2010 includes a $1 billion impairn@rgrge related to goodwill and a $175 million inmpa@nt charge related to costs of
acquired unproved reserves in the Piceance Basinnle (loss) from continuing operations in 2008udes a $148 million gain relatec
the sale of a right to an international producpayment. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidatedrf€ial Statements for further
discussion of impairments in 2012, 2011 and 2!

(b) Income (loss) from discontinued operationsudels the results from holdings in the Barnett Shatk Arkoma Basin that were sold in
2012. The activity in 2012, 2011 and 2010 primarijates to the Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basinaiigers and the remaining
indemnity and other obligations related to the fermppower business. Activity in 2012 reflects a $38ion gain on the sale of the Barn
Shale and Arkoma Basin. Activity in 2011 and 20é&flects pre-tax impairment charges of $180 milkord $503 million, respectively,
related to the Barnett Shale operations. Activit2008 reflects a $148 million pre-tax impairmehaige related to the producing
properties in the Arkoma Basi

(c) On June 30, 2011, all of our notes payable to Wik were cancelled by Williams. The amount due iitiams at the time of cancellati
was $2.4 billion and is reflected as an increadetal equity. See Part |l, Item Binancial Statements and Supplementary Data
activity related to our equity at December 31, 2(
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation
General

We are an independent natural gas and oil exptoraind production company engaged in the exploitatind development of long-life
unconventional properties. We are focused on etipgpour significant natural gas reserves baseraladed NGLs in the Piceance Basin of the
Rocky Mountain region, and on developing and grgwinr position in the Bakken Shale oil play in NoBtakota and our Marcellus Shale
natural gas position in Pennsylvania. Our otheasad domestic operations include the Powder RBasin in Wyoming and the San Juan
Basin in the southwestern United States. In additice own a 69 percent controlling ownership irgeie Apco Oil and Gas International Inc.
(“Apco”) which holds oil and gas concessions in toimerica and trades on the NASDAQ Capital Markader the symbol “APAGF”.

In conjunction with our exploration and developmadctivities, we engage in natural gas sales an#teting. Our sales and marketing
activities includes the sale of our natural galsand NGL production, along with third party pureka and sales of natural gas, which include
natural gas purchased from working interest owireoperated wells and other area third party preducrhrough May 1, 2012, this activity
also included sales of natural gas to Williamsiag L.P. (“Williams Partners”) for use in its migsam business. Our sales and marketing
activities also include the management of varicatsiral gas related contracts such as transportatiorage and related price risk managemen
activities. We primarily engage in these activitieenhance the value received from the sale ofiatural gas and oil production. Revenues
associated with the sale of our production arerdsmbin product revenues. The revenues and expeglatsd to other marketing activities are
reported on a gross basis as part of gas manageaevemiuies and costs and expenses.

WPX Energy, Inc. was formed in 2011 to effect thparation from The Williams Companies, Inc. (“Wlins”) of Williams’ exploration
and production business. On November 30, 2011 jaiil’ Board of Directors approved the spin-offteé Company. The spin-off was
completed by way of a pro rata distribution on Deber 31, 2011 of WPX common stock to Williams’ stoclders of record as of the close of
business on December 14, 2011, the spin-off redatel. Each Williams’ stockholder received one slodl&/PX common stock for every three
shares of Williams common stock held by such stoldér on the record date.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the selected historical consolidated fitiahdata and the consolidated
financial statements and the related notes includ&rt II, Item 8 in this Form 10-K. The matteliscussed below may contain forward-
looking statements that reflect our plans, estisated beliefs. Our actual results could differ mially from those discussed in these forward
looking statements. Factors that could cause dribaoite to these differences include, but are moitéd to, those discussed below and
elsewhere in this Form 10-K, particularly in “RiBlctors” and “Forward-Looking Statements”.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements for 20112010 included elsewhere in this Form 10-K, printiijpeepresented the Exploration &
Production segment of Williams of which the legatities were contributed to WPX in 2011. ThroughcBaber 2011, our results included
allocations of costs for corporate functions histlty provided to us by Williams. See Note 3 of tHotes to Consolidated Financial Staterr
for more information.

Our management believes the assumptions and métgie® underlying the allocation of expenses froiitlisivhs were reasonable.
However, such expenses may not be indicative oattaal level of expense that would have been bibiincurred by us as we operate as an
independent, publicly traded company.

In second-quarter 2012, we completed the sale ofioldings in the Barnett Shale and the Arkoma BaBhese properties represented
less than five percent of our year- end 2011 pral@destic reserves and approximately five percetdtal production in 2011. We have
reported the results of operations and financialtfpm of Barnett Shale and Arkoma operations asatitinued operations. Unless otherwise
noted, the following discussion relates to our oanhg operations.
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Overview

The following table presents our production voluraad financial highlights for 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Production Sales Volume Data:i
Domestic:
Natural gas (MMcf’ 397,48: 388,78( 371,48¢
Oil (MBbls) 4,39¢ 2,657 82¢
NGLs (MBbls) 10,39: 10,057 8,05¢
Domestic combined equivalent volumes (MMcfe) 486,19¢ 465,03( 424,78(
Domestic combined equivalent volumes (MB 81,03: 77,50t 70,797
International combined equivalent volumes (MMcfj¢h 21,21¢ 20,81( 19,94(
Total WPX combined equivalent volumes (MMcfe)(b) 507,41¢ 485,84( 444,72(
Production Sales Volume Per D:
Domestic:
Natural Gas (MMcf/d 1,08¢ 1,06t 1,01¢
Oil (MBbls/d) 12 7 2
NGL (MBbls/d) 28 28 22
Domestic combined equivalent volumes (MMcfe 1,32¢ 1,27¢ 1,16
International combined equivalent volumes (MMcfézjyl 58 57 55
Total WPX per day combined equivalent volumes (M@Adj(c) 1,38¢ 1,331 1,21¢
Financial Data (millions)
Total domestic revenut $ 3,052 $ 3,77: $ 3,84¢
Total international revenus $ 137 $ 11C $ 89
Consolidated operating income (lo $ (280 $ (142 $ (80%)
Consolidated capital expenditui $ 1,521 $ 1,57- $ 1,85¢

(&) Excludes production from our Barnett Shale and Arad3asin operations which are classified as digcoed operations

(b) Oil and NGLs were converted to MMcfe using theaatf one barrel of oil, condensate or NGL to siausand cubic feet of natural g
(c) Includes approximately 69 percent of Apco’sdurction (which corresponds to our ownership inteireg\pco) and other minor directly

held interests

While our total 2012 domestic production volumeas@ased over 2011, our 2012 results were impactéalier realized natural gas
prices coupled with lower natural gas liquids psicelative to 2011. Also, as a result of declimefrward natural gas prices during 2012

compared to 2011, we recorded impairments of priaduaroperties and costs of acquired unproved vesdptaling $225 million during 2012.
Our 2011 results were also impacted by low natgaalprices as compared to 2010 and we recognizeairiment charges of $367 million on
certain producing properties in 2011. Our 2010 afieg results were negatively impacted by a $idwilfull impairment charge related to
goodwill and $175 million of pre-tax charges asate with impairments of costs of acquired unpronesetrves. See Note 6 of the Notes to th
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Outlook

In 2013, we will focus on growing our oil produgatiand developing oil reserves, primarily those tedan the Williston Basin. Further,
capital will be focused on the development of resgiin the middle Bakken and upper Three Forks &bions of this basin.

We will remain disciplined in the development of oatural gas reserves, due to the low naturapgas environment. We will continue
to focus our natural gas drilling effort in the N@&th Piceance basin, because of
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our scale and efficiency of that operation, togethigh significant infrastructure already in plade the Marcellus Shale/Appalachian Basin, we
will focus on completing our inventory of drilleddations. Our drilling program in the Marcellus &#appalachian Basin will be

limited. Specifically, drilling capital in Susquefr@a County, will be minimal due to infrastructunstraints on our third party gatherer’s
system. Until those constraints have been rectifiedvill look to develop opportunities in Westmanatl Country in the Appalachian Basin.

We will continue to focus on lowering costs througluced drilling times, efficient use of pad desémd completion activities and
negotiated cost savings on vendor contracts. Aafditly, more favorable, previously negotiated gdttgeand processing contract provisions
will become effective in 2013.

We will look to deploy 8 percent to 10 percent af estimated capital spending on exploratory adisi In 2013, we expect to spud test
wells in two new areas as well as continue to labgurchasing land in these and other areas. Quioration activities are focused on
increasing our commodity mix of liquids, primariyl. We anticipate our capital spending in 2013 W& approximately $1 billion to $1.2
billion.

We continue to operate with a focus on increasiragesholder value and investing in our businessasway that enhances our
competitive position by:
» Continuing to invest in and grow our production aeserves

» Continuing to diversify our commodity portfolio thugh the development of our Bakken Shale oil plasitpon and liquids-rich
basins (primarily Piceance) with high concentratiofiNGLSs;

* Retaining the flexibility to make adjustments ta planned levels of capital and investment expemes in response to changes in
economic conditions or business opportunities;

» Continuing to maintain an active economic hedgiragpam around our commaodity price ris

Potential risks or obstacles that could impactetkecution of our plan include:
» Lower than anticipated energy commodity pric
» Higher capital costs of developing our propert
* Lower than expected levels of cash flow from ogeres;
* Unavailability of capital
» Counterparty credit and performance ri
» Decreased drilling succes
* General economic, financial markets or industry dtwnn;
e Changes in the political and regulatory environregahd
e Increase in_ the cost of, or shortages or delayisaravailability of, drilling rigs and equipmentplies, skilled labor or
transportation

We anticipate some recovery on natural gas prit@913. Should this expected recovery not occunvavald need to either significantly
reduce our capital spending or utilize more of enedit facility, or a combination of both. In addi, we expect an improvement in our NGL
margins of approximately $25 million to $30 milliciue to contract provisions that are effective dayd, 2013 associated with previously
negotiated gathering and processing agreemerite iRiteance Basin.

We continue to address certain of these risks girauilization of commodity hedging strategies ciifined investment strategies and
maintaining adequate liquidity. In addition, weliaé master netting agreements and collateral requénts with our counterparties to reduce
credit risk and liquidity requirements.
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Commodity Price Risk Management

To manage the commodity price risk and volatilifyoaning producing gas and oil properties, we eitgr derivative contracts for a
portion of our future production. For 2013, we héwe following contracts as of February 25, 2023diar daily domestic production, shown at
weighted average volumes and basin-level weightedage prices:

2013 Natural Gas

Weighted Average
Volume
(BBtu/d) Price ($/MMBtu)
NYMEX swaps 352 $3.5¢
Location swag—Rockies 20 $3.8¢
Location swag—San Jual 10 $3.9¢
Location swap—Northeas 25 $4.6:
Total all swap: 407 $3.62
2013 Crude Oil
Weighted Average
Price ($/Bbl)
Volume Floor-Ceiling
(Bbls/d) for Collars
WTI crude oil swaps 9,00( $ 100.5:

The following is a summary of our natural gas datie contracts for daily domestic production sh@atdaily volumes and basin-level
weighted average prices for the years ended Deaedih@012, 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Price ($/MMBtu) Price ($/MMBtu) Price ($/MMBtu)
Volume Floor-Ceiling Volume Floor-Ceiling Volume Floor-Ceiling
(BBtu/d) for Collars (BBtu/d) for Collars (BBtu/d) for Collars
Collar agreements—Rockies — $ — 45 $ 5.30- $7.1C 10C $ 6.53- $8.94
Collar agreemen—San Jual — $ — 90 $ 5.27- $7.0¢ 232 $ 5.75- $7.82
Collar agreemen—Mid-Continent — $ — 80 $ 5.10- $7.0C 10& $ 5.37-$7.41
Collar agreemen—Southern Californi: — $ — 30 $ 5.83- $7.5¢ 45 $ 4.80- $6.4:
Collar agreemen—Other — $ — 30 $ 6.50- $8.1¢4 28 $ 5.63—- $6.87
NYMEX and basis fixe-price swap: 50¢ $ 5.0¢€ 37z $5.22 12C $4.4(

The following is a summary of our crude oil andumat gas liquids contracts for daily domestic pretthn shown at daily volumes and
weighted average prices for the years ended Deaedih@012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Volume Weighted Average Volume Weighted Average
(Bbls/d) Price ($/Bbl) (Bbls/d) Price ($/Bbl)
WTI Crude Oil Swaps 7,50:% $ 97.7¢ 3,31t $ 95.8¢
WTI Crude Oil costless collar 85.00-
2,00( $ 106.3( — $ —
2012 Natural Gas Liquids
Volume Weighted Average
(Bbls/d) Price ($/Bbl)
Natural Gas Liguids Swayj 3,661 $ 50.7¢

Additionally, we utilize contracted pipeline capgdio move our production from the Rockies to otleeations when pricing differentials
are favorable to Rockies pricing. We also holdraglterm obligation to
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deliver on a firm basis 200,000 MMbtu/d of natugak at monthly index pricing to a buyer at the WiRiver Hub (Greasewood-Meeker, CO),
which is a major market hub exiting the PiceancsiaOur interests in the Piceance Basin hold siefiit reserves to meet this obligation,
which expires in 2014.

Results of Operations

Operations of our company are located in the Urftedes and South America and are organized inteedtic and international
reportable segments.

Domestic includes natural gas, natural gas liquadsl, oil development and production and gas manegeattivities located in Colorac
New Mexico, North Dakota (Bakken Shale), Pennsyiwghlarcellus Shale), and Wyoming in the Unitedt&aOur development al
production techniques specialize in production ftaght-sands and shale formations as well as cedirbethane reserves in the Piceance,
San Juan, Powder River, Green River, Williston (BakShale), and Appalachian (Marcellus Shale) Bagissociated with our commodity
production are sales and marketing activities ith@dtide the management of various commodity cotarsigch as transportation, storage, and
related hedges coupled with the sale of our comipediumes.

International primarily consists of our ownershipApco, an oil and gas exploration and productiempany with concessions primarily
in Argentina and Colombia.

Through December 2011, we elected to designatm#jerity of our applicable derivative instrumensscash flow hedges. In 2012, we
began entering into commaodity derivative contradicéd continue to serve as economic hedges butamesignated as hedges for accounting
purposes as we have elected not to utilize hedgmuating on new derivatives instruments. Changélerfair value of non-hedge derivative
instruments, hereafter referred to as economicd®&de recognized as gains or losses in the @arofrthe periods in which they occur,
accordingly we believe this will result in futuraraings that are more volatile. Hedged derivatieesrded at December 31, 2012 that are
included in accumulated other comprehensive incaitide realized by the end of the first-quarted 20

2012 vs. 2011
Revenue Analysis

Years ended December 3: Percentage

Increase

2012 2011 $ Change (Decrease

(Millions)
Domestic revenue!

Natural gas sale $ 1,34¢ $ 1,67¢ $ (332 (20)%
Oil and condensate sal 37¢€ 22¢ 15C 66%
Natural gas liquid sale 29¢€ 404 (108¢) 27%
Total product revenue 2,01¢ 2,30¢ (290) (13%
Gas manageme 94¢ 1,42¢ (479 (34)%
Net gain (loss) on derivatives not designated ag&s 78 29 49 16<%
Other 7 7 — —%
Total domestic revenut $ 3,057 $ 3,77 $ (720 (19%
Total international revenus $ 137 $ 11C $ 27 25%
Total revenue: $ 3,18¢ $ 3,88: $ (699 (18)%
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Domestic Revenut

Significant variances in comparative revenues cgfle

$332 million decrease in natural gas sales refleqsr Mcf price (including the impact of hedges$®.38 for 2012 compared to
$4.32 for 2011 on production sales volumes of 3833 MMcf and 388,780 MMcf for 2012 and 2011, respety. Without hedges,
our natural gas price per Mcf was $2.32 compare®Btd8 for 2012 and 2011, respective

$150 million increase in oil and condensate saélscts increased production sales volumes of 4\88ils in 2012 compared to
2,651 Mbbls in 2011. Price per barrel of oil anti@densate was $85.58 (including the impact of hgdge&012 compared to $85..
in 2011.

$108 million decrease in natural gas liquids seddlects a per barrel price of $28.56 in 2012 coragdo $40.17 in 2011.
Production sales volumes were 10,392 Mbbls andsZOMbbls for 2012 and 2011, respective

$479 million decrease in gas management revenwuetodu 27 percent decrease in average prices aicghyatural gas sales and
9 percent lower natural gas sales volumes. We &pexd a similar decrease of $475 million in relajas management costs and
expenses

$49 million change in net gain (loss) on derivagivet designated as hedges primarily relates tealized and realized mark-to-
market gains on crude oil and natural gas derieativot designated as hedc

International Revenue

International revenues increased primarily duatogased oil sales due to higher average oil galess and new oil production in
Colombia for 2012 compared to 2011.
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Cost and operating expense and operating income §lg) analysis:

Years ended December 3: Percentag
Increase
2012 2011 $ Change (Decrease
(Millions)
Domestic costs and expens
Lease and facility operatir $ 251 $ 23t $ 16 7%
Gathering, processing and transporta 504 487 17 3%
Taxes other than incon 87 11z (26) (23)%
Gas management, including charges for unutilizpeéljie
capacity 99¢ 1,471 (47%) (32)%
Exploration 72 12¢ (51) (4%
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 93¢ 88C 59 7%
Impairment of producing properties and costs oliaegl unprove
reserves 22¢ 367 (142 (39)%
General and administratiy 272 26% 10 4%
Other—net 12 3 15 NM
Total domestic costs and expen $ 3,35¢ $ 3,93¢ $ (577) (15)%
International costs and expens
Lease and facility operatir $ 32 $ 27 $ 5 19%
Gathering, processing and transporta 2 — 2 NM
Taxes other than incon 24 21 3 14%
Exploration 11 3 8 NM
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 27 22 5 23%
General and administrati 14 12 2 17%
Other—net — 3 3 (2100)%
Total international costs and expen $ 11C $ 88 $ 22 25%
Total costs and expens $ 3,46¢ $ 4,02/ $ (55%) (19)%
Domestic operating income (los $ (309 $ (169 $ (149 87%
International operating income (los $ 27 $ 22 $ 5 23%

NM: A percentage calculation is not meaningful dmehange in signs, a z-value denominator or a percentage change grdeter200.

Domestic Cost
Significant variances in comparative costs and rgpe reflect:
» Lease and facility operating expense in 2012 awat&).52 per Mcfe compared to $0.51 per Mcfe du?ingl.

» $17 million increase in gathering, processing aaddportation expenses primarily as a result dharease in natural gas liquids
volumes. This increase includes a $9 million adjestt related to royalty calculations for prior pels. Excluding this adjustment, our
gathering, processing and transportation chargeaged $1.02 per Mcfe for 2012 compared to an geesh$1.05 for 2011

*  $26 million decrease in taxes other than income@dr2 primarily reflecting the impact of decreasetal product revenues (excluding
hedges) resulting from lower commodity prices id2@ompared to 2011. Our taxes other than incoraeaged $0.18 per Mcfe for 2012
compared to an average of $0.24 for 2(

» $475 million decrease in gas management expense®a@du27 percent decrease in average prices aricphyatural gas cost of sales anc
a 9 percent decrease in natural gas sales volwisesincluded in
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gas management expenses are $46 million and $86miil 2012 and 2011, respectively, for unutilizeideline capacity. Gas
management expenses in 2012 and 2011 also inclulden#lion and $10 million, respectively, relatedibwer of cost or market charges
to the carrying value of natural gas inventoriestorage

* $51 million decrease in exploration expenses piilsnegflects lower unproved leasehold impairmemhoatization and expiration
expenses in 2012 compared to 2011 which includ&EDanillion write-off impairment of acreage in Calbia County, Pennsylvania that
we no longer planned to develop. Additionally, B2 we incurred approximately $11 million of dryidnexpenses in connection with a
Marcellus Shale well in Columbia County becauseltesvere inconclusive and raised substantial dabbut the economic and
operational viability of the wel

»  $59 million increase in depreciation, depletion antbrtization expenses which reflects higher pridoo/olumes and a slightly higher
rate. During 2012 our depreciation, depletion amdrization averaged $1.93 per Mcfe compared tavamage $1.89 per Mcfe in 2011.
During the course of 2012, we adjusted our estichpteved reserves used for the calculation of digwlend amortization to reflect the
impact of the decrease in the 12 month average;atiés resulted in a total of approximately $31lion additional depreciation,
depletion and amortization expense in 2012 andthesnain driver of the increase in the averageMzfe.

»  $225 million of property impairments in 2012 comphte $367 million in 2011, as previously discuss

» The increase in other-net expense for 2012 primegflects $9 million in rig release penalties aigdstandby fees. In 2013, we expect to
incur additional rig standby fee

International cost:

International costs increased primarily due to bigéxploration expenses related to 3-D seismiciaitiun costs and dry hole expenses.
Costs also increased due to higher depreciatigietien and amortization and higher production kftidg costs.

Consolidated results below operating income (loss)

Years ended December 3: Percentag:

Increase

2012 2011 $ Change (Decrease

(Millions)

Consolidated operating income (lo $ (280 $ (142 $ (139 97%
Interest expens (102 (117) 15 (13)%
Interest capitalize 8 9 @ (11)%
Investment income and oth 3C 26 4 15%
Loss from continuing operations before income t¢ (344 (229 (220 54%
Benefit for income taxe (117 (74 (37 50%
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (233) (250) (83 55%
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 22 (142 164 (115%
Net income (loss (211) (292) 81 (28)%
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenests 12 1C 2 20%
Net income (loss) attributable to WPX Ene $ (229 $ (302 $ 79 (26)%

Interest expense in 2012 primarily reflects inteeesrued on our senior notes issued in Novembgt . 2dterest expense in 2011
primarily reflects interest through June 30, 20&4azmiated with our unsecured notes payable withidiis. The outstanding amounts were
cancelled by Williams and contributed to capitalJame 30, 2011. Additionally, interest expensedhlalso includes $11 million of interest
our senior notes issued in November 2011.
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Our investment income and other primarily reflesgsiity earnings associated with our internatiomal domestic equity method
investments.

The benefit for income taxes increased in 2012 f&rhl due to an increased loss from continuingatjmrs. See Note 10 of the Note:
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussighe effective tax rates compared to the fedetetltory rate for both periods.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations reflec&38 million pretax gain on sale in 2012 and @illion pretax impairment in
2011. As previously discussed, we completed the giabur holdings in Barnett Shale and the ArkonaaiB during 2012. See Note 2 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

2011 vs. 2010
Revenue Analysis:

Years ended December 3: Percentag

Increase

2011 2010 $ Change (Decrease

(Millions)
Domestic revenue!

Natural gas sale $ 1,67¢ $ 1,70C $ (22 (D)%

Oil and condensate sal 22¢ 55 171 NM
Natural gas liquid sale 404 282 12z 43%
Total product revenue 2,30¢ 2,031 271 13%
Gas manageme 1,42¢ 1,742 (319 (18)%
Net gain (loss) on derivatives not designated ag&s 29 27 2 7%
Other 7 40 (33 (83)%
Total domestic revenut $ 3,77 $ 3,84¢ $ (79 (2%
Total international revenus $ 11C $ 89 $ 21 24%
Total revenue: $ 3,88: $ 3,93t $ (53 ()%

NM: A percentage calculation is not meaningful dmehange in signs, a z-value denominator or a percentage change grdeter200.

Domestic Revenut
Significant variances in comparative revenues cgfle

e $22 million decrease in natural gas sales refleger Mcf price (including the impact of hedges$4f32 compared to $4.58 in
2010 on production sales volumes of 388,780 MMdf an1,489 MMcf, respectively. Without hedges, oatunal gas price per Mi
in 2011 was $3.48 compared to $3.68 in 2(

e $171 million increase in oil and condensate saélects a per barrel price of $85.30 (including itheact of hedges) in 2011
compared to $65.93 in 2010. Production sales vodum&011 were 2,651 Mbbls compared to 828 MbbR0ih0. Production in
2011 reflected a full year of production associatéti producing wells acquired in the Bakken acijigis completed in late 2010
well as production from wells drilled during 20:

» $122 million increase in natural gas liquids sakftects a per barrel price of $40.17 in 2011 coragdo $35.02 in 2010. Product
sales volumes were 10,057 Mbbls in 2011 versusA8\Mitabls in 2010
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* A $314 million decrease in gas management revepiesrily due to a 7 percent decrease in averagepon physical natural gas

sales and 12 percent lower natural gas sales vsluwe experienced a similar decrease of $296 miliaelated gas management

costs and expense

* A $33 million decrease in other revenues primaehated to the absence of gathering revenues assdavith the gathering and
processing assets in Coloris Piceance Basin that were sold to Williams Pastirethe fourth quarter of 201

International Revenue

International revenues increased primarily duetogased average oil sales prices.

Cost and operating expense and operating income §lg) analysis:

Domestic costs and expens
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Gas management, including charges for unutilizeélpie capacit
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of producing properties and costs ofi&egl unproved reservi
Goodwill Impairmen
General and administrati
Other—net

Total domestic costs and expen

International costs and expens
Lease and facility operatir
Taxes other than incon
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
General and administrati
Other—net

Total international costs and expen

Total costs and expens

Domestic operating income (los

International operating income (lo¢

Years ended
December 31

2011 2010
(Millions)

$ 23t $ 244
487 32C
11z 104
1,471 1,761
12¢ 51
88C 794
367 17¢<
— 1,00¢
268 23¢
(©) (19)
$3,93¢ $4,67:
$ 27 $ 19
21 16

3 6

22 17

12 9

3 —

$ 88 $ 67
$4,02¢ $4,74C
$ (164) $ (827)
$ 22 $ 22

Percentagt

Increase

$ Change (Decrease
$ 9 (4)%
167 52%

9 9%
(29€6) (17)%
72 141%

86 11%
192 11C%

(1,009 NM
30 13%
15 (83%
(737) (16)%
8 42%

5 31%
(©) (50%

5 2%

3 33%

3 NM

$ 21 31%
$ (716 (15)%
$ 662 (80%
$ — — %

NM: A percentage calculation is not meaningful dmehange in signs, a z-value denominator or a percentage change grdeter200.
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Domestic Cost

Significant variances in comparative costs and rgps reflect:

Lease and facility operating expense reflects higbets associated with higher production and emed workover, water
management, and maintenance activity, offset byalisence in 2011 of $28 million in expenses asttiaith the previously
owned gathering and processing assets. Lease @ility faperating expense in 2011 averaged $0.5IMmEfe compared to $0.57
Mcfe during 2010. Excluding the $28 million of exyses associated with the previously owned gathemnitgprocessing assets,
lease obligation expense in 2010 averaged $0.5Mpf.

$167 million higher gathering, processing and tpantation expenses primarily as a result of feed maWilliams Partners in 2011
for gathering and processing associated with egegathering and processing assets in the Piceassia Biat we sold to Williams
Partners in the fourth quarter of 2010 and an es®en natural gas liquids volumes processed diaWig Partners’ Willow Creek
plant. During 2011, gathering, processing and partation expenses were $132 million higher dueés paid to Williams Partne
pursuant to the gathering and processing agreeassotiated with the assets sold Williams Partmetisa fourth quarter of 2010.
During 2010, our operating costs were $58 milliseaxiated with these assets (primarily reflectddase and facility operating
costs ($28 million) and depreciation, depletion ambrtization ($17 million)). These costs are mugler directly incurred as
operating costs (but rather as gathering, procgssid transportation expenses) as we no longeroowperate these assets. Our
gathering, processing and transportation chargeaged $1.05 per Mcfe in 2011 compared to an aeesh§0.75 per Mcfe in
2010.

$9 million increase in taxes other than income prilpassociated with higher oil and natural gasiiity sales volume

$296 million decrease in gas management expensegrpy due to a 6 percent decrease in averageon physical natural gas
cost of sales and a 12 percent decrease in ngasadales volumes. This activity represents nagasipurchased in connection w
our gas purchase activities for Williams Partnerd eertain working interest owners’ share of prditucand to manage our
transportation and storage activities. The salssaated with our marketing of this gas are inctlidlegas management revenues.
Also included in gas management expenses are $86mand $44 million in 2011 and 2010, respectyyddr unutilized pipeline
capacity. Gas management expenses in 2011 anda®githclude $10 million and $2 million, respectiyeaelated to lower of cost
or market charges to the carrying value of natgaal inventories in storac

$72 million increase in exploration expense prityatiie to the previously discussed dry hole anddbald write-offs of $61

million in Columbia County, Pennsylvania coupledhiincreased leasehold amortization costs assdordth leasehold
acquisitions. Partially off-setting these increaisebe absence of $15 million in dry hole changeognized in 2010 associated with
the Paradox Basil

$86 million increase in depreciation, depletion antbrtization expenses which reflects higher pradoo/olumes partially offset
by the absence of $17 million of depreciation exggerelated to the assets sold to Williams Partine2610. During 2011, our
depreciation, depletion and amortization averade8%per Mcfe compared to an average $1.87 per Mc610.

$367 million of property impairments in 2011 comphte $175 million in 201C
The absence of the goodwill impairment from 201Q@a&1, as previously discuss:

$30 million increase in general and administragxpenses primarily due to higher wages, salarybamefits costs primarily as a
result of an increase in the number of employees.g@neral and administrative expenses in 201 lageer $0.57 per Mcfe in 2011
compared to an average of $0.55 per Mcfe in 20HditPonally, general and administrative expense®(hl reflect approximately
$5 million in costs associated with our initial fictoffering efforts and approximately $5 million stock based compensation
expense
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» Other-net in 2010 reflects a gain on sale of $1laniassociated with a sale of a portion of gatihgand processing assets in the
Piceance Basin and a $7 million gain on the excharfigindeveloped leasehold acreage with a thiry ¢

International Cost:

International costs increased primarily due toéased production and lifting costs due to gregterating and maintenance activity and
increased operating taxes associated with increasetues.

Consolidated results below operating income (loss)

Years ended Percentag¢
December 31

Increase

2011 2010 $ Change (Decrease
(Millions)

Consolidated operating income (lo $(142) $ (80E) $ 662 (82)%
Interest expens (117) (129 7 (6)%
Interest capitalize 9 15 (6) (40)%
Investment income and oth 2€ 21 5 24%
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: (229) (899) 66¢ (75)%

Provision (benefit) for income tax (74 4 11¢€ NM
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (150) (937) 787 (84)%
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (142 (346 204 (59)%
Net income (loss (292) (1,287 991 (7%
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenests 1C 8 2 25%
Net income (loss) attributable to WPX Ene $(302) $(1,29)) $ 98¢ (7%

NM: A percentage calculation is not meaningful imehange in signs, a z-value denominator or a percentage change greéwstar200.

Interest expense in 2011 primarily reflects inteeagense to Williams for six months as Williamsoalled and contributed to capital all
amounts due under our unsecured notes payableheith on June 30, 2011. Also, 2011 reflects intezrigense on our senior notes issued in
November 2011. All cash receipts and cash expemditiiansferred to or from Williams from July 11200 November 30, 2011 we
considered owner’s equity transactions betweemds/illiams and therefore no interest expense wasrded during this period. Interest
expense in 2010 primarily reflects interest paitMiliams on outstanding notes payable to Williams.

Our investment income and other primarily refldoten equity earnings associated with our intermatland domestic equity method
investments.

Provision (benefit) for income taxes in 2010 reffethe nondeductibility of goodwill impairment ftax purposes. See Note 10 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fosautision of the effective tax rates compared tdatieral statutory rate for both perio

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial@dition and Liquidity
Overview and Liquidity

In 2012, we continued to focus upon growth throoghtinued disciplined investments in expandingrmatural gas, oil and NGL
portfolio while completing the separation from Wéhs.
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Our main sources of liquidity are cash on haneyrimdlly generated cash flow from operations andoaunk credit facility. Additional
sources of liquidity, if needed and if availableclude bank financings, proceeds from the issuahteng-term debt and equity securities, and
proceeds from asset sales. Prior to December 1, 20t liquidity was managed through an internahcaanagement program with Williams.
Daily cash activity from our domestic operation wassferred to or from Williams on a regular basisl was recorded as increases or
decreases in the balance due under unsecured pmgnitotes we had in place with Williams throughe)80, 2011, at which time the notes
were cancelled by Williams. Any cash activity frdimy 1, 2011 until November 30, 2011 was treateda@#tal contribution. On December 1,
2011, we began to manage our own cash beginnitgtiadét $500 million retained after the issuancenefdenior notes. In consideration of our
liquidity, we note the following:

* As of December 31, 2012, we maintained liquidityotigh cash, cash equivalents and available cragagity under our credit
facility.

» Our credit exposure to derivative counterpartigsaigially mitigated by master netting agreements eollateral suppor

» Apco’s liquidity requirements have historically loggrovided by its cash flows from operations anghaan hand. Included in our
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 20B5im$lion related to our international operatio

Outlook

We expect our capital structure will provide usafigial flexibility to meet our requirements for Wwaorg capital, capital expenditures, and
tax and debt payments while maintaining a sufficiemel of liquidity. Our primary sources of liquig in 2013 are expected cash flows from
operations and borrowings on our $1.5 billion dréafltility. The combination of these sources shdédsufficient to allow us to pursue our
business strategy and goals for 2013.

We note the following assumptions for 2013:

» Our capital expenditures, including internatiorzak estimated to be approximately $1 billion td2%dillion in 2013, and are
generally considered to be largely discretionang

* Apcd's liquidity requirements will continue to be progiifrom its cash flows from operations and cashamd.

Potential risks associated with our planned legéliguidity and the planned capital and investment
expenditures discussed above include:

» Lower than expected levels of cash flow from ogeres, primarily resulting from lower energy commiydbrices;
« Higher than expected collateral obligations thay i@ required, including those required under nemmercial agreement
« Significantly lower than expected capital expenaisucould result in the loss of undeveloped ledselod
* Reduced access to our credit faci
Under the credit facility agreement (“Credit FagilAgreement”) and prior to our receipt of an inveent grade rating with a stable
outlook, we are required to maintain a ratio of pretsent value of projected future cash flows froved reserves to Consolidated
Indebtedness (as defined in the Credit Facilitye®gnent) of at least 1.50 to 1.00. Net present vialdetermined as of the end of each fiscal

year and reflects the present value, discount&dpatrcent, of projected future cash flows of doiegsioved oil and gas reserves (such ¢
flows
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are adjusted to reflect the impact of hedges, enndrs’ commodity price forecasts, and, if necgswainclude only a portion of our reserves
that are not proved developed producing reserfes)her declines in natural gas prices during ®ifgegars could reduce our net present value
and thus limit our available capacity under thesagient. However, we believe that we have full acteshe $1.5 billion in 2013 based on
yearend pricing. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consaddd#&tinancial Statements.

We have executed three bilateral, uncommittedrlefteredit agreements which we anticipate wilrerewed annually. These
agreements allow us to preserve our liquidity uraerrevolving credit agreement while providing pag to our ability to meet performance
obligation needs for, among other items, variotsrgiate pipeline contracts into which we havereateThese unsecured agreements
incorporate similar terms as those in the Crediilfia Agreement. At December 31, 2012 a total 813 million in letters of credit have been
issued.

Credit Ratings

Our ability to borrow money will be impacted by sesl factors, including our credit ratings. Creadiings agencies perform independent
analysis when assigning credit ratings. A downgafdaur current rating could increase our futurstad borrowing and result in a requirem
that we post additional collateral with third pesti thereby negatively affecting our availableitiégfy. The current ratings are as follows:

Standard and Pd's(a)

Corporate Credit Ratin BB+

Senior Unsecured Debt Rati BB+

Outlook Stable
Moody's Investors Service(!

Senior Unsecured Debt Rati Bal

LT Corporate Family Ratin Bal

Outlook Stable

(&) A rating of “BBB” or above indicates an invegm grade rating. A rating below “BBB” indicatesttihe security has significant
speculative characteristics. A “BB” rating indicathat Standard & Poor’s believes the issuer hasdpacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation, but adverse busigesslitions could lead to insufficient ability to etdfinancial commitments.

Standard & Poc's may modify its ratings with“+" or a“-” sign to show the oblig’s relative standing within a major rating categ:

(b) Arating of “Baa” or above indicates an investihgrade rating. A rating below “Baa” is considkte have speculative elements. The “1,
“2,” and “3"” modifiers show the relative standingtfin a major category. A “1” indicates that anightion ranks in the higher end of the
broad rating categor“?2” indicates a mi-range ranking, an“3" indicates the lower end of the categc

Sources (Uses) of Cash
The following table and discussion summarize ourses (uses) of cash for the years ended Decerb@032, 2011 and 2010.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Net cash provided (used) k
Operating activitie! $ 794 $ 1,20¢ $ 1,05¢
Investing activities (1,209 (1,55¢€) (2,337)
Financing activitie: 37 83¢ 1,28¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: $ (379 $ 48¢ $ 3
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Operating activities
Our net cash provided by operating activities in2@ecreased from 2011 primarily due to lower erealicommodity prices.

The increase in net cash provided by operatingities in 2011 from 2010 is primarily due to netdaable changes in our operating
assets and liabilities compared to 2010.

Investing activities
Our net cash used by investing activities in 20é&dased from 2011 primarily due to the proceeats the sale of our holdings in the
Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basin. Our net cash ugéaviesting activities in 2011 decreased from 2ffifharily due to reduced capital
expenditures and the absence of our acquisitio881® for Marcellus Shale and Bakken Shale progerti
Significant items include:
2012
» Expenditures for drilling and completion were apgnaately $1.2 billion.
* Proceeds of $306 million from the sale of our hoddi in the Barnett Shale and Arkoma Ba

2011
» Expenditures for drilling and completion were appneately $1.4 billion.

2010
» Expenditures for drilling and completion were apgnaately $950 million.
e Our acquisition in July 2010 of properties in thangellus Shale for $599 milliol
e Our acquisition in December 2010 of oil and gagpprtes in the Bakken Shale for $949 milli

* The sale in November 2010 of certain gathering@odessing assets in the Piceance Basin to WillRamngsers for $702 million in
cash ($244 million of which was in excess of ourbieok value and thus a financing and capital &atisn with Williams) and
approximately 1.8 million Williams Partners commuamits, which were subsequently distributed to \Afitiis.

Financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities in 20@2ludes $10 million of a contribution from a thpdrty related to the formation of a
consolidated limited liability company. This compamas formed to hold gathering facilities.

Our net cash provided by financing activities dasesl in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due taibigion to Williams of
approximately $981 million from our $1.5 billion Mote proceeds in November 2011 offset by lowerdwings from Williams in 2011
compared to 2010.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We had no guarantees of off-balance sheet dehirtbgarties or any other off-balance sheet arrareges at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.
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Contractual Obligations
The table below summarizes the maturity dates otontractual obligations at December 31, 2012.

2014~ 2016-
2013 2015 2017 Thereafter Total
(Millions)
Long-term debt, including current portic
Principal $ 1 $ 7 $ 402 $ 1,10( $ 1,51(
Interest 87 174 164 297 722
Operating leases and associated service committ
Drilling rig commitments(a 12t 14¢ 2 — 27€
Other 16 19 17 29 81
Transportation and storage commitment: 20t 41¢ 367 741 1,731
Natural gas purchase commitments 124 304 27¢ 523 1,22¢
Oil and gas activities(c 21¢ 207 14¢€ 15¢ 73C
Other 15 22 4 — 41
Other lon¢-term liabilities, including current portiol
Physical and financial derivatives| 297 593 643 2,31 3,84¢
Total $1,08¢ $1,89:¢ $2,02( $ 5,168 $10,16¢

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Includes materials and services obligations astagtiaith our drilling rig contract:

Excludes additional commitments totaling $8Tion associated with projects for which the coupsety has not yet received satisfactory
regulatory approvals

Purchase commitments are at market pricestengurchased natural gas can be sold at marketspritie obligations are based on
market information as of December 31, 2012 andrectd are assumed to remain outstanding for tbiicéntractual duration. Because
market information changes daily and is subjectatatility, significant changes to the values iistbategory may occur. Certain parties
have elected to convert their gas purchase agrdsrteefirm gathering and processing agreementssiwéérvices will be provided by
Williams Partners. WPX Ener’s gas purchase obligations totaling $1.2 billioli terminate at the effective date of the new agrests.
Includes gathering, processing and other all gas related services commitments. Excluded alodities associated with asset retiremen
obligations, which total $321 million as of DecemBg&, 2012. The ultimate settlement and timing cate precisely determined in
advance; however, we estimate that approximatglgréent of this liability will be settled in the xtdive years.

Includes $3.8 billion of physical natural gasidatives related to purchases at market pricks.fatural gas expected to be purchased
under these contracts can be sold at market ptarggly offsetting this obligation. The obligatefor physical and financial derivatives
are based on market information as of Decembe?@12, and assume contracts remain outstandingpdarfull contractual duration.
Because market information changes daily and igesttp volatility, significant changes to the vaduin this category may occi

Effects of Inflation
Although the impact of inflation has been insigeddit in recent years, it is still a factor in theitdd States economy. Operating costs are

influenced by both competition for specialized seg8 and specific price changes in natural gasN@iLs and other commodities. We tend to
experience inflationary pressure on the cost ofises and equipment as increasing oil and gasgnmease drilling activity in our areas of
operation.
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Environmental

Our operations are subject to governmental lawsragdlations relating to the protection of the eowiment, and increasingly strict laws,
regulations and enforcement policies, as well asréuadditional environmental requirements, coulterially increase our costs of operation,
compliance and any remediation that may becomessacg

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affegefiorted amounts of assets, liabilities, reverames expenses and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. We believe thatnature of these estimates and assumptionst&ialalue to the subjectivity and judgment
necessary, or the susceptibility of such mattechmge, and the impact of these on our finanoiatlition or results of operations.

In our management’s opinion, the more significapiorting areas impacted by management’s judgmextestimates are as follows:

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairmentmvtve believe events or changes in circumstandésaite that we may not be able to
recover the carrying value. Our computations wijizdgments and assumptions that include the uowliged future cash flows, discounted
future cash flows, estimated fair value of the ass®d the current and future economic environnrenthich the asset is operated.

Due to the drop in natural gas and natural gasdgjforward prices during 2012, we assessed ourralagas producing properties and
acquired unproved reserve costs for impairmentgusstimates of future cash flows. Significant judgms and assumptions in these
assessments include estimates of reserves qusntiigmates of future commaodity prices (primaniitural gas, using a forward NYMEX
curve adjusted for locational basis differentialg)ling plans, expected capital costs and oumeste of an applicable discount rate
commensurate with the risk of the underlying cdstv estimates. Additionally, judgment is used teedmine the probability of sale with
respect to assets considered for disposal. Thesmasat performed identified certain properties wittarrying value in excess of those
undiscounted cash flows and their calculated falues. As a result, we recognized $225 millionngpairment charges in 2012. See Notes 6
and 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 8tatds for additional discussion and significantitsginto the fair value determination.

In addition to those lontived assets described above for which impairmbaatges were recorded, certain others were revidéavrashich
no impairment was required. These reviews incluatedr domestic producing properties and acquirgatawed reserve costs, and utilized
inputs generally consistent with those describexvabJudgments and assumptions are inherent iestiunate of future cash flows used to
evaluate these assets. The use of alternate judged assumptions could result in the recogniifodifferent levels of impairment charges in
the consolidated financial statements. For othedpeing assets reviewed, but for which impairméwatrges were not recorded, we estimate
that approximately three percent could be at riskrhpairment if forward prices across all futueripds decline by approximately 11 percent
to 12 percent, on average, as compared to the fdrecanmodity prices at December 31, 2012. We es$tirtieat approximately 31 percent
could be at risk for impairment if forward commadgrices across all periods decline by approxinyatél percent to 18 percent. A substantial
portion of the remaining carrying value of theskeestassets could be at risk for impairment if fairdveommodity prices across all future
periods decline by approximately 23 percent, omaye, as compared to the prices at December 32, 201
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Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingchivities

Through December 2011, we elected to designatm#jerity of our applicable derivative instrumensscash flow hedges. Beginning in
2012, new commodity derivative contracts that seweconomic hedges of production will not be destied as hedges for accounting purp
as we have elected not to utilize hedge accoutingew derivatives instruments. Changes in thevidire of non-hedge derivative
instruments, hereafter referred to as economicé®&dye recognized as gains or losses in the garofrthe periods in which they occur,
accordingly we believe this will result in futuraraings that are more volatile. Hedged derivatreesrded at December 31, 2012 that are
included in accumulated other comprehensive incaitide realized by the end of the first-quarted 30

We review our energy contracts to determine whetiey are, or contain, derivatives. Our energywdgites portfolio is largely
comprised of exchange-traded products or like prtsdand the tenure of our derivatives portfolioakgtively short-term, with more than
99 percent of the value of our derivatives portfakpiring in the next 24 months. We further assiessappropriate accounting method for any
derivatives identified, which could include:

« applying mark-to-market accounting, which recognizes changes ifidin@alue of the derivative in earning
» qualifying for and electing accrual accounting unithe normal purchases and normal sales excefutic

» qualifying for and electing cash flow hedge accountwhich recognizes changes in the fair valuthefderivative in other
comprehensive income (to the extent the hedgdestefe) until the hedged item is recognized imaags for derivatives entered
into prior to 2012

If cash flow hedge accounting or accrual accoungnapt applied, a derivative is subject to mark¥tarket accounting. Determination of
the accounting method involves significant judgrserid assumptions, which are further describedibelo

The determination of whether a derivative contrpdlifies as a cash flow hedge includes an anabfdisstorical market price
information to assess whether the derivative isetqul to be highly effective in offsetting the célslws attributed to the hedged risk. We also
assess whether the hedged forecasted transacpoobiable of occurring. This assessment requirdés agercise judgment and consider a wide
variety of factors in addition to our intent, indlag internal and external forecasts, historicgexience, changing market and business
conditions, our financial and operational abililycarry out the forecasted transaction, the len§itme until the forecasted transaction is
projected to occur and the quantity of the foremdstansaction. In addition, we compare actual ias¥s to those that were expected from the
underlying risk. If a hedged forecasted transadsamot probable of occurring, or if the derivats@ntract is not expected to be highly effect
the derivative does not qualify for hedge accountin

For derivatives designated as cash flow hedgesnug periodically assess whether they continuausdify for hedge accounting. We
prospectively discontinue hedge accounting andgeize future changes in fair value directly in éags if we no longer expect the hedge t
highly effective, or if we believe that the heddetecasted transaction is no longer probable ofioot. If the forecasted transaction becomes
probable of not occurring, we reclassify amounts/fmusly recorded in other comprehensive income éatrnings in addition to prospectively
discontinuing hedge accounting. If the effectivenefsthe derivative improves and is again expetddue highly effective in offsetting the cash
flows attributed to the hedged risk, or if the fasted transaction again becomes probable, we mapertively redesignate the derivative a
hedge of the underlying risk.

Derivatives for which the normal purchases and rmbisales exception has been elected are accownted fin accrual basis. In
determining whether a derivative is eligible foistexception, we assess whether the contract previa the purchase or sale of a commodity
that will be physically delivered in quantities exped
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to be used or sold over a reasonable period indhmal course of business. In making this assessmverconsider numerous factors, includ
the quantities provided under the contract in refato our business needs, delivery locations lpeicbntract in relation to our operating
locations, duration of time between entering thetiart and delivery, past trends and expecteddudemand and our past practices and
customs with regard to such contracts. Additionallg assess whether it is probable that the cdantrilaesult in physical delivery of the
commodity and not net financial settlement.

Since our energy derivative contracts could be @tz for in three different ways, two of which afective, our accounting method
could be different from that used by another p&otya similar transaction. Furthermore, the accimgninethod may influence the level of
volatility in the financial statements associatathwhanges in the fair value of derivatives, asegally depicted below:

Consolidated Statements of Operation Consolidated Balance Sheel
Accounting Method Drivers Impact Drivers Impact
Accrual
Accounting Realizations Less Volatility None No Impact
Cash Flow Hedge Realizations &
Accounting Ineffectivenes: Less Volatility Fair Value Change More Volatility
Mark-to-Market Accounting Fair Value Change More Volatility Fair Value Change More Volatility

Our determination of the accounting method doesmpact our cash flows related to derivatives.

Additional discussion of the accounting for enecgytracts at fair value is included in Notes 1 &6df Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Successful Efforts Method of Accounting for Oil an@as Exploration and Production Activities

We use the successful efforts method of accourfitingur oil- and gas-producing activities. Estinthteatural gas and oil reserves and
forward market prices for oil and gas are a sigaifit part of our financial calculations. Followiage examples of how these estimates affect
financial results:

» Anincrease (decrease) in estimated proved oilgasdreserves can reduce (increase) our unit-ofdotimoh depreciation, depletion
and amortization rates; a

» Changes in oil and gas reserves and forward marlags both impact projected future cash flows fiaum oil and gas properties.
This, in turn, can impact our periodic impairmenakyses

The process of estimating natural gas and oil veses very complex, requiring significant judgmanthe evaluation of all available
geological, geophysical, engineering and econoraia.dAfter being estimated internally, over 99 petwf our domestic reserves estimates at
audited by independent experts. The data may chautggantially over time as a result of numeroatofa, including additional development
cost and activity, evolving production history andontinual reassessment of the viability of praidmcunder changing economic conditions.
As a result, material revisions to existing ressr@stimates could occur from time to time. Suchngka could trigger an impairment of our oil
and gas properties and have an impact on our dapogg; depletion and amortization expense prospegt For example, a change of
approximately 10 percent in our total oil and geserves could change our annual depreciation, tilmpkend amortization expense between
approximately $83 million and $102 million. The @aitimpact would depend on the specific basins otgghand whether the change resulted
from proved developed, proved undeveloped or a auatibn of these reserves categories.

Forward market prices, which are utilized in oupairment analyses, include estimates of pricepdoiods that extend beyond those \
guoted market prices. This forward market priceiinfation is consistent with that generally usedvaluating our drilling decisions and
acquisition plans. These market prices for future

74



Table of Contents

periods impact the production economics underlgiih@nd gas reserve estimates. The prices of rajasaand oil are volatile and change from
period to period, thus impacting our estimatesnffiicant unfavorable changes in the forward priaeve could result in an impairment of our
oil and gas properties.

We record the cost of leasehold acquisitions asried. Individually significant lease acquisitioosts are assessed annually, or as
conditions warrant, for impairment considering fture drilling plans, the remaining lease term agxknt drilling results. Lease acquisition
costs that are not individually significant are ssggated by prospect or geographically, and thégrodf such costs estimated to be
nonproductive prior to lease expiration is amodipger the average holding period. Changes in ssuraptions regarding the estimates of the
nonproductive portion of these leasehold acquisitioould result in impairment of these costs. Ugetermination that specific acreage will
be developed, the costs associated with that aemeagld be impaired. Our capitalized lease acqaisitosts, including costs of acquired
unproved reserves, totaled $1.1 billion at Decen3iie2012.

Contingent Liabilities

We record liabilities for estimated loss contingesgincluding royalty litigation, environmentaldinther contingent matters, when we
assess that a loss is probable and the amoung tdgh can be reasonably estimated. Revisionsntingent liabilities are generally reflected in
income when new or different facts or informati@cbme known or circumstances change that affeqiréagdous assumptions with respect to
the likelihood or amount of loss. Liabilities foortingent losses are based upon our assumptionsstinthtes and upon advice of legal cou
engineers or other third parties regarding the abboutcomes of the matter. As new developmerasramr more information becomes
available, our assumptions and estimates of thiaisities may change. Changes in our assumptiodsestimates or outcomes different from
our current assumptions and estimates could mHyesiffect future results of operations for anygarlar quarterly or annual period. See
Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialeptents

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

We record deferred taxes for the differences betviiee tax and book basis of our assets as wetiszsdr credit carryovers to future
years. Included in our deferred taxes are def@me@ssets resulting from certain investments arsihlbesses that have a tax basis in exce
book basis, from certain separate state lossesaeddn the current and prior years and, effeatiith the spin-off, from certain tax attributes
allocated between us and Williams. We must peralji@valuate whether it is more likely than not widl realize these deferred tax assets an
establish a valuation allowance for those thatatonmeet the more likely than not threshold. Wheseasing the need for a valuation allowance
we consider future reversals of existing taxabheperary differences, future taxable income exclegif reversing temporary differences and
carryforwards, and tax-planning strategies thatld,afinecessary, be implemented to acceleratebtexamounts to utilize expiring
carryforwards. The ultimate amount of deferredaagets realized could be materially different ftbwse recorded, as influenced by potential
changes in jurisdictional income tax laws and tineumnstances surrounding the actual realizatiorelated tax assets.

The determination of our state deferred tax regyildgment as we did not exist as a stand-aloeeifilall states prior to the spin-off and
the state deferred tax can change periodicallycdbarechanges in our operations. Our state deféareis based upon our current entity
structure and the jurisdictions in which we operate

See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Fina®t@lements for additional information.

Fair Value Measurements

A limited amount of our energy derivative assets kabilities trade in markets with lower availatyilof pricing information requiring us
to use unobservable inputs and are considered Bewethe fair value hierarchy. For Level 2 trartgats, we do not make significant
adjustments to observable prices in measuring/édire as we do not generally trade in inactive stk
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The determination of fair value for our energy dative assets and liabilities also incorporategitne value of money and various credit
risk factors which can include the credit standifithe counterparties involved, master nettingrageaments, the impact of credit enhancemen
(such as cash collateral posted and letters oftfmatl our nonperformance risk on our energy dgive liabilities. The determination of the
fair value of our energy derivative liabilities doeot consider noncash collateral credit enhanctsmEar net derivative assets, we apply a
credit spread, based on the credit rating of thetarparty, against the net derivative asset vhidlh tounterparty. For net derivative liabilities,
we apply our own credit rating. We derive the aregreads by using the corporate industrial cradites for each rating category and building
a curve based on certain points in time for eatthgaategory. The spread comes from the discastof of the individual corporate curves
versus the discount factor of the LIBOR curve. A&&cBmber 31, 2012, the credit reserve is less thaniion on our net derivative assets and
net derivative liabilities. Considering these fastand that we do not have significant risk from 1oet credit exposure to derivative
counterparties, the impact of credit risk is ngngficant to the overall fair value of our deriwads portfolio.

At December 31, 2012, 98 percent of the fair valueur derivatives portfolio expires in the nextmh®nths and approximately 100
percent expires in the next 24 months. Our defreatportfolio is largely comprised of exchange-¢@dgroducts or like products where price
transparency has not historically been a conceune. 0 the nature of the markets in which we tranaad the relatively short tenure of our
derivatives portfolio, we do not believe it is nesary to make an adjustment for illiquidity. Weulsgly analyze the liquidity of the markets
based on the prevalence of broker pricing and exgdaricing for products in our derivatives poiitol

The instruments included in Level 3 at December2®812, consist of natural gas index transactioasdhe used to manage the physical
requirements of our business. The change in theath¥air value of instruments included in LevepBmarily results from changes in
commodity prices during the month of delivery. Téhare generally no active forward markets or quptazks for natural gas index
transactions.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201fccggnized impairments of certain assets that wexasured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis. These impairment measuremeaiscuded in Level 3 as they include significanbbservable inputs, such as our estil
of future cash flows and the probabilities of aitgive scenarios. See Note 15 of the Notes to Cidased Financial Statements.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk exposure is related prigddlour debt portfolio. Our Notes are fixed ragbtlin order to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in interest rates and we expect thgtl@orrowings under our credit facility will moskély be at a variable interest rate and could
expose us to the risk of increasing interest rdtesour fixed rate debt, $400 million matures @12 and $1,100 million matures in 2022.
Interest rates for each group are 5.25 percenédtilpercent, respectively. The aggregate fairevafithe Notes is $1,609 million. See Note 9
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statésmen

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of fluctuations inntfaeket price of natural gas, NGLs and crude silvall as other market factors, such
as market volatility and energy commaodity priceretations. We are exposed to these risks in coiorestith our owned energy-related assets
our long-term energy-related contracts and ourgetary trading activities. We manage the riskoaiged with these market fluctuations
using various derivatives and nonderivative enegdgted contracts. The fair value of derivativetcacts is subject to many factors, including
changes in energy commaodity market prices, thaditjuand volatility of the markets in which therttoacts are transacted and changes in
interest rates. See Note 15 and 16 of the Not€otsolidated Financial Statements.
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We measure the risk in our portfolios using a valtieisk methodology to estimate the potential dag-loss from adverse changes in the
fair value of the portfolios. Value at risk requdra number of key assumptions and is not necegsapitesentative of actual losses in fair value
that could be incurred from the portfolios. Ourusht-risk model uses a Monte Carlo method to siteuttypothetical movements in future
market prices and assumes that, as a result ofjeban commodity prices, there is a 95 percentaiiity that the one-day loss in fair value of
the portfolios will not exceed the value at riskelsimulation method uses historical correlatiars market forward prices and volatilities. In
applying the value-at-risk methodology, we do rarisider that the simulated hypothetical movemefiésthe positions or would cause any
potential liquidity issues, nor do we consider ttianging the portfolios in response to market @@ could affect market prices and could
take longer than a one-day holding period to exedhile a one-day holding period has historichien the industry standard, a longer
holding period could more accurately representtine market risk given market liquidity and our oenedit and liquidity constraints.

We segregate our derivative contracts into tradimgy nontrading contracts, as defined in the follgaparagraphs. We calculate value at
risk separately for these two categories. Contrdessgnated as normal purchases or sales and ivatder energy contracts have been
excluded from our estimation of value at risk.

We have policies and procedures that govern odirtgeand risk management activities. These polictegr authority and delegation
thereof in addition to control requirements, auibed commodities and term and exposure limitatidadue-at-risk is limited in aggregate and
calculated at a 95 percent confidence level.

Trading

Our trading portfolio consists of derivative comtissentered into for purposes other than economibabging our commodity price-risk
exposure. The fair value of our trading derivatives a net asset of $1 million at December 31, 201tPa net liability of $4 million at
December 31, 2011. The value at risk for contrhetd for trading purposes was less than $1 milioBecember 31, 2012, December 31, 2
and December 31, 2010.

Nontrading

Our nontrading portfolio consists of derivative tracts that hedge or could potentially hedge theepisk exposure from our natural gas
purchases and sales. The fair value of our deviestinot designated as hedging instruments wasasset of $39 million and $14 million at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplctive

The value at risk for derivative contracts heldrdontrading purposes was $6 million at Decembe2812, and $15 million at
December 31, 2011. During the year ended Decentheé?@® 2, our value at risk for these contracts edrfgom a high of $27 million to a low
of $6 million. The decrease in value at risk fromc@mber 31, 2011 primarily reflects the realizatbderivative positions partially offset by
new derivative contracts.
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Iltem 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary De

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaoing (as defined in Rules 13a—
15(f) and 15d—15(f) under the Securities Exchangedh 1934). Our internal controls over financieporting are designed to provide
reasonable assurance to our management and BoBitkofors regarding the preparation and fair presgeon of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States. Our internal contr@rdinancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to themesgiance of records that, in reasonable detailjrataly and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonalskurance that transactions are recorded asnutgeeparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes; and that our receipts and expenditures @irgglmade only in accordance with
authorization of our management and Board of Dinesgtand (iii) provide reasonable assurance reggnaiievention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of agsets that could have a material effect on oanfiial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how welsimed, have inherent limitations including thegioiity of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of controls. Therefoegen those systems determined to be effectivgpaande only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation andeptaion.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer,
we assessed the effectiveness of our internal@amier financial reporting as of December 31, 20da5ed on the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (COSO) imternal Control—Integrated FrameworBased on our
assessment, we concluded that, as of DecembeD32, @ur internal control over financial reportinwgs effective.

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubbticounting firm, has audited our internal contnatr financial reporting, as stated
in their report which is included in this Annual et on Form 10-K.

78



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WPX gpneinc.

We have audited WPX Energy, Inc. internal contr@rdfinancial reporting as of December 31, 2012¢bleon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by@oenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). WPX Energy, Inc.’s management is resgmador maintaining effective internal control ovfiinancial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompgagyManagement’s Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the comparigternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, WPX Energy, Inc. maintained, in mlaterial respects, effective internal control ofieancial reporting as of December
31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of WPX Energy, Inof &ecember 31, 2012 and 2011, and the relatecbtidaged statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), changes in equitycast flows for each of the three years in the pegisded December 31, 2012, of WPX
Energy, Inc. and our report dated February 28, 264@ressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 28, 2013

79



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WPX gpeinc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of WPX Energy, Inc. as of December 312 20d 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehemsdome (loss), changes in equity and cash flewsdch of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012. Our audits also inclugediancial statement schedule listed in the Iratdkem 15.(a). These financial statem
and schedule are the responsibility of the Compamanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of WI
Energy, Inc. at December 31, 2012 and 2011, anddhsolidated results of its operations and itk ¢lsvs for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles. Alls@ur opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidinetdvasic financial statements taken as a whotsepit fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), WPX Ener
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2012, based on criteria estaldighénternal Control-+thtegrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission and our report datduey 28, 2013, expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 28, 2013

80



Table of Contents

WPX Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2012 2011
(Millions)
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 152 $ 52¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $11 an8l &4 of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respect 44% 50¢
Deferred income taxe 17 —
Derivative asset 58 50¢€
Inventories 66 73
Other 35 60
Total current asse 77z 1,67¢
Investments 14¢ 12t
Properties and equipment, net (successful effoetthau of accounting 8,41¢ 8,22
Derivative asset 2 10
Other noncurrent asse 121 401
Total asset $9,45¢ $10,43:
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl 50¢ 702
Accrued and other current liabilitit 203 18¢€
Deferred income taxe — 11€
Derivative liabilities 14 152
Total current liabilities 72€ 1,15¢
Deferred income taxe 1,401 1,55¢
Long-term debt 1,50¢ 1,50
Derivative liabilities 1 7
Asset retirement obligatior 31¢€ 28:¢
Other noncurrent liabilitie 138 16¢
Contingent liabilities and commitments (Note .
Equity:
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock (100 million shares authorizedda®$ par value; no shares issu — —
Common stock (2 billion shares authorized at $@#&1value; 199.3 million shares issued at Decerhep01:
and 197.1 million shares issued at December 311) 2 2
Additional paic-in-capital 5,48 5,45
Accumulated defici (229 —
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 2 21¢
Total stockholder equity 5,26¢ 5,67¢
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidis 10z 81
Total equity 5,371 5,75¢
Total liabilities and equit $9,45¢ $10,43:

See accompanying notes.
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WPX Energy, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues
Product revenue:
Natural gas sale
Oil and condensate sal
Natural gas liquid sale
Total product revenue
Gas manageme
Net gain (loss) on derivatives not designated aig&e (Note 16
Other
Total revenue
Costs and expense
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Gas management, including charges for unutilizpélpie capacit
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of producing properties and costs ofiaegl unproved reserves (Note
Goodwill impairment
General and administrati
Other—net
Total costs and expens
Operating income (los!
Interest expens
Interest capitalize
Investment income and oth

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Provision (benefit) for income tax

Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic

Net income (loss
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenests

Net income (loss) attributable to WPX Ene

Amounts attributable to WPX Energy, In

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sfioée 5):
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic

Net income (loss
Weightec-average share

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31

2012

2011

2010

(Millions, except per share amounts

$ 1,36¢ $ 1,69/ $ 1,71
491 312 12¢
29¢ 40¢ 28t

2,15¢ 2,414 2,12¢
94¢ 1,42¢ 1,747
78 29 27

8 11 4C
3,18¢ 3,88: 3,93t
28: 262 26
50€ 487 32(
111 134 12C
99¢ 1,471 1,767
83 12¢ 57
96€ 902 811
22¢ 367 17¢
— — 1,00:
287 27F 242
12 — (18)
3,46¢ 4,02 4,74
(280) (142) (80F)
(102) (117) (124)
8 9 15

30 26 21
(344) (224) (899
(112) (74) 44
(239) (150) (937)
22 (142) (34€)
(211) (292) (1,289
12 10 8

$ (229 $ (3029  $(1,29)

$ (129 $(0.8) $ (4.80
0.11 (0.72) (1.75)

$ (119 $ (159  $ (659

198.¢ 197.1 197.1
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WPX Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)

Net income (loss) attributable to WPX Ene $(225)  $(302)  $(1,29)
Other comprehensive income (los

Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net xfa $ 57 $262 $ 321

Net reclassifications into earnings of net castvfleedge gains, net of tax( (274 (217) (225)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of (217) 51 96
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to WPXrgy $(440)  $(257) $(1,195)

() Change in fair value of cash flow hedges at®h$33 million, $151 million and $184 million @icome tax for 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively

(b) Net reclassifications into earnings of net castvffedge gains are net of $159 million, $120 millaovd $129 million of income tax fi
2012, 2011 and 2010, respective

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at December 31, 2C
Comprehensive incom
Net income (loss
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Comprehensive income (los
Cash proceeds in excess of historical
book value related to assets sold to a
Williams' affiliate
Net transfers with William
Dividends to noncontrolling interes
Balance at December 31, 2C
Comprehensive incom
Net income (loss
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Comprehensive income (los
Contribution of Notes Payable to
Williams (Note 3)
Allocation of alternative minimum tax
credit (Note 10°
Net transfers with William
Distribution to Williams a portion of
note proceed
Recapitalization upon contribution by
Williams
Dividends to noncontrolling interes
Stock based compensation, net of tax
benefit
Balance at December 31, 2C
Comprehensive incom
Net income (loss
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Comprehensive los
Contribution from noncontrolling
interest
Stock based compensation, net of tax
benefit
Balance at December 31, 2C

WPX Energy, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

WPX Energy, Inc., Stockholders

Accumulated

Capital in Williams’ Other Total
Common Excess o Accumulated Net Comprehensive Stockholders’ Noncontrolling
Stock Par Value Deficit Investment Income (Loss) Equity Interests(a) Total
(Dollars in millions)
$ - $ = $ 5,25¢ $ 72 $ 5,32¢ $ 64 $5,39(
— — (1,29)) — (1,29 8 (1,287)
— — — 96 9€ — 96
1,181
— — 244 — 244 — 244
— — 37 — 37 — 37
— — 4,244 16€ 4,417 72 4,48¢
— — (302) — (302) 1C (292)
— — — 51 51 — 51
(247
— — 2,42( — 2,42( — 2,42(
— — 98 — 98 — 98
(25) — (25) — (25)
— — (981) — (981) — (981)
2 5,452 (5,459 — — — —

= = = = = @ @)
— 5 — — 5 — 5
2 5,451 — 21¢ 5,67¢ 81 5,75¢
— — (229) (229) 12 (212)
— — (217) (217) (217
(42¢)
— — — — — 1C 1C
— 30 — — 3C — 30
$ 2 $ 5/48i $ (22%) $ — $ 2 $ 5,26¢ $ 108 $ 5,371

(a) Primarily represents the 31 percent of Apco Oil &ad International Inc. owned by othe

See accompanying notes.
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WPX Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Operating Activities
Net income (loss $ (217) $ (292 $(1,287)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 97: 951 882
Deferred income tax bene (160) (176 (16€)
Provision for impairment of goodwill and propertasd equipment (including certain exploration
expenses 28¢ 694 1,73¢
Amortization of stoc-based award 28 5 —
(Gain) loss on sales of other ass (42 Q) (22
Cash provided (used) by operating assets anditiasil
Accounts receivabl 68 (200 28
Inventories 7 3 (1€)
Margin deposits and customer margin deposit pay (5) (18 (1)
Other current asse 7 (12 19
Accounts payabl (128) 131 (54
Accrued and other current liabiliti 12 1C (62
Changes in current and noncurrent derivative assetdiabilities (32 8 (45)
Other, including changes in other noncurrent assaddiabilities (12) 2 42
Net cash provided by operating activit 794 1,20¢ 1,05¢
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures( (1,527 (1,572 (1,856
Purchase of busine — — (949)
Proceeds from sales of ass 31C 15 49:
Purchases of investmer 2 (12 @)
Other 9 13 (18)
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,209 (1,55¢) (2,337)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from common sto 3 — —
Proceeds from long term de 6 1,50z —
Proceeds from revolver de 5C — —
Payments of revolver de (50 — —
Contribution from noncontrolling intere 1C — —
Excess tax benefit of stock based aw: 13 — —
Payments for debt issuance cc — (30) —
Net increase in notes payable to Willia — 15¢ 1,04t
Net changes in Willian’ net investment, including a $981 distribution irl2! — (777) 241
Other 5 (15) (2)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 37 83¢ 1,28¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (379 48¢ 3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 52€ 37 34
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 15: $ 52¢ $ 37
(a) Increase to properties and equipn $(1,449) $(1,647) $(1,897)
Changes in related accounts pay (72) 69 35
Capital expenditure $(1,527) $(1,577) $(1,85¢€)

See accompanying notes.
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WPX Energy, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentat, and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Busines:

Operations of our company are located in the Uriiedes and South America and are organized irteedtic and international
reportable segments.

Domestic includes natural gas, oil, and NGL develept and production and gas management activitzded in Colorado, New
Mexico, North Dakota (Bakken Shale), PennsylvaMargellus Shale), and Wyoming in the United Statés.specialize in development and
production from tight-sands and shale formatiors @al bed methane reserves in the Piceance, 8anBawder River, Williston (Bakken
Shale), Green River, and Appalachian (Marcellude§hzasins. Associated with our commaodity produtt@we sales and marketing activities
that include the management of various commodittragts such as transportation, storage, and detigvatives coupled with the sale of our
commodity volumes.

International primarily consists of our ownershipAipco Oil and Gas International Inc. (“Apco”, NABD listed: APAGF), an oil and
gas exploration and production company with corioessin Argentina and Colombia.

The consolidated businesses represented hereirPxsBiiergy, Inc., also referred to herein as “WPXtre “Company”, comprised
substantially all of the exploration and productieportable segment of The Williams Companies, pnior to 2012. In these notes, WPX

Energy, Inc. is at times referred to in the firstgpn as “WPX”, “we”, “us” or “our”. The Williams @mpanies, Inc. and its affiliates, including
Williams Partners L.P. (“Williams Partners”) aretiates referred to collectively as “Williams”.

On February 16, 2011, Williams announced that dgarél of Directors had approved pursuing a plarepaste Williams’ businesses into
two stand-alone, publicly traded companies. AssalteWPX Energy, Inc. was formed to effect theagafion. In July 2011, Williams
contributed to the Company its investment in cartaibsidiaries related to its domestic exploratind production business, including its
wholly-owned subsidiaries WPX Energy Holdings, LfGrmerly Williams Production Holdings, LLC) and \WHEnergy Production, LLC
(formerly Williams Production Company, LLC), as Was$ all ongoing operations of WPX Energy MarketibgC (formerly Williams Gas
Marketing, Inc.). Additionally, Williams contributeand transferred to the Company its investmenentain subsidiaries related to its
international exploration and production busingsduding its 69 percent ownership interest in Afit@ctober 2011. We refer to the collec
contributions described herein as the “Contribution

On November 30, 2011, the Board of Directors oflMfits approved the spin-off of the Company. The-sgf was completed by way of
a pro rata distribution on December 31, 2011 of W#BKimon stock to Williams’ stockholders of recosdad the close of business on
December 14, 2011, the spin-off record date. Eaihawis’ stockholder received one share of WPX camnrstock for every three shares of
Williams common stock held by such stockholdertenriecord date. See Note 3 for further discussi@yeements entered at the time of the
spin-off, including a separation and distributiggreement, a transition services agreement, an geplmatters agreement and a tax sharing
agreement, among others.

Basis of Presentatiol

These financial statements are prepared on a ¢dasad basis. Prior to the Contribution, the finahstatements were derived from the
financial statements and accounting records ofi&ils using the historical results of operations laistbrical basis of the assets and liabilities
of the Contribution to WPX.
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WPX Energy, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contired)

Management believes the assumptions underlyinfjrihacial statements are reasonable. However itla@dial statements included
herein may not necessarily reflect the Companysslte of operations, financial position and casi in the future or what its results of
operations, financial position and cash flows wdwde been had the Company been a stand-alone ogrdpeng 2011 and 2010. Because a
direct ownership relationship did not exist priotthe Contribution among the various entities twahprise the Company, Williams' net
investment in the Company, excluding notes payabWilliams, has been shown as Williams’ net inwgsht within stockholdes equity in th
consolidated financial statements. In connectiath wie Contribution, we have reflected the amopnéwviously presented as Williams' net
investment in excess of the par value of our comstook as additional paid-in capital. Transaction2011 and 2010 with Williams’ other
operating businesses, which generally settled ntyyrdhe shown as accounts receivable or accounthbafor December 31, 2011 (see

Note 3). Other transactions during the period piecseparation between the Company and Williamgwhiere not part of the notes payabl
Williams have been identified in the Consolidatédt@ments of Equity as net transfers with Williafsse Note 3).

Discontinued operations
During the second quarter of 2012, we completedséthe of our holdings in the Barnett Shale andAtiema Basin. We have reported
the results of operations and financial positioBafnett Shale and Arkoma operations as discortiioperations for all periods presented.

Additionally, the accompanying consolidated finahsitatements and notes include the results ofatipes of Williams’ former power
business (most of which was disposed in 2007) sodiinued operations. See Note 11 for a discusdgioontingencies related to this
discontinued power business.

Unless indicated otherwise, the information in lates to Consolidated Financial Statements retatesntinuing operations.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of our wholly and majority-owned subsidiarand investments. Companies in
which we own 20 percent to 50 percent of the votiogimon stock, or otherwise exercise significafiu@nce over operating and financial
policies of the company, are accounted for underetjuity method. All material intercompany trangatg have been eliminated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenztttae amounts reported in the consolidatedniie statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those esties.

Significant estimates and assumptions which imgfeete financials include:
» Impairment assessments of I-lived assets and goodwi
* Valuations of derivatives
» Hedge accounting correlations and probabi
» Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves;
» Assessments of litigati-related contingencie
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WPX Energy, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contired)

These estimates are discussed further throughesi thotes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents balance includesramptimarily invested in funds with high-qualighort-term securities and
instruments that are issued or guaranteed by tBeddvernment. These have maturity dates of thimetm or less when acquired.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash of our domestic operations primaohsists of approximately $19 million in both 204nd 2011 related to escrow
accounts established as part of the settlemenéagnet with certain California utilities and is indked in other noncurrent assets. Included in
the separation and distribution agreement withidfils are indemnifications requiring us to pay tdlMfs any net asset (or receive any net
liability) that result upon ultimate resolution thiese matters (see Note 11). Additionally, ourriméional segment holds approximately $9
million of restricted cash in 2012 associated wilnious letters of credit that is also classifieather current and other noncurrent assets.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried on a gross bagis,ne discounting, less the allowance for doub#fttounts. We estimate the allowance
for doubtful accounts based on existing economiwimns, the financial conditions of the customansl the amount and age of past due
accounts. Receivables are considered past dulk fifafgment is not received by the contractual daiedPast due accounts are generally writte
off against the allowance for doubtful accountsyatfter all collection attempts have been exhaugigabrtion of our receivables are from jc
interest owners of properties we operate. Thugnag have the ability to withhold future revenuebdissements to recover any npayment o
joint interest billings

Inventories

All inventories are stated at the lower of costmarket. Our inventories consist of tubular goods mrduction equipment for future
transfer to wells of $42 million in 2012 and $39limn in 2011. Additionally, we have natural gassitorage of $24 million in 2012 and
$34 million in 2011 primarily related to our gasmagement activities. Inventory is recorded anckveld using the weighted average cost
method except for production equipment which igh@specific identification method. We recognizedér of cost or market writedowns on
natural gas in storage of $11 million in 2012, $dilion in 2011 and $2 million in 2010.

Properties and equipment

Oil and gas exploration and production activities accounted for under the successful efforts ntetBosts incurred in connection with
the drilling and equipping of exploratory wells axapitalized as incurred. If proved reserves atdownd, such costs are charged to explore
expense. Other exploration costs, including geckdgnd geophysical costs and lease rentals argazhéo expense as incurred. All costs
related to development wells, including relateddaiction equipment and lease acquisition costscapéalized when incurred whether
productive or nonproductive.

Unproved properties include lease acquisition castscosts of acquired unproved reserves. Indilliglagnificant lease acquisition co
are assessed annually, or as conditions warrarimfmairment considering our future drilling platise remaining lease term and recent drilling
results. Lease acquisition costs that are not
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individually significant are aggregated by prosparctieographically, and the portion of such costsreated to be nonproductive prior to lease
expiration is amortized over the average holdingoge The estimate of what could be nonproducts/baésed on our historical experience or
other information, including current drilling plaasd existing geological data. Impairment and airatibn of lease acquisition costs are
included in exploration expense in the Consolid&&tements of Operations. A majority of the ce$tacquired unproved reserves are
associated with areas to which we or other produsave identified significant proved developed pi@dg reserves. Generally, economic
recovery of unproved reserves in such areas igetaupported by actual production or conclusivenftion tests, but may be confirmed by
continuing development program. Ultimate recoverymproved reserves in areas with established mtoatugenerally has greater probability
than in areas with limited or no prior drilling adty. If the unproved properties are determined¢oproductive, the appropriate related costs
are transferred to proved oil and gas propertiesréfer to unproved lease acquisition costs ant$ @fsacquired unproved reserves as
unproved properties.

Other capitalized costs

Costs related to the construction or acquisitiofiedfl gathering, processing and certain othedifées are recorded at cost. Ordinary
maintenance and repair costs are expensed asedcurr

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Capitalized exploratory and developmental drillewsts, including lease and well equipment and gitde development costs are
depreciated and amortized using the units-of-priddoenethod based on estimated proved developeahdilgas reserves on a field basis or
concession basis for our international properti@grnational concession reserve estimates aréelihtd production quantities estimated
through the life of the concession. Depletion afdurcing leasehold costs is based on the unitsadymtion method using estimated total
proved oil and gas reserves on a field basis.rimiag at rates under the units-of-production meliogy, the quantities of proved oil and gas
reserves are established based on estimates maue ggologists and engineers.

Costs related to gathering, processing and ceothir facilities are depreciated on the stralgtg-method over the estimated useful liy

Gains or losses from the ordinary sale or retirdmoéproperties and equipment are recorded in ethmat included in operating income
(loss).

Impairment of long-lived assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairmengérmvavents or changes in circumstances indicatyrimanagement’s judgment, that
the carrying value of such assets may not be reablee When an indicator of impairment has occuyrveslcompare our management’s
estimate of undiscounted future cash flows atteblg to the assets to the carrying value of thetags determine whether an impairment has
occurred. If an impairment of the carrying valus bacurred, we determine the amount of the impaitmexognized in the financial stateme
by estimating the fair value of the assets andrdiag a loss for the amount that the carrying valxeeeds the estimated fair value.

Proved properties, including developed and und@eslpare assessed for impairment using estimatecefundiscounted cash flows on a
field basis. If the undiscounted cash flows ars tean the book value of the assets, then a subsegnalysis is performed using discounted
cash flows.
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Costs of acquired unproved reserves are assegsaap@rment using estimated fair value determitiedugh the use of future
discounted cash flows on a field basis and conisigenarket participants’ future drilling plans.

Judgments and assumptions are inherent in our rear&y’s estimate of undiscounted future cash flamgsan asset’s fair value.
Additionally, judgment is used to determine thehaoility of sale with respect to assets considévedisposal. These judgments and
assumptions include such matters as the estimatioih and gas reserve quantities, risks associatddthe different categories of oil and gas
reserves, the timing of development and productapgected future commodity prices, capital expemdg, production costs, and appropriate
discount rates.

Contingent liabilities

Owing to the nature of our business, we are rolytisgbject to various lawsuits, claims and othercgedings. We recognize a liability in
our consolidated financial statements when we deter that it is probable that a loss has been ieduaind the amount can be reasonably
estimated. If we determine that a loss is probbbtdack information on which to reasonably estienatoss, if any, or if we determine that a
loss is only reasonably possible, we do not recgailiability. We disclose the nature of loss augéncies that are potentially material but for
which no liability has been recognized.

Asset retirement obligations

We record an asset and a liability upon incurreztpgal to the present value of each expected fitR@. These estimates include, as a
component of future expected costs, an estimatieegbrice that a third party would demand, and ¢@xjpect to receive, for bearing the
uncertainties inherent in the obligations, somesimederred to as a market risk premium. The AR@tassdepreciated in a manner consistent
with the depreciation of the underlying physicaletsWe measure changes in the liability due tequges of time by applying an interest met
of allocation. This amount is recognized as anease in the carrying amount of the liability ancharresponding accretion expense in lease
and facility operating expense included in costs expenses.

Goodwill

As a result of significant declines in forward nmaflgas prices during 2010, we performed an inténiypairment assessment of our
goodwill related to our domestic production repagtunit. As a result of that assessment, we redoadempairment of goodwill of
approximately $1 billion and no longer have anydmili recorded on the Consolidated Balance Shes#tad to our domestic operations (see
Note 15).

Judgments and assumptions are inherent in our rear&y’s estimate of future cash flows used to dater the estimate of the reporting
unit’s fair value.

Cash flows from revolving credit facilities

Proceeds and payments related to any borrowingsrund credit facilities are reflected in the ficarg activities of the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows on a gross basis.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

We utilize derivatives to manage our commaodity @risk. These instruments consist primarily of faticontracts, swap agreements,
option contracts, and forward contracts involvihgrs- and long-term purchases and sales of a pdiysitergy commaodity.
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We report the fair value of derivatives, excepttfrse for which the normal purchases and norntes &xception has been elected, on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets in derivative aisget derivative liabilities as either current onaurrent. We determine the current and

noncurrent classification based on the timing qfexted future cash flows of individual trades. Wgart these amounts on a gross basis.
Additionally, we report cash collateral receivaldesl payables with our counterparties on a grosis ba

The accounting for the changes in fair value obmmodity derivative can be summarized as follows:

Derivative Treatment Accounting Method

Normal purchases and normal sales excej Accrual accounting
Designated in a qualifying hedging relations Hedge accountin

All other derivatives Mark-to-market accountin

We may elect the normal purchases and normal sategption for certain short- and long-term purckas®d sales of a physical energy
commodity. Under accrual accounting, any changhérfair value of these derivatives is not refldada the balance sheet after the initial
election of the exception.

For many of our commodity derivatives entered jmtior to January 1, 2012, we designated a hedgilagionship. For a derivative to
qualify for designation in a hedging relationshipnust meet specific criteria and we must mainggppropriate documentation. We establishe
hedging relationships pursuant to our risk managepelicies. We evaluated the hedging relationshipbe inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis to determine whether the hedgingioakhip is, and is expected to remain, highly effes in achieving offsetting changes in 1
value or cash flows attributable to the underlyiisf being hedged. We also regularly assess wh#tedredged forecasted transaction is
probable of occurring. If a derivative ceases t@bis no longer expected to be highly effectiveif ave believe the likelihood of occurrence of
the hedged forecasted transaction is no longeratebhedge accounting is discontinued prospegtiagld future changes in the fair value of
the derivative are recognized currently in reveraresosts and operating expenses dependent upamdeelying hedge transaction.

For commodity derivatives designated as a cash fletlge, the effective portion of the change invalue of the derivative is reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“BD&nd reclassified into earnings in the period inalitthe hedged item affects earnir
Any ineffective portion of the derivative’s chanigefair value is recognized currently in revenugains or losses deferred in AOCI associatec
with terminated derivatives, derivatives that cetasiee highly effective hedges, derivatives for efhihe forecasted transaction is reasonably
possible but no longer probable of occurring, amshdlow hedges that have been otherwise discadinemain in AOCI until the hedged item
affects earnings. If it becomes probable that tinedasted transaction designated as the hedgedhiterwash flow hedge will not occur, any
gain or loss deferred in AOCI is recognized in reyes at that time. The change in likelihood isdgjuental decision that includes qualitative
assessments made by management.

Certain gains and losses on derivative instrumiactaded in the Consolidated Statements of Oparataye netted together to a single
gain or loss, while other gains and losses arertegp@n a gross basis. Gains and losses recordadhenbasis include:

» Unrealized gains and losses on all derivativesahanot designated as hedges and for which weratvelected the normal
purchases and normal sales except

e The ineffective portion of unrealized gains andksson derivatives that are designated as casthiolges
» Realized gains and losses on all derivatives gtsedinancially;
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* Realized gains and losses on derivatives held#diirig purposes; ar
» Realized gains and losses on derivatives enteted@a pr-contemplated buy/sell arrangeme

Realized gains and losses on derivatives that regysical delivery, as well as natural gas de¢isea which are not held for trading
purposes nor were entered into as a pre-contendbatg'sell arrangement, are recorded on a gross. baseaching our conclusions on this
presentation, we considered whether we act asipahio the transaction; whether we have the ragks rewards of ownership, including credit
risk; and whether we have latitude in establishriges.

Product revenues

Revenues for sales of natural gas, natural gagl§gand oil and condensate are recognized wheprttict is sold and delivered.
Revenues from the production of natural gas in @riigs for which we have an interest with otherdoicers are recognized based on the actu:
volumes sold during the period. Any differencesissn volumes sold and entitlement volumes, baseslionet working interest, that are
determined to be nonrecoverable through remainindyztion are recognized as accounts receivakdearunts payable, as appropriate. Our
cumulative net natural gas imbalance position basedharket prices as of December 31, 2012 and @&linsignificant. Additionally, natural
gas revenues include $423 million in 2012, $326ionilin 2011 and $333 million in 2010 of realizegis from derivatives designated as cast
flow hedges of our production sold.

Gas management revenues and expenses

Revenues for sales related to gas managementtigstiare recognized when the product is sold aydipally delivered. Our gas
management activities through April 2012 includedcpases and subsequent sales to Williams Paforetgel and shrink gas (see Note 3).
Additionally, gas management activities include iti@naging of various natural gas related contisath as transportation, storage and relate
hedges. The Company also sells natural gas purtiiase working interest owners in operated welld ather area third party producers. The
revenues and expenses related to these marketiniies are reported on a gross basis as parasfnganagement revenues and costs and
expenses.

Charges for unutilized transportation capacityudeld in gas management expenses were $46 millia@1g, $35 million in 2011 and
$44 million in 2010.

Capitalization of interest

We capitalize interest during construction on petgevith construction periods of at least three themr a total estimated project cost in
excess of $1 million. The interest rate used uhtile 30, 2011 was the rate charged to us by Waligmmough June 30, 2011, at which time our
intercompany note with Williams was forgiven (seat&3). We did not capitalize interest for the périrom July 1, 2011 to mid November
2011. Beginning November 2011, we began using tighted average rate of our long-term notes payableh were issued in November
2011 (see Note 9).

Income taxes

Beginning with the 2012 tax year, we will file it consolidated and combined federal and stateniectax returns for the Company and
its subsidiaries. Through the effective date of¢pm-off, the Company’s domestic operations waoduided in the consolidated and combined
federal and state income tax returns for
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Williams, except for certain separate state filinbise income tax provisions for 2011 and 2010 weateulated on a separate return basis for u
and our subsidiaries, except for certain adjustsjenich as alternative minimum tax calculated@attnsolidated level by Williams, for which
the ultimate expected benefit to us could not erdgined until the date of deconsolidation. We rdateferred taxes for the differences
between the tax and book basis of our assets dssvielss or credit carryovers to future years.

Employee stock-based compensation

Stock options are valued at the date of award, kvilaes not precede the approval date, and compamsast is recognized on a straight:
line basis, net of estimated forfeitures, overrmguisite service period. The purchase price paresfor stock options may not be less than the
market price of the underlying stock on the datgraht. Stock options generally become exercisabée a three-year period from the date of
grant and can be subject to accelerated vesticeytfin future stock prices or specific financiatfprmance targets are achieved. Stock option
generally expire ten years after the grant.

Restricted stock units are generally valued at etarlue on the grant date and generally vestibwvee years. Restricted stock unit
compensation cost, net of estimated forfeituregeiserally recognized over the vesting period straight-line basis.

Through the date of the spin-off, certain employe®widing direct service to us participated in Mdihs’ common-stock-based awards
plans. The plans provided for Williams’ common-$tdi@sed awards to both employees and Williams’ mamagement directors. The plans
permitted the granting of various types of awards$uding, but not limited to, stock options andtrieted stock units. Awards were granted for
no consideration other than prior and future sewiar based on certain financial performance target

Through the date of the spin-off, Williams chargedfor compensation expense related to stock-bamagensation awards granted to
our direct employees. Stock based compensatioraisasa component of allocated amounts charged Iy Ugilliams for general and
administrative personnel providing services onlmhalf.

In preparation for the spin-off, Williams’ Competisa Committee determined that all outstanding \ills’ equity-based compensation
awards, whether vested or unvested, other thatamdli®g options issued prior to January 1, 200862006 Options”) would convert into
awards with respect to shares of common stockeotttimpany that continues to employ the holder fahg the spin-off. The Pre-2006
Options were converted into options covering botHidvhs and WPX common stock. The number of shareterlying each award and, with
respect to options, the per share exercise prieadi such award has been adjusted to maintaenpost-spin-off basis, the pre-spin-off
intrinsic value of such awards.

Foreign exchange

Translation gains and losses that arise from exgdhaate fluctuations applicable to transactionsd@nated in a currency other than the
United States dollar are included in the resultepdrations as incurred.

Earnings (loss) per common share

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is baségeosum of the weighted-average number of commarestoutstanding and vested
restricted stock units. Diluted earnings (loss)@anmon share includes any dilutive effect of stopkions and nonvested restricted stock u
unless otherwise noted. The impact of our DecerBbeR011 stock issuance has been given effect peeabds prior to 2011 (see Note 5).
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Note 2. Discontinued Operations

During the first quarter of 2012, our managemegned an agreement to divest its holdings in the&aiShale and the Arkoma Basin.
The transaction closed in second-quarter 2012 | poteeeds received from the sale were $306 millidre Barnett Shale properties included
approximately 27,000 net acres, interests in 326waed 91 miles of pipeline. The Arkoma properiieduded approximately 66,000 net ac
interests in 525 wells and 115 miles of pipeline.

Summarized Results of Discontinued Operations

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Revenue! $ 28 $11¢€ $11F
Income (loss) from discontinued operations beforpairments, gain on sale
and income taxe $ (3) $ (15) $ (41
Gain on salt 38 — —
Impairments — (209 (509
Less: Provision (benefit) for income ta» 13 (82 (19¢)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ 22 $(14z2) $(34€)

The impairments in 2011 and 2010 reflect write-dswmestimates of fair value of our holdings in Banett Shale and the Arkoma
Basin. Impairment charges on our Fort Worth (Bdr8eale) properties were $180 million and $503iorilin 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Impairment charges in Arkoma were $29 million irl20These nonrecurring fair value measurements;iwfail within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, utilized a probability-weightedabunted cash flow analysis that was based omaiteash flow models.

Note 3. Transactions with Williams

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Contributad recapitalization of the Company was completdeireby common stock held by
Williams converted into approximately 197 milliohases of WPX common stock. We also entered inteeagents with Williams in connecti
with our separation from Williams. These agreemanthkide:

» A Separation and Distribution agreement for, amatigr things, the separation from Williams anddfstribution of WPX
common stock, the distribution of a portion of tiet proceeds from the debt financing as well asexgents between us and
Williams, including those relating to indemnificati;

» Atax sharing agreement, providing for, among othergs, the allocation between Williams and WP Xexferal, state, local and
foreign tax liabilities for periods prior to thestiibution and in some instances for periods dfterdistribution;

* An employee matters agreement discussed below
» Atransition services agreement for one year folhmwseparation

Personnel and related services

As previously discussed, our domestic operationgwentributed to WPX Energy, Inc. on July 1, 20@h. June 30, 2011, certain enti
that were contributed to us on July 1, 2011 withdhe@m the Williams’ benefit plans and terminatéeit personnel services agreements with
Williams’ payroll companies.
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Simultaneously, two new administrative servicete@giowned and controlled by Williams executed p&nsonnel services agreements with
payroll companies and joined the Williams planpagicipants. The effect of these transactionkas hone of the companies contributed to
WPX Energy in June 2011 had any employees. Thr@egember 30, 2011, these service entities emplalygbrsonnel that provided servi
to the Company and remained owned and controlled/itliams.

In connection with the spin-off, we entered intoEEmployee Matters Agreement with Williams thatfeeth our agreements with
Williams as to certain employment, compensation lzemkfits matters. The Employee Matters Agreememtiges for the allocation and
treatment of assets and liabilities arising outmiployee compensation and benefit programs in wiickemployees participated prior to
January 1, 2012. In connection with the spin-of, pvovided benefit plans and arrangements in whichemployees will participate going
forward. Generally, other than with respect to ggaompensation (discussed below), from and a&eodry 1, 2012, we sponsored and
maintained employee compensation and benefit pnegralating to all employees who transferred téras Williams in connection with the
spin-off through the contribution of two newly dsliahed service entities that employees of Williamese moved to prior to the spin-off. The
Employee Matters Agreement provides that Willianils nemain solely responsible for all liabilitiesxder The Williams Companies Pension
Plan, The Williams Companies Retirement Restord@ilam and The Williams Companies Investment Plas.Rllo assets and/or liabilities
under any of those plans transferred to us or eoefit plans and our employees ceased active jpaticn in those plans as of January 1, 2!
At December 31, 2011, certain paid time off acaw@dproximating $13 million were transferred fronillms to us and have been reflecte
accrued liabilities.

All outstanding Williams equity awards (other thetock options granted prior to January 1, 2006J bglour employees as of the spin-
off were converted into WPX equity awards, issuatspant to a plan that we established (see Notdriagdition, outstanding Williams stock
options that were granted prior to January 1, 28@6held by our employees and Williams’ other eipgés as of the date of the spin-off were
converted into options to acquire both WPX commioglsand Williams common stock, in the same praporas the number of shares of
WPX common stock that each holder of Williams commstock received in the spin-off. The conversionmaéned the same intrinsic value as
the applicable Williams equity award as of the ddtthe conversion.

Through the date of the spaff, Williams charged us for the payroll and beheéists associated with operations employees (ezfdo a:
direct employees) and carried the obligations fanynemployee-related benefits in its financialestagnts, including the liabilities related to
employee retirement and medical plans. Our shatieoske costs was charged to us through affilidiedps and reflected in lease and facility
operating and general and administrative withirtsasd expenses in the accompanying Consolidatedrénts of Operations.

In addition, Williams charged us for certain emm@eyg of Williams who provided general and administeaservices on our behalf
(referred to as indirect employees). These changes either directly identifiable or allocated tar @perations. Direct charges included goods
and services provided by Williams at our requedibdated general corporate costs were based oretative usage of the service or on a three
factor formula, which considers revenues; propsied equipment; and payroll. Our share of direcegal and administrative expenses and
our share of allocated general corporate expenasgaflected in general and administrative expénsige accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. In management’s estimatie allocation methodologies used were reaseraid resulted in a reasonable
allocation to us of our costs of doing businessiired by Williams.
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Other arrangements with Williams or its affiliates

We also have operating activities with Williams tRars and another Williams subsidiary. For the yedr2011 and 2010, the following
were considered related party transactions. Beggnd@nuary 1, 2013, Williams and its subsidiariesamno longer related parties, therefore
only amounts related to 2011 and 2010 are disclasadlated parties. Our revenues include revefnoesthe following types of transactions:

» Sales of NGLs related to our production to WilliaRertners at market prices at the time of saleirgeidded within our oil and gas
sales revenues; al

» Sales to Williams Partners and another Williamssgdiary of natural gas procured by WPX Energy Méngefor those companies’
fuel and shrink replacement at market prices atithe of sale and included in our gas managemeenies

Our costs and operating expenses include the folpservices provided by Williams Partners:

» Gathering, treating and processing services urearal contracts for our production primarily irt8an Juan and Piceance Bas
and

» Pipeline transportation for both our oil and gdesand gas management activities which includeangibments totaling
$401 million at December 31, 201

During fourth-quarter 2010, the Company sold cartmthering and processing assets in Colorado&aRae Basin (the “Piceance Sale”)
with a net book value of $458 million to Williamsufners, an entity under the common control of Mfitis, in exchange for $702 million in
cash and 1.8 million Williams Partners limited pa&rtunits. As the Company and Williams Partnersswerder common control at that time,
gain was recognized on this transaction in the Gloheted Statements of Operations. Accordingly,$844 million difference between the ¢
consideration received and the historical net baaike of the assets has been reflected in the Gdased Statements of Equity for the year
ended December 31, 2010. Since the Williams Partmeaits received in this transaction by the Compaese intended to be (and were, as
described below) distributed through a dividendMiliams, these units (as well as the tax effestsoaiated with these units of $42 million)
have been presented net within equity and arededun net transfers with Williams in 2010. Furthes a result of the limitations on the
Company’s ability to sell these units and the sghset dividend to Williams, no gains on the valfithe common units during the holding
period were recognized in the Consolidated StatésrafrOperations. In conjunction with the PiceaBede, we entered into lortgfrm contract
with Williams Partners for gathering and processifigur natural gas production in the area. Duhéocontinuation of significant direct cash
flows related to these assets, historical operatsglts of these assets have been presented Gotisolidated Statements of Operations as
continuing operations for periods prior to the saieMarch 2011, the 1.8 million Williams Partnensits and related tax basis were distributed
via dividend to Williams.

We have managed a transportation capacity corfoa@Yilliams Partners. To the extent the transpatais not fully utilized or does not
recover full-rate demand expense, Williams Partngraburses us for these transportation costs.€elt@mbursements to us totaled
approximately $11 million and $10 million for thears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respeci@ralyare included in gas managemen
revenues. We signed an agreement with Williamseestunder which these contracts were assignédttto effective May 1, 2012.

Prior to December 1, 2011, we participated in \&litis’ centralized approach to cash management arfihincing of its businesses.
Daily cash activity from our domestic operationsswi@nsferred to or from Williams on a regular basid was recorded as increases or
decreases in the balance due under unsecured paygnizotes we had in place with Williams throughe)80, 2011, at which time the notes
were cancelled by Williams.
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The amount due to Williams at the time of cancilfatvas $2.4 billion and is reflected as an incedasowner’s net investment. Through
fourth-quarter 2011, an additional $162 million veasicelled and reflected as an increase in owmeat investment. The notes reflected inte
based on Williams’ weighted average cost of debtsrch interest was added monthly to the note ipfincThe interest rate for the notes
payable to Williams was 8.08 percent at June 3012(hd December 31, 2010, respectively.

On August 25, 2011, we entered into a 10.5 yeaeléar our present headquarters office with Wilkafeadquarters Building Company,
a direct subsidiary of Williams. We estimate thewal rent payable by us under the lease to be appately $4 million per year.

Below is a summary for 2011 and 2010 of the tratsias with Williams or its affiliates (including amnts in discontinued operations)
discussed above:

2011 2010
(Millions)
Product revenu—sales of NGLs to Williams Partne $25¢ $277
Gas management reven—sales of natural gas for fuel and shrink to WillaRartners and another Williams subsid 58€ 50¢
Lease and facility operating expenses from Willi-direct employee salary and benefit cc 21 23
Gathering, processing and transportation expense $ervices with Williams Partnel
Gathering and processil 29¢ 162
Transportatior 44 25
General and administrative from Williarr
Direct employee salary and benefit cc 111 10z
Charges for general and administrative serv 62 58
Allocated general corporate co 62 64
Other 16 12
Interest expense on notes payable to Willii 96 11¢

In addition, the current amount due to or fromlaffés at December 31, 2011 consisted of tradevaoies and payables resulting from
the sale of products to and cost of gathering sesvprovided by Williams Partners. Below is a sumynoé these payables and receivables anc
other assets and liabilities with Williams andafliates at December 31, 2011:

December 31, 201

(Millions)

Current:
Accounts receivable

Due from Williams Partners and another Williamssdiary $ 62
Other noncurrent ass—Due from Williams $ 11
Accounts payable

Due to Williams Partner $ 35

Due to Williams for accrued payroll and bene 10

Due to Williams for administrative expens 14

$ 59

Noncurrent liability to Williams $ 48
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Note 4. Investment Income and Other
Investment income

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)

Equity earning: $ 30 $ 24 $ 20

Other — 2 1

Total investment income and ot $ 30 $ 26 $ 21

Investments

December 31

2012 2011

(Millions)
Petrolera Entre Lomas S—40.8% $10¢ $ 90
Other 36 35

$14E $12¢

Petrolera Entre Lomas S.A. operates several dewelopconcessions in South America. Other is coragrid investments in
miscellaneous gas gathering interests in the UrStates.

Dividends and distributions received from compaiesounted for by the equity method were $12 mmlim2012, $17 million in 2011
and $19 million in 2010.

Summarized Financial Position and Results of Operatns of Equity Method Investments (Unaudited)

December 31

2012 2011

(Millions)
Current assetl $10C $ 81
Noncurrent asse 512 491
Current liabilities 132 75
Noncurrent liabilities 31 10€

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)

Gross revenu $ 385 $ 328 $227

Operating incom: 15C 122 11C

Net income 107 a0 79
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Note 5. Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share from Contuing Operations

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions, except pel-share
amounts)
Income (loss) from continuing operations attriblgah WPX Energy, Inc. available to common
stockholders for basic and diluted earnings (Ipgs)common shai $ (245 $ (160  $ (945
Basic weighte-average share 198.¢ 197.1 197.1
Diluted weighte-average share 198.¢ 197.] 197.]
Earnings (loss) per common share from continuingratons;
Basic $(1.25) $(0.8)) $(4.80)
Diluted $(1.27) $(0.8)) $(4.80)

On December 31, 2011, 197.1 million shares of oaonrmon stock were distributed to Williams’ shareteoidin conjunction with our
spin-off. For comparative purposes, and to proegideore meaningful calculation for weighted aversiggres, we have assumed this amount c
common stock to be outstanding as of the beginofreach period presented for 2011 and 2010 in atautation of basic and diluted weighted
average shares.

For 2012 and 2011, approximately 1.9 million ar@ illion, respectively, weighted-average nonvesesiricted stock units and
1.0 million and 1.2 million, respectively, weightegterage stock options have been excluded fromdh®utation of diluted earnings per
common share as their inclusion would be antidikutiue to our loss from continuing operations ladtable to WPX Energy, Inc.

The table below includes information related taktoptions that were outstanding at December 312 2@t have been excluded from
computation of weighted-average stock options du@e option exercise price exceeding the fourthrgu weighted-average market price of
our common shares.

2012
Options excluded (millions) 1.3
Weightec-average exercise price of options exclu $18.1°
Exercise price range of options excluc $ 16.46- $20.91
Fourth quarter weight-average market price( $16.1¢

(@) Our stock began trading on the New York Stork&hange on January 3, 2012; therefore, a fourtntequaveightedaverage market price
not available for 2011
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Note 6. Asset Sales, Impairments, Exploration Expeses and Other Accruals

The following table presents a summary of signiftagains or losses reflected in impairment of paag properties and costs of acqui
unproved reserves, goodwill impairment, and otheetwithin costs and expenses. These significanisatiients are primarily associated with
our domestic operations.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Goodwill impairmen $— $— $1,00:
Impairment of producing properties and costs ofiaegl unproved reserves| $22¢ $367 $ 17t
Gain on sales of other ass $ 4 $ 1 $ 22

(a) Excludes unproved leasehold property impairmengrémation and expiration included in exploratiotpenses

As a result of declines in forward natural gas aatiral gas liquids prices during 2012 as comptrddrward natural gas and natural ga:
liquids prices as of December 31, 2011, we perfdrmgairment assessments of our proved produciogegrties and capitalized cost of
acquired unproved reserves during 2012. Accordingé/recorded impairments of $48 million of proyedducing oil and gas properties in
Green River Basin. Additionally, we recorded altofe$102 million and $75 million in impairments o#pitalized costs of acquired unproved
reserves primarily in the Powder River Basin arzkeBnce Basin, respectively. Our impairment analys#gsded an assessment of
undiscounted and discounted future cash flows, ivbamsidered information obtained from drillinghet activities and reserves quantities |
Note 15).

As part of our assessment for impairments primaagulting from declining forward natural gas psichuring the fourth-quarter 2011, we
recorded a $276 million impairment of proved pradgoil and gas properties in the Powder River Bésée Note 15). Additionally, we
recorded a $91 million impairment of our capitatiz=ost of acquired unproved reserves in the PoRder Basin.

As a result of significant declines in forward maflgas prices during 2010, we performed an impamntassessment of our capitalized
costs related to goodwill and domestic producirapprties. As a result of these assessments, wedegtan impairment of goodwill, as noted
above, and an impairment of our capitalized coktedain acquired unproved reserves in the Pieeatighlands acquired in 2008 of
$175 million (see Note 15).

Our impairment analyses included an assessmemtdi$epunted (except for the costs of acquired wgaaeserves) and discounted
future cash flows, which considered informationadtéd from drilling, other activities and naturalsgeserve quantities.

In July 2010, we sold a portion of gathering anacpssing facilities in the Piceance Basin to atparty for cash proceeds of $30 milli
resulting in a gain of $12 million. The remainingrfion of the facilities was part of the PiceanedeSsee Note 3). Also in 2010, we exchange
undeveloped leasehold acreage in different aredsanthird party resulting in a $7 million gain.
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Exploration Expense
The following presents a summary of explorationesqe:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

(Millions)
Geologic and geophysical co: $ 21 $ 18 $ 21
Dry hole cost: 4 13 17
Unproved leasehold property impairment, amortizatiod expiratior 58 95 19
Total exploration expens $ 83 $ 12¢ $ 57

Dry hole costs in 2011 reflect an $11 million dgldhexpense in connection with a Marcellus Shalk iwe&olumbia County,
Pennsylvania, while 2010 reflects dry hole expeassociated primarily with wells in the Paradox Basi

Unproved leasehold impairment, amortization andratipn in 2011 includes a $50 million write-off lEfasehold costs associated with
certain portions of our Columbia County, Pennsyiaatreage that we did not plan to develop.

Note 7. Properties and Equipment
Properties and equipment is carried at cost andistsnof the following:

Estimatec
Useful December 31
Life(a)
(Years) 2012 2011
(Millions)
Proved propertie (b) $11,26° $ 9,80¢
Unproved propertie (c) 1,15¢ 1,52¢
Gathering, processing and other facilii 15-25 247 89
Construction in progres (c) 497 677
Other 3-40 172 99
Total properties and equipment, at ¢ 13,33¢ 12,19¢
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortize (4,927 (3,977)
Properties and equipme«—net $ 8,41¢ $ 8,227

(a) Estimated useful lives are presented as of DeceBihe2012
(b) Proved properties are depreciated, depleted andtiartbusing the uni-of-production method (see Note
(c) Unproved properties and construction in progressat yet subject to depreciation and deplet

Unproved properties consist primarily of non-pradgdeasehold in the Appalachian Basin (Marcellhal&) and the Williston Basin
(Bakken Shale) and costs of acquired unprovedvesén the Powder River and Piceance Basins.

Construction in progress includes $65 million irl2@nd $113 million in 2011 related to wells lockit® Powder River. In order to
produce gas from the coal seams, an extended pafridelvatering is required prior to natural gasdoiation.
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Asset Retirement Obligations

Our asset retirement obligations relate to produyeirlls, gas gathering well connections and relédedities. At the end of the useful li
of each respective asset, we are legally obligetexdug producing wells and remove any relatedasigfequipment and to cap gathering well
connections at the wellhead and remove any refatslity surface equipment.

A rollforward of our asset retirement obligations the years ended 2012 and 2011 is presented below

2012 2011
(Millions)

Balance, January $28¢ $274
Liabilities incurred during the peric 19 20
Liabilities settled during the peric ) 2
Estimate revision Q) (23
Accretion expense( 21 20
Balance, December & $321 $28¢
Amount reflected as curre $ 5 $ 6

(8) Accretion expense is included in lease and faailfigrating expense on the Consolidated Statemé@iperations

Estimate revisions in 2011 are primarily associatétl changes in anticipated well lives and plug abandonment costs.

Note 8. Accounts Payable and Accrued and Other Cuent Liabilities
Accounts Payable

December 31

2012 2011
(Millions)
Trade $20¢ $331
Accrual for capital expenditure 12¢ 207
Royalties 10€ 111
Cash overdraft 34 28
Other 34 25
$50¢ $70z

Accrued and other current liabilities

December 31

o012 20mL
(Millions)
Taxes other than income tax $ 54 $ 79
Accrued interes 42 13
Compensation and benefit related accr 52 13
Other, including other loss contingenc 55 _ 81
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Note 9. Debt and Banking Arrangements
As of the indicated dates, our debt consisted ®fdtiowing:

December 31

2012(a) 2011
(Millions)
5.250% Senior Notes due 20 $ 40C $ 40C
6.000% Senior Notes due 20 1,10( 1,10(¢
Other — 1
Apco 8 2
$1,50¢ $1,50:

() Interest paid on debt for 2012 totaled $58 milli

Senior Notes

In November 2011, we issued $1.5 billion in fackigeSenior Notes (“the Notes”). The Notes wereéssunder an indenture between us
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.&s trustee. The net proceeds from the offerinh®Notes were approximately
$1.481 billion after deducting the initial purchesaliscounts and our offering expenses. We reth#&%)0 million of the net proceeds from the
issuance of the Notes and distributed the remaiofire net proceeds from the issuance of the Namzoximately $981 million, to Williams
in connection with the Contribution.

Optional RedemptionWe have the option, prior to maturity, in the castéhe 2017 notes, and prior to October 15, 202idh is three
months prior to the maturity date of the 2022 npieshe case of the 2022 notes, to redeem allpmréion of the Notes of the applicable series
at any time at a redemption price equal to thetgres (i) 100% of their principal amount and (iile discounted present value of 100% of thei
principal amount and remaining scheduled interagtrents, in either case plus accrued and unpaidesttto the redemption date. We also
have the option at any time on or after October2021, to redeem the 2022 notes, in whole or it paa redemption price equal to 100% of
their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaidregt thereon to the redemption date.

Change of Control.If we experience a change of control (as defimeithé indenture governing the Notes) accompaniedl taging
decline with respect to a series of Notes, we rofist to repurchase the Notes of such series é6l@fltheir principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest.

Covenants.The terms of the indenture restrict our abilitgldine ability of our subsidiaries to incur additmdebtedness secured by
liens and to effect a consolidation, merger or sakubstantially all our assets. The indenture atguires us to file with the trustee and the
SEC certain documents and reports within certaie fimits set forth in the indenture. However, thémiitations and requirements will be
subject to a number of important qualifications amdeptions. The indenture does not require thete@ance of any financial ratios or
specified levels of net worth or liquidity.

Events of DefaultEach of the following is an “Event of Default” ugrdthe indenture with respect to the Notes of amies:

(1) a default in the payment of interest on theddatvhen due that continues for 30 days;

(2) a default in the payment of the principal ofaoy premium, if any, on the Notes when due at thtated maturity, upon redemption, or
otherwise;
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(3) failure by us to duly observe or perform anlyestof the covenants or agreements (other thar tthescribed in clause (1) or

(2) above) in the indenture, which failure contiadier a period of 60 days, or, in the case of #porting covenant under the indenture,
which failure continues for a period of 90 daysenthe date on which written notice of such falbhas been given to us by the trustee;
provided, however, that if such failure is not dalpaof cure within such 60-day or 90-day periodirescase may be, such 60-day or 90-
day period, as the case may be, will be automatieatended by an additional 60 days so long asugh failure is subject to cure and
(ii) we are using commercially reasonable effootsure such failure; and

(4) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency orgemization described in the indenture.

Notes Registratiorin June 2012, we completed an exchange offer wigesebexchanged our privately-placed Notes for pkiacipal
amounts of registered 5.250% Senior Notes due 288/6.000% Senior Notes due 2022. The exchangefaffded our obligations under the
registration rights agreement that we enteredastpart of the November 2011 issuance.

Credit Facility Agreement

During 2011, we entered into a new $1.5 billiorefiyear senior unsecured revolving credit faciliyeeement (the “Credit Facility
Agreement”). Under the terms of the Credit Faciffgreement and subject to certain requirementsnag request an increase in the
commitments of up to an additional $300 milliondither commitments from new lenders or increasedmsitments from existing lenders. T
Credit Facility Agreement became effective Noventhe2011. At December 31, 2012 there were no ansoautstanding under the Credit
Facility Agreement.

Interest on borrowings under the Credit Facilityrdgment will be payable at rates per annum equal tour option: (1) a fluctuating bz
rate equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus theiégiple Rate, or (2) a periodic fixed rate equdli®OR plus the Applicable Rate. The
Alternate Base Rate will be the highest of (i) béeral funds rate plus 0.5 percent, (ii) the PrRRa¢e, and (iii) one-month LIBOR plus
1.0 percent. The Applicable Rate changes deperafinghich interest rate we select and our credingatAdditionally, we will be required to
pay a commitment fee based on the unused portittmeeafommitments under the Credit Facility Agreemen

Under the Credit Facility Agreement, prior to theearrence of the Investment Grade Date (as defedulv), we will be required to
maintain a ratio of net present value of projedtedre cash flows from proved reserves to Const#ididndebtedness (each as defined in the
Credit Facility Agreement) of at least 1.50 to 1.8@t present value is determined as of the erghoffi fiscal year and reflects the present
value, discounted at 9 percent, of projected futaish flows of domestic proved oil and gas resefsesh cash flows are adjusted to reflect the
impact of hedges, our lenders’ commodity price dasts, and, if necessary, to include only a porioour reserves that are not proved
developed producing reserves). Additionally, theraf debt to capitalization (defined as net wasths debt) will not be permitted to be gre
than 60%. We were in compliance with our debt cav¢matios as of December 31, 2012. Investment &bate means the first date on which
our long-term senior unsecured debt ratings are BBBetter by S&P or Baa3 or better by Moody’stfwiut negative outlook or negative
watch), provided that the other of the two ratirgat least BB+ by S&P or Bal by Moody’s.

The Credit Facility Agreement contains customapresentations and warranties and affirmative, megaind financial covenants which
were made only for the purposes of the Credit Fpdigreement and as of the specific date (or dagesforth therein, and may be subject to
certain limitations as agreed upon by the contnggbiarties. The covenants limit, among other thittgs ability of our subsidiaries to incur
indebtedness, make investments, loans or advandesnder into certain hedging agreements; ourtaltdimerge or
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consolidate with any person or sell all or subs&digtall of our assets to any person, enter iredain affiliate transactions, make certain
distributions during the continuation of an evehtlefault and allow material changes in the natfreur business. In addition, the
representations, warranties and covenants contairtee Credit Facility Agreement may be subjecstandards of materiality applicable to the
contracting parties that differ from those applieao investors.

The Credit Facility Agreement includes customargrds of default, including events of default relgtto non-payment of principal,
interest or fees, inaccuracy of representationsraardanties in any material respect when made @mweemed made, violation of covenants,
cross payment-defaults, cross acceleration, batdymd insolvency events, certain unsatisfied joeigts and a change of control. If an event
of default with respect to us occurs under the {Creatility Agreement, the lenders will be ablei¢ominate the commitments and accelerat
maturity of any loans outstanding under the CrEditility Agreement at the time, in addition to theercise of other rights and remedies
available.

Letters of Credil

In addition to the Notes and Credit Facility Agrest) WPX has entered into three bilateral, uncomeahitetter of credit (“LC")
agreements. These LC agreements provide WPX thityabimeet various contractual requirements amwbiporate terms similar to those
found in the Credit Facility Agreement. At DecemBér 2012 a total of $312 million in letters of ditthave been issued.

Apco

Apco has a loan agreement with a financial institufor a $10 million bank line of credit. The fusdould be borrowed during a opeat
period which ended in March 2012. As of December2B12, Apco has borrowed $8 million under thiskiag agreement. Principal amounts
will be repaid in installments through 2016. Thebtdagreement contains covenants that restridginit; Bmong other things, our ability to
create liens supporting indebtedness, purchasellassets outside the ordinary course of busiraessjncur additional debt.

Note 10. Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes from contng operations includes:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Provision (benefit)
Current:
Federa $ 48 $ 49 $72
State 3 7 5
Foreign 14 1C 1
65 6€ _ 88
Deferred:
Federa (162) (139 (47)
State 13 Q) ©)
Foreign —
@) — _
(176€) (140 44)
Total provision (benefit $(111) $ (74) $44
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Reconciliations from the provision (benefit) focome taxes from continuing operations at the fddgatutory rate to the realized
provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Provision (benefit) at statutory re $(120) $(79) $(319)
Increases (decreases) in taxes resulting f
State income taxes (net of federal ben: (7) 5) 2
Effective state income tax rate change (net ofriadmsenefit) — 9 —
Alternative minimum tax credits —
11 —
Foreign operations—net —
4 4
Goodwill impairment —
— 351
Othe—net 1 1 —
Provision (benefit) for income tax $(112) $(74) $ 44

Income (loss) from continuing operations befor@me taxes includes $52 million, $40 million and $8illion of foreign income in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Significant components of deferred tax liabiliteesd deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(Millions)
Deferred tax liabilities
Properties and equipme $1,65: $1,77¢
Other, ne 19 137
Total deferred tax liabilitie 1,671 1,91¢
Deferred tax asset
Accrued liabilities and othe 17¢€ 14¢
Alternative minimum tax credil 99 98
Loss carryover 31 16
Total deferred tax asse 30¢ 26C
Less: valuation allowanc 19 16
Total net deferred tax asst 287 244
Net deferred tax liabilitie $1,38¢ $1,67

Through the effective date of the spin-off, the @amy’s domestic operations were included in the conatdiland combined federal ¢
state income tax returns for Williams, except fertain separate state filings. The income tax iowifor 2011 and 2010 has been calculated
on a separate return basis for the Company amgrisolidated subsidiaries, except for certain aajaats such as alternative minimum tax
calculated at the consolidated level by Williants, Which the ultimate expected impact to the Comypaould not be determined until the date
of deconsolidation. Effective with the spin-off, Méims and the Company entered into a tax shammgeanent which governs the respective
rights, responsibilities and obligations of eacimpany, for tax periods prior to the spin-off, wilspect to the payment of taxes, filing of tax
returns, reimbursements of taxes, control of awatdits other tax proceedings, liability for taxest tmay be triggered as a result of the spin-off
and other matters regarding taxes.
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In connection with the spin-off, alternative minimuax credits were estimated and allocated betWéiliams and the Company
effective December 31, 2011. This resulted in flecation to the Company of a $98 million defertes asset with a corresponding increase t
additional paid-in-capital. Subsequent to the sgfnWilliams notified the Company of certain cactens that resulted in $15 million of
reductions in the alternative minimum tax credib@dted to the Company of which $11 million is eefied within provision (benefit) for
income taxes in 2012. Additionally, the Companyemtp to have alternative minimum tax liability £012.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has approrign&600 million of state net operating loss camers of which approximately 99
percent expire after 2022. The Company assess#aldggositive and negative evidence to estintasefficient future taxable income will be
generated in a particular state to utilize theapetrating loss carryover for that state. Basechahdssessment, a valuation allowance was
recorded at December 31, 2012 and 2011 to redecetiognized tax assets associated with states|assieof federal benefit, to an amount
will more likely than not be realized by the Compan

Undistributed earnings of certain consolidatedifpresubsidiaries excluding amounts related to fpreiquity investments at
December 31, 2012, totaled approximately $77 mmillido provision for deferred U.S. income taxes Itesn made for these subsidiaries,
except with respect to foreign equity investmebég;ause the Company intends to permanently reisuebtearnings in foreign operations.

Cash payments for domestic income taxes (net eiptx) were $40 million, $10 million and $5 milliam 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Additionally, payments made dire¢tiynternational taxing authorities were $11 millji&10 million and $8 million in 2012, 20
and 2010, respectively. The payments and recesptddmestic income taxes for 2011 and 2010 (padhé spin-off) were made to or received
from Williams in accordance with Williams’ intercqrany tax allocation procedure.

The Company’s policy is to recognize related indesnd penalties as a component of income tax eepdine amounts accrued for
interest and penalties are insignificant.

Pursuant to our tax sharing agreement with Williawes will remain responsible for the tax from awatijustments related to our business
for periods prior to the spin-off. During the thigdarter of 2012, Williams finalized settlementshathe IRS for 2009 and 2010. The statute of
limitations for most states expires one year afigairation of the IRS statute. Income tax retunrsdlur foreign operations, primarily in
Argentina, are open to audit for the 2005 to 2G@byears.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has no saamfiunrecognized tax benefits. During the nextnbaths, we do not expect
ultimate resolution of any uncertain tax positi@s@ciated with a domestic or international mattérresult in a significant increase or decre
of an unrecognized tax benefit.

Note 11. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Royalty litigation

In September 2006, royalty interest owners in @aifCounty, Colorado, filed a class action suiDistrict Court, Garfield County,
Colorado, alleging we improperly calculated oil aya$ royalty payments, failed to account for prdseeceived from the sale of natural gas
and extracted products, improperly charged cegapenses and failed to refund amounts withhel&kéess of ad valorem tax obligations.
Plaintiffs sought to certify a class of royaltyentést owners, recover underpayment of royaltiesodnbain corrected payments related to
calculation errors. We entered into a final paigitlement agreement. The partial settlement aggeedefined the class for certification,
resolved claims relating to past calculation ofalbyand overriding
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royalty payments, established certain rules to gofiture royalty and overriding royalty paymentssolved claims related to past withholding
for ad valorem tax payments, established a proeefuirefunds of any such excess withholding inftliare, and reserved two claims for court
resolution. We have prevailed at the trial coud ah levels of appeal on the first reserved claémgarding whether we are allowed to deduct
mainline pipeline transportation costs pursuartetdain lease agreements. The remaining claim ettveln we are required to have
proportionately increased the value of naturallgaansporting that gas on mainline transmissioesl and, if required, whether we did so anc
are entitled to deduct a proportionate share ofspartation costs in calculating royalty paymeWie. anticipate litigating the second reserved
claim in 2013. We believe our royalty calculatidra/e been properly determined in accordance wélagpropriate contractual arrangements
and Colorado law. At this time, the plaintiffs hawat provided us a sufficient framework to calcelah estimated range of exposure related tc
their claims.

In October 2011, a potential class of royalty iagtrowners in New Mexico and Colorado filed a camglagainst us in the County of |
Arriba, New Mexico. The complaint alleges failuoeptay royalty on hydrocarbons including drip corste, fraud and misstatement of the
value of gas and affiliated sales, breach of dotymarket hydrocarbons, violation of the New Mex@iband Gas Proceeds Payment Act, bad
faith breach of contract and unjust enrichmentinfifés seek monetary damages and a declaratoiynght enjoining activities relating to
production, payments and future reporting. Thisterdtas been removed to the United States Digocirt for New Mexico. In August 2012, a
second potential class action was filed againgt tise United States District Court for the Distraé New Mexico by mineral interest owners
New Mexico and Colorado. Plaintiffs claim breactcohtract, breach of the covenant of good faith fairddealing, breach of implied duty
market both in Colorado and New Mexico, violatidrtiee New Mexico Oil and Gas Proceeds Payment Adtseek declaratory judgment,
accounting and injunction. At this time, we beligliat our royalty calculations have been propeeiednined in accordance with the
appropriate contractual arrangements and appli¢abie We do not have sufficient information toctdhte an estimated range of exposure
related to these claims.

Other producers have been pursuing administrapipeas with a federal regulatory agency and haea bediscussions with a state
agency in New Mexico regarding certain deducticosnprised primarily of processing, treating andsgortation costs, used in the calcula
of royalties. Although we are not a party to thosagters, we are monitoring them to evaluate whdtheir resolution might have the potential
for unfavorable impact on our results of operatidertain outstanding issues in those matters doeilchaterial to us. We received notice from
the U.S. Department of Interior Office of Naturad$®urces Revenue (“ONRRY) the fourth quarter of 2010, intending to clarifie guideline:
for calculating federal royalties on conventionasgroduction applicable to our federal leaseséw IMexico. The ONRR’s guidance provides
its view as to how much of a producer’s bundled fiee transportation and processing can be deddiciedthe royalty payment. We believe
using these guidelines would not result in a mateiifference in determining our historical fedemayalty payments for our leases in New
Mexico. No similar specific guidance has been iddue ONRR for leases in other states though suatetines are expected in the future.
However, the timing of any such guidance is ungertBhe issuance of similar guidelines in Colorasal other states could affect our previous
royalty payments, and the effect could be matésialur results of operations. Interpretive guidediron the applicability of certain deduction
the calculation of federal royalties are extrenmmdynplex and may vary based upon the ONRR’s assassihthe configuration of processing,
treating and transportation operations supportaghdederal lease. Correspondence in 2009 witDtiRR's predecessor did not take issue
with our calculation regarding the Piceance Bassuaptions, which we believe have been consistéhttiae requirements. From October
2005 through December 2012, our deductions us#tkicalculation of the royalty payments in statieothan New Mexico associated with
conventional gas production total approximately6&riillion.
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The New Mexico State Land Office Commissioner lilasl fsuit against us in Santa Fe County allegirag We have underpaid royalties
due per the oil and gas leases with the State of Mexico. In August 2011, the parties agreed ty #tés matter pending the New Mexico
Supreme Court’s resolution of a similar matter inirgy a different producer. At this time, we do matve a sufficient basis to calculate an
estimated range of exposure related to this claim.

Environmental matters

The EPA and various state regulatory agenciesmelytpromulgate and propose new rules, and issdatag guidance to existing rules.
These new rules and rulemakings include, but aréimied to, rules for reciprocating internal coushion engine maximum achievable contro
technology, new air quality standards for grounatlezone, one hour nitrogen dioxide emission kméind hydraulic fracturing and water
standards. We are unable to estimate the costssef additions or modifications necessary to comjitly these new regulations due to
uncertainty created by the various legal challerigelese regulations and the need for furtheriBpeegulatory guidance.

Matters related to Williams’ former power business

In connection with the Separation and Distributkmreement, Williams is obligated to indemnify armlchus harmless from any losses
arising out of liabilities assumed by us, and weabligated to pay Williams any net proceeds redlizom, the pending or threatened litigat
described below relating to the 2000-2001 Califammergy crisis and the reporting of certain nagaa-related information to trade
publications.

California energy crisis

Our former power business was engaged in poweretiagkin various geographic areas, including Catii@. Prices charged for power
by us and other traders and generators in Caldant other western states in 2000 and 2001 watkerbed in various proceedings, includ
those before the FERC. We have entered into sedtienwith the State of California (“State Settletf)lemajor California utilities (“Utilities
Settlement”), and others that substantially resblvach of these issues with these parties.

Although the State Settlement and Utilities Set#abresolved a significant portion of the refurgliss among the settling parties, we
continue to have potential refund exposure to nitlivege parties, including various California enceus that did not participate in the Ultilities
Settlement. We currently have a settlement agreememinciple with certain California utilities mied at substantially reducing this exposure.
Once finalized, the settlement agreement will aéswlve our collection of accrued interest fromrdegparties as well as our payment of
accrued interest on refund amounts. Thus, as diyrreantemplated by the parties, the settlement@ment will resolve most, if not all, of our
legal issues arising from the 2000-2001 Califoemargy crisis. With respect to these matters, anscascrued are not material to our financial
position.

Certain other issues also remain open at the FERIGox other nonsettling parties.

Reporting of natural gas-related information todeapublications

Civil suits based on allegations of manipulatingplmhed gas price indices have been brought againand others, seeking unspecified
amounts of damages. We are currently a defendatdés action litigation and other litigation onglly filed in state court in Colorado,
Kansas, Missouri, and Wisconsin and brought on lbefdirect and indirect purchasers of natural gehose states. These cases were
transferred to the federal court in Nevada. In 2@08 court granted summary judgment in the Colom@ase in favor of us and most of the o
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defendants based on plaintiffs’ lack of standing.January 8, 2009, the court denied the plainti#guest for reconsideration of the Colorado
dismissal and entered judgment in our favor. Whéna order is entered against the one remaingfgritiant, the Colorado plaintiffs may
appeal the order.

In the other cases, on July 18, 2011, the Nevastadicourt granted our joint motions for summarggment to preclude the plaintiffs’
state law claims because the federal Natural Gaglies the FERC exclusive jurisdiction to resdivese issues. The court also denied the
plaintiffs’ class certification motion as moot. The plainttitsve appealed to the United States Court of Apgeathe Ninth Circuit. Because
the uncertainty around pending unresolved issneljding an insufficient description of the purpaticlasses and other related matters, we
cannot reasonably estimate a range of potentialsxps at this time.

Other Indemnifications

Pursuant to various purchase and sale agreemdatiageo divested businesses and assets, we hdemhified certain purchasers
against liabilities that they may incur with respicthe businesses and assets acquired from esn@iemnities provided to the purchasers are
customary in sale transactions and are contingaor the purchasers incurring liabilities that aoé atherwise recoverable from third parties.
The indemnities generally relate to breach of wares, tax, historic litigation, personal injurynvéronmental matters, right of way and other
representations that we have provided.

At December 31, 2012, we have not received a ctajainst any of these indemnities and thus haveasis irom which to estimate any
reasonably possible loss. Further, we do not exgrecof the indemnities provided pursuant to tHessagreements to have a material impa
our future financial position. However, if a clafor indemnity is brought against us in the fututenay have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations in the period in which tregrolis made.

In connection with the separation from Williams, /e agreed to indemnify and hold Williams harmligem any losses resulting from
the operation of our business or arising out dfilites assumed by us. Similarly, Williams haseag to indemnify and hold us harmless from
any losses resulting from the operation of its es$ or arising out of liabilities assumed by it.

Summary

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011Ctimpany had accrued approximately $18 million a2@l iillion, respectively, for
loss contingencies associated with royalty litigatireporting of natural gas information to tradélcations and other contingencies. In certail
circumstances, we may be eligible for insuranceveres, or reimbursement from others. Any suclverdes or reimbursements will be
recognized only when realizable.

Management, including internal counsel, currendliidves that the ultimate resolution of the foregomatters, taken as a whole and afte
consideration of amounts accrued, insurance coeeragovery from customers or other indemnificaiorangements, is not expected to he
materially adverse effect upon our future liquidityfinancial position; however, it could be ma&tto our results of operations in any given
year.
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Commitments

As part of managing our commodity price risk, wiize¢ contracted pipeline capacity to move our natgas production and third party
gas purchases to other locations in an attempteiromore favorable pricing differentials. Our aoitments under these contracts as of
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(Millions)
2013 $ 20t
2014 211
2015 207
2016 192
2017 17¢&
Thereaftel 741
Total $ 1,731

We also have certain commitments to an equity it@eeand others, primarily for natural gas gathesaing treating services and well
completion services, which total $634 million oegproximately seven years.

We hold a long-term obligation to deliver on a filbasis 200,000 MMBtu per day of natural gas toyebat the White River Hub
(Greasewood-Meeker, Colorado), which is the majarket hub exiting the Piceance Basin. This oblajatxpires in 2014.

In connection with a gathering agreement enteredbig Williams Partners with a third party in Dedssn 2010, we concurrently agreed
to buy up to 200,000 MMBtu per day of natural ga$ransco Station 515 (Marcellus Basin) at markitgs from the same third party.
Purchases under the 12-year contract began inrgtgtiarter of 2012. We expect to sell this ndtgess in the open market and may utilize
available transportation capacity to facilitate tades.

Future minimum annual rentals under noncancelgieating leases as of December 31, 2012, are pagalibllows:

(Millions)
2013 $ 63
2014 59
2015 41
2016 10
2017 8
Thereaftel 29
Total $ 2i1C

Total rent expense, excluding amounts capitaliaed, $20 million, $12 million and $12 million in 212011 and 2010, respectively.
Rent charges incurred for drilling rig rentals eapitalized under the successful efforts methoalcobunting; however, charges for rig release
penalties or long term standby charges are expassetturred.
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Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans
Subsequent to spin-off

On January 1, 2012, several new plans becameigéidot us including a defined contribution planPW matches dollar-for-dollar up to
the first 6 percent of eligible pay per period. Hoyges also receive a non-matching annual employetribution of equal to 8 percent of
eligible pay if they are age 40 or older and 6 petof eligible pay if they are under age 40. Gbmtions to this plan were $6 million in 2012
and approximately $10 million was included in aectand other current liabilities at December 31, 2¢lated to the non-matching annual
employer contribution.

Prior to spin-off

Through the spin-off date, certain benefit costoamted with direct employees who support our ajens are determined based on a
specific employee basis and were charged to us ibialivs as described below. These pension andnetistment benefit costs included
amounts associated with vested participants whaatenger employees. As described in Note 3 Wilkaalso charged us for the allocated
of certain indirect employees of Williams who pmed general and administrative services on ourlbaNdliams included an allocation of tl
benefit costs associated with these Williams emgrsybased upon Williams' determined benefit raténecessarily specific to the employees
providing general and administrative services onbmialf. As a result, the information describetbtes limited to amounts associated with
the direct employees that supported our operations.

For the periods presented, we were not the plansspdor these plans. Accordingly, our Consoliddathnce Sheets do not reflect any
assets or liabilities related to these plans.

Pension plans

Williams is the sponsor of noncontributory defireehefit pension plans that provides pension benffitits eligible employees. Pension
expense charged to us by Williams for 2011 and 26t0ed $8 million and $7 million, respectively.

Other postretirement benefits

Williams is the sponsor of subsidized retiree maldand life insurance benefit plans (“other pogteetent benefits”) that provides
benefits to certain eligible participants, gengralcluding employees hired on or before Decemiierd®91, and other miscellaneous defined
participant groups. Other postretirement benefitemse charged to us by Williams for 2011 and 201dldd less than $1 million for each
period.

Defined contribution plan

Williams also is the sponsor of a defined contiitnuplan that provides benefits to certain eligipéaticipants and charged us
compensation expense of $4 million and $5 millier2011 and 2010, respectively, for Williams’ matahcontributions to this plan.
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Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation
WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan

Subsequent to the spin-off, we have an equity itneeplan (“2011 Incentive Plan”) and an employtk purchase plan (“ESPP”). The
2011 Incentive Plan authorizes the grant of norifiedlstock options, incentive stock options, staglpreciation rights, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, performance shares, pediooa units and other stock-based awards. The nuohlseares of common stock authorized
for issuance pursuant to all awards granted uréeR®11 Incentive Plan is 11 million shares. Th&l2lcentive Plan is administered by eithet
the full Board of Directors or a committee as deaigd by the Board of Directors, determined bygtaat. Our employees, officers and non-
employee directors are eligible to receive awartieu the 2011 Incentive Plan.

The ESPP allows domestic employees the option ichpge WPX common stock at a 15 percent discoumtigh after-tax payroll
deductions. The purchase price of the stock isaver of either the first or last day of the biaahaffering periods, followed with the 15
percent discount. The maximum number of sharesstielt be made available under the purchase plamnglion shares, subject to adjustment
for stock splits and similar events. The first offig under the ESPP commenced on March 1, 2012aded on June 30, 2012. Subsequent
offering periods are from January through Junefeord July through December. Employees purchasedtdilsand shares at an average pric
of $13.08 per share during 2012.

The Williams Companies, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan

Certain of our direct employees patrticipated in Wiliams Companies, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan, vahicovides for Williams common-
stock-based awards to both employees and Williamosimanagement directors. The plan permits the iggof various types of awards
including, but not limited to, stock options andtrected stock units. Awards may be granted focowsideration other than prior and future
services or based on certain financial performaagets. Additionally, certain of our eligible diteemployees participated in Williams’ ESPP.
The ESPP enables eligible participants to purcttaseigh payroll deductions a limited amount of Veiths’ common stock at a discounted
price.

Through the date of spin-off, we were charged bilisiins for stock-based compensation expense retatedr direct employees.
Williams also charged us for the allocated costsesfain indirect employees of Williams (includistpck-based compensation) who provide
general and administrative services on our beHaifvever, information included in this note is liedtto stock-based compensation associate
with the direct employees for years prior to 2082e Note 3 for total costs charged to us by Wikiam

Williams’ Compensation Committee determined thhbatstanding Williams stock-based compensationrdsjavhether vested or
unvested, other than outstanding options issuexd friJanuary 1, 2006 (the “Pre-2006 Options”)cbeverted into awards with respect to
shares of common stock of the company that corgitmemploy the holder following the spin-off. TRee-2006 Options (whether held by our
employees or other Williams employees) convertéal aptions for both Williams and WPX common stookdwing the spin-off, in the same
ratio as is used in the distribution of WPX comnstock to holders of Williams common stock. The nemtif shares underlying each such
award (including the Pre-2006 Options) and, witkpext to options (including the P2806 Options), the per share exercise price of aaeird
was adjusted to maintain, on a post-spin-off bdlses pre-spin-off intrinsic value of each award.
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Employee stock-based awards

Stock options are valued at the date of award, kvilaes not precede the approval date, and compamsast is recognized on a straight:
line basis, net of estimated forfeitures, overrérquisite service period. The purchase price paresfor stock options may not be less than the
market price of the underlying stock on the datgrant.

Stock options generally become exercisable ovireetyear period from the date of grant and gelyegapire ten years after the grant.

Restricted stock units are generally valued atfaiue on the grant date and generally vest oveetiiears. Restricted stock unit
compensation cost, net of estimated forfeituregeiserally recognized over the vesting period straight-line basis.

Total stock-based compensation expense (includimauat charged to us by Williams) reflected in gahand administrative expense for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 204 &28amillion, $18 million, and $14 million, respieely. Measured but unrecognized
stock-based compensation expense at December BA w245 $43 million. This amount is comprised ofdilion related to stock options and
$41 million related to restricted stock units. Té@snounts are expected to be recognized over dteeigverage period of 2.4 years.

Stock Options
The following summary reflects stock option acinvind related information for the year ended Decamndli, 2012.

WPX Plan
Weighted-
Aggregate
Average
Exercise Intrinsic
Stock Options Options Price Value
(Millions) (Millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 4.2 $ 11.41 $ 29
Grantec 3 $ 18.1¢
Exercisec (0.9 $ 4.67
Expired — $ —
Outstanding at December 31, 201z 4.1 $ 12.6¢ $ 14
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 3.2 $ 11.7¢ $ 13

(@) Includes approximately 598 thousand shares hel/itliams’ employees at a weighted average price of $8.48mme.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 andv@4.@5 million, $7 million, and
$2 million, respectively.
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The following summary provides additional infornmattiabout stock options that are outstanding antteseble at December 31, 2012.

WPX Plan
Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted- Average
Remaining Remaining
Average Contractual Average Contractual
Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Options Price Life Options Price Life
(Millions) (Years) (Millions) (Years)
$ 5.50 to $6.7! 1.C $ 5.87 4.7 1.C $ 5.87 4.7
$9.08 to $11.7! 1.1 $ 11.2¢ 5.C 0.€ $ 11.17 4.5
$12.00 to $15.6' 0.7 $ 14.41 3.8 0.7 $ 14.41 3.8
$16.46 to $20.9 1.2 $ 18.17 7.4 0.€ $ 19.1¢ 6.C
Total 4.1 $ 12.6¢ 515 3.2 $ 11.7¢ 4.7

The estimated fair value at date of grant of ogifim our common stock and date of conversion f®®¥\awards in each respective year,
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, i$ai®ws:

WPX Plan

2012 2011
Weighted-average or grant date fair value of ogtigranted $7.7¢ $ —
Weightec-average conversion date fair value options gra $ 8.4¢
Weightec-average assumptior
Dividend yield — % — %
Volatility 43.8% 45%
Risk-free interest rat 1.1%% 0.371%
Expected life (years 6.C 2.8

We determined that the Williams stock option grdauia was not relevant for valuing WPX options; #fere the Company used the SEC
simplified method. The expected volatility is bagenarily on the historical volatility of compargbpeer group stocks. The risk free interest

rate is based on the U.S. Treasury Constant Mataies as of the grant date. The expected liésssimed based on the SEC simplified
method.

For 2011, the weighted average fair value is a @aamapt of the intrinsic value calculation at spifi-dhe expected volatility yield is
based on the historical volatility of comparablepgroup stocks. The risk free rate interest mteased on the U.S. Treasury Constant Mat
rates as of the modification date. The expectedadifthe options is based over the remaining optom.

Cash received from stock option exercises was $®mduring 2012.
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Nonvested Restricted Stock Units
The following summary reflects nonvested restrictmtk unit activity and related information foethiear ended December 31, 2012.

WPX Plan

Weighted-

Average

Fair Value
Restricted Stock Units Shares @

(Millions)

Nonvested at December 31, 2( 4.€ $ 9.6¢
Grantec 2.8 $ 17.3¢
Forfeited (0.2 $ 16.2(
Cancellec — $ —
Vested (2.9 $ 5.71
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 4.8 $ 16.4¢

(a) Performance-based shares are primarily valsgtya valuation pricing model. However, certairitafse shares were valued using the
end-of-period market price until certification thiae performance objectives were completed or aevaf zero once it was determined
that it was unlikely that performance objectiveandobe met. All other shares are valued at thetegplate market price, less dividends
projected to be paid over the vesting per

Other restricted stock unit information

WPX Plan Williams Plan
2012 2011 2010
Weighted-average grant date fair value of resulisteck units granted during the year, per share $ 17.3¢ $27.7¢ $20.0(
Total fair value of restricted stock units vesteding the year ('s in millions) $ 14 $ 1C $ 9

Performance-based shares granted represent 13pefemnvested restricted stock units outstandinDecember 31, 2012. These grant
may be earned at the end of a three-year pericetlbas actual performance against a performancettdEgpense associated with these
performance-based grants is recognized in periftes @erformance targets are established. Bas¢heoextent to which certain financial
targets are achieved, vested shares may rangezBmrpercent to 200 percent of the original grambant.

Note 14. Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Each share of our common stock entitles its hdldl@ne vote in the election of each director. Narstof our common stock affords any
cumulative voting rights. Holders of our commoncétavill be entitled to dividends in such amountsl a such times as our Board of Direci
in its discretion may declare out of funds legaisailable for the payment of dividends. No divideneere declared or paid as of December 31
2012 or 2011. No shares of common stock are sutgjgetdemption or have preemptive rights to pureradditional shares of our common
stock or other securities.
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Preferred Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadiuthorizes our Board of Directors to establisb or more series of preferred stock.
Unless required by law or by any stock exchangeroich our common stock is listed, the authorizearsh of preferred stock will be available
for issuance without further action. Rights andifgges associated with shares of preferred stoelsabject to authorization by our Board of
Directors and may differ from those of any andoditler series at any time outstanding.

Note 15. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the amount received from the sal@nofisset or the amount paid to transfer a liabilign orderly transaction between
market participants (an exit price) at the measergrdate. Fair value is a market-based measurernasidered from the perspective of a
market participant. We use market data or assumptizat we believe market participants would uggricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk and the risks inherenterirtputs to the valuation. These inputs can beilsealdservable, market corroborated, or
unobservable. We apply both market and income apies for recurring fair value measurements usiagéest available information while
utilizing valuation techniques that maximize the a$ observable inputs and minimize the use of saplable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputsdise measure fair value, giving the highest prjotit quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurethand the lowest priority to unobservable inpltsvel 3 measurement). We classify fair va
balances based on the observability of those infiis three levels of the fair value hierarchy asdollows:

» Level 1—Quoted prices for identical assets or liads in active markets that we have the abilihyatcess. Active markets are those
in which transactions for the asset or liabilitcocin sufficient frequency and volume to provideimg information on an ongoing
basis. Our Level 1 measurements primarily congifihancial instruments that are exchange tra

* Level 2—Inputs are other than quoted prices invaatharkets included in Level 1, that are eitheedy or indirectly observable.
These inputs are either directly observable imtlagketplace or indirectly observable through cooration with market data for
substantially the full contractual term of the assdiability being measured. Our Level 2 measueata primarily consist of over-
the-counter (“OTC") instruments such as forwardeyss, and options. These options, which hedgedgales of production, are
structured as costless collars and are financsgitited. They are valued using an industry stanB&dk-Scholes option pricing
model. Also categorized as Level 2 is the fair eadfiour debt, which is determined on market ratesthe prices of similar
securities with similar terms and credit ratin

» Level 3—nputs that are not observable for which theréttig | if any, market activity for the asset ordikty being measured. The
inputs reflect management’s best estimate of theraptions market participants would use in deteimgifair value. Our Level 3
measurements consist of instruments valued usthgsiny standard pricing models and other valuati@thods that utilize
unobservable pricing inputs that are significanthi overall fair value

In valuing certain contracts, the inputs used tasoee fair value may fall into different levelstbé fair value hierarchy. For disclosure
purposes, assets and liabilities are classifigdeir entirety in the fair value hierarchy levekbd on the lowest level of input that is significan
to the overall fair value measurement. Our asseassaiehe significance of a particular input to fag value measurement requires judgment
and may affect the placement within the fair vdiierarchy levels.
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The following table presents, by level within tlagrfvalue hierarchy, our assets and liabilities #ra measured at fair value on a recur

basis. The carrying amounts reported in the Codateld Balance Sheets for cash and cash equivalettsestricted cash approximate fair v.
due to the nature of the instrument and/or thetslkom maturity of these instruments.

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total
(Millions) (Millions)
Energy derivative asse $ 200§ 388 % 2 $ 6C $ 55 $454 $ 7 $ 5l€
Energy derivative liabilitie: $11 $ 1 $ 3 $ 15 $ 41 $ 11z $ 6 $ 15¢
Long-term debt(a $— $1617 $— $1617 $— $1,52¢ $— $1,52:¢

(&) The carrying value of long-term debt, excludaagital leases, was $1,508 million and $1,502ionilas of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively

Energy derivatives include commodity based exchdraged contracts and OTC contracts. Exchangedradetracts include futures,
swaps, and options. OTC contracts include forwasagsps, options and swaptions. These are carritadr aalue on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Many contracts have bid and ask prices that casbBerved in the market. Our policy is to use a matket pricing (the mid-point price
between bid and ask prices) convention to valu#iididal positions and then adjust on a portfoliedeto a point within the bid and ask range
that represents our best estimate of fair valueoFeetting positions by location, the mid-markeice is used to measure both the long and
short positions.

The determination of fair value for our assets katdllities also incorporates the time value of ragrand various credit risk factors which
can include the credit standing of the counterparitivolved, master netting arrangements, the itmfacredit enhancements (such as cash
collateral posted and letters of credit) and ourpssformance risk on our liabilities. The deterntima of the fair value of our liabilities does
not consider noncash collateral credit enhancements

Exchange-traded contracts include New York Merdafikchange and Intercontinental Exchange conteauisare valued based on
guoted prices in these active markets and areifidgbwithin Level 1.

Forward, swap, and option contracts included inel@vare valued using an income approach inclugiegent value techniques and
option pricing models. Option contracts, which hedigture sales of our production, are structurecioatless collars or as swaptions and are
financially settled. All of our financial optionseavalued using an industry standard Black-Schap¢®n pricing model. In connection with
several crude oil swaps entered into, we grantedecoil swaptions to the swap counterparties itarge for receiving premium hedged pri
on the crude oil swaps. These swaptions grantdhaterparty the option to enter into future swafib ws. Significant inputs into our Level 2
valuations include commaodity prices, implied vdlatiby location, and interest rates, as well assidering executed transactions or broker
guotes corroborated by other market data. Thedeebuotes are based on observable market priaelieth transactions could currently be
executed. In certain instances where these inpatsa observable for all periods, relationshipsloservable market data and historical
observations are used as a means to estimateafa@.wWVhere observable inputs are available fostambially the full term of the asset or
liability, the instrument is categorized in Level 2

Our energy derivatives portfolio is largely compdsof exchange-traded products or like productsta@denure of our derivatives
portfolio is relatively short with more than 98 pent of the net fair value of our derivatives palitf expiring in the next 12 months. Due to the
nature of the products and tenure, we are congligia@inle to obtain market pricing. All pricing isviewed on a daily basis and is formally
validated with broker quotes and documented on matintpbasis.
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Certain instruments trade with lower availabilifypoicing information. These instruments are valuéth a present value technique using
inputs that may not be readily observable or carated by other market data. These instrumentslassified within Level 3 when these
inputs have a significant impact on the measuremgfair value. The instruments included in Levedt®ecember 31, 2012, consist primarily
of natural gas index transactions that are usadatoage our physical requirements.

Reclassifications of fair value between Level lyéle?, and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchyajiplicable, are made at the end of each
guarter. No significant transfers between Levehd bevel 2 occurred during the years ended Dece®be2012 or 2011. During the period
ended March 31, 2011, certain NGL swaps that caigith during the first quarter of 2011 were transi@ifrom Level 3 to Level 2. Prior to
March 31, 2011, these swaps were considered Ledee3o a lack of observable third-party markettgaoDue to an increase in exchange-
traded transactions and greater visibility from Off&ling, we transferred these instruments to Lavel

The following table presents a reconciliation chrbes in the fair value of our net energy deriestignd other assets classified as Le
in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements Using Significant bobservable Inputs

Years ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010
Net Energy Net Energy Net Energy
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
(Millions)
Beginning balanc $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
Realized and unrealized gains (loss
Included in income (loss) from continuing operas 3 15 1
Included in other comprehensive income (I — — —
Purchases, issuances, and settlerr 5) (12 @
Transfers out of Level — )] —
Ending balanc: $ (@) $ 1 $ 1
Unrealized gains included in income (loss) fromtgaring operations relating to
instruments still held at December $ D $ 1 $ —

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) includéaciome (loss) from continuing operations for theabperiods are reported in revenues
in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

For the year ending December 31, 2011, the entifendillion reduction to level 3 fair value measugsts are settlements.
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The following table presents impairments associati#iol certain assets that have been measuredratalaie on a nonrecurring basis
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Total losses for
the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Impairments
Goodwill (Note 6) $ — $ — $1,005(c)
Producing properties and costs of acquired unprogserves (Note ¢ 225(a) 367(b) 175(d)
$ 22t $ 367 $1,17¢

(@) Due to significant declines in forward natuyak and natural gas liquids prices during 2012assessed the carrying value of our natura
gas-producing properties and costs of acquiredavagl reserves for impairments. Our assessmergadikstimates of future discounted
cash flows. Significant judgments and assumptiarthése assessments include estimates of prohablecssible reserve quantities,
estimates of future natural gas prices using adoviNYMEX curve adjusted for locational basis diffietials, future natural gas liquids
prices, expectation for market participant drillipigns, expected capital costs and an applicabdit rate commensurate with the risk
of the underlying cash flow estimates. As a resudtrecorded the following impairment charges. Falue measured for these properties
at December 31, 2012 was estimated to be approsiyn®351 million.

* $102 million and $75 million of impairment chargesated to acquired unproved reserves in PowdegrRiad Piceance,
respectively. Significant assumptions in valuings unproved reserves included evaluation of pitelaitl possible reserves
guantities, expectation for market participantlohg plans, forward natural gas (adjusted for lawzl differences) and natural gas
liquids prices, and an af-tax discount rate of 13 percent and 15 percerprfoibable and possible reserves, respecti

»  $48 million impairment charge related to naturad-geoducing properties in Green River. Significassumptions in valuing these
properties included proved reserves quantitiesarenthan 29 billion cubic feet of gas equivaleatward weighted average prices
averaging approximately $5.87 per Mcfe for natgas (adjusted for locational differences), natgea liquids and oil, and an after-
tax discount rate of 11 perce

(b) Due to significant declines in forward natugak prices, we assessed the carrying value ofaiural gas-producing properties and costs
of acquired unproved reserves for impairments. &sessment utilized estimates of future cash floelading potential disposition
proceeds. Significant judgments and assumptiotiseise assessments include estimates of natureégmwye quantities, estimates of
future natural gas prices using a forward NYMEXveuadjusted for locational basis differentials|lichg plans, expected capital costs,
and an applicable discount rate commensurate vgihof the underlying cash flow estimates. The @hmagsessment identified certain
properties with a carrying value in excess of tiealculated fair values. As a result, we recordhmedfollowing impairment charges. Fair
value measured for these properties at Decemb&0d1, was estimated to be approximately $546 onil

»  $276 million impairment charge related to naturad-groducing properties in Powder River. Signift@ssumptions in valuing
these properties included proved reserves quantfienore than 352 billion cubic feet of gas eqléag forward weighted average
prices averaging approximately $3.81 per Mcfe fatural gas (adjusted for locational differencea}jural gas liquids and oil, and
an afte-tax discount rate of 11 perce
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* $91 million impairment charge related to acquiregnoved reserves in Powder River. Significant aggtions in valuing these
unproved reserves included evaluation of probabtepmssible reserves quantities, expectation foketgarticipant drilling plans,
forward natural gas (adjusted for locational défeces) and natural gas liquids prices, and an-kediscount rate of 13 percent
and 15 percent for probable and possible reserespgectively

Due to a significant decline in forward natugak prices across all future production periodind2010, we determined that we had a
trigger event and thus performed an interim impaintrassessment of the approximate $1 billion ofigaibrelated to our domestic
natural gas production operations (the reportint).uforward natural gas prices through 2025 aSagtember 30, 2010, used in our
analysis declined more than 22 percent on averagpared to the forward prices as of December 309 20/e estimated the fair value
the reporting unit on a stand-alone basis by valpioved and unproved reserves, as well as estightite fair values of other assets and
liabilities which are identified to the reportingiti We used an income approach (discounted casl) for valuing reserves. The
significant inputs into the valuation of proved antproved reserves included reserve quantitiesdia natural gas prices, anticipated
drilling and operating costs, anticipated produtiorves, income taxes, and appropriate discotes.rdo estimate the fair value of the
reporting unit and the implied fair value of goolwinder a hypothetical acquisition of the repagtimit, we assumed a tax structure
where a buyer would obtain a step-up in the tajishEghe net assets acquired. Significant assumgtin valuing proved reserves
included reserves quantities of more than 4.4dnltubic feet of gas equivalent; forward pricesraging approximately $4.65 per
thousand cubic feet of gas equivalent (“Mcfe”) fatural gas (adjusted for locational differencaa}ural gas liquids and oil; and an after
tax discount rate of 11 percent. Unproved resefmesbable and possible) were valued using simBaumptions adjusted further for the
uncertainty associated with these reserves by @stegtax discount rates of 13 percent and 15gmdreespectively, commensurate with
our estimate of the risk of those reserves. Inasgsessment as of September 30, 2010, the carrging @f the reporting unit, including
goodwill, exceeded its estimated fair value. Wenttletermined that the implied fair value of the dwil was zero. As a result of our
analysis, we recognized a full $1 billion impairrheharge related to this goodw!

As of September 30, 2010, we had a trigger easm result of recent significant declines imfard natural gas prices and therefore, we
assessed the carrying value of our natural gasdpiog properties and costs of acquired unproveerves for impairments. Our
assessment utilized estimates of future cash fl@iggificant judgments and assumptions in thesesassents are similar to those used i
the goodwill evaluation and include estimates dfired gas reserve quantities, estimates of futataral gas prices using a forward
NYMEX curve adjusted for locational basis differiaig, drilling plans, expected capital costs, andpplicable discount ra
commensurate with risk of the underlying cash festimates. The assessment performed at Septemi20 180 identified certain
properties with a carrying value in excess of tiealculated fair values. As a result, we record&d 5 million impairment charge in
third-quarter 2010 related to acquired unprovedmass in the Piceance Highlands acquired in 20@fifant assumptions in valuing
these unproved reserves included evaluation ofgtrieband possible reserves quantities, drillinggléorward natural gas (adjusted for
locational differences) and natural gas liquidegsj and an after-tax discount rate of 13 peréeit.value measured for these properties
was estimated to be approximately $9 million attSeyer 30, 201(
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Note 16. Derivatives and Concentration of Credit Rik
Energy Commodity Derivatives
Risk Management Activitie

We are exposed to market risk from changes in gnesgmodity prices within our operations. We ugliderivatives to manage expos
to the variability in expected future cash flowsrr forecasted sales of natural gas, natural gaslicand crude oil attributable to commodity
price risk. Through December 2011, we elected sigihate the majority of our applicable derivatimstruments as cash flow hedges.
Beginning in 2012, we began entering into commodéyivative contracts that will continue to sergeegonomic hedges but will not be
designated as cash flow hedges for accounting pegpas we have elected not to utilize this metli@ed@unting on new derivatives
instruments. Remaining commodity derivatives reedrdt December 31, 2011 that were designated hSlomshedges will realize at the end
of the first quarter of 2013.

We produce, buy and sell natural gas, naturaliga&ls and crude oil at different locations throaghthe United States. To reduce
exposure to a decrease in revenues from fluctumtionommodity market prices, we enter into futurestracts, swap agreements, and fina
option contracts to mitigate the price risk on t@rgted sales of natural gas, natural gas liquidscande oil. We have also entered into basis
swap agreements to reduce the locational priceadskciated with our producing basins. Our findrapéion contracts are either purchased
options, a combination of options that comprisetpurchased option or a zero-cost collar or s\wwapti

We also enter into forward contracts to buy antireglral gas to maximize the economic value afdpmrtation agreements and storage
capacity agreements. To reduce exposure to a decieanargins from fluctuations in natural gas reagkices, we may enter into futures
contracts, swap agreements, and financial optiotracts to mitigate the price risk associated wittse contracts. Derivatives for
transportation and storage contracts economiceliigh the expected cash flows generated by thoseragnts.

The following table sets forth the derivative vokesrthat are economic hedges of production volure@gedl as the table depicts the
notional amounts of the net long (short) positiamsch do not represent economic hedges of our mtimhy both which are included in our
commodity derivatives portfolio as of December 3012.

Derivatives related to production

Weighted Average
Notional Volume

Commodity Period Contract Type(a) Location (b) Price(c)

Crude Oil 201z Fixed Price Swap WTI (9,000) $ 100.5:
Natural Gas 201z Location Swap: Northeas (25) $ 4.6
Natural Gas 201z Location Swap: Rockies (20 $ 3.8¢
Natural Gas 2012 Location Swap: San Jual (10) $ 3.9:
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Derivatives primarily related to storage and transprtation

Weighted Average
Notional Volume

Commodity Period Contract Type(d) Location(e) (b) Price(f)

Natural Ga:s 2013 Fixed Price Swap Multiple (22) —
Natural Gas 2013 Basis Swap Multiple (27) —
Natural Gas 2013 Index Multiple (82) —
Natural Gas 2014 Basis Swap Multiple D —
Natural Gas 2014 Index Multiple (20 —
Natural Gas 201E Basis Swap Multiple (6) —
Natural Gas 201t Index Multiple 3 —
Natural Gas 201€ Index Multiple 2 —
Natural Gas 2017 Index Multiple 2 —

(&) WPX Equity Production Hedges for crude oil are hass day average swaps and the natural gas heddesed price at location swafg

(b) Natural gas volumes are reported in BBtu/day andeoil volumes are reported in Bbl/d:

(c) The weighted average price for natural gas is tedan $/MMBtu and the crude oil price is reported/Bbl.

(d) WPX Marketing enters into exchange traded fixedgend basis swaps, over the counter fixed pridebasis swaps, physical fixed pr
transactions and transactions with an index compuo

(e) WPX Marketing transacts at multiple locationsusnd our core assets to maximize the economiewaflwur transportation, storage and
asset management agreeme

(H The weighted average price is not reportedesthe notional volumes represent a net positionpri®d of buys and sells with positive
and negative transaction pric

Fair values and gains (losses)

The following table presents the fair value of grlyerommodity derivatives. Our derivatives are pnésé as separate line items in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets as current and nomtwaieevative assets and liabilities. Derivatives elassified as current or noncurrent basec
on the contractual timing of expected future nshcifows of individual contracts. The expected fataet cash flows for derivatives classified
as current are expected to occur within the nexnh8ths. The fair value amounts are presentedgyoss basis and do not reflect the nettin
asset and liability positions permitted under #venis of our master netting arrangements. Furtheratounts below do not include cash held
on deposit in margin accounts that we have recaivedmitted to collateralize certain derivativespions.

December 31

2012 2011

Asset: Liabilities Asset: Liabilities
(Millions)

Derivatives related to production designated agimgginstrument: $ 5 $ — $36C $ 13

Not designated as hedging instrume

Derivatives related to production not designatedesdging instrument 33 — 3 7

Legacy natural gas contracts from former powerrmss 2 2 93 92

All other 20 13 __ 60 47

Total derivatives not designated as hedging instnis 55 15 _15¢€ 14€

Total derivatives $ 60 $ 15 $51¢€ $ 15¢
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The following table presents pre-tax gains anddsg$er our energy commodity derivatives designatedash flow hedges, as recognizec
in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOGI"jevenues.

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 Classification
(Millions)
Net gain recognized in other comprehensive incdoss) (effective portion $ 9 $418 AOCI
Net gain reclassified froraccumulated other comprehensive income (lwgs)income (effective portion)
(a) $434 $331 Revenue

(@) Gains reclassified from accumulated other cain@nsive income (loss) primarily represent realg&ids associated with our production
reflected in natural gas sales and oil and conderssdes

There were no gains or losses recognized in inasreresult of excluding amounts from the assessofidénredge effectiveness.

The following table presents pre-tax gains anddssecognized in revenues for our energy commalditivatives not designated as
hedging instruments.

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011

(Millions)
Unrealized gain (loss $32 $ (10)
Realized gain (los¢ _46 38
Net gain (loss) on derivative not designated agés $78 $ 29

The cash flow impact of our derivative activitissresented in the Consolidated Statements of Elasfs as changes in current and
noncurrent derivative assets and liabilities.

Credit-risk-related features

Certain of our derivative contracts contain credik-related provisions that would require us, unzigtain events, to post additional
collateral in support of our net derivative liatyilpositions. These credit-risk-related provisioeguire us to post collateral in the form of cash
or letters of credit when our net liability positbexceed an established credit threshold. Thet ¢theesholds are typically based on our senior
unsecured debt ratings from Standard and Poor®aMbody’s Investment Services. Under these catdra credit ratings decline would
lower our credit thresholds, thus requiring us dstmdditional collateral. We also have contraaésd tontain adequate assurance provisions
giving the counterparty the right to request cellat in an amount that corresponds to the outstgnuiet liability.

As of December 31, 2012, we had collateral totai&gnillion posted to derivative counterpartiestpport the aggregate fair value of
our net $5 million derivative liability positiongflecting master netting arrangements in place wetttain counterparties), which includes a
reduction of less than $1 million to our liabilixalance for our own nonperformance risk. At Decen®ie 2011, we had collateral totaling
$18 million posted to derivative counterpartiestpport the aggregate fair value of our net $3Tanilderivative liability position (reflecting
master netting arrangements in place with certaimterparties), which included a reduction of lxss1 $1 million to our liability balance for
our own nonperformance risk. The additional cotiatéhat we
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would have been required to post, assuming ouitdteésholds were eliminated and a call for adégjaasurance under the credit risk
provisions in our derivative contracts was triggengas $3 million and $19 million at December 3012 and December 31, 2011, respecti\

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the fair value of our cash flow hedtethe extent effective, are deferred in AOCI apdassified into earnings in the same
period or periods in which the hedged forecastadhases or sales affect earnings, or when it ibghie that the hedged forecasted transactio
will not occur by the end of the originally speetitime period. During the first quarter of 201@pximately $15 million of unrealized gains
were recognized into earnings in 2012 for hedgestaations where the underlying transactions werdemger probable of occurring due to the
sale of our Barnett Shale properties. The $15 oniltain is included in net gains (losses) on dériga not designated as hedges on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for 201ar@second-quarter 2012 changes in forward mamaitet value. As of December 31,
2012, we have hedged portions of future cash flassociated with anticipated energy commodity daleghree months. Based on recorded
values at December 31, 2012, $3 million of net géimet of income tax provision of $2 million) wilk reclassified into earnings in the first
quarter of 2013. These recorded values are basethdtet prices of the commodities as of DecembeB312. Due to the volatile nature of
commodity prices and changes in the creditwortlireounterparties, actual gains or losses rahlid@thin the next quarter could differ from
these values. These gains or losses are expecsethstantially offset net losses or gains that bélirealized in earnings from previous
unfavorable or favorable market movements assatiatéh underlying hedged transactions.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Cash equivalents

Our cash equivalents are primarily invested in funith high-quality, short-term securities and iinstents that are issued or guaranteed
by the U.S. government.

Accounts receivable
The following table summarizes concentration okreables, net of allowances, by product or seragef December 31:

2012 2011
(Millions)
Receivables by product or servi
Sale of natural gas and related products and &= $28¢ $28€
Joint interest ownel 13€ 15C
Other __ 16 _ 1
Total $44: $447

Natural gas customers include pipelines, distrdrutiompanies, producers, gas marketers and inalusters primarily located in the
eastern and northwestern United States, Rocky Mdawusiand Gulf Coast. As a general policy, colldtisraot required for receivables, but
customers’ financial condition and credit worthis@se evaluated regularly.
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Derivative assets and liabilities

We have a risk of loss from counterparties notqrenfng pursuant to the terms of their contractidigations. Counterparty performance
can be influenced by changes in the economy andategy issues, among other factors. Risk of lesmpacted by several factors, including
credit considerations and the regulatory envirortnmewvhich a counterparty transacts. We attemphitiimize credit-risk exposure to
derivative counterparties and brokers through féweredit policies, consideration of credit ratirfgsm public ratings agencies, monitoring
procedures, master netting agreements and collatgrport under certain circumstances. Collatarppsrt could include letters of credit,
payment under margin agreements and guaranteeyaigmt by credit worthy parties.

We also enter into master netting agreements tigaét counterparty performance and credit risk.imyu012, 2011 and 2010, we did
not incur any significant losses due to counteyplankruptcy filings. We assess our credit exposara net basis to reflect master netting
agreements in place with certain counterpartiesofféet our credit exposure to each counterparti wmounts we owe the counterparty ur
derivative contracts.

The gross and net credit exposure from our devigatontracts as of December 31, 2012, is summaagéddllows:

Gross Net

Investment Investment

Counterparty Type Grade(a) Gross Total Grade(a) Net Total
(Millions)

Gas and electric utilities, integrated oil and gasipanies, and oth $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
Energy marketers and tradt 5 5 4 5
Financial institution: 54 54 44 44

$ 60 60 $ 49 50
Credit reserve — —
Credit exposure from derivativ: $ 60 $ 50

(&) We determine investment grade primarily usinglicly available credit ratings. We include couptrties with a minimum Standard &
Poors rating of BBE- or Moody's Investors Service rating of Baa3 in investmeatig!

Our eight largest net counterparty positions regmmeapproximately 97 percent of our net credit expe from derivatives and are all with
investment grade counterparties. Under our marggrtedging agreements with key banks, neither pargquired to provide collateral supy
related to hedging activities.

At December 31, 2012, we held collateral suppofbfillion, either in the form of cash or lettexfscredit, related to our other derivat
positions.

Revenues

During 2012, 2011, and 2010, BP Energy Companynaastic segment customer, accounted for 10 pertgéngercent and 13 percent of
our consolidated revenues, respectively. During220¥illiams accounted for 12 percent of our cordatied revenue. Prior to 2012, Williams
was considered an affiliate of WPX. See Note 3éwenue related to Williams for 2011 and 2010. Mgemaent believes that the loss of any
individual purchaser would not have a long-termenat adverse impact on the financial positionasults of operations of the Company.
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Note 17. Segment Disclosures
Our reporting segments are domestic and interratisee Note 1).

Our segment presentation is reflective of the paerel focus by our chief operating decision-malensidering the resource allocation
and governance provisions. Domestic and internatioraintain separate capital and cash managenrantses. These factors, coupled with
differences in the business environment associatdoperating in different countries, serve tdeliéntiate the management of this entity as ¢
whole.

Performance Measuremer

We evaluate performance based upon segment revandesegment operating income (loss). There ametarsegment sales between
domestic and international.

The following tables reflect the reconciliationsg#fgment revenues and segment operating incomeg foss/enues and operating income
(loss) as reported in the Consolidated Statemdr@perations. Long-lived assets are comprised o§gproperty, plant and equipment and
long-term investments.

For the year ended December 31, 20: Domestic International Total
(Millions)
Total revenue: $ 3,052 $ 137 $ 3,18¢

Costs and expense

Lease and facility operatir $ 251 $ 32 $ 28:
Gathering, processing and transporta 504 2 50¢€
Taxes other than incon 87 24 111
Gas management, including charges for unutilizpélpie capacit 99¢ — 99¢
Exploration 72 11 83
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 93¢ 27 96¢€
Impairment of producing properties and costs oliaegl unproved reservi 22t — 22t
General and administrati 27¢ 14 287
Other—net 12 — 12
Total costs and expens $ 3,35¢ $ 11C $ 3,46¢
Operating income (los: $ (307) $ 27 $ (280
Interest expens (102) — (102
Interest capitalize 8 — 8
Investment income and oth 3 27 3C
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: $ (399 $ 54 $ (349
Other financial information
Net capital expenditure $ 1,46 $ 58 $ 1,521
Total asset $ 9,11t $ 34z $ 9,45¢
Long—lived asset: $13,05¢ $ 42¢ $13,48:¢
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For the year ended December 31, 20:

Total revenue:

Costs and expense
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Gas management, including charges for unutilizpélpie capacit
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of producing properties and costs oliaegl unproved reservi
General and administrati
Other—net
Total costs and expens
Operating income (los!
Interest expens
Interest capitalize
Investment income and oth
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Other financial informatior
Net capital expenditure
Total asset
Long-lived asset:

128
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$ 3,77

$ 23t
487

$ 1,531
$10,14«
$11,96¢

International
(Millions)
$ 11C

$ 27

21

41
28¢
354
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For the year ended December 31, 20:

Total revenue:

Costs and expense
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Gas management, including charges for unutilizpélpie capacit
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of producing properties and costs oliaegl unproved reservi
Goodwill impairment
General and administrati
Othe—net
Total costs and expens
Operating income (los!
Interest expens
Interest capitalize
Investment income and oth
Income (loss) from continuing operations beformme taxe:
Other financial information
Net capital expenditure
Total asset
Long—lived asset:

129
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$ 3,84¢
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ternational

(Millions)
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3¢
25¢€
30¢€




Table of Contents

WPX Energy, Inc.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
(Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial data are as follows:

2012
Revenue:
Operating costs and expen:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Net income (loss
Amounts attributable to WPX Energ
Net income (loss
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
2011
Revenue:
Operating costs and expen:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Net income (loss
Amounts attributable to WPX Energ
Net income (loss
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl
Income (loss) from continuing operatic

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

(Millions, except pel-share amounts)

$ 91C
834
(38)
(40)

(43
$(0.21)
$ 95¢

841
7

D
3
$ 0.0¢

$ 77E
67¢
(29)
(6)

(10)
$(0.17)
$ 95¢

807

30

28

25

$ 0.1

$ 677
68C
(63)
(61)

(64
$(0.39)
$ 99t

904

19
16
14

$ 0.0¢

The sum of earnings per share for the four quarteay not equal the total earnings per share forytear due to rounding.

Net losdor fourth-quarter 2012 includes the following pee-items:

»  $108 million of impairments of producing properteasd costs of acquired unproved reserves (see Nc

Net lossfor second-quarter 2012 includes the following faeitems:

»  $65 million of impairments of costs of acquired uoyed reserves in the Powder River Basin (see No

» Gain on sale of Barnett and Arkoma propert

Net losdor first-quarter 2012 includes the following pie¢titems:

»  $52 million of impairments of costs of acquired uoyed reserves primarily in the Powder River Basee(Note 6)

Net losdfor fourth-quarter 2011 includes the following fieex items:

$ 827
75¢
(109
(104)

(10€)
$(0.59)
$ 97¢
83C
(20€)
(338)
(339

$(1.06)

*  $367 million of impairments of producing propertasd costs of acquired unproved reserves (see@ated $193 million of
impairments related to the Barrett Shale and Arkdiseontinued operations (see Note

Net incomdor third-quarter 2011 includes the following pettems:

»  $50 million write-off of leasehold costs associated with approxinyeé8l percent of our Columbia County, Pennsylvacr@age

*  $11 million of dry hole costs associated with anlergtory Marcellus Shale well in Columbia Cour
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We have significant oil and gas producing actigifgimarily in the Rocky Mountain region, North d& and Pennsylvannia in the
United States. Additionally, we have internatioohland gas producing activities, primarily in Argia. The following information excludes
our gas management activities.

With the exception of Capitalized Costs and theuRe®f Operations for all years presented, thievahg information includes
information, through the date of sale, for the redd in the Barnett Shale and Arkoma Basin whickehzeen reported as discontinued
operations in our consolidated financial statemertigse operations represented less than five pes€eur total domestic and international
proved reserves in 2011.

Capitalized Costs

As of December 31, 201

Entity 's share o
international

Consolidatec equity method
Domestic International Total investee
(Millions)
Proved Propertie $ 9,931 $ 25¢ $ 10,19( $ 254
Unproved propertie 1,65¢ 3 1,65¢ —
11,58¢ 262 11,84¢ 254
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortiratind
valuation provision: 3,67§) (139 (3,81) (159
Net capitalized cost $ 7,90¢ $ 12¢ $ 8,03i $ 10C

As of December 31, 201

Entity 's share o
international

Consolidatec equity method
Domestic International Total investee
(Millions)
Proved Propertie $11,29¢ $ 31C $ 11,60¢ $ 292
Unproved propertie 1,15: 9 1,162 1
12,44¢ 31¢ 12,767 29:
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortiratind
valuation provision: 4,612 (167 (4,773 (181
Net capitalized cost $ 7,83¢€ $ 15€ $ 7,99 $ 112

» Excluded from capitalized costs are equipment axdities in support of oil and gas production dB8$ million and $251 million,
net, for 2012 and 2011, respective

» Proved properties include capitalized costs foand gas leaseholds holding proved reserves, dawelat wells including
uncompleted development well costs and successfilbeatory wells,

e Unproved properties consist primarily of unproveddehold costs and costs for acquired unprovedvess
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(Unaudited)
Cost Incurred
Domestic International
(Millions)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Acquisition $1,73] $ —
Exploration 22 13
Developmen 98¢ 27
$2,74] $ 40
For the Year Ended December 31, 201
Acquisition $ 45 $ —
Exploration 31 20
Developmen 1,461 24
$1,537 $ 44
For the Year Ended December 31, 201
Acquisition $ 111 $ —
Exploration 23 31
Developmen 1,13( 35
$1,26¢ $ 66

» Costs incurred include capitalized and expenseuisit

» Acquisition costs are as follows: The 2012 costspaimarily for undeveloped leasehold in exploratareas targeting oil reserves.
The 2011 costs are primarily for additional leadefio the Appalachian Basin. The 2010 costs amaarily for additional leasehold

Entity’s share o

international
equity method
investee

$ —

3

25

$ 28
$ —

8

26

$ 34
$ —

5

35

$ 40

in the Williston and Appalachian Basins and inclaggroximately $422 million of proved property vedu

» Exploration costs include the costs incurred farlggical and geophysical activity, drilling and guping exploratory wells,

including costs incurred during the year for welidermined to be dry holes, exploratory lease attipris and retaining

undeveloped leaseholc

» Development costs include costs incurred to gaiessto and prepare well locations for drilling &mdrill and equip wells in our

development basin

* We have classified our step-out drilling and sitegaration costs in the Powder River Basin as dgveént. While the immediate
offsets are frequently in the dewatering stagegdthaelopment classification better reflects the i@k profile of the costs incurre
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Results of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 201
Revenues
Natural gas sale
Oil and condensate sal
Natural gas liquid sale
Other revenue
Total revenue
Costs:
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of costs of acquired unproved rese
Goodwill impairment
General and administrati
Other (income) expen:
Total costs

Results of operatior
Provision (benefit) for income tax

Exploration and production net income (lo

For the Year Ended December 31, 201
Revenues

Natural gas sale

Oil and condensate sal

Natural gas liquid sale

Other revenue

Total revenue:

Costs:
Lease and facility operatir
Gathering, processing and transporta
Taxes other than incon
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Impairment of certain natural gas properties inRbg/der River Basi
Impairment of costs of acquired unproved rese
General and administrati
Other (income) expen:
Total costs
Results of operatior
Provision (benefit) for income tax

Exploration and production net income (lo

133

Domestic International Total
(Millions)

$1,70C $ 15 $1,71¢
55 71 12€
282 3 28t
40 — 4C
2,07 89 2,16¢
244 19 263
32C — 32C
104 16 12C
51 6 57
794 17 811
17t — 17t
1,00¢ — 1,00:
214 9 228
(18) — (18)
2,881 67 2,95¢
(810) 22 (78¢)
70 8 78
$ (880 $ 14 $ (86€)

Domestic International Total

(Millions)

$1,67¢ $ 1€ $1,69¢
22¢€ 86 312
404 4 40¢

7 4 11
2,31¢ 11C 2,42¢
23t 27 262
487 — 487
112 21 134
12: 3 12¢
88C 22 902
27€ — 27¢€
91 — 91
24¢€ 12 25¢
(3) 3 —
2,44¢ 88 2,53¢
(133) 22 (111)
(49) 8 (41)
$ (84) $ 14 $ (70
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(Unaudited)
Domestic International Total
(Millions)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenues
Natural gas sale $1,34¢ $ 18 $1,36¢
Oil and condensate sal 37¢€ 11¢ 491
Natural gas liquid sale 29¢€ 3 29¢
Net gain on derivatives not designated as he 66 — 66
Other revenue 7 1 8
Total revenue 2,091 137 2,22¢
Costs:
Lease and facility operatir 251 32 282
Gathering, processing and transporta 504 2 50€
Taxes other than incon 87 24 111
Exploration 72 11 83
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 93¢ 27 96€
Impairment of certain natural gas properties in@neen River Basi 48 — 48
Impairment of costs of acquired unproved rese 177 — 177
General and administrati 267 14 281
Other (income) expen: 14 — 14
Total costs 2,35¢ 11C 2,46¢
Results of operatior (268) 27 (247
Provision (benefit) for income tax (98) 1C (88)
Exploration and production net income (lo $ (170 $ 17 $ (159

Amount for all years exclude the equity earningsrfrthe international equity method investee. Eqe#tynings from this investee
were $26 million, $24 million and $16 million in 20, 2011 and 2010, respective

Natural gas revenues consist of natural gas pradusbld and includes realized gains (losses) afdtves that were designated
cash flow hedge:

For derivative instruments that were entered ifterdanuary 1, 2013, we did not designate thosasis flow hedges. Any gain
(loss) related to these derivatives is includeddahgain on derivatives not designated as he«

Other revenues consist of activities that are diréat part of the producing activitie

Exploration expenses include the costs of geolbgicd geophysical activity, drilling and equippiegploratory wells determined
be dry holes and the cost of retaining undeveldpasieholds including lease amortization and impeiirts

Depreciation, depletion and amortization includeprédciation of support equipme
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Proved Reserves

Our international reserves are primarily attriblgaio a consolidated subsidiary (Apco) in whichréhis a 31 percent noncontrolling
interest. The Entity’s share of international eguitethod investee represents Apco’s 40.8% intémestserves of Petrolera Entre Lomas S.A.

Natural Gas (Bcf)
Entity's share o

international
equity method

Domestic International investee Combinec
Proved reserves at December 31, 20! 4,069." 84.F 36.1 4,190.!
Revisions (274.%) (13.7) 2.2 (285.¢)
Purchase 37.2 — — 37.2
Extensions and discoveri 478.7 11.¢ 13.7 504.:
Production (396.¢) (9.0 (3.8 (409.6)
Proved reserves at December 31, 20: 3,914.: 74.: 48.2 4,036."
Revisions (279.9) 0.2 (4.0 (283.7)
Purchase 8.C — — 8.C
Divestitures (12.9) — — (12.9)
Extensions and discoveri 769.7 9.€ 11.5 790.¢
Production (416.9) (9.0 (4.7) (430.6)
Proved reserves at December 31, 20: 3,982.¢ 75.C 51.C 4,108.¢
Revisions (404.¢) (18.0 (18.5) (441.9)
Purchase 5.8 — — 5.8
Divestitures (217.0 — — (217.0
Extensions and discoveri 409.2 5.7 7.4 422.:
Production (407.0 (8.6) (4.9 (420.0
Proved reserves at December 31, 20: 3,369.: 54.1 35.F 3,458."
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2( 2,368.! 43.4 27.¢ 2,439.¢
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2( 2,497.: 48.4 28.t 2,574.:
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2( 2,170.° 36.5 20.¢ 2,228.(
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Purchase
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Production
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Revisions

Purchase

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 2011
Revisions

Divestitures

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20

Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(
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(Unaudited)
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NGLs (MMBbIs)

International

1.C

0.1
(0.1)

1.
(0.1)

Entity's share
of international

equity method
investee

1.C

Eﬂ
©1
1.1
0.1)
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Proved reserves at December 31, 2009
Revisions

Purchase

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20:
Revisions

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20:
Revisions

Divestitures

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20:

Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2(

(Unaudited)

Qil (MMBbls)
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International
11.1
0.1

2.C
(1.9
11.€
(0.7)

1.E
(1.4)
11.2
(1.1)

2.1

(1.5
10.¢

7.1
6.8
6.1

Entity 's share o

international
equity method
investee

13.C
0.2

1.7
(1.6)
13.2
0.9

(1.9
12.2

(1.7)

1.1

(1.9
10.€

8.1
7.€
6.4

(0.2

© w
NS
talen <

=
©
L]

N
9
')

w
o
[




Table of Contents

WPX Energy, Inc.

Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures—(Continued)

Proved reserves at December 31, 2009

Revisions

Purchase

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20:

Revisions

Purchase

Divestitures

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 20:

Revisions

Purchase

Divestitures

Extensions and discoveri

Production

Proved reserves at December 31, 2012

Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2010
Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2011

Proved developed reserves at December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)

All products (Bcfe) (a)

Domestic International
4,481.¢ 156.¢
(95.€) (12.5)
161.¢ —
537.t 24.t
(450.7) (17.5)
4,635.( 151.¢
(134.9) (4.6)
9.¢ —
(12.6) -
1,065.t 18.€
(493.7) (18.2)
5,070.: 147.2
(498.6) (24.7)
5.8 —
(224.5) —
633.¢ 18.:
(495.6) (18.0)
4,490.! 122.¢
2,684 . 90.1
3,011t 93.C
2,702.¢ 76.1

Entity 's share
of international

equity method
investee

120.1
4.C

25.1
(14.9
135.

(10.0)

19.c

(14.9
129.€
(25.1)

14.C
(14.6)
103.¢

80.7

77.7

62.€

(a) Oil and natural gas liquids were converted ¢feRising the ratio of one barrel of oil, condeasat NGLs to six thousand cubic feet of

natural gas

» The SEC defines proved oil and gas reserves (Ru&d) of Regulation S-X) as those quantities baod gas, which, by analysis of
geoscience and engineering data, can be estimédttedeasonable certainty to be economically proboleei-from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic dgnth, operating methods, and government regulstigorior to the time at which

contracts providing the right to operate expirdess evidence indicates that renewal is reasorgastgin, regardless of whether

deterministic or probabilistic methods are usedtfierestimation. The project to extract the hydrecas must have commenced or the
operator must be reasonably certain that it withomence the project within a reasonable time. Progsdrves consist of two categories,
proved developed reserves and proved undevelogedves. Proved developed reserves are currenttiupirog wells and wells awaiting
minor sales connection expenditure, recompletiddijteonal perforations or borehole stimulation treants. Proved undeveloped reserves
are those reserves which are expected to be resmbfrerm new wells on undrilled acreage or from gxgswells where a relatively major
expenditure is required for recompletion. Proveskrees on undrilled acreage are generally limibetthdse that can be developed within
years according to planned drilling activity. Prdveserves on undrilled acreage also can incluchitms that are more than one off
away from current producing wells where there lisasonable certainty of production when drilledvbere it can be demonstrated with
reasonable certainty that there is continuity aidoiction from the existing productive formatic

* Purchases in 2010 include proved developed resefv&s Bcfe.

» Revisions in 2012 primarily resulted from the lovi@-month average price as compared to the 12-maw@trage price used in 2011.
Revisions in 2011 and 2010 primarily relate tohaassification of reserves from proved to probabkerves attributable to locations not

expected to be developed within five yei

» Natural gas reserves are computed at 14.73 powerdsjpare inch absolute and 60 degrees Fahre
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WPX Energy, Inc.

Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures—(Continued)
(Unaudited)

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves

The following is based on the estimated quantitfggroved reserves. Prices are based on the 12hnaeerage price computed as an
unweighted arithmetic average of the price as effitlst day of each month, unless prices are ddfinecontractual arrangements. For the y
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and 2010, thagerdomestic combined natural gas, oil and NGLwadent price, including deductions
for gathering, processing and transportation, usdlde estimates was $3.16, $3.89 and $3.48 pee Me$§pectively. The decrease in the
equivalent price from 2011 reflects the decreasdksa 12-month average commodity prices partidiiged by the growth of oil as a percent of
total reserves. The increase in the equivalenepn@010 reflects the impact of oil and NGLs griewt our reserves. Future cash inflows for
the year ended December 31, 2010 reflects dedscliwrthe estimates for gathering, processing eartsportation. For the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2012, the estimates for gagfigrocessing and transportation are includgoraauction costs. Future income tax
expenses have been computed considering applitadalble cash flows and appropriate statutory teesral he discount rate of 10 percent is a
prescribed by authoritative guidance. Continuatibgear-end economic conditions also is assumed.cBiculation is based on estimates of
proved reserves, which are revised over time asdesa becomes available. Probable or possibleweseanhich may become proved in the
future, are not considered. The calculation algoiires assumptions as to the timing of future peatida of proved reserves, and the timing anc
amount of future development and production costs.

Numerous uncertainties are inherent in estimatwignes and the value of proved reserves and irgtiog future production rates and
timing of development expenditures. Such resertimages are subject to change as additional infoiomdecomes available. The reserves
actually recovered and the timing of production rbaysubstantially different from the reserve estésa
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WPX Energy, Inc.

Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures—(Continued)
(Unaudited)

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Casklows

International

As of December 31, 201 Domestic a
(Millions)
Future cash inflow $25,49¢ $ 897
Less:
Future production cos 11,73¢ 34C
Future development cos 3,48¢ 12¢€
Future income tax provisiot 3,19¢ 10C
Future net cash flon 7,08( 331
Less 10 percent annual discount for estimated grofrcash flows 3,489) (132)
Standardized measure of discounted future netiofisivs $ 3,597 $ 19¢
International
As of December 31, 201 Domestic @
Future cash inflows $18,43¢ $ 96¢
Less:
Future production cos 9,83¢ 38t
Future development cos 3,217 13€
Future income tax provisiot 1,05¢ 97
Future net cash flon 4,32 35C
Less 10 percent annual discount for estimated grofrcash flows (2,379 (13¢€)
Standardized measure of discounted future netiofisivs $ 1,94¢ $ 214

(&) Amounts attributable to a consolidated subsididqycp) in which there is a 31 percent noncontroliimigrest.
(b) Represents Ap(s 40.8% interest in Petrolera Entre Lomas !

140

Entity's share
of international

equity method

investee(b)
$ 891

33¢€
117
117
321

(124
$ 197

Entity's share
of international

equity method
investee(b)
$ 89z

35€
11¢
104
317
(119
$ 19¢
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WPX Energy, Inc.

Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures—(Continued)
(Unaudited)

Sources of Change in Standardized Measure of Discoted Future Net Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 201 Domestic
Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh beginning of perio $1,71:
Changes during the ye:
Sales of oil and gas produced, net of operatintg: (1,44¢
Net change in prices and production ct 1,921
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery,deimated future
COSts 724
Development costs incurred during y 633
Changes in estimated future development ¢ (292
Purchase of reserves in place, less estimatecefatists 43¢
Revisions of previous quantity estima (332
Accretion of discoun 22C
Net change in income tax (75¢)
Other (8)
Net change 1,101
Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh end of perioc $ 2,814
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 Domestic
Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh beginning of perio $2,81¢
Changes during the ye:
Sales of oil and gas produced, net of operatints: (1,199
Net change in prices and production ct 49t
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery,deimated future
COSts 1,661
Development costs incurred during y 59z
Changes in estimated future development ¢ (750
Purchase of reserves in place, less estimatecefatists 15
Sale of reserves in place, loss estimated futuses (20
Revisions of previous quantity estima (20¢
Accretion of discoun 39t
Net change in income tax (22€)
Other 17
Net change 7717
Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh end of perioc $ 3,591

141

International

a
(Millions)

$ 17t

(5¢)
34

2€

(12

2

26

22

(13
NE)
23

$ 10

International
a
(Millions)
$ 19¢

(64)
26

Entity's share
of international

equity method

investee(b)
$ 12¢

(9
43

28
(19

63
17
(20
W
-
$ 18

Entity's share

of international

equity method

investee(b)
$ 18¢€

(61)
29

28
(30
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WPX Energy, Inc.

Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures—(Concluded)

(Unaudited)

For the Year Ended December 31, 201

Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh beginning of perio
Changes during the ye:

Sales of oil and gas produced, net of operatints:

Net change in prices and production ct

Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery,defimated future
costs

Development costs incurred during y

Changes in estimated future development ¢

Purchase of reserves in place, less estimatecefatists

Sale of reserves in place, loss estimated futusés

Revisions of previous quantity estima

Accretion of discoun

Net change in income tax

Other

Net change

Standardized measure of discounted future netft@sh end of perioc

Domestic

$ 3,591

(775)
(3,601

1,15¢
338
50

International

$

$

a
(Millions)

19¢

(78)
46

38
(19

e
2€

5

15

214

(&8 Amounts attributable to a consolidated subsidi&gcp) in which there is a 31 percent noncontroliimgrest.

(b)

Represents Ap(s 40.8% interest in Petrolera Entre Lomas !
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Entity's share
of international

equity method

investee(b)

$

197

(78)
49

3
@)

(2€)
27
12
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WPX Energy, Inc.

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

2012:

Allowance for doubtful accounts—accounts and notes

receivable(a
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

2011:

Allowance for doubtful accounts—accounts and note:

receivable(a
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

2010:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Allowance for doubtful accounts—accounts and notes

receivable(a
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance
Price-risk management credit reser—liabilities(b)

Deducted from related asse
Deducted from related liabilitie
Included in revenue:

Deferred tax asset retained by Williar

Beginning

Balance

$ 13

16

22

19

3)

143

Charged
(Credited)
to Costs ant
Expenses Other Deductions
(Millions)
$ — $— $ 2
3 — —
$ € $— $
— — (6)(d)
() — —
3(c) — —

Ending
Balance
$ 11
19
$ 13
16
16
22
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a—15(e) and 15de)bf the Securities Exchange Act) (“Disclosuanols”) will prevent all errors and
all fraud. A control system, no matter how well ceived and operated, can provide only reasonabteabsolute, assurance that the objective:
of the control system are met. Further, the desfgmcontrol system must reflect the fact that¢hame resource constraints, and the benefits o
controls must be considered relative to their cadsause of the inherent limitations in all cohtiystems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control isanesinstances of fraud, if any, within the Comphaye been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgmentsigtision-making can be faulty, and that breakdosamsoccur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumventgdthe individual acts of some persons, by callugif two or more people, or by
management override of the control. The desigmgfsystem of controls also is based in part upetateassumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurancerthatesign will succeed in achieving its stated gamder all potential future conditions.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-affeccontrol system, misstatements due to errdraard may occur and not be detected. We
monitor our Disclosure Controls and make modifimasi as necessary; our intent in this regard isttieaDisclosure Controls will be modified
as systems change and conditions warrant.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the desigth @peration of our Disclosure Controls was perfairae of the end of the period
covered by this report. This evaluation was perfgrander the supervision and with the participatibaur management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Bdagoon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer concluded
that these Disclosure Controls are effective aasonable assurance level.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting
See report set forth in Item 8, “Financial Statetremd Supplementary Data.”

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
See report set forth in Item 8, “Financial Statetremd Supplementary Data.”

Fourth Quarter 2012 Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes during the fourth quarg012 that have materially affected, or aresogably likely to materially affect o
internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information called for by this Item 10 is inporated by reference to our definitive proxy staatrfor our 2013 Annual meeting of
Stockholders, or our 2013 Proxy Statement, antieghéo be filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ission within 120 days of December
31, 2012, under the headings “Proposal 1— Eledaifddirectors,” “Corporate Governance,” and “Sectiid{a) Beneficial Ownership and
Reporting Compliance.”

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information called for by this Item 11 is inporated by reference to our 2013 Proxy Statemeitipated to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 déy®ecember 31, 2012, under the headings “Exec@m@pensation” and
“Compensation Interlocks and Insider Participation.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners alanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information called for by this Item 12 is inporated by reference to our 2013 Proxy Statemeitipated to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 @éy®ecember 31, 2012, under the headings “SecOxitpership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Piformation.”

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independenct

The information called for by this Item 13 is inporated by reference to our 2013 Proxy Statemeitipated to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 déy®ecember 31, 2012, under the headings “Corpd@ateernance” and “Certain
Relationships and Transactions.”

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information called for by this Item 14 is inporated by reference to our 2013 Proxy Statemeitipated to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 déy3ecember 31, 2012, under the heading “IndepdariRegistered Public Accounting
Firm.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduli

(d) 1 and 2.
Page
Covered by report of Independent Registered Pétdaounting Firm;
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@1204r1 81
Consolidated statements of operations for eachigehe thre-year period ended December 31, 21 82
Consolidated statements of comprehensive inconss)(for each year in the th-year period ended December 31, 2 83
Consolidated statements of changes in equity foln gaar in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2 84
Consolidated statements of cash flows for each ipetie thre-year period ended December 31, 2! 85
Notes to consolidated financial stateme 86
Schedule for each year in the tr-year period ended December 31, 2(
Il — Valuation and qualifying accoun 14z
All other schedules have been omitted since theired, information is not present or is not preser@mounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the infoomatquired is included in the financial statensesntd notes theret
Not covered by report of independent audit
Quarterly financial data (unaudite 13C
Supplemental oil and gas disclosures (unaud 131

(a) 3 and (b). The exhibits listed below are figedpart of this annual report.
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Exhibit
No

21

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6#

10.7

10.8

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Contribution Agreement, dated as of October 26020¥% and among Williams Production RMT Company(l,. Williams Energ
Services, LLC, Williams Partners GP LLC, WilliamarBhers L.P., Williams Partners Operating LLC anilis¥ns Field Services
Group, LLC (incorporated herein by reference toiBii2.1 to WPX Energy, Inc.’s registration staterhen Form SE/A (File No.
333-173808) filed with the SEC on July 19, 20:

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of WPX Energpe. (incorporated herein by reference to Exh#bitto WPX Energy, Inc.’s
Current report on Form-K (File No. 00-35322) filed with the SEC on January 6, 20

Bylaws of WPX Energy, Inc. (incorporated hereinrbference to Exhibit 3.2 to WPX Energy, Inc.’s Gumtrreport on Form 8-K
(File No. 00:-35322) filed with the SEC on January 6, 20

Indenture, dated as of November 14, 2011, betweBX Bhergy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Sr€ompany, N.A.,
as trustee (incorporated herein by reference tobibxéh 1 to The Williams Companies, Inc.’s Curreeport on Form 8-K (File No.
001-04174) filed with the SEC on November 15, 20

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated d3amiember 30, 2011, between The Williams Compairesand WPX Energy,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBitllto WPX Energy, Inc.’s Annual Report on FormK.@r the year ended
December 31, 201:

Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of Decemhe2®, between The Williams Companies, Inc. andX\VEERergy, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.24PX Energy, Inc.’s Current report on Form 8-KI¢Rlo. 001-35322) filed
with the SEC on January 6, 20!

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of December 30, 2itween The Williams Companies, Inc. and WPXrgnednc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.3¥PX Energy, Inc.’s Current report on Form 8-KI¢Rlo. 001-35322) filed
with the SEC on January 6, 201

Transition Services Agreement, dated as of Dece®®e2011, between The Williams Companies, Inc.\AfRX Energy, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.4MPX Energy, Inc.’s Current report on Form 8-KI¢Rilo. 001-35322) filed
with the SEC on January 6, 201

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011, byaamshg WPX Energy, Inc., the lenders named theagid,Citibank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and Swingline Lender (incorgtad herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Thelidfils Companies, Inc.’s
Current report on Form-K (File No. 00-04174) filed with the SEC on June 9, 20

Amended and Restated Gas Gathering, Processingdixdimg and Treating Agreement by and among Wiisa-ield Services
Company, LLC, Williams Production RMT Company, LLWijlliams Production Ryan Gulch LLC and WPX Eneiggrketing,
LLC, effective as of August 1, 2011 (incorporatentdin by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to WPX Energy,. s registration statement
on Form 1/A (File No. 33:-173808) filed with the SEC on July 19, 20:

Form of Change in Control Agreement between WPXrgndnc. and CEO (incorporated herein by referendexhibit 10.1 to
WPX Energy, Incs Current report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-35322) filed with the SEC on July 23, 2012)

Form of Change in Control Agreement between WPXrggndnc. and Tier One Executives (incorporatecehreby reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to WPX Energy, In's current report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-35322) filed with the SEC on July 23, 2012)

# Certain portions have been omitted pursuant tOraer Granting Confidential Treatment issued l&y$iEC on December 5, 2011. Omitted
information has been filed separately with the S
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Exhibit
No

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13*
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
12.1*
21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
24.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

99.1*
101.INS**
101.SCH**
101.CAL**
101.DEF**
101.LAB**
101.PRE*

Description

First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, datedfaséovember 1, 2011, by and among WPX Energy, lthe lenders
named therein, and Citibank, N.A., as Administrathgent and Swingline Lender (incorporated hergimdference to
Exhibit 10.2 to The Williams Companies, Inc.’s Gant report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-04174) filedtwthe SEC on
November 1, 2011

WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan (incorporatedein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to WPX Energy,.’s registration
statement on Form-8 (File No. 33-178388) filed with the SEC on December 8, 2011

WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Employee Stock Purchase @taorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4MBX Energy,
Inc.’s registration statement on For1-8 (File No. 33-178388) filed with the SEC on December 8, 2011

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement between WPX gndnc. and Non-Employee Directors (incorporatedein by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to WPX Energy, 's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2011)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between \\EP¥¢rgy, Inc. and Executive Officers |

Form of Performan«-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between WRr@y, Inc. and Executive Officers (
Form of Stock Option Agreement between WPX Enehgy., and Executive Officers (.

WPX Energy Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Pédfgctive January 1, 2013 (

WPX Energy Board of Directors Nonqualified Deferi@dmpensation Plan, effective January 1, 201.
Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings taeHiCharge

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing, Ernst & Young LLF

Consent of Independent Petroleum Engineers ando@istd, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, |
Powers of Attorne!

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursi@o Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer anatt@hief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 90¢éhe Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Report of Independent Petroleum Engineers and @etdo Netherland, Sewell & Associates, |
XBRL Instance Documert

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbg

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.
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* Filed herewitr
**  Furnished herewit
(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: February 28, 2013

WPX ENERGY, Inc.

(Registrant
By:

J. Kevin Vann

J. Kevin Vann
Controller

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1

registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signature
/s/ Ralph A. Hill

/s/ Rodney J. Sailor

/sl J. Kevin Vann

/sl Kimberly S. Bowers*

/sl John A. Carrig*

/s/ William R. Granberry*

/s/ Don J. Gunther*

/s/ Robert K. Herdman*

/sl Kelt Kindick*

/s/ Henry E. Lentz*

/sl George A. Lorch*

/s/ William G. Lowrie*

*

*By:

/s/ David F. Work*

/sl Stephen E. Brilz

Attorney-in-Fact

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director
(Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer

Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chairman of the Board

Director

Date

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013
February 28, 2013

February 28, 201



Exhibit 10.13

[Grant Date]

TO: [Participant Name]
FROM: Ralph A. Hill
SUBJECT: 2013 Restricted Stock Unit Awa

You have been selected to receive a restricted stoit award. This award, which is subject to atijuent under the 2013 Restricted Stock Uni
Agreement (the “Agreement”), is granted to youdnagnition of your role as a key employee whospaesibilities and performance are
critical to the attainment of long-term goals. Thigard and similar awards are made on a selectisis land are, therefore, to be kept
confidential. It is granted and subject to the teand conditions of the WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 ItisenPlan, as amended and restated from
time to time, and the Agreement.

Subject to all of the terms of the Agreement, ydllilvecome entitled to payment of this award if yeme an active employee of the Company
three years after the date on which this awardadenm

If you have any questions about this award, you omatact a dedicated Fidelity Stock Plan Represigntat -80(-544-9354.



WPX ENERGY, INC.
2013 RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

THIS RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), which contains the terms andditions for the Restricted
Stock Units (“Restricted Stock Units” or “RSUs"feered to in the 2013 Restricted Stock Unit Awasetter delivered in hard copy or
electronically to Participant (2013 Award Letterf$ by and betweeW/PX ENERGY, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Companghd the
individual identified on the last page hereof (tRarticipant”).

1. Grant of RSUs Subject to the terms and conditions of the WPXrgw, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan, as amended andtessfrom time to time
(the “Plan”), this Agreement and the 2013 Awardtéetthe Company hereby grants an award (the “Alyaodthe Participant ofNumber of
Shares Granted]RSUs effectivdGrant Date] (the “Effective Date”). The Award gives the Parpiant the opportunity to earn the right to
receive the number of shares of the Common Stotheo€ompany equal to the number of RSUs showhemtior sentence, subject to
adjustment under the terms of this Agreement. Thhaees are referred to in this Agreement as thar&s."Until the Participant both becom
vested in the Shares under the terms of Paragraph 4 paid such Shares under the terms of Pg@tadiahe Participant shall have no rights
as a stockholder of the Company with respect tctheres.

2. Incorporation of Plan and Acceptance of Documeiihe Plan is incorporated by reference and alitaliged terms used herein which are
not defined in this Agreement or in the attacheg@éix A shall have the respective meanings s#t forthe Plan. The Participant
acknowledges that he or she has received a copy bgs online access to, the Plan and hereby atizatly accepts the RSUs subject to all
terms and provisions of the Plan and this AgreenTeém Participant hereby further agrees that r&herhas received a copy of, or has online
access to, the prospectus and hereby acknowleigyes lier automatic acceptance and receipt of puz$pectus electronically.

3. Committee Decisions and Interpretatioi$ie Participant hereby agrees to accept as lgndonclusive and final all actions, decisions
and/or interpretations of the Committee, its defegaor agents, upon any questions or other mattisiang under the Plan or this Agreement.

4. Vesting; Legally Binding Right.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agment, a Participant shall not be entitled toayment of Shares under this
Agreement unless and until such Participant obtailegally binding right to such Shares and satiséipplicable vesting conditions for
such payment.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Subparagraftis44(h) below, the Participant shall vest inSllares on the date that is three years
after the Effective Date (not including the EffeetiDate) (the “Maturity Date”), but only if the Riaipant remains an active employee of
the Company or any of its Affiliates through thethtéty Date. For example,

2



if the Effective Date of Participant’'s award undleis Agreement i§Grant Date] , the Maturity Date will béExpiration Date] .

(c) If a Participant dies prior to the Maturity Bawhile an active employee of the Company or anysokffiliates, the Participant shall
vest in all Shares at the time of such death.

(d) If a Participant becomes Disabled prior to Megturity Date while an active employee of the Compar any of its Affiliates, the
Participant shall vest in all Shares at the tineeRarticipant becomes Disabled.

(e) (i) If the Participant Separates from Sesvicior to the Maturity Date (such date the “SepanaDate”) because such Participant
qualifies for Retirement, at the time of such Riptint’'s ceasing being an active employee the édaatit shall vest in a pro rata number
of the Shares as determined in accordance wittStltiparagraph 4(e).

(ii) The pro rata number referred to above shallétermined by multiplying the number of Sharegextttto the Award by a
fraction, the numerator of which is the numberwf &nd partial months in the period that begiresmionth following the month that
contains the Effective Date and ends on (and ireduthe date of the Participant’s ceasing beingcsine employee of the Company and
its Affiliates, and the denominator of which is tieéal number of full and partial months in theipdrthat begins the month following the
month that contains the Effective Date and end&@ad includes) the Maturity Date.

(iii) For purposes of this Subparagraph 4(e), di€lpant “qualifies for Retirementdnly if such Participant experiences a Separ:
from Service prior to 2014 and after attaining &§eand completing at least three years of servitte the Company or any of its
Affiliates. Any such participant that would expetae a Separation from Service in 2014 or thereaftdrhas attained age 55 and
completed at least five years of continuous serwiitke the Company or any of its Affiliates will m®nsidered to have met the
qualification for Retirement.

(f) If the Participant experiences a Separatiomfi@ervice prior to the Maturity Date within two ysdollowing a Change in Control,
either voluntarily for Good Reason or involuntaritther than due to Cause), the Participant stesitl in all of the Shares upon such
Separation from Service.

(g) If the Participant experiences an involuntagp&ation from Service prior to the Maturity Datelahe Participant either receives
benefits under a severance pay plan or programtaiaéd by the Company or receives benefits undeparation agreement with the
Company, the Participant shall vest in all Shaganusuch Separation from Service.

(h) If the Participant experiences an involuntaep&ation from Service prior to the Maturity Dateedo a sale of a business or the
outsourcing of any portion of a business, the Bigaint shall vest in all Shares upon such Separétion Service, but only if the
Company or any of its Affiliates failed to make @ififer of comparable employment, as defined by &sm@we pay plan or program
maintained by the Company, to the Participant.



For purposes of this Subparagraph 4(h), a Ternoinatf Affiliation shall constitute an involuntaryefaration from Service.

Payment of Share.

(a) The payment date for all Shares in which aiépaint becomes vested pursuant to Subparagraphed4f(e) above shall be the 30th
day following the Maturity Date.

(b) The payment date for all Shares in which ai€ipent becomes vested pursuant to Subparagraplad¢ve shall be the 60th day
following such death.

(c) The payment date for all shares in which ai€ipent becomes vested pursuant to Subparagraptad¢ade shall be the 30th day after
the Participant becomes Disabled.

(d) The payment date for all Shares in which thei&pant becomes vested pursuant to Subparageifh<(g) and 4(h) above shall be
the 30th day following such Participant's Separafrom Service, provided that if the Participantsvea'key employee” within the
meaning of Section 409A(a)(B)(i) of the InternaM@rue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) imntedgligrior to his or her
Separation from Service, and such Participant destsuch Shares under Subparagraph 4(e), (4§6).ct 4(h) above, payment shall not
be made sooner than six months following the daté articipant experienced a Separation from Ser¥or purposes of this
Subparagraph 5(d), “key employee” means an empldgsignated on an annual basis by the Company@sa&mber 31 (the “Key
Employee Designation Date”) as an employee medtiagequirements of Section 416(i) of the Codaaziniyj the definition of
compensation under Treasury Regulation § 1.415@):2). A Participant designated as a “key empldwball be a “key employee” for
the entire 12 month period beginning on April Idaling the Key Employee Designation Date.

(e) Upon conversion of RSUs into Shares underAigement, such RSUs shall be cancelled. Sharebdlcame payable under this
Agreement will be paid by the Company by the deiite the Participant, or the Participanbeneficiary or legal representative, of on
more certificates (or other indicia of ownershigpresenting shares of Common Stock equal in nutoltee number of Shares otherwise
payable under this Agreement less the number afeSHaaving a Fair Market Value, as of the dateatitietholding tax obligation arises,
equal to the minimum statutory withholding requients. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the exfmrmitted by Section 409A of the
Code and the guidance issued by the Internal RevBeuwice thereunder, if federal employment taxee®ine due when the Participant
becomes entitled to payment of Shares, the nunftfghares necessary to cover minimum statutory witlihg requirements may, in the
discretion of the Company, be used to satisfy saghirements upon such entitlement.

Other Provision..

(a) The Participant understands and agrees thatgratg under this Agreement shall not be used fdn the determination of, any other
payment or benefit under any continuing agreenat, policy, practice, or arrangement providingtfee making of any payment
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or the provision of any benefits to or for the Répant or the Participant’s beneficiaries or reyamratatives, including, without limitation,
any employment agreement, any change of contr@raece protection plan, or any employee benefit pladefined in Section 3(3) of
ERISA, including, but not limited to qualified amdn-qualified retirement plans.

(b) The Participant agrees and understands thgjeatuto the limit expressed in clause (iii) of flelowing sentence, upon payment of
Shares under this Agreement, stock certificatesttoer indicia of ownership) issued may be heldakteral for monies he/she owes to
the Company or any of its Affiliates, including mdt limited to personal loan(s), Company creditiadebt, relocation repayment
obligations, or benefits from any plan that progidier pre-paid educational assistance. In addittom Company may accelerate the time
or schedule of a payment of vested Shares, andthral from any payment of Shares to the Participader this Agreement, or to his or
her beneficiaries in the case of the Participas’ath, that number of Shares having a Fair Marlét&/at the date of such deduction to
the amount of such debt as satisfaction of any detl,providedthat (i) such debt is incurred in the ordinary ceuof the employment
relationship between the Company or any of itsliafiés and the Participant, (ii) the aggregate amob@iany such debt-related collateral
held or deduction made in any taxable year of tam@any with respect to the Participant does notea 5,000, and (iii) the deduction
of Shares is made at the same time and in the aemoant as the debt otherwise would have been diliedtected from the Participant.

(c) Except as provided in Subparagraphs 4(c) threl{h) above, in the event that the Participantegpces a Separation from Service
prior to the Participant's becoming vested in ther®s under this Agreement, RSUs subject to thieémgent and any right to Shares
issuable hereunder shall be forfeited.

(d) The Participant acknowledges that this Award similar awards are made on a selective basissndherefore, to be kept
confidential.

(e) RSUs, Shares, and the Participant’s intereRiSbls and Shares may not be sold, assigned, treatsfpledged, or otherwise disposed
of or encumbered at any time prior to both (i) Baaticipant’'s becoming vested in such Shares @nplayment of such Shares under this
Agreement.

(f) If the Participant at any time forfeits anyail of the RSUs pursuant to this Agreement, thdiépant agrees that all of the
Participant’s rights to and interest in such RShig ia Shares issuable hereunder shall terminate fgréeiture without payment of
consideration.

(g) The Committee shall determine whether an elieatoccurred resulting in the forfeiture of the®bain accordance with this
Agreement, and all determinations of the Commistes| be final and conclusive.

(h) With respect to the right to receive paymenthef Shares under this Agreement, nothing contaieeein shall give the Participant ¢
rights that are greater than those of a



general creditor of the Company.

(i) The obligations of the Company under this Agneat are unfunded and unsecured. Each Participafitteve the status of a general
creditor of the Company with respect to amounts dwny, under this Agreement.

() The parties to this Agreement intend that thigeement meet the applicable requirements of Gedd9A of the Code and recognize
that it may be necessary to modify this Agreemeani@ the Plan to reflect guidance under Sectid®6f the Code issued by the
Internal Revenue Service. Participant agrees tiea€Committee shall have sole discretion in detenmi) whether any such
modification is desirable or appropriate and (g terms of any such modification.

(k) The Participant hereby automatically becompardy to this Agreement whether or not he or shoepis the Award electronically or
writing in accordance with procedures of the Contemit its delegates or agents.

() Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shalkenfiere with or limit in any way the right of the @pany or an Affiliate to terminate the
Participants employment or service at any time, nor confemupe Participant the right to continue in the esgpf the Company and/
Affiliate.

(m) The Participant hereby acknowledges that ngthirthis Agreement shall be construed as requitiegCommittee to allow a
domestic relations order with respect to this Award

7. Notices. All notices to the Company required hereundell &igain writing and delivered by hand or by maididressed to WPX Energy, In
One Williams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172, AtmmtiStock Administration Department. Notices shaitome effective upon their receipt
by the Company if delivered in the foregoing manierdirect the sale of any Shares issued undehieement, the Participant shall contact
the Plan Administrator.

8. Tax Consultation The Participant understands he or she will inayrconsequences as a result of acquisition opdigpn of the Shares.
The Participant agrees to consult with any tax oltasts deemed advisable in connection with theia@gpn of the Shares and acknowledges
that he or she is not relying, and will not relp, the Company for any tax advice.

WPX ENERGY, INC.

By:
Ralph A. Hill
Chief Executive Office

Participant{Participant Name]

SSN:

[Participant ID]



APPENDIX A
DEFINITIONS

“ Affiliate " means all persons with whom the Company woulddiesidered a single employer under Section 414(t)jeoCode and all
persons with whom such person would be considesidgée employer under Section 414(c) of the Code.

“ Disabled” means a Participant qualifies for long-term digbbenefits under the Company’s long-term didiéoplan, or if the
Company does not sponsor such a disability planPtrticipant qualifies for Social Security Disapilnsurance under Title 1l of the Social
Security Act. Notwithstanding the forgoing, all dehinations of whether a Participant is Disablealldie made in accordance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, and the guidance thereunder.

“ Separation from Servic& means a Participant’s termination or deemed teation from employment with the Company and its
Affiliates. For purposes of determining whetherep&ration from Service has occurred, the employmaationship is treated as continuing
intact while the Participant is on military leagick leave, or other bona fide leave of absenteeifperiod of such leave does not exceed six
months, or if longer, so long as the Participatdins a right to reemployment with his or her emplounder an applicable statute or by
contract. For this purpose, a leave of absencditaties a bona fide leave of absence only if thegereasonable expectation that the Partici
will return to perform services for his or her eayar. If the period of leave exceeds six monthstaedParticipant does not retain a right to
reemployment under an applicable statute or byraotjtthe employment relationship will be deemetktminate on the first date immediately
following such six month period.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a leave of abseiscdue to any medically determinable physicahental impairment that can be
expected to last for a continuous period of moam thix months but less than 12 months, and suchifmpnt causes the Participant to be
unable to perform the duties of the Participangsifion of employment or any substantially simasition of employment, a period equal to
such Participant’s leave of absence will be sultstit for such six-month period, so long as thaibpes less than 12 months. If such an
absence exceeds 12 months, then the Participdriieniionsidered Disabled and Section 4(d) will gove

A Separation from Service occurs at the date aghih the facts and circumstances indicate eithat; &fter such date: (A) the
Participant and the Company reasonably anticiredarticipant will perform no further services foe Company and its Affiliates (whether
as an employee or an independent contractor) oth@@)the level of bona fide services the Partitipeill perform for the Company and its
Affiliates (whether as an employee or independentractor) will permanently decrease to no more tB@% of the average level of bona fide
services performed over the immediately precedwgn®nth period or, if the Participant has been fgliog services to the Company and its
Affiliates for less than 36 months, the full perioder which the Participant has rendered servighsther as an employee or independent
contractor. The determination of whether a Sepamdtiom Service has occurred shall be governedéytovisions of Treasury Regulation §
1.409A-1, as amended, taking into account the tibeéacts and circumstances with respect to tiellef bona fide services performed by
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the Participant after a certain date.



Exhibit 10.14

[Grant Date]

TO: [Participant Name]
FROM: Ralph A. Hill
SUBJECT: 2013 Performan«-Based Restricted Stock Unit Awa

You have been selected to receive a performancedlvastricted stock unit award to be paid if thenpany exceeds the Threshold goal for
Total Shareholder Return, as established by therditige, over the Performance Period. This awardghvis subject to adjustment under the
2013 Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agezertihe “Agreement”), is granted to you in recadigmi of your role as a key employee
whose responsibilities and performance are critwdihe attainment of long-term goals. This award similar awards are made on a selective
basis and are, therefore, to be kept confiderntia.granted and subject to the terms and contlitmf the WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Incentive
Plan, as amended and restated from time to tintktrEnAgreement.

Subject to all of the terms of the Agreement, ydllivecome entitled to payment of the award if yare an active employee of the Company o
[ ] of the third year following the year in which shaward is made, and performance measures arkeckfoir the three-year period
beginning January 1 of the year in which this awanthade to you. The termination provisions assediavith this award are included in the
Agreement.

If you have any questions about this award, you omatact a dedicated Fidelity Stock Plan Represigptat -80(-544-9354.



WPX ENERGY, INC.
2013 PERFORMANCEBASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

THIS 2013 PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), which contains the terms
and conditions for the Restricted Stock Units (“lReted Stock Units” or “RSUs”) referred to in tB813 Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Letter delivered in hard copy or electically to Participant (“2013 Award Letter”), is land betweelVPX ENERGY, INC., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and the imdlinal identified on the last page hereof (the “Rgrant”).

1. Grant of RSUs Subject to the terms and conditions of the WPXrgw, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan, as amended andtessfrom time to time
(the “Plan”), this Agreement, and the 2013 Awardtéie the Company hereby grants to the Participardward (the “Award) dNumber of
Shares Granted]RSUs effectivdGrant Date] (the “Effective Date”). The Award, which is subjeaotadjustment under the terms of this
Agreement, gives the Participant the opportunitgdam the right to receive the number of shardk@fCommon Stock of the Company equi
the number of RSUs shown in the prior sentendeeifftarget goal, as established by the Committessheved by the Company over the
Performance Period. These shares, together witlodugy shares that are payable under this Agreeraenteferred to in the Agreement as
“Shares.” Until the Participant both becomes vegtatie Shares under the terms of Paragraph 5sapaid such Shares under the terms of
Paragraph 6, the Participant shall have no rights stockholder of the Company with respect tcsthares.

2. Incorporation of Plan and Acceptance of Documeiihe Plan is incorporated by reference and alitakiged terms used herein which are
not defined in this Agreement or in the attacheg@éix A shall have the meaning set forth in thenPThe Participant acknowledges that he
or she has received a copy of, or has online adoefise Plan, and hereby automatically acceptfRBs subject to all the terms and provis
of the Plan and this Agreement. The Participantiefurther agrees that he or she has receivegyafpor has online access to, the
prospectus and hereby acknowledges his or her atitoacceptance and receipt of such prospectus@bézally.

3. Committee Decisions and Interpretations; Consaidiscretion The Participant hereby agrees to accept as lgndonclusive, and final all
actions, decisions, and/or interpretations of toen@ittee, its delegates, or agents, upon any aquesstir other matters arising under the Plan ¢
this Agreement.

4, Performance Measures; Number of Shares Payalie tédrticipan.

(a) Performance measures established by the Coeensittall be based on targeted levels of both afesahd relative Total Shareholder
Return. The Committee establishes (i) “Threshdldidrget,” and “Stretch” goals for Total Sharehol@eturn (both for absolute and
relative Total Shareholder Return) during the Remrince Period and (ii) the designated numbers afeShthat may be received by a
Participant based upon the achievement of eachgaalhduring the Performance Period, all as maltg €élescribed in Subparagraphs 4
(b) through 4(c) below. The number of Shares theay bie receive:




by the Participant if the Target goal is reachegljsal to the number of RSUs set forth in Paragfiapbove.

(b) The RSUs awarded to Participant and subjetitisoAgreement as reflected in Paragraph 1 abguesents Participant’s opportunity
to earn the right to payment of an equal numb&tafres (“Target Number of Shares”) upon (i) ceudifion by the Committee that 100%
of the Target goal for Total Shareholder Returrtifier Performance Period has been met and (iifaetiisn of all the other conditions set
forth in Paragraph 5 below.

(c) Subject to the Committee’s discretion as sghfm Subparagraph 4(d) below and to satisfaabioall other conditions set forth in
Paragraph 5 below, the actual number of Sharegédmnand payable to Participant upon certificatibotal Shareholder Return rest
and satisfaction of all other conditions set farthParagraph 5 below will be determined on a ceontin ranging from 0% (at the
Threshold goal) to 200% (at the Stretch goal) ef Target Number of Shares depending on the levEbtl Shareholder Return certified
by the Committee at the end of the PerformanceoBeri

(d) Notwithstanding (i) any other provision of tigreement or the Plan or (ii) certification by tiemmittee that targets for Total
Shareholder Return above the Threshold goal haee &ehieved during the Performance Period, the Gtieermay in its sole and
absolute discretion reduce, but not below zerotf@ number of Shares payable to the Participasgdan such factors as it deems
appropriate, including but not limited to the Compa performance. Accordingly, any reference irstAgreement to Shares that

(i) become payable, (ii) may be received by a Bigdit, or (iii) are earned by a Participant, ang similar reference, shall be understt
to mean the number of Shares that are receiveadbpasyor earned after any such reduction is made.

Vesting; Legally Binding Right.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agment, a Participant shall not be entitled toayment of Shares under this
Agreement unless and until such Participant obtailegally binding right to such Shares and satiséipplicable vesting conditions for
such payment.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Subparagraptis-55(f) below and subject to the provisions abaragraph 4(d) above, the
Participant shall vest in Shares under this Agregrogly if and at the time that both of the follogi conditions are fully satisfied:

(i) The Participant remains an active employeéhef@ompany or any of its Affiliates on | ] of the third year following
the year that contains the Effective Date (the ‘IMi&y Date”); and

(i) The Committee certifies that the Company has firotal Shareholder Return targets above the Tibtégoal as defined by the
Committee for the thre-year performance period beginning [January 1, 2Qth&]* Performanct




Period”). Certification, if any, by the Committear the Performance Period shall be made by the fityafDate or as soon thereafter
as is administratively practicable.

(c) If a Participant dies, becomes Disabled, oflifiea for Retirement prior to the Maturity Date iéhan active employee of the Comp:
or any of its Affiliates, at but not prior to theadWirity Date, and only to the extent and at thestthrat the Committee certifies that the
performance measures for the Performance Periosbtisfied under Subparagraph 5(b)(ii) above, unah certification, the Participant
shall vest in that number of Shares the Participaght otherwise have received for the Performd™eeod in accordance with Paragrapt
4 above prorated to reflect that portion of thef@®emance Period prior to such Participant’s ceabieigg an active employee of the
Company and its Affiliates. The pro rata numbeSbéres in which the Participant may become vestedéh case shall equal that
number determined by multiplying (i) the numbeiStfares the Participant might otherwise have reddivethe Performance Period in
accordance with Paragraph 4 above tifigs fraction, the numerator of which is the nusnbf full and partial months in the period that
begins the month following the month that contafresEffective Date and ends on (and includes) #te df the Participant ceases being
an active employee of the Company and its Affikagnd the denominator of which is the total nundfdull and partial months in the
period that begins the month following the montht ttontains the Effective Date and ends on (anddes) the Maturity Date.

(d) (i) If the Participant Separates from Seevicior to the Maturity Date (such date, the “Safian Date”) because such participant
qualifies for Retirement, then on the Maturity DHte Participant shall vest in a pro rata numbehefShares as determined in
accordance with this Paragraph 5.

(ii) A Participant “qualifies for Retirement” onij such Participant experiences a Separation fremi€e prior to 2014 and after
attaining age 55 and completing at least threesyeBservice with the Company or any of its Affiéa. Any such participant that would
experience a Separation from Service in 2014 oetfer and has attained age 55 and completedsitflee years of continuous service
with the Company or any of its Affiliates will b@esidered to have met the qualification for Retieam

(e) If a Participant experiences a Separation f&@rvice prior to the Maturity Date within two yedoowing a Change in Control
either voluntarily for Good Reason or involuntaribther than due to Cause), the Participant skesll in that number of Shares equal to
the number of Shares that might otherwise be reddby the Participant upon achievement of the Taygal.

(f) If the Participant experiences an involuntagp&ration from Service prior to the Maturity Dateldhe Participant either receives
benefits under a severance pay plan or programtaiaéd by the Company or receives benefits undeparation agreement with the
Company, at but not prior to the Maturity Date amdly to the extent the Committee certifies thatpglbeformance measures for the
Performance Period a




satisfied under Subparagraph 5(b)(ii) above, th&idi@ant shall, on the date of such certificatibecome vested in that number of Share
the Participant might otherwise have receivedtierRPerformance Period in accordance with Paragtaiiove prorated to reflect that
portion of the Performance Period prior to the iegnt’'s ceasing being an active employee of tbem@any and its Affiliates. The pro
rata number of Shares which may be payable todizatit on but not prior to the Maturity Date in Bugase shall equal that number
determined by multiplying (i) the number of Shattess Participant might otherwise have receivedtierPerformance Period in
accordance with Paragraph 4 above tifigs fraction, the numerator of which is the nuenbf full and partial months in the period that
begins the month following the month that incluties Effective Date and ends on (and includes) #te the Participant ceases being an
active employee of the Company and its Affiliat@sd the denominator of which is the number of émlil partial months in the period t
begins the month following the month that contafresEffective Date and ends on (and includes) théukity Date.

(9) If (i) the Participant experiences an involugit&eparation from Service prior to the Maturityt®due to a sale of a business or the
outsourcing of any portion of a business, andffi§ Company or any of its Affiliates fails to made offer of comparable employment, as
defined a severance plan or program maintainetid¥bmpany, to the Participant, then at the timtetarthe extent the Committee
certifies that the performance measures for thioReance Period are satisfied under Subparagrapfiib@bove, upon such
certification, the Participant shall become vestetthat number of Shares the Participant might mtfse have received for the
Performance Period in accordance with Paragrafiiodeaprorated to reflect that portion of the Perfance Period prior to the
Participant’s ceasing being an active employe@®fQompany and its Affiliates. The pro rata nundfe8hares in which the Participant
may become vested on, but not prior to, the Matubate in such case shall equal that number ofeShdetermined by multiplying (i) the
number of Shares the Participant might otherwise maceived for the Performance Period in accorelavith Paragraph 4 above times
(i) a fraction, the numerator of which is the nweniof full and partial months in the period thagims the month following the month that
contains the Effective Date and ends on (and ireduthe date the Participant ceases being an atipboyee of the Company and its
Affiliates, and the denominator of which is thealatumber of full and partial months in the pertbdt begins the month following the
month that contains the Effective Date and end&@ad includes) the Maturity Date.

For purposes of this Subparagraph 5(g), a Ternunatf Affiliation shall constitute an involuntaryeBaration from Service.

Payment of Share.

(&) (i) The payment date for all Shares in whidbaaticipant becomes vested pursuant to Subparagtphor 5(f) above shall be the
30t day after such Participant’'s Separation fronviSerprovidedthat if the Participant was a “key employee” witliire meaning
of Section 409A(a)(B)(i) of the Code immediatelyoprto his or her Separation from Service, paynstal not be made soor



than six months following the date of such Separafiom Service

(i) For purposes of this Subparagraph 6(a), “keyyee’means an employee designated on an annual bagie Bompany as
December 31 (the “Key Employee Designation Date"aa employee meeting the requirements of Secfiéiyof Code utilizing
the definition of compensation under Treasury Ratjuh 8 1.415(c)-2(d)(2). A Participant designaasd “key employee” shall be
a “key employee” for the entire 12 month periodihagg on April 1 following the Key Employee Desgfion Date.

(b) The payment date for all Shares in which thei&pant becomes vested pursuant to Paragraplozeabther than Subparagraphs 5(b
or 5(f) (as to which the payment date is determineztcordance with Subparagraph 6(a) above), bhate calendar year containing the
Maturity Date.

(c) Upon conversion of RSUs into Shares underAlgieement, such RSUs shall be cancelled. Sharebdlcame payable under this
Agreement will be paid by the Company by the deiive the Participant, or the Participant’s beniefig or legal representative, one or
more certificates (or other indicia of ownershigpresenting Shares of Common Stock equal in nutoltee number of Shares otherwise
payable under this Agreement less the number afeSHaaving a Fair Market Value, as of the dateatitietholding tax obligation arises,
equal to the minimum statutory withholding requients. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the exfmrmitted by Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue of 1986, as amended (t@@de”) and the guidance thereunder, if federal emplayn&xes become due upon the
Participant’s becoming entitled to payment of Skatlee number of Shares necessary to cover ministatatory withholding
requirements may, in the Company’s discretion, smduto satisfy such requirements upon such engiém

Other Provision..

(a) The Participant understands and agrees thatgratg under this Agreement shall not be used fdn the determination of, any other
payment or benefit under any continuing agreenpat, policy, practice, or arrangement providingtfie making of any payment or the
provision of any benefits to or for the Participanthe Participant’s beneficiaries or represewmsti including, without limitation, any
employment agreement, any change of control segerprotection plan, or any employee benefit pladedsed in Section 3(3) of
ERISA, including, but not limited to qualified amén-qualified retirement plans.

(b) The Participant agrees and understands thgjecuo the limit expressed in clause (iii) of flolowing sentence, stock certificates (or
other indicia of ownership) issued may be helda@iteral for monies he/she owes to the Compargngrof its Affiliates, including but
not limited to personal loan(s), Company creditiadebt, relocation repayment obligations or besdftim any plan that provides for pre-
paid educational assistance. In addition, the Cowpaay accelerate the time or schedul



a payment of vested Shares, and/or deduct fronpapyent of Shares to the Participant under thiséwgrent, or to his or her
beneficiaries in the case of the Participant’s lletiiat number of Shares having a Fair Market Valube date of such deduction to the
amount of such debt as satisfaction of any such gdedvidedthat (i) such debt is incurred in the ordinary ssuof the employment
relationship between the Company or any of itsliafiés and the Participant, (i) the aggregate amhofiany such debt-related collateral
held or deduction made in any taxable year of tam@any with respect to the Participant does notea 5,000, and (iii) the deduction
of Shares is made at the same time and in the aarmoant as the debt otherwise would have been diieatected from the Participant.

(c) Except as provided in Subparagraphs 5(c) thrda(f above, in the event that the Participantg®byment with the Company or any
of its Affiliates terminates prior to the Maturiate, RSUs subject to this Agreement and any tm@hares issuable hereunder shall be
forfeited.

(d) The Participant acknowledges that this Award similar awards are made on a selective basigsndherefore, to be kept
confidential.

(e) RSUs, Shares, and Participant’s interest in &tdl Shares, may not be sold, assigned, trardf@leziged, or otherwise disposed of
or encumbered at any time prior to both (i) thetifigant’'s becoming vested in Shares and (ii) paynoé Shares under this Agreement.

(f) If the Participant at any time forfeits anyall of the RSUs pursuant to this Agreement, theiétpant agrees that all of the
Participant’s rights to and interest in such RShid ia Shares issuable thereunder shall terminaia tgrfeiture without payment of
consideration.

(g) The Committee shall determine whether an eliastoccurred resulting in the forfeiture of the R2lnd any Shares issuable
thereunder in accordance with this Agreement ahdieaérminations of the Committee shall be finad @onclusive.

(h) With respect to the right to receive paymenSbéres under this Agreement, nothing containegimshall give the Participant any
rights that are greater than those of a generditoreof the Company.

(i) The obligations of the Company under this Agneat are unfunded and unsecured. Each Participafitteve the status of a general
creditor of the Company with respect to amounts dwny, under this Agreement.

()) The parties to this Agreement intend that thigeement meet the requirements of Section 40%efCode and recognize that it may
be necessary to modify this Agreement and/or the Ri reflect guidance under Section 409A of thdeCissued by the Internal Revenue
Service. Participant agrees that the Committed bBhak sole discretion in determining (i) whethey auch modification is desirable or
appropriate



and (ii) the terms of any such modification.

(k) The Participant hereby automatically becompanrty to this Agreement whether or not he or sloepis the Award electronically or
writing in accordance with procedures of the Contemitits delegates or agents.

() Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shalkirfiere with or limit in any way the right of the @pany or an Affiliate to terminate the
Participants employment or service at any time, nor confemupe Participant the right to continue in the emgpdf the Company and/
Affiliate.

(m) The Participant hereby acknowledges that ngthirthis Agreement shall be construed as requitiegCommittee to allow a
domestic relations order with respect to this Award

8. Notices. All notices to the Company required hereundell &lgain writing and delivered by hand or by maididressed to WPX Energy, In
One Williams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172, AtemtiStock Administration Department. Notices shaitome effective upon their receipt
by the Company if delivered in the foregoing manierdirect the sale of any Shares issued undegieement, the Participant shall contact
the Plan Administrator.

9. Tax Consultation The Participant understands he or she will inayrconsequences as a result of acquisition opdigpn of the Shares.
The Participant agrees to consult with any tax oltasts deemed advisable in connection with theia@gpn of the Shares and acknowledge
that he or she is not relying, and will not relp,the Company for any tax advice.

WPX ENERGY, INC.

By:
Ralph A. Hill
Chief Executive Office

Participant{Participant Name]
SSN: [Participant ID]



APPENDIX A
DEFINITIONS

“ Affiliate " means all persons with whom the Company woulddiesidered a single employer under Section 414(t)jeoCode and all
persons with whom such person would be considesidgée employer under Section 414(c) of the Code.

“ Disabled” means a Participant qualifies for long-term digbbenefits under the Company’s long-term didiéoplan, or if the
Company does not sponsor such a disability planPtrticipant qualifies for Social Security Disapilnsurance under Title 1l of the Social
Security Act. Notwithstanding the forgoing, all dehinations of whether a Participant is Disablealldie made in accordance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, and the guidance thereunder.

“ Separation from Servic& means a Participant’s termination or deemed teation from employment with the Company and its
Affiliates. For purposes of determining whetherep&ration from Service has occurred, the employmaationship is treated as continuing
intact while the Participant is on military leagick leave, or other bona fide leave of absenteeifperiod of such leave does not exceed six
months, or if longer, so long as the Participatdins a right to reemployment with his or her emplounder an applicable statute or by
contract. For this purpose, a leave of absencditaties a bona fide leave of absence only if thegereasonable expectation that the Partici
will return to perform services for his or her eayar. If the period of leave exceeds six monthstaedParticipant does not retain a right to
reemployment under an applicable statute or byraotjtthe employment relationship will be deemetktminate on the first date immediately
following such six month period.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a leave of abseiscdue to any medically determinable physicahental impairment that can be
expected to last for a continuous period of moam thix months but less than 12 months, and suchifmpnt causes the Participant to be
unable to perform the duties of the Participangsifion of employment or any substantially simasition of employment, a period equal to
such Participant’s leave of absence will be sultstit for such six-month period, so long as thaibpes less than 12 months. If such an
absence exceeds 12 months, then the Participdriieniionsidered Disabled and Section 4(d) will gove

A Separation from Service occurs at the date aghih the facts and circumstances indicate eithat; &fter such date: (A) the
Participant and the Company reasonably anticiredarticipant will perform no further services foe Company and its Affiliates (whether
as an employee or an independent contractor) oth@@)the level of bona fide services the Partitipeill perform for the Company and its
Affiliates (whether as an employee or independentractor) will permanently decrease to no more tB@% of the average level of bona fide
services performed over the immediately precedwgn®nth period or, if the Participant has been fgliog services to the Company and its
Affiliates for less than 36 months, the full perioder which the Participant has rendered servighsther as an employee or independent
contractor. The determination of whether a Sepamdtiom Service has occurred shall be governedéytovisions of Treasury Regulation §
1.409A-1, as amended, taking into account the objectivts fand circumstances with respect to the levbbog fide services performed



the Participant after a certain date.



Exhibit 10.15

[Grant Date]

TO: [Participant Name]
FROM: Ralph A. Hill
SUBJECT: Nonqualified Stock Option Awar

You have been selected to receive a stock optiantgertain terms of which are set forth in thaated Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem
Your stock option award is subject to three-yeadgd vesting. You may view the vesting scheduléhigraward on-line.

This stock option award is granted to you in redtigm of your role as a key employee whose resglitgés and performance are critical to
attainment of long-term goals. This award and simalwards are made on a selective basis and arefdhe, to be kept confidential. It is
granted and subject to the terms and conditionkeo¥WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan, as ametiaen time to time, and the
Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeme!

If you have any questions about this award, you omtact a dedicated Fidelity Stock Plan Represigatat 1-800-544-9354.
1



WPX ENERGY, INC.
2011 INCENTIVE PLAN
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (“Optiogréement”) contains the terms of the Option (ageédfbelow) granted to you in this
Option Agreement. Certain other terms of the Op#iomdefined in the Plan (as defined below).

1. Stock OptionsSubject to the terms of the WPX Energy, Inc. 2Qicehtive Plan or any successor plan, includingsaupplements or
amendments and restatements to it (the “Plan”),haue been granted the right (“Option”) to purchiasm the CompanjNumber of Shares
Granted] shares of the Company’s Common Stock, par valuge$thare (the “Shares”) effectif@rant Date] (the “Effective Date”). Your
Option is exercisable in whole or in part at thereise price ofGrant Price] (the “Option Price”), the closing stock price [@rant Date] ,
and has an expiration date[BEfkpiration Date] . The Option will vest in one-third increments egelar for three years on the anniversary date
of the Effective Date beginning the year followithg Effective Date and is exercisable at such tiamesduring such periods as are set forth in
this Option Agreement and the Plan.

2. Incorporation of Plan and Acceptance of Documeiihe Plan applies as though it were included i @ption Agreement. Any
capitalized word has a special meaning, which @afobnd either in the Plan or in this Option Agresm You agree to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions and interpretasiof the Committee upon any questions arisingutite Plan or this Option Agreement. Y
acknowledge that you have received a copy of, ve lmaline access to, the Plan and hereby autorfiptésaept the Option subject to all the
terms and provisions of the Plan and this Optione&gient. You further acknowledge and agree thahywwe received a copy of, or that you
have online access to, the prospectus and youyhaoknowledge your automatic acceptance and reckfich prospectus electronically.

3. Exercise

a) Subject to section 3(b) below, and except as otiserprovided in this Option Agreement, you may eisgr vested Options, in whole ol
part, by delivering a notice of exercise to thenRlalesignated broker, showing the number of Shareshich the Option is being
exercised, and providing payment in full for thetiop Price. To give notice of exercise of an Opt&n receive instructions on payment
of the Option Price, contact the Plan Administratbyou have not signed and delivered this Op#gmeement prior to submitting a
notification of such election, submission of youwtification of election shall constitute your agment with the terms and conditions of
this Option Agreement. Notwithstanding the precgdiantence, the Company reserves the right toreegaur signature to this Option
Agreement prior to accepting a notification of &iec to exercise this Option in whole or in p:

b)  Your Options will be automatically exercisedta close of market on the final expiration datgadir option price is at leafkx]%]
[$[xx] per share below the closing stock price on sucé.



4. Payment You must pay the Option Price in full by any aranore of the following methods, subject to apatayf the Committee in
its sole discretion, (i) subject to applicable lamvcash through the sale of the Shares acquirezkertise of the Option through a broker-deale
to whom you have submitted an irrevocable noticexafrcise and irrevocable instructions to delivenmptly to the Company the amount of
sale or loan proceeds sufficient to pay the Op#ane; (ii) in cash, by personal check or wire #fan; (iii) in Shares valued at their Fair Market
Value on the date of exercise; (iv) withholdingS¥fares otherwise deliverable upon exercise valutba Fair Market Value on the date of
exercise; or (v) in any combination of the abovetmods. Certificates for any Shares used to payipteon Price must be attested to in writing
to the Company or delivered to the Company in riabte form, duly endorsed in blank or with sepasitek powers attached, and must be
free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, claintsany other charges thereon of any kind.

5. Tax Withholding Whenever any Options are exercised under thestefrthis Option Agreement, the Company will nolivide your
Shares unless you remit or, in appropriate caggeedo remit when due the minimum amount necedeasgtisfy all of the Companyfederal
state and local withholding tax requirements ratato your Option or the Shares. The Committee reguire you to satisfy these minimum
withholding tax obligations by any (or a combinadi@f the following means as determined by the Cdttesnin its sole discretion: (i) a cash
payment; (ii) withholding from compensation othesapayable to you; (iii) authorizing the Companwitthhold from the Shares otherwise
deliverable to you as a result of the exercisenobation, a number of Shares having a Fair Marlkat, as of the date the withholding tax
obligation arises, less than or equal to the amofitite withholding obligation; or (iv) delivering the Company unencumbered Mature Sh
having a Fair Market Value, as of the date the katting tax obligation arises, less than or eqodhe amount of the withholding obligation.

6. Rights in the Event of Termination of Serv.

(a) Rights in the Event of Termination of Servidéyour service with the Company and its Affikstis terminated for any reason other than
death, retirement, Disability or for Cause as daibelow, the Option, to the extent vested on Hte df your termination, will remain
exercisable for six months from the date of suchieation (but may not be exercised later thanldseday of the original Option Term).

(b) Rights in the Event of Deathf you die while in the service of the Companylais Affiliates, your Option will immediately vesind the
Option shall remain exercisable for a period oéfiears from the date of your death (but may na@xeecised later than the last day of the
original Option Term) by the person who becomegledtto exercise your Option after your death (thiee by will or by the laws of descent
and distribution, or by means of a written benefigidesignation you filed with the Stock Adminisiba Department before your death).

(c) Rights in the Event of Retirement or Disability your service with the Company and its Affikstis terminated for retirement (as defined
below) or Disability (as defined below), your Optiwill immediately vest and the Option shall remekercisable for five years from the date
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of your termination (but may not be exercised ldtan the last day of the original Option Term)eTarm “Disability” is defined in the
Company’s long-term disability plan in which yourfi@pate or are eligible to participate, as detiewed by the Committee. Your service will
“terminate for retirement” if your employment fdret Company and its Affiliates is terminated prim2014 and after attaining age fifty-five
(55) and completing at least three (3) years ofiserIn 2014 or thereafter, your service will trgnate for retirement” if your employment for
the Company or any of its Affiliates is terminatfter attaining age fifty-five (55) and completiagleast five (5) years of continuous service.

(d) Rights in the Event of Termination for Causeyour service for the Company or an Affiliagrminates for Cause (as defined under the
Plan and set forth below), any Option exercisabl®obefore such termination shall remain exerdésédr a period of 30 days from the date of
such termination (but may not be exercised latan the last day of the original Option Term). Adhuf date of this Agreement, the Plan
defines “Causeas (i) your willful failure to substantially perforyour duties, other than any such failure resglfrom a Disability; or (ii) you
gross negligence or willful misconduct which resuit a significantly adverse effect upon the Conypaman Affiliate; or (iii) your willful
violation or disregard of the Company’s or an Affie’s code of business conduct or other publigi@ity of the Company or an Affiliate; or
(iv) your conviction of a crime involving an act fthud, embezzlement, theft, or any other act ctutistg a felony involving moral turpitude or
causing material harm, financial or otherwise h® €ompany or an Affiliate. The Company may chahgedefinition of Cause under the Plan
at any time.

7. Notices. All notices to the Company or to the Committeestrhe in writing and delivered by hand or by madldressed to WPX
Energy, Inc., One Williams Center, Tulsa, OklahomMa72, Attention: Stock Administration Departmédxttices become effective upon their
receipt by the Company if delivered as describetthimsection. To give notice of exercise of ani@ptand receive instructions on payment of
the Option Price, contact the Plan Administrator.

8. Securities Law Compliancélrhe Company may, without liability for its goaaith actions, place legend restrictions upon Shares
obtained by exercising this Option and issue “$tapsfer” instructions requiring compliance withpéipable securities laws and the terms of
this Option.

9. No Right to Employment or Servic&othing in the Option Agreement or the Plan sha#rfere with or limit in any way the right of
the Company or an Affiliate to terminate your enyphent or service at any time, nor confer upon yaurtght to continue in the employ of the
Company and/or Affiliate.

10. Domestic Relations Order¥ou hereby acknowledge that nothing in this Agreat shall be construed as requiring the Committee
allow a Domestic Relations Order with respect is @ption grant.

11. Tax ConsultationYou understand you will incur tax consequences @sult of purchase or disposition of the Shares. agree to
consult with any tax consultants you think



advisable in connection with the purchase of thaer&hand acknowledge that you are not relyingvétaot rely, on the Company for any tax
advice.

WPX ENERGY, INC.

By
Ralph A. Hill
Chief Executive Office

Name: [Participant Name]
SSN:  [Participant ID]
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WPX ENERGY
NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE AND INTENT

1.1 Purpose of the Plan WPX Energy Services Company, LLC, a Delaware lichitability company (the “Company”), hereby
establishes the WPX Energy Nonqualified Deferredh@ensation Plan (the “Plan”), effective Januar2l3 (the “Effective Date”). The
purpose of the Plan is to enable certain emploteedsfer compensation and to be credited with niagcallocations and earnings. The Plan is
intended to attract and retain highly qualified émgpes and to reward such individuals for theirtabations to the success of the Company
and its Affiliates. The Plan is also intended tsistssuch individuals in saving for retirement bg\yding benefits that are in excess of benefits
permitted by applicable law under a qualified defircontribution retirement plan.

1.2 Intent and Construction. The Plan is intended to be an unfunded and unsgé@l@ae maintained by the Company primarily for the
purpose of providing deferred compensation forlacsgroup of management or highly compensated eyepk. The Plan shall be “unfunded”
for tax purposes and for purposes of Title | of &RI A Participant’s interests under the Plan doreptesent or create a claim against specific
assets of the Company or any Affiliate. Nothingdiishall be deemed to create a trust of any kircdemate any fiduciary relationship between
the Company, an Affiliate, the Administrative Contteé, the Benefits Committee and a ParticipantPicipant’s Beneficiary or any other
person. To the extent any person acquires a mgigdeive payments under this Plan, such righbigreater than the right of any other
unsecured general creditor of the Company or agiplicEmployer. The Plan is intended to be in coamgie with Section 409A of the Code
shall be interpreted, applied and administeredl sitges in accordance with Section 409A of the €aahd the guidance issued thereunder.

ARTICLE Il
DEFINITIONS

2.1 “ Account” shall mean the bookkeeping account maintained uheePlan to reflect a Participant’s Deferral Credind Matching
Contribution Credits and any earnings crediteddtmerA Participant’s “Account” shall consist of his her Deferral Account and Matching
Account.

2.2 * Administrative Committee ” shall mean the committee which is initially compdf an individual or of those individuals who are
appointed to serve on the Administrative Commitigehe Benefits Committee, as well as any individuao becomes a member of the
Administrative Committee pursuant to Section 9ritjldhe time that any such individual ceases t@lmember of the Administrative
Committee pursuant to Section 9.1.

2.3 “ Affiliate " shall mean all persons with whom the Company wbeldonsidered a single employer under Sectionshd bid 414(c)
of the Code.

2.4 “ AIP_" shall mean the WPX Energy Annual Incentive Plargrasnded from time to time.

2.5 “ Base Salary’ shall mean, for each Plan Year, the salary or wpg&kto an Eligible Employee by an Employer whiie Eligible
Employee is entitled to participate in the Plarjuding base pay, short term disability paid byEanployer, overtime and commissions. Base
Salary shall be calculated before any salary réslue@mounts contributed to the Qualified Plan amgl @afeteria plan,
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flexible benefit plan, or qualified transportatiplan established by an Employer in accordance 8&ittion 125 and related sections of the
Code. Base Salary shall include a differential wpaygment under Section 3401(h)(2) of the Code. Badary shall not include severance pay,
housing pay, relocation pay (including mortgageiiest differential), other fringe benefits (taxabiel non-taxable) and other extraordinary
compensation, all as determined by the Administea@Gommittee in its sole and absolute discretiaseBSalary also shall not include
Employer contributions to or distributions from angualified deferred compensation plan, amountsid®a in income or realized from the
grant or exercise of a stock option, amounts redlizhen restricted stock becomes transferablevasied or is included in income pursuant tc
an election under Section 83(b) of the Code andumtsaealized from the sale, exchange or otheiogisipn of stock acquired under a stock
option. Base salary shall not include any bonud patder the AIP, but shall include other bonudesny, unless such bonuses are specifically
excluded under a written bonus arrangement.

2.6 “ Beneficiary” or“ Beneficiaries” shall mean, with respect to a Participant, thegewms persons designated or otherwise deterr
in accordance with Article IX to receive any betgfivhich may become payable under the Plan by neafstine death of the Participant. A
person designated or otherwise determined to benafiRiary under the terms of the Plan has noésten or right under the Plan until the
Participant in question has died. A person willssetb be a Beneficiary on the day on which all Gent which such person is entitled under
the Plan have been distributed.

2.7 * Benefits Committee” shall mean the committee which is composed of dividual or those individuals who are appointechy
Company, as well as any individual who becomes mbee of the Benefits Committee pursuant to Sedi@n until the time that any such
individual ceases to be a member of the Benefitai@ittee pursuant to Section 9.2.

2.8 “Board " shall mean the board of directors of WPX Energg, In

2.9 “ Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, anded (including, when the context requires, ajutations,
interpretations and rulings issued thereunder). Aafigrence to a specific provision of the Codeudek a reference to that provision as it may
be amended from time to time and to any successeigon.

2.10 “ Company” shall mean WPX Energy Services Company, LLC.

2.11 * Compensation Committe€’ shall mean the committee of the Board designatedea€ompensation Committee.

2.12 “ Deferral Account” shall mean the bookkeeping account maintained balbef a Participant to reflect his or her DeféCaedits.

2.13 “ Deferral Credits " shall mean the amount of Deferred Base Salaryte@dd a Participant’s Deferral Account in accoawith
Section 4.1 and the amount of Deferred AIP Bonaslitgd to a Participant’s Deferral Account in adaarce with Section 4.2.

2.14 " Deferred AIP Bonus” shall mean the amount deferred by a Participaat@ordance with Section 4.2 from bonuses payaltles
Participant under the AIP.

2.15 “ Deferred Base Salary shall mean the Base Salary deferred by a Partitipaccordance with Section 4.1.

2




2.16 “ Disability " and“ Disabled " shall mean (consistent with the requirements ofi&e@09A) that the Participant: (a) is unable to
engage in any substantial gainful activity by reasbany medically determinable physical or memntgdairment which can be expected to
result in death or can be expected to last fomdimaoous period of not less than 12 months; oigphy reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment which can be expetta@sult in death or can be expected to lasa foontinuous period of not less than 12
months, receiving income replacement benefits foergod of not less than three months under ardantiand health plan covering employees
of the Employer. The Administrative Committee maguire that the Participant submit evidence of spddlification for disability benefits to
determine that the Participant is disabled underRkan.

2.17 “ Eligible Employee” shall mean an employee of an Employer who is ilasscof employees designated by the Compensation
Committee to be eligible to participate in the Plan

2.18 “ Emergency Distribution” shall mean an accelerated distribution of bengfitsuant to Section 7.4 with respect to a Partittipa
who has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency.

2.19 “ Employer” shall mean the Company and any Affiliate which basn designated by the Compensation Committee as a
participating employer in the Plan.

2.20 “ ERISA " shall mean the Employee Retirement Income SecAdtyf 1974, as amended (including, when the cdnieguires, all
regulations, interpretations and rulings issuedettieder). Any reference to a specific provisiofEBSA includes a reference to that provision
as it may be amended from time to time and to aiggessor provision.

2.21 " Excess Compensatioh shall mean for a Plan Year the excess, if anyapfiie sum of (i) the ParticipastBase Salary for the PI
Year for services rendered for an Employer, andt{@ Participans AIP bonus payable with respect to a performarec®@ that coincides wi
the Plan Year or that ends within the Plan Yeaergl) the annual compensation limit under CoddiG@ed01(a)(17) in effect for the calendar
year in which the Plan Year begil

2.22" Fund " or “ Funds” shall mean one or more of the investment optidesignated as an available investment option uheePlan
pursuant to Section 5.2.

2.23 " Matching Account” shall mean the bookkeeping account maintained balbef a Participant to reflect his or her Matahin
Contribution Credits.

2.24 * Matching Contribution Credits ” shall mean the amounts credited to a Participai#iching Account pursuant to Section 4.3.

2.25 “ Patrticipant ” shall mean an Eligible Employee for whom an Accdsmhaintained. An individual will cease to be atRgpant at
such time that the Participant’s Account has bediy flistributed or forfeited in accordance wittetRlan.

2.26 “Plan” shall mean the WPX Energy Nonqualified Deferred @ensation Plan, as amended.
2.27 “ Plan Year” shall mean the calendar year.
2.28 “ Qualified Plan” shall mean the WPX Energy Savings Plan, as amended.
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2.29 “ Retirement” shall mean Separation from Service after attaiaige fifty-five (55) and having been credited witref(5) or more
Years of Service.

2.30 “ Retirement Account” shall mean a bookkeeping account maintained onlbefa Participant to which all or a portion ofth
Participant’'s Account may be allocated pursuarthéoelection or deemed election of the Particiimatccordance with Section 4.4.

2.31 “ Scheduled InService Account” shall mean a bookkeeping account maintained onlfoefha Participant to which all or a portion
of the Participant’s Account may be allocated parguo the election of the Participant in accor@awith Section 4.4.

2.32 “ Scheduled InService Distribution ” shall mean a scheduled distribution of a specifiedion of a Participant's Account to
commence prior to Separation from Service, as gem/under Section 7.4.

2.33 “ Section 409/’ shall mean Section 409A of the Code, as amendekdalarules, regulations, interpretations and msissued
thereunder.

2.34 “ Separation from Service’ shall mean the complete termination of a Partidigaservices as an employee of an Employer, wh
voluntary or involuntary, for any reason or, ifdgban a complete termination, such services deereeaa level that is less than twenty percent
(20%) of the average level of services performethleyParticipant over the immediately precedingysix (36) month period (or the full
period of services if the Participant has been eggal by the Employer for less than thirty-six (&&nths). For purposes of applying this
Section 2.34, the term “Separation from Servicedlidhe applied in conformance with Section 1.409A)bf the Treasury Regulations. For the
limited purpose of determining whether a Separdftiom Service has occurred, the term “Employer’lisihalude the person for whom the
Participant performs services and all persons whibm such person would be considered a single graplimder Sections 414(b) and (c) of
the Code, except that in applying Sections 1563)Jaj?), and (3) of the Code for purposes of deteimg a controlled group of corporations
under Section 414(b) of the Code, the languaggst 50 percent” is used instead of “at leasté&@ent” each place it appears in Section 156
(a)(2), (2), and (3), and in applying Section 1#)- of the Treasury Regulations for purposesatédnining trades or businesses that are
under common control for purposes of Section 41d{¢he Code, “at least 50 percent” is used instdddt least 80 percent” each place it
appears in Section 1.414(c)-2 of the Treasury Reiguns.

2.35 “ Unforeseeable Emergency shall mean a severe financial hardship to the ¢¥patit resulting from an illness or accident of the
Participant, the Participant’s spouse, or a depein@es defined in Section 152 of the Code, withegiard to subsections 152(b)(1), (b)(2) and
(d)(1)(B)) of the Participant, loss of the Parteip's property due to casualty, or other similaraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances
arising as a result of events beyond the contrth@fParticipant (but shall in all events corregsptmthe meaning of the term “unforeseeable
emergency” under Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(ii) of thede and Section 1.409A-3(i)(3) of the Treasury Ratipns).

2.36 “ Years of Service shall mean the aggregate period of time during whit individual was employed by an Employer or an
Affiliate beginning with the individual’s date ofre (or rehire, if applicable) and ending on théedaf the individual’'s Separation from Service,
subject to the following:

(a) Fractional periods of a year will be expressetgrms of days and aggregated on the basis @atl&ys of employment
constitutes a “Year of Service”.




(b) If an individual terminates employment with Bmployer or an Affiliate and is rehired by an Emygoor an Affiliate, all perioc
of time during which the individual was employedday Employer or an Affiliate shall be taken inta@aignt and aggregated for purposes
of determining the individual’s Years of Service.

(c) If an individual: (i) was employed by The Wdtns Companies, Inc. (“Williams”) or an affiliate bfilliams on December 30,
2011; and (ii) transferred employment directly frovilliams to the Company prior to 11:59 p.m. on Beaber 31, 2012, the individual's
service with Williams or its affiliates shall beken into account for purposes of determining thividlual’s years of service. For this
purpose, an “affiliate” of Williams shall be anyrpen or entity with whom Williams would be considédra single employer under
Sections 414(b), (c) or (m) of the Code.

ARTICLE Il
PARTICIPATION

An Eligible Employee shall become a Participanti@ Plan by completing and submitting to the Adsti@itive Committee the
appropriate deferral election, including such othecumentation and information as the Administe@ommittee may reasonably request,
during the enroliment period established by the Aufsirative Committee with respect to the firstdPMear in which the Eligible Employee
elects to participate in the Plan.

ARTICLE IV
DEFERRAL ELECTIONS AND MATCHING CONTRIBUTION CREDIT S

4.1 Elections to Defer Base Salary

(a) For each Plan Year, an Eligible Employee magtdab defer, as Deferred Base Salary, up to 758#eBase Salary to be
otherwise paid to the Eligible Employee for sucarPYear. The Eligible Employee’s Deferred Base ialdll be deferred on a prorated
basis for each payroll period of the Plan Year.

(b) Base Salary deferral elections must be filed:

(1) With respect to an individual who is an EligilEmployee as of the December 31 preceding theYanfor which the
deferral election is to be effective, no later tisach December 31 (or such earlier date as edtedlisy the Administrative
Committee); or

(2) With respect to an individual who first beconagsEligible Employee during a Plan Year, withiirth(30) days following
the first date he or she becomes an Eligible Engaofor purposes of this rule, an Eligible Employéebe treated as first
becoming an Eligible Employee during a Plan Yedy ifn

(i) he or she was not eligible to participate ia Blan or any other plan required by Section 4@9Bet aggregated with
the Plan at any time during the twenty-four (24)nimoperiod ending on the date during the Plan Yieaor she becomes an
Eligible Employee; or

(i) he or she was paid all amounts previously doder the Plan and any other plan required by Gedd9A to be
aggregated with the Plan and,



on and before the date of the last such paymerstwteligible to continue to participate in thaPand any other plan
required by Section 409A to be aggregated withHRla@ for periods after such payment.

A deferral election under this Section 4.1(b)(2)l & effective no earlier than the payroll pertoejinning after the payroll
period in which the deferral election is receivgdiie Administrative Committee or its designee.

(3) An Eligible Employee’s Deferred Base Salaryhwiigspect to a Plan Year shall be credited to tiggble Employee’s
Deferral Account for such Plan Year and shall dls@llocated to a Retirement Account or to a Scleeldin-Service Account or
Accounts in accordance with Section 4.4.

(4) If a payroll period begins in one Plan Year ands in the following Plan Year, the Deferred B3atary with respect to
such payroll period shall be determined by theiBlgEmployee’s deferral election made with respedhe Plan Year in which the
payroll period ends, consistent with the defaukkswnder Section 1.409A-2(a)(13) of the TreaswrgRations.

(5) The total Base Salary deferred by a Particighatl be limited, if necessary, to satisfy So8acturity taxes, other
employment taxes, federal, state or local incomegaemployee benefit plan deferrals or contrimgj@nd any other required or
necessary withholding requirements as determinetidyAdministrative Committee.

4.2 Elections to Defer AIP Bonuses

(a) For each Plan Year, an Eligible Employee magtab defer all or a portion of the bonus (if anpder the AIP to be otherwise
paid to the Eligible Employee with respect to af@anance period under the AIP that coincides whil Plan Year or that ends within the
Plan Year.

(b) AIP bonus deferral elections must be filed:

(1) With respect to an individual who is an EligilEmployee as of the December 31 preceding thenpeahce period for
which the deferral election is to be effective later than such December 31 (or such earlier dagstblished by the
Administrative Committee).

(2) With respect to an individual who first beconagsEligible Employee during a Plan Year, withiirth(30) days following
the first date he or she becomes an Eligible Eng®ofror purposes of this rule, an Eligible Employéebe treated as first
becoming an Eligible Employee during a Plan Yedy in

(i) he or she was not eligible to participate ia Blan or any other plan required by Section 4@9Bet aggregated with
the Plan at any time during the twenty-four (24)ntoperiod ending on the date during the Plan Yieaor she becomes an
Eligible Employee; or

(ii) he or she was paid all amounts previously daoder the Plan and any other plan required by &edD9A to be
aggregated with the Plan and, on and before theafdhe last such payment, was not eligible tdiooe to
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participate in the Plan and any other plan requine&ection 409A to be aggregated with the Plampésiods after such
payment.

An AIP bonus deferral election under this Sectid(i#)(2) will be effective only with respect to AP bonus paid for
services performed after such election. For thipgse, the amount of the AIP bonus payable to tiggble Employee for services
performed after the Eligible Employee’s deferraation will be determined by multiplying the AlPrugs by a fraction, the
numerator of which is the number of calendar daysaining in the performance period after the ebecéind the denominator of
which is the total number of calendar days in suetiormance period. For purposes of this Secti@(hd(2), the date of an Eligible
Employee’s election is the date the deferral ebecis received by the Administrative Committeeterdesignee.

(3) An Eligible Employee’s Deferred AlIP Bonus witiispect to a performance period that coincides avittan Year or that
ends within a Plan Year shall be credited to thgille Employee’s Deferral Account for such Plana¥and shall also be allocated
to a Retirement Account or to a Scheduled In-Sengiccount or Accounts in accordance with Sectidgh 4.

(4) The total AIP bonus deferred by a Participdratiisbe limited, if necessary, to satisfy Sociat@éy taxes, other
employment taxes, federal, state or local incomesaemployee benefit plan deferrals or contrimgj@nd any other required or
necessary withholding requirements as determinetidyAdministrative Committee.

4.3 Matching Contribution Credits . If a Participant is employed by the Employer onldst day of the Plan Year and if the Participant
has made a deferral election for such Plan Yeasyaunt to Sections 4.1 or 4.2, a Matching Contrdyu€redit will be credited to the
Participant’s Matching Account in an amount eqoahte total amount of Deferred Base Salary and ledeAlP Bonus credited to the
Participant’s Deferral Account with respect to sithn Year; provided, however, in no event shalMuatching Contribution Credit for such
Plan Year exceed 6% of the Participant's Excesspgemsation for such Plan Year. Notwithstanding ttee@ding sentence, a Matching
Contribution Credit for a Plan Year shall not bedmavith respect to any Deferred Base Salary or iedeAlP Bonus for such Plan Year that
has been withdrawn in accordance with Section 7.7.

4.4 Account Allocation Elections.

(a) At the same time that a Participant makes ectieh to defer Base Salary or an AIP bonus, thiédizant shall also make an
election to allocate the amounts subject to each deferral election to the Participant’s Retiretm&ccount or to a Scheduled In-Service
Account or Accounts. Such election shall applyrig Beferral Credits and Matching Contribution Cisdillocated to such Participant’s
Account with respect to such Plan Year.

(b) If, at the time of a Participant’s deferraletlen, the Participant fails to make an allocatiection under Section 4.4(a), then all
amounts credited to the Participant’s Account fartsPlan Year shall be allocated to the ParticipdRétirement Account.

(c) Amounts allocated to a Scheduled In-Serviceoiot shall be distributed in accordance with theeBlaled In-Service
Distribution election applicable to such Accountbjgct to the terms of Section 7.4. Amounts alleddb a Retirement Account shall be
distributed in accordance with the provisions ofiéde VIII, exclusive of Section 7.4.
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4.5 Irrevocability of Deferral Elections and Accouri Allocation Elections.

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein and ini@eét6, once made for a Plan Year, deferral edestunder Sections 4.1 and 4.2
and the corresponding account allocation electiomtker Section 4.4 are irrevocable after the latat# by which the deferral election is
required to be filed.

(b) A deferral election for one Plan Year will ranttomatically be given effect for a subsequent Rlear, so that if a deferral of
Base Salary or an AIP bonus is desired for a sules#cPlan Year, a separate election must be matieel®articipant.

(c) In the event a Participant has a Separatiam fs@rvice for any reason, then his or her eledbatefer Base Salary, if any, will
terminate as of the date of such Separation fromi&e(but will be effective with respect to thetaegular paycheck issued to such
Participant), regardless of whether the Particigantinues to receive Base Salary or other remtinerrom any Employer or Affiliate
thereafter. If a Participant has a Separation f8arvice for any reason and is rehired (whethewobas an Eligible Employee) within the
same Plan Year, his or her election to defer Basang if any, shall be automatically reinstated ahall remain in effect for the
remainder of such Plan Year.

(d) In the event a Participant has a Separatiam 8ervice for any reason, then his or her eled¢taefer an AIP bonus, if any, will
remain in effect with respect to the AIP bonusrif/, subject to such deferral election. If a Pgréiot has a Separation from Service for
any reason and is rehired (whether or not as aibiidi Employee) within the same Plan Year or thmesperformance period, his or her
election to defer an AIP bonus, if any, will remaireffect with respect to the AIP bonus, if anybject to any such deferral election.

4.6 Suspension of Deferral Elections

(a) In the event a Participant receives a distidmutrom the Qualified Plan (or any other plan ocsessor plan sponsored by an
Employer or an Affiliate) on account of hardshifhieh distribution is made pursuant to Section 1(kp1(d)(3) of the Treasury
Regulations and requires suspension of deferralsrusther arrangements such as this Plan, theciparit’'s deferral elections under
Sections 4.1 and 4.2 shall be cancelled for tha P&ar in which the hardship distribution is reesihand such Participant shall be
ineligible to defer Base Salary or an AIP bonussfech additional time period as is necessary toptymith Section 1.401(k)-1(d)(3) of
the Treasury Regulations.

(b) In the event a Participant requests a distigbupursuant to Section 7.7 due to an Unforesedafergency, or the Participant
requests a cancellation of deferrals under the ®latleviate his or her Unforeseeable Emergenag,the Administrative Committee
determines that the Participant’s Unforeseeablergemey may be relieved through the cessation adfrdaé under the Plan, the
Participant’'s deferral elections under Sectionsathd/or 4.2, if any, for such Plan Year as deteeahiby the Administrative Committee,
shall be cancelled as soon as administrativelytigadie following such determination by the Adminégive Committee.

ARTICLE V
Deemed Investment of Accounts

5.1 Participant Designation. Each Participant shall designate, in accordande aviyy procedures, restrictions and conditions ésteda
by the Administrative Committee, the manner in vishic




the amounts credited to the Participant’s Accobhatlde deemed to be invested for purposes of mhénarg the amount of earnings and losses
to be credited to such Account. For this purpodeardicipant may specify that all or any percentaigieis or her Account shall be deemed to b
invested, in such percentage increments as the iislmative Committee may prescribe, in one or nadréhe Funds that have been designated
as alternative investments under the Plan purgog®ection 5.2. A Participant shall be permittednike separate investment elections with
respect to each Scheduled In-Service Account andrtier Retirement Account. A Participant’s deatgm shall remain in effect until a new
designation is made in the manner required by tthaiAistrative Committee, subject to the terminatoml/or replacement of a Fund as an
available investment option and further subjeany timing restrictions imposed by the AdministratCommittee. If a Participant fails to
provide a designation in the manner required byAttiainistrative Committee, the Participant’s Accogor any Scheduled In-Service Account
or Retirement Account for which a designation is provided) shall be deemed to be invested in adeFund designated by the Company or
its designee from time to time for such purpose.

5.2 Investment Funds The Company or its designee shall specify the iinvest options that will constitute the Funds ang lzange
the available investment options from time to tifike Company may designate employees of the Compaother individuals or entities to
act, solely in an agency capacity, on behalf of@oenpany for this purpose. The Company and any @yepl of the Company and other
individual or entity designated to act on behalftaf Company for the purpose of selecting the Fussisvell as the Administrative Committee
and the Benefits Committee, make no promise orajiae regarding the performance of any Fund arltitehae no liability to any Participant,
Beneficiary or any other individual or entity witbspect to the selection of the Funds or any deeréa lack of increase) in a Participant’s or
Beneficiary’s Account as a result of the perfornanc lack thereof of: (i) the Funds selected byRaeticipant; or (ii) the default Fund
applicable to amounts for which a Participant on®&eiary has failed to provide an investment deatgpn in the manner required by the
Administrative Committee. A Participant or Benedigi assumes all risk associated with his or hezstment designation or failure to provide
an investment designation, as well as all risk eiased with the unsecured nature of the Plan asrithesl in Section 12.1.

5.3 Earnings Allocations. The balance of a Participant’s Account shall reftee result of daily pricing of the assets in whauch
Account is deemed invested from time to time uh# time of distribution.

5.4 Purpose of Investment ElectionsA Participant’'s Fund elections shall be solelygarposes of calculation of the notional gains and
losses credited on the Participant’s Account. ThlByers shall have no obligation to set asideneest amounts as directed by the Participar
and, if an Employer elects to invest amounts asctiid by the Participant, the Participant shalkhaw more right to such investments than an
other unsecured general creditor.

ARTICLE VI
ACCOUNTS

6.1 Nature of Accounts Each Participant’s Account and any subaccountgexehereunder will be used solely as a measuéwged to
determine the amount to be paid to a Participadeuthis Plan. The Accounts do not constitute,witiithey be treated as, property or a trust
fund of any kind. A Participant’s rights hereundee limited to the right to receive Plan benefggpeovided herein.

6.2 Crediting of Subaccounts Deferral Credits and Matching Contribution Crediff be credited to each Participant’s Account as
follows:



full.

(a) Deferral Credits (with respect to Deferred B8atary and Deferred AIP Bonuses) will be credttethe Participant’s Deferral

Account as soon as reasonably practicable followhegdate such Base Salary or AIP bonus, as apfdicaould have otherwise been
paid in cash.

(b) Matching Contribution Credits for a Plan Yeadl We credited to the Participant’s Matching Acovas of a date established by
the Administrative Committee following the end b&tPlan Year to which such Matching Contributioedits relate (provided that such
date shall be no later than the last day of thé fadlewing Plan Year).

A Participant’s Account, including any earningsdited thereto, will be maintained until the Paganmt’'s Plan benefits have been paid in

6.3 Vesting. A Participant shall be vested at all times in aniswmnedited to his or her Deferral Account and Matg Account, including

earnings thereon.

6.4 Scheduled InService Accounts and Retirement Accounts

(a) Establishment of Accounts$-or purposes of recordkeeping the distributioth iawestment elections made by a Participant
pursuant to Sections 4.4 and 5.1, respectivelyAthministrative Committee shall establish and mamt(i) a Scheduled In-Service
Account for each Scheduled In-Service Distribuifop to five (5)) elected by the Participant; anjigiRetirement Account for all
amounts that are not subject to a Scheduled Ini&eBistribution election. A Participant's Accowstiall be divided among a
Participant’s Scheduled In-Service Account(s)ny.eand the Participant’'s Retirement Account incrdance with the elections made by
the Participant pursuant to Section 4.4.

(b) Establishment of Fund Subaccounisach Scheduled In-Service Account and RetirerAenbunt shall be further divided into
separate subaccounts (“Fund Subaccourgsih of which corresponds to the Funds electetidyParticipant pursuant to Section 5.1
respect to such Scheduled In-Service Account anideReent Account. As soon as reasonably practicafdér amounts are allocated to a
Scheduled In-Service Account or a Retirement Actaine Administrative Committee shall credit theobigable Fund Subaccounts of
such Accounts in accordance with the Participant/sstment elections.

ARTICLE VI
DISTRIBUTIONS

7.1 Distribution upon Retirement. In the event of a Participant’'s Retirement, thetiBi@ant’'s Account shall be paid in accordance with

the distribution elections described in this Satfiol. The elections made pursuant to this Segtibrshall govern the distribution of the
Participant’s Retirement Account; provided that.guant to Section 7.4(e), amounts allocated tohee@ded In-Service Account shall also be
governed by these distribution elections in thengtee Participant’s Retirement occurs prior to anencement of the applicable Scheduled In.
Service Distribution.

(a) Initial Elections At the time of making an initial deferral electipursuant to Sections 4.1 or 4.2:
(1) The Participant shall elect whether to receligtribution of the Participant’'s Account upon fRarticipant’s Retirement in:
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(i) a single lump sum payment; or
(i) a series of substantially equal annual instaiht payments to be paid over a predeterminedgbefiap to fifteen
(15) years;

provided, however, that if the value of the Paptgit's Account to be paid in installment paymeatistbelow $25,000 as of
any date an installment payment is to be paidP#m¢icipant's Account shall instead be paid inrgks lump sum payment on such
payment date.

(2) The Participant shall elect whether distribataf the Participant’'s Account upon the ParticipaRetirement shall be paid
(or commence to be paid):

(i) within the thirty (30) day period beginning time first day of the seventh {7 ) month commeneiftgr the
Participant’s Retirement; or

(i) within the thirty (30) day period beginning olne first day of the thirteenth (¥8 ) month comweiag after the
Participant’s Retirement.

If the Participant has elected to receive instatihpayments, subsequent installments shall bechaidg February of calend
years following the calendar year in which theiatiinstallment is paid.

(3) If the Participant fails to make a distributielection at the time of the initial deferral eleat the Participant shall be
deemed to have elected to receive distributiohétform of a single lump-sum payment payable withithirty (30) day period
beginning on the first day of the seventh (7th) th@ommencing after the Participant’'s Retirement.

(b) The distribution elections made pursuant taigec’.1(a) shall apply to amounts credited to di€lpant’s Account in

subsequent Plan Years. A Participant shall notdsmited to make separate distribution electiorth wespect to amounts credited to a
Participant’s Account in subsequent Plan Years.

(c) A Participant may make one (1) change to dpkayment or change the form of payment of the Hpétit’'s Account upon

Retirement, provided that any such change shalbgect to the election change restrictions desdrib Section 7.5.

7.2 Distribution Upon Death or Determination of Disbility .

(a) In the event a Participant is determined t®lsabled or dies prior to the commencement of payra&Plan benefits, the

Participant’s Account shall be paid to the Par@aipor, in the case of death, the Participant’séeiary, in a single lump sum payment
of cash within the ninety (90) day period beginnamgthe date of determination of Disability or thete of death, as applicable.

(b) In the event a Participant is determined t®isabled or dies after the commencement of ins&tinpayments, the remaining

amount credited to a Participant’s Account shalphig to the Participant or, in the case of detith Participant’s Beneficiary, in a single
lump sum payment of cash within the ninety (90) dasiod beginning on the date of determination fability or the date of death, as
applicable.
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7.3 Distribution upon Separation from Service Otherthan due to Retirement, Disability or Death. In the event of a Participant’s
Separation from Service other than by reason afé&teént, Disability or death, the Participant’s Aaat shall be paid to the Participant in a
single lump sum payment of cash within the thi&@)(day period beginning on the first day of theesgh (7th) month commencing after such
Separation from Service.

7.4 Scheduled IrService Distribution Elections.

(a) At the time of making a deferral election pausuto Sections 4.1 or 4.2, a Participant may étectceive a Scheduled Bervice
Distribution of all or a specified percentage ofcamts credited to the Participant’s Account withpect to the Plan Year for which the
deferral election is made, subject to the limitasialescribed herein. A Scheduled In-Service Accehall be established to recordkeep
amounts subject to such Scheduled In-Service Digtan. At the time of such election, the Participshall elect whether to receive the
Scheduled In-Service Distribution:

(1) in a single lump sum payment to be paid duRegruary of a calendar year specified by the Rpatit; or

(2) in a series of substantially equal annual ilment payments to be paid over a predeterminegef up to five (5) years,
to commence to be paid during February of a caleyelar specified by the Participant. Subsequenlingents shall be paid during
February of calendar years following the calendsaryn which the initial installment is paid.

provided, however, that if the value of a Partiaif@Scheduled In-Service Account to be paid inatsment payments falls below
$25,000 as of any date an installment paymentletpaid, such Scheduled In-Service Account shatead be paid in a single lump sum
payment on such payment date.

(b) The initial payment date for a Scheduled Invi®er Account shall be no earlier than the Febrdao§ the second Plan Year
beginning after the Plan Year for which Deferragdits are first allocated to such Scheduled In-i8erkccount.

(c) A Participant may make up to five (5) sepafatbeduled In-Service Distribution elections, preddhat no portion of the
Participant’s Account may be subject to more thaa (1) Scheduled In-Service Distribution electibra Participant has made five
(5) Scheduled In-Service Distribution electiongls®articipant shall only be permitted to makea Seheduled In-Service Distribution
election following complete payment of at least ¢heScheduled In-Service Distribution.

(d) A Participant may elect to allocate amountgliteel to the Participant’s Account with respecstibsequent Plan Years to an
existing Scheduled In-Service Account; providedy&eer, that such amounts may not be allocated3ch@duled In-Service Account
during the year that it is scheduled to be paid.

(e) In the event of a Participant’s Separation fi®envice (for a reason other than death or detetioim of Disability) prior to
commencement of a Scheduled In-Service Distributioe Scheduled IBervice Distribution election shall be nullifieddathe Schedule
In-Service Account shall be distributed in the faand at the time applicable to such Separation Bemvice under Sections 7.1 or 7.3, ac
applicable. In the event of a Participant’s Sepanat
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from Service (for a reason other than death orrdetation of Disability) after a Scheduled In-SeeiDistribution has commenced
installment payments, such installment payment sbatinue to be paid in the form and at the tiasethey would have been paid to the
Participant had the Participant not Separated f8@nvice. In the event of a Participant’s deathaiednination of Disability at any time,
the Scheduled In-Service Distribution election kbalnullified and the Scheduled In-Service Accoshmll be distributed in the form and
at the time described in Section 7.2.

(f) A Participant may make two (2) changes to dgdayment or change the form of payment with resfreatScheduled In-Service
Distribution, provided that any such change shalsbbject to the election change restrictions desdiin Section 7.5.

(g) Amounts paid to a Participant pursuant to ae8aked In-Service Distribution shall reduce the amaredited to the
Participant’s Account and shall reduce the amouaii@ble for distribution to the Participant updr tParticipant’s Retirement or other
Separation from Service, death or Disability.

7.5 Distribution Election Changes The following restrictions shall apply to a Pagiant’s election to change the time and/or form of
payment with respect to amounts that have beeritedetd a Participant’s Account. In addition, swlction changes shall be made in
accordance with any rules established by the Adstrative Committee, and shall comply with all apable requirements of Section 409A.

(a) Except as provided in Section 7.7, a Partidipaay not elect to accelerate a distribution.

(b) A subsequent election that delays payment angbs the form of payment shall be permitted if amigt if all of the following
requirements are met:

(1) the new election does not take effect untieast twelve (12) months after the date on whiehribw election is made;

(2) in the case of payments made on account ofr&épa from Service or a Scheduled In-Service hstion, the new
election delays payment for a period of at leas {b) years from the date that payment would etfsgr have been paid (or, in the
case of installment payments, five (5) years fromdate the first installment was scheduled todié) pabsent the new election; ¢

(3) in the case of payments made according to adided In-Service Distribution, the new electiomiade not less than
twelve (12) months before the date on which paynsestheduled to be paid (or, in the case of imstait payments, twelve
(12) months before the date the first installmeayrpent was scheduled to be paid), absent the restia.

(c) For purposes of application of the above edectihange limitations, the entitlement to instaltngayments shall be treated as
the entitlement to a single payment.

7.6 Valuation of Distributions .

(a) Lump Sum DistributionsAny lump sum distribution of the ParticipamAccount pursuant to Sections 7.1, 7.2 or 7.3 bleathe
value of the Participant’'s Account as of
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the last day of the month preceding the date dfidigion. In the case of a Scheduled In-Servicstiiliution, any lump sum distribution
of the applicable Scheduled In-Service Accountldiathe value of such Scheduled In-Service Accagnif the last day of the month
preceding the date of distribution.

(b) Installment Distributions An installment payment payable pursuant to Sactid shall be determined by dividing the value of
the Participans Account, determined as of the last day of thetmpreceding the date of distribution of the instant, by the number ¢
installments remaining. In the case of a Schedueservice Distribution, an installment paymentlsha determined by dividing the
value of the applicable Scheduled In-Service Actodetermined as of the last day of the month mhecethe date of distribution of the
installment, by the number of installments remagnin

7.7 Emergency Distribution. Upon a finding that the Participant has sufferedJaforeseeable Emergency, subject to compliande wit
Section 409A, the Administrative Committee maythat request of the Participant, accelerate didiohwof benefits in the amount reasonably
necessary to alleviate such Unforeseeable Emergriiggct to the following conditions:

(a) Form of RequestThe request to take an Emergency Distributiofl fieamade by filing a form provided by and filedthvthe
Administrative Committee.

(b) Amount of Distribution The amount distributed with respect to an Unfeeable Emergency shall not exceed the amount
necessary to satisfy such financial emergency gusunts necessary to pay taxes or penalties rdagaricipated to result from the
distribution, after taking into account the extemtvhich such hardship is or may be relieved thhorggmbursement or compensation by
insurance or otherwise or by liquidation of thetRgrant’s assets (to the extent the liquidatioswth assets would not itself cause sevel
financial hardship) or by cessation of deferralderthe Plan.

(c) Source of Distribution Any Emergency Distribution shall first be madeapro rata basis from the Participant’s Schedlied
Service Accounts with respect to amounts alloctdeslich Accounts for the same Plan Year as the ggmey Distribution, and then on a
pro rata basis from the Participant’s Schedule8énvice Accounts, and then from the Participangsir@ment Account.

(d) Timing of Distribution. The amount determined by the Administrative Cotteaias an Emergency Distribution shall be paid ir
a single lump sum payment of cash as soon as gabtdi after the end of the calendar month in whiehEmergency Distribution electi
is made and approved by the Administrative Committe

7.8 No Acceleration of AIP Bonus The time of payment of any AIP bonus that a Paréiot has elected to defer but that has not yet
credited to the ParticipastDeferral Account because it is not yet payabtéavit regard to the deferral shall not be accederat a result of tl
provisions of this Article. If, pursuant to the pisions of this Article, distribution has alreadgcarred at the time such AIP bonus becomes
payable, such AIP bonus shall be paid to the Rpatit on the date it would have been payable hadPtrticipant not made a deferral election.
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ARTICLE VIII
BENEFICIARY DESIGNATIONS

8.1 Beneficiary. Each Participant shall have the right, at any titnelesignate his or her Beneficiary(ies) (bottmany as well as
contingent) to whom payment under the Plan shafhbde in the event of the Participant’s death.

8.2 Beneficiary Designation; Change of Beneficiaripesignation. A Participant shall designate his or her Benaficby executing and
submitting a beneficiary designation form (whichyniiee electronic) to the Administrative Committedtie manner prescribed by the
Administrative Committee. A Participant shall hakie right to change a Beneficiary by executing smoimitting a new beneficiary designation
form in the manner prescribed by the AdministraB@mmittee. Upon the acceptance by the Adminiseaflommittee or its designee of a r
beneficiary designation form, all beneficiary desitions previously filed shall be cancelled. Thepoyier and the Administrative Committee
or its designee shall be entitled to rely on ttet keeneficiary designation form filed by the Pap@nt and acknowledged by the Administrative
Committee or its designee prior to his or her death

8.3 Acknowledgment. No designation or change in designation of a Bergii shall be effective until received and ackredged by th
Administrative Committee or its designee during Bragticipant’s lifetime.

8.4 No Beneficiary Designation If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiasypaovided in this Article VIII or if all designade
Beneficiaries predecease the Participant or die poi complete distribution of the Participant'sibéts, then the Administrative Committee
shall direct the distribution of such benefitstie Participant’s estate unless the Participaningwed by a spouse, in which event such
distribution shall be made to the surviving spouse.

8.5 Divorce. Prior to the Participant’'s death and upon the eofry decree of divorce respecting a married Rpatit and his or her
spouse, any designation of such spouse as Bemgfafisuch Participant shall be revoked automdticahd become ineffective on and after
date the decree is entered. The automatic revacatisuch Beneficiary designation shall cause tngi¢tpant’s benefit to be distributed under
the provisions of the Plan as if such spouse hadgueased the Participant. However, a Participagtdasignate a former spouse as a
Beneficiary under the Plan, provided a properly ptated Beneficiary designation form is submittecibal acknowledged by the
Administrative Committee or its designee subseqteentry of a decree of divorce respecting thei€@pant and such former spouse.

8.6 Doubt as to Beneficiary If the Administrative Committee has any doubt atheproper Beneficiary to receive payments purstean
the Plan, the Administrative Committee shall haheright, exercisable in its discretion, to withthslich payments until this matter is resolved
to the Administrative Committee’s satisfaction.

8.7 Discharge of Obligations The payment of benefits under the Plan to a Beiagfichall fully and completely discharge the Enygic
and all Affiliates from all further obligations uadthe Plan with respect to the Participant.

15



ARTICLE IX
ADMINISTRATION

9.1 Administrative Committee.

(a) Membership and VotingThe Administrative Committee shall consist of lests than one (1) member. The Administrative
Committee may remove any of its members at any, twith or without cause, by written notice to sumbmber. Any member may resi
by delivering a written resignation to the Adminidive Committee. Vacancies in the Administrativen@nittee arising by death,
resignation or removal shall be filled by the Adisirative Committee. The Administrative Committémal act by a majority of its
members at the time in office, and such action bwtaken by a vote at a meeting, in writing withaumeeting, or by telephonic
communications. Attendance at a meeting shall @atestwvaiver of notice thereof. A member of the Adistrative Committee who is a
Participant of the Plan shall not vote on any qoestelating specifically to such Participant. Asiyych action shall be voted or decided by
a majority of the remaining members of the Admiaitte Committee. The Administrative Committee skhlakignate one (1) of the
members as the chairman and shall appoint a secrete may, but need not, be a member. The Admatise Committee may appoint
from its members such subcommittees with such ppagthe Administrative Committee shall determine.

(b) Duties of Administrative Committeelhe Administrative Committee shall administer Bian in accordance with its terms and
shall have all the powers and discretionary authocessary to carry out such terms. The Admatise Committee shall execute any
certificate, instrument or other written direction behalf of the Plan and may direct the Emplogenake any payment on behalf of the
Plan. All interpretations of this Plan, and quassiconcerning its administration and applicatidralisbe determined by the
Administrative Committee in its discretion, and sutetermination shall be binding on all personseex as otherwise expressly providec
herein. The Administrative Committee may appoirttsaccountants, counsel, specialists, and otheppsras the Administrative
Committee deems necessary or desirable in conmegtth the administration of this Plan. Such acdants and counsel may, but need
not, be accountants and counsel for the Employandkffiliate.

(c) Establishment of Rules and Procedurékse Administrative Committee may establish sudbs and procedures as are neces
for the proper administration of the Plan. All Rapant elections, including but not limited to eéiens with respect to: (i) deferrals of
Base Salary and/or AIP bonuses; (ii) the Funds lwklall act as the basis for crediting of earnimg®sses on Account balances; (iii) the
form and timing of distributions; and (iv) Beneficy designations, must be made in a form providethe Administrative Committee a
must be made in accordance with the proceduresireznents and deadlines established by the Admariige Committee.

9.2 Benefits Committee

(a) Membership and VotingThe Benefits Committee shall consist of not kass one (1) member and not more than five
(5) members and vacancies of the Benefits Commstiad be filled by the remaining members of tha&és Committee. The Benefits
Committee may remove any of its members at any, twith or without cause, by written notice to sumbmber. Any member may resi
by delivering a written resignation to the Benefiismmittee. The Benefits Committee shall act byagomity of its members at the time
office, and such
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action may be taken by a vote at a meeting, inngrivithout a meeting, or by telephonic communimasi. Attendance at a meeting shall
constitute waiver of notice thereof. A member & Benefits Committee who is a Participant of thenPihall not vote on any question
relating specifically to such Participant. Any swtion shall be voted or decided by a majorityhef remaining members of the Benefits
Committee. The Benefits Committee shall designate(d) of the members as the chairman and shadiiaipp secretary who may, but
need not, be a member.

(b) Authority of Benefits CommitteeThe Benefits Committee’s sole responsibility witispect to the Plan shall be the authority to
approve certain amendments to the Plan as desdnigettion 11.1. The Benefits Committee shall haweliscretionary authority under
the Plan. In the performance of its settlor resfimlittes, the Benefits Committee may appoint sackcountants, counsel, specialists, and
other persons, as it deems necessary or desirabtsnection with its duties under this Plan. Sactountants and counsel may, but nee
not, be accountants and counsel for the Employandkffiliate.

ARTICLE X
CLAIMS AND REVIEW PROCEDURE

10.1 Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary may file a writtelaitn with the Administrative Committee setting fothe
nature of the benefit claimed, the amount theraod, the basis for claiming entitlement to such bBenf claim under this Plan shall be
adjudicated by the Administrative Committee in ademce with this Article X.

(a) Initial Claim. The claimant initiates a claim by submitting lte tAdministrative Committee a written claim for leéts.

(b) Timing of Administrative Committee Responsehe Administrative Committee shall respond tohsclaimant within ninety
(90) days after receiving the claim. If the Admirasive Committee determines that special circuntsta require additional time for
processing the claim, the Administrative Committaa extend the response period by an additionatyi{®0) days by notifying the
claimant in writing, prior to the end of the initisinety (90) day period, that an additional periedequired. Such notice shall indicate the
special circumstances requiring the additional timd the date by which the Administrative Committ&pects to respond. If the period
of time is extended because the claimant has failgrovide necessary information to decide thagléhe period for the Administrative
Committee to respond shall be tolled from the datevhich the notification of the additional perisdsent to the claimant, until the date
on which the claimant provides the informationthié claimant fails to provide necessary informatimuecide the claim within the time
period specified by the Administrative Committdee tlaim shall be denied.

(c) Notice of Decision If the Administrative Committee denies part dradlthe claim, the Administrative Committee shaditify
the claimant in writing of such denial. Such notitell include the specific reason or reasonshferdenial; specific references to the Pla
provisions on which the denial is based; a dedoriptf any additional material or information nesay for the claimant to perfect the
claim and an explanation of why such material éwrimation is necessary; and a description of theeAment'’s review procedure
including a statement of the claimantights to bring a civil action under Section %2he ERISA following an adverse determinatior
review.

17



(d) Deadline to File ClaimTo be considered timely under the Plan’s claimh mview procedure, a claim for payment must tesfil
with the Administrative Committee on or before tast day of the 12th month beginning after the dake for the requested payment or
benefit.

10.2_Review Procedure If the Administrative Committee denies part oraflthe claim, the claimant shall have the oppotiufar a full
and fair review by the Administrative Committeetioé denial, as follows:

(a) Review RequestTo initiate the review, the claimant, within 3iX60) days after receiving the Administrative Coitte®’'s
notice of denial, must file with the Administrati@mmittee a written request for review.

(b) Additional SubmissionsThe claimant shall have the opportunity to sulwmitten comments, documents, records and other
information relating to the claim. The claimant klba provided, upon request and free of chargesareable access to, and copies of, all
documents, records, and other information relet@tite claim for benefits. The review of the clahall take into account all comments,
documents, records, and other information submbtethe claimant relating to the claim, withoutaedjto whether such information was
submitted or considered in the initial benefit deti@ation.

(c) Timing of Administrative Committee Responsehe Administrative Committee shall respond intiwg to such claimant within
sixty (60) days after receiving the request foli@ewn If the Administrative Committee determinestthpecial circumstances require
additional time for processing the claim, the Adistirative Committee can extend the response pérjoah additional sixty (60) days by
notifying the claimant in writing, prior to the ewd the initial sixty (60) day period, that an difslial period is required. Such notice shall
indicate the special circumstances requiring thitmshal time and the date by which the AdministratCommittee expects to respond. If
the period of time is extended because the claimasfailed to provide necessary information tdakethe claim, the period for the
Administrative Committee to respond shall be toliexin the date on which the notification of the gidtal period is sent to the claima
until the date on which the claimant provides tiferimation. If the claimant fails to provide necasgsinformation to decide the claim
within the time period specified by the Adminisivat Committee, the claim shall be denied.

(d) Notice of Decision The Administrative Committee shall notify theiotant in writing of its decision on review. In tbase of
denial, such notice shall include the specific o@asr reasons for the denial; specific referenadbé Plan provisions on which the denial
is based; a statement that the claimant is entitleédceive, upon request and free of charge, nedide access to, and copies of, all
documents, records and other information relevatté claimant’s claim for benefits; and a stateneéithe claimant’s right to bring an
action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

10.3 Disability Claims. In the event a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s claiefates to a determination of disability, the wlaind review
procedures described in Sections 10.1 and 10.2tshahodified as necessary to comply with the neméents applicable to disability claims
under 29 C.F.R. § 2560.503-1.

10.4_Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies No claimant may commence any legal action to recav#enefit under this Agreement
to enforce or clarify rights under this Plan utitié claim and review procedure set forth hereinbdeesn exhausted in its entirety. In any such
legal action, all explicit
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and all implicit determinations by the AdministrkeiCommittee (including, but not limited to, detémations as to whether the claim, or a
request for a review of a denied claim, was tinfidyd) shall be afforded the maximum deference pieah by law.

10.5_Deadline to File Legal Action No legal action to recover benefits under this Rlato enforce or clarify rights under this Planyma
be brought by any claimant on any matter pertaitintis Plan unless the legal action is commeicélde proper forum on or before the last
day of the twelfth (12 ) month beginning after ttate the claimant has received a denial on revidimiing exhaustion of the claim and
review procedure.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN

11.1 Amendments

(a) Right to Amend The Compensation Committee shall have the righhg time and from time to time, and retroactiviély
deemed necessary or appropriate, to modify or armewthole or in part any or all of the provisiorfstioe Plan. The Benefits Committee
shall have the right at any time and from timeiteet and retroactively if deemed necessary or gpate, to modify or amend in whole
or in part any or all of the provisions of the Rlarovided such modification or amendment const&é non-material amendment. Any
change that would in any way increase the mondtengfit to participants would be considered maltaria require approval by the
Compensation Committee. Non-material amendmentsistoor: (i) changes required by applicable law,r{iodifications of the
administrative provisions of the Plan to causeRlza to operate more efficiently, (iii) changesuiegd as part of the collective bargain
process, and (iv) modifications or amendments ¢oriporate changes provided that such modificaticemeendment does not materially
increase Employer contributions. Any amendment odification to the Plan shall be effective at sdelte as the Compensation
Committee may determine with respect to any amentiagopted by the Compensation Committee and aBehefits Committee may
determine with respect to any non-material amendmaéopted by the Benefits Committee.

(b) Effect of Amendment The right to amend described in Section 11.1(@y be exercised at any time, without the conseangf
Participant or Beneficiary; provided, however, thatamendment shall divest any Participant or Beiae§ of rights to which he or she
would have been entitled if the Plan had been teataed on the effective date of such amendment &x@eto the extent that a
termination of the Plan pursuant to Section 11.2ld/oesult in an accelerated distribution of thetiegant’s benefits under the Plan; and
(ii) to the extent necessary to comply with anyleggle law, rule or regulation, including, but dimited to, Code Section 409A.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan and anynpayt hereunder may be amended unilaterally by trageénsation Committee or the
Benefits Committee, subject to the restrictionscdbsd in Section 11.1(a), at any time to make sthdnges as may be required to
comply with Section 409A.

11.2 Termination of the Plan. The Compensation Committee shall have the righ¢rtminate the Plan at any time. Upon termination of
the Plan, distributions in respect of amounts ¢eeldio a Participant’s Account as of the date eftdrmination shall be made in the manner an
at the time heretofore prescribed. If the Plamimtnated and a trust has been established (asliEbi Section 12.3), the trust will pay
benefits as provided under the amended or terndriaien. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CompgosaCommittee may, in its sole
discretion, terminate the Plan and accelerateitine &and form of payment of benefits under the Pdaaty under the following circumstances:
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(a) The Compensation Committee may terminate ajuidate the Plan within twelve (12) months of apowate dissolution taxed
under Section 331 of the Code, or with the appro¥al bankruptcy court pursuant to 11 U.S.C. 8§ BY3{(A), provided that the
remaining unpaid benefits under the Plan are iregdlud the Participants’ respective gross incomdbkerlatest of: (i) the calendar year in
which the Plan termination and liquidation occ{iiy;the first calendar year in which such benedits no longer subject to a substantial
risk of forfeiture; or (iii) the first calendar yea which the payment is administratively prachiza

(b) The Compensation Committee may terminate apddate the Plan in connection with the occurresfce “change in control
event” (within the meaning of Section 1.409A-3())@ the Treasury Regulations) (a “Section 409A i@fain Control”), provided that
the following requirements are satisfied:

(1) The Compensation Committee takes irrevocaltierato terminate and liquidate the Plan duringplkéod beginning
thirty (30) days preceding the Section 409A Changeontrol and ending twelve (12) months followisigch Section 409A Change
in Control;

(2) The benefits of each Participant under the Blzohall other plans and other arrangements teatr@ated as single plan
with this Plan under Sections 1.409A-1(c) and 1489)(4)(ix) Treasury Regulation (collectively,éfOther Arrangements”) are
distributed within twelve (12) months following tilate that all necessary action to terminate apddate the Plan and the Other
Arrangements is irrevocably taken; and

(3) All Other Arrangements are terminated and ligied with respect to each Participant who expeei@rsuch Section 409A
Change in Control. For purposes of any Section 408ange in Control that results from an asset @mseltransaction, the
applicable “service recipient” (within the meanioigCode Section 409A) with the discretion to licatiel and terminate the Plan, the
Plan and the Other Arrangements shall be the “semécipient” that is primarily liable immediatedjter the transaction for the
payment of the Plan benefits.

(c) The Compensation Committee may terminate anddate the Plan for any other reason, providet tha

(1) The termination and liquidation of the Plan sloet occur proximate to a downturn in the finahk&alth of the Company
and its Affiliates;

(2) The Company and all of its Affiliates terminabed liquidate all Other Arrangements;

(3) No payments in liquidation of the Plan are madthin twelve (12) months of the date that the @emsation Committee
takes all necessary action to irrevocably termiaate liquidate the Plan, other than payments tlvatladvbe payable under the terms
of the Plan if the action to terminate and liquédtite Plan had not occurred;

(4) All payments are made within twenty-four (249mths of the date that the Compensation Committeestall necessary
action to irrevocably terminate and liquidate tha&nPand
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(5) The Company and all Affiliates do not adopt &ther Arrangement at any time during the threeyé2y period following
the date the Company takes all necessary actimretmcably terminate and liquidate the Plan.

(d) The Compensation Committee may terminate apddate the Plan upon such other events and conditis permitted under
Section 409A.

This Section 11.2 shall be construed and admimidtar a manner consistent with Section 409A andi&@ed.409A-3(j)(4)(ix) of the
Treasury Regulations.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

12.1 Unfunded and Unsecured The Plan shall at all times be considered entinelfjunded both for tax purposes and for purposes of
Title 1 of ERISA and no provision shall at any tilne made with respect to segregating assets ofrgatoger for payment of any amounts
under the Plan. No Participant or any other pesdail have any interest in any particular assetmdEmployer by reason of the right to rect
a benefit under the Plan. To the extent the Ppétittior any other person acquires a right to reckenefits under the Plan, the Participant or
such other person shall have the status of a gamesacured creditor of the applicable Employere Ptan constitutes a mere unsecured,
unfunded promise by the applicable Employer forghgment of benefits payable under the Plan tdPta#icipants in the future. Nothing
contained in the Plan shall constitute a guaraptgrbEmployer or any other person or entity thgtfamds in any trust or the assets of the
Employer will be sufficient to pay any benefit undiee Plan. No Participant shall have any righa teenefit under the Plan except in
accordance with the terms of the Plan.

12.2 Restriction Against Assignment The Employer shall pay all amounts payable hereuodly to the person or persons designated
by the Plan and not to any other person or eriktig right of any Participant to receive any besefitder the Plan shall not be alienable or
transferable by the Participant or the ParticipaBeneficiary by assignment or any other method,sdrall not be subject to any right, claim,
lien, judgment, execution, alienation, sale, transiissignment, pledge, encumbrance, attachmearoishment by any creditors of any
Participant or a Participant’s Beneficiary. No pafra Participant’s Accounts shall be subject tg aght of offset against or reduction for any
amount payable by the Participant or Beneficiafyether to the Employer or any other party, undgrarangement other than under the term
of this Plan.

12.3 Trust.

(a) Discretionary Establishment of Trustiotwithstanding anything to the contrary, an Eoypel may establish one or more
accounts, funds or grantor trusts (the “Trust")eflect obligations under the Plan and may maké suestments as it may deem
desirable to assist in meeting such obligationsEArployer may transfer money or other propertyrty such Trust, and the Trust shall
pay Plan benefits to Participants and their Beragiies out of the Trust Fund. Such trust or truséy be irrevocable, but shall provide
in the event of the insolvency of the Employer, éissets of the trust or trusts shall be subjettida@laims of the Employes’creditors. Nt
Participant or Beneficiary shall have any preferkdim to, or any beneficial ownership interestany assets of the Trust, and
Participants shall have the status of general wmedcreditors of the Employer.

(b) Interrelationship of the Plan and the Trushe provisions of the Plan shall govern the sgtfta Participant to receive
distribution of benefits under the Plan. The
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provisions of the Trust shall govern the rightstef Employer and any delegate thereof, Participamdsthe creditors of the Employer to
the assets transferred to the Trust. The Empldyadt at all times remain liable to carry out itdightions under the Plan.

(c) Distributions From the TrustAn Employers obligations under the Plan may be satisfied Witrst assets distributed pursuar
the terms of the Trust, and any such distributlwallgeduce the Employer’s obligations under thenPlI

12.4 Withholding . The Participant shall make appropriate arrangemeititsthe Employer for satisfaction of any fedesgte or local
income tax withholding requirements, Social Seguaitd other employee tax or other requirementsiegige to the granting, crediting, vesting
or payment of benefits under the Plan. There sfeatleducted from each payment made under the PEmyather compensation payable to
the Participant (or Beneficiary) all taxes whicle aequired to be withheld by the Employer in resp@such payment or this Plan. The
Employer shall have the right to reduce any paynf@nbther compensation) by the amount of cashcsefit to provide the amount of said
taxes.

12.5_ Payment in Event of Incapacity If any individual entitled to receive any paymenter the Plan is, in the judgment of the
Administrative Committee, physically, mentally eghlly incapable of receiving or acknowledging iptef the payment, and no legal
representative has been appointed for the indiVjdlia Administrative Committee may (but is notuegqd to) cause the payment to be made t
any one or more of the following as may be chosethb Administrative Committee: the Beneficiarye tinstitution maintaining the individue
a custodian for the individual under the Unifornafisfers to Minors Act of any state; or the indivatlsi spouse, child, parent, or other relative
by blood or marriage. The Administrative Commitig@ot required to see to the proper applicatioargf such payment, and the payment
completely discharges all claims under the Plainagéhe Employer, and the Plan to the extent efthyment.

12.6 Protective Provisions The Participant shall cooperate with the Employefurnishing any and all information requested g t
Administrative Committee to facilitate the admingdion of the Plan and the payment of benefitsumader, taking such physical examinations
as the Administrative Committee may deem necessilhyrespect to a determination of Disability aa#lihg such other actions as may be
requested by the Administrative Committee. If amgtfrelating to a Participant or a Beneficiary hasn misstated, the correct fact may be use
to determine the amount of benefit payable to SRehicipant or Beneficiary.

12.7 Compliance with Section 409AThe Employer intends that the Plan and all defewaller the Plan be structured so as to comply
with, or, as applicable, be excepted from, Secti@®A, such that there are no adverse tax consegsginterest or penalties incurred as a r¢
of such deferrals. Notwithstanding the Employentention, if a deferral under the Plan, includimy @ayment, distribution, deferral election,
transaction or any other action or arrangementecoptated by the provisions of the Plan would viel&ection 409A or, if intended to be
excepted from 409A, would become subject to 4094¢ss the Employer expressly determines othentigeCompensation Committee, or the
Benefits Committee as deemed appropriate, may aampt policies, procedures and/or amendments tBltre and take such other actions
deems reasonably necessary or appropriate, witheuwtonsent of any Participant, to (a) cause the Bhd the respective payment, distribut
deferral election, transaction or other actionroamgement to comply with 409A and/or, as applieatd be excepted from 409A and
(b) preserve the intended tax treatment of any pagiment, distribution, deferral election, tran&atbr other action or arrangement. In such
case, the related provisions of the Plan will bended modified, or, if necessary, rescinded, inclgdetroactively, in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 409A to the extent deteeshiny the Compensation Committee, or the Benefite@ittee as deemed appropriate. -
Plan will be construed and
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administered to the fullest extent possible in adance with the Employer’s intentions as set famtthis Section 12.7.

12.8 Recovery of Overpaymentsin the event any payments under the Plan are madecepunt of a mistake of fact or law, the recipier
shall return such payment or overpayment to thel&yep as requested by the Employer.

12.9 Employment Not Guaranteed Nothing contained in the Plan nor any action takereunder shall be construed to constitute a
contract of employment between the Employer andRaricipant or as giving any Participant any rigghtontinue the provision of services in
any capacity whatsoever to the Employer.

12.10 Participants Should Consult Advisors The Employers, the Administrative Committee andBleaefits Committee make no
representation or warranty with respect to thefiaancial, estate planning or other legal implicas of participation in the Plan. Participants
should consult with their own tax, financial anddéadvisors with respect to their participatioriie Plan.

12.11 SuccessorsExcept as otherwise expressly provided in the Riliobligations of an Employer under the Plankineling on any
successor to the Employer whether the successioe isult of a direct or indirect purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise of all of the
business and/or assets of the Employer.

12.12_Indemnification. To the extent provided for in the Company bylawsiarilar governing document, the Company shall imdiy
and hold harmless each member of the Board, eantbereof the Benefits Committee, each member oAtiministrative Committee, and
each officer and employee of the Company or anliAféi to whom are delegated duties, responsitslitend authority with respect to this Plan
against all claims, liabilities, fines and penaltiand all expenses reasonably incurred by or iethapon him or her (including but not limited
to reasonable attorney fees) which arise as atreshis or her actions or failure to act in contieat with the operation and administration of
this Plan to the extent lawfully allowable andhe extent that such claim, liability, fine, penalty expense is not paid for by liability insural
purchased or paid for by the Company or an Aflidtotwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shetlindemnify any person for any such
amount incurred through any settlement or compremisany action unless the Company consents ifngrib such settlement or compromi

12.13 Headings Headings and subheadings in thisaPl are inserted for convenience of reference ontiyae not to be considered in
construction of the provisions hereof.

12.14 Construction of Provisions If any misunderstanding or ambiguity arises conicgrthe meaning of any of the provisions of the
Plan, the Administrative Committee has the solbtrig construe such provisions. The AdministratB@mmittee’s decision is final. All
pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deamesfer to the masculine, feminine, or neutetthasidentity of the person or persons may
require. As the context may require, the singulay ioe read as the plural and the plural as thaisingAny reference in this Plan to a statut
regulation shall be considered also to mean arat tefany subsequent amendment or replacemenapstiitute or regulation.

12.15 Governing Law. This Plan shall be subject to and construed inra@eswe with the laws of the State of Oklahoma &oektent not
preempted by federal law.

[Signature on following page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has adopted tras Bk of the Effective Date and has caused thet®la@ executed by its
duly authorized representative this 31 day of Ddmenn2012.

WPX ENERGY SERVICES COMPANY, LLC

By: /s/ Ralph A. Hill
Name: Ralph A. Hill
Title:  President & CEO
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WPX ENERGY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE AND INTENT

1.1 Purpose of the Plan WPX Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Camyd) hereby establishes the WPX Energy Board of
Directors Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Pthe (Plan”), effective January 1, 2013 (the “EffeetDate”). The purpose of the Plan is to
provide members of the Company’s Board of Directan® are not employees of the Company (“Non-ManaggerDirectors”) the opportunity
to defer receipt of cash and equity compensatiom fthe Company and receive such compensation flgptermination of service as a Non-
Management Director.

1.2 Relationship to the Incentive Plan The Company has established the WPX Energy, Irtl Xicentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”),
pursuant to which Non-Management Directors ardl@égo receive grants of equity compensation eftirm of Restricted Stock and
Restricted Stock Units. The Incentive Plan contextgd, to the extent permitted by the Board, thdéba-Management Director may elect to
defer receipt of such equity compensation. The Plamisions relating to deferral of equity compédimaare intended to supplement the
Incentive Plan by providing terms and conditionsessary to implement such deferrals in accordaiitteSection 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code and other applicable law, but aréterided and shall not be interpreted to amendhange the terms of the Incentive Plan. Al
equity compensation described in this Plan shailigect to and issued in accordance with the tefrtise Incentive Plan.

1.3 Intent and Construction. The Plan is intended to be an unfunded and unsgql@e. A Participant’s interests under the Plamadib
represent or create a claim against specific ass¢he® Company or any Affiliate. Nothing hereirafitbe deemed to create a trust of any kir
create any fiduciary relationship between the Camgpan Affiliate, the Board, the Compensation Cotteei and a Participant, the Participant’
Beneficiary or any other person. To the extent pengon acquires a right to receive payments orr diteefits from the Company under this
Plan, such right is no greater than the right gf @fier unsecured general creditor of the Comp&hg.Plan is intended to be in compliance
with Section 409A of the Code and shall be integateapplied and administered at all times in at&oce with Section 409A of the Code and
the guidance issued thereunder.

ARTICLE II
DEFINITIONS

2.1 " Affiliate " shall mean all persons with whom the Company wbeldonsidered a single employer under Sectionshd bid 414(c)
of the Code.

2.2 “ Beneficiary " or “ Beneficiaries " shall mean, with respect to a Participant, theqrets persons designated or otherwise
determined in accordance with Article VIl to reaeiany benefits which may become payable underldreldy reason of the death of the
Participant. A person designated or otherwise detexd to be a Beneficiary under the terms of tlaPlas no interest in or right under the |
until the Participant in question has died. A paradll cease to be a Beneficiary on the day on Whilt benefits to which such person is
entitled under the Plan have been distributed.

2.3 “Board " shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
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2.4 " Cash Compensatiori shall mean the cash retainer and any other cashguag payable by the Company to a Non-Management
Director for his or her services to the Companyg asember of the Board.

2.5 “ Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, &nhded (including, when the context requires, @utations,
interpretations and rulings issued thereunder). Aefgrence to a specific provision of the Codeudek a reference to that provision as it may
be amended from time to time and to any successweigon.

2.6 “ Compensation Committe€’ shall mean the committee of the Board designatédea€ompensation Committee.

2.7 “ Company” shall mean WPX Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation

2.8 “ Deferred Equity Account” shall have the meaning specified in Section 4.2(e).

2.9 “ Deferred Money Account” shall have the meaning specified in Section 4.1(d).

2.10 “ Director Annual Grant " shall have the meaning given to such term in tieertive Plan.

2.11 * Equity Compensation” shall mean the Restricted Stock and RestrictedkStmits awarded to a Non-Management Director
pursuant to a Director Annual Grant.

2.12" Fund " or “ Funds” shall mean one or more of the investment optidesignated as an available investment option uheelPlan
pursuant to Section 5.2.

2.13 “ Incentive Plan” shall mean the WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 Incentive Pd@nramended. Any reference to a specific provisfche
Incentive Plan includes a reference to that promisis it may be amended from time to time and yosaiccessor provision.

2.14 “ Non-Management Director” shall mean a member of the Board who is not an @yepl of the Company or an Affiliate.

2.15 “ Participant " shall mean a Non-Management Director for whom aocofiot is maintained. An individual will cease tode
Participant at such time that the Participant’'sdaot has been fully distributed in accordance withPlan.

2.16 “Plan” shall mean the WPX Energy Board of Directors Def@i€ompensation Plan, as amended.

2.17 “ Plan Administrator ” shall mean: (i) the Board, with respect to any fiomcfor which the Board is assigned responsibgisythe
“Committee” pursuant to Article 3 of the IncentiRéan, subject to the Board’s delegation of resgmlityi for such function; and (ii) the
Compensation Committee, for all other purposes vetipect to the Plan.

2.18 “ Plan Year” shall mean the calendar year.

2.19 “ Restricted Stock” shall have the meaning given to such term in tieeritive Plan.

2.20 “ Restricted Stock Unit” shall have the meaning given to such term in tieertive Plan.
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2.21 “ Section 409/’ shall mean Section 409A of the Code, as amendedalarules, regulations, interpretations and msimssued
thereunder.

2.22 " Separation from Service’ shall mean the termination of a Non-ManagementdDires services as a director of the Company. Fc
purposes of applying this Section 2.22, the terep@ation from Service” shall be applied in confante with Section 1.409A-1(h) of the
Treasury Regulations. For the limited purpose ¢édrining whether a Separation from Service hasiwed, the term “Company” shall
include the Company and all persons with whom tbm@any would be considered a single employer uSdetions 414(b) and (c) of the
Code, except that in applying Sections 1563(aj@)),and (3) of the Code for purposes of deterngirmrcontrolled group of corporations under
Section 414(b) of the Code, the language “at IB@giercent” is used instead of “at least 80 pefceath place it appears in Section 1563(a
(2), and (3), and in applying Section 1.414(c)-2h&f Treasury Regulations for purposes of detengitriades or businesses that are under

common control for purposes of Section 414(c) ef@ode, “at least 50 percent” is used instead iE&@st 80 percent” each place it appears ir
Section 1.414(c)-2 of the Treasury Regulations.

2.23 “ Share” or “ Shares " shall have the meaning given to such term in teertive Plan.

ARTICLE Ill
PARTICIPATION

A Non-Management Director shall become a Partidipathe Plan by completing and submitting to thenPAdministrator the
appropriate deferral election, including such otth@zumentation and information as the Plan Admiaist may reasonably request, during the

enrollment period established by the Plan Admiatsir with respect to the first Plan Year in whiblke Non-Management Director elects to
participate in the Plan.

ARTICLE IV
COMPANY AND DIRECTOR DEFERRALS

4.1 Deferrals of Cash Compensation

(a) Annual Election to Defer Cash Compensatibor each Plan Year, a Non-Management Director ehegt to defer all or a
portion of the Cash Compensation to be otherwise oathe Non-Management Director for such PlanrYea

(b) Time of Filing Election

(1) Except as provided in Section 4.1(b)(2), a Ndemagement Director’s election to defer Cash Comsgton must be filed
no later than the December 31 preceding the Plam fée which the election is to be effective.

(2) If an individual first becomes a Non-Managem@irector during a Plan Year, the Non-Managememé@or’s election to
defer Cash Compensation with respect to such Péar Must be filed within thirty (30) days followitige first date he or she

becomes a Non-Management Director. For purpostgsfule, an individual will be treated as fir&dmming a Non-Management
Director during a Plan Year only if:

(i) he or she was not eligible to participate ia Blan or any other plan required by Section 4@9Bet aggregated with
the Plan at any time during



the twenty-four (24) month period ending on theedduring the Plan Year he or she becomes a Non-géament Director;
or

(i) he or she was paid all amounts previously doder the Plan and any other plan required by @edd9A to be
aggregated with the Plan and, on and before theafdhe last such payment, was not eligible tdiooe to participate in tt
Plan and any other plan required by Section 409Betaggregated with the Plan for periods after gagiment.

A Cash Compensation deferral election under thigi@e 4.1(b)(2) will be effective only with respect Cash Compensation
paid for services performed after such electiorthviéspect to any Cash Compensation that is edrasetd on a specified
performance period (for example, an annual or gulgrtetainer fee), the amount of Cash Compensatigble to the Non-
Management Director for services performed afterNlon-Management Director’s deferral election Wwéldetermined by
multiplying the applicable Cash Compensation byaatfon, the numerator of which is the number déwedar days remaining in the
performance period after the election and the démator of which is the total number of calendarglaysuch performance period.
For purposes of this Section 4.1(b)(2), the data Nbn-Management Director’s election is the dagdeferral election is received
by the Plan Administrator or its designee.

(c) Duration of Deferral ElectionsA deferral election made pursuant to this Sedfidnfor a Plan Year (or remainder thereof in the
case of a new Non-Management Director) is irreviecafier the latest date by which the deferralte@deds required to be filed. A
deferral election for one Plan Year will not autdically be given effect for a subsequent Plan Yearthat if a deferral of Cash
Compensation is desired for a subsequent Plan desparate election must be made by the Non-MamageDirector.

(d) Deferred Money AccountFor each Non-Management Director electing todéssh Compensation under the Plan in
accordance with this Section 4.1, there shall bmtaiaed a deferred money account (a “Deferred Mokecount”). Deferred Cash
Compensation of each Non-Management Director $leatiredited as a dollar amount to the Non-ManagéeDieactor’s Deferred Mone
Account as soon as reasonably practicable followhegdate such Cash Compensation would have othetveien paid in cash. The
Deferred Money Account shall be a bookkeeping eotly and shall be utilized solely as a devicetf@ measurement and determinatior
of the amount to be paid to a Participant purstaitfie Plan, if any.

(e) Vesting. A Participant shall at all times be one hundrHaD@6) vested in his or her Deferred Money Account.

4.2 Deferrals of Equity Compensation Section 14.3 of the Incentive Plan provides thathe extent permitted by the Board from time
to time, a Non-Management Director may make artiele¢o be paid any or all of the following in tiarm of Restricted Stock Units in lieu of
cash or Shares, as applicable: (a) Director An@uahts; or (b) “Director Fees”, as defined in 14)2{f the Incentive Plan. Pursuant to the
authority described in Section 14.3 of the Incemfitan, the Board has authorized the deferral efremdred percent (100%) of a Non-
Management Director’'s Equity Compensation, and $igistion 4.2 defines the terms and conditions wgltich a Non-Management Director
may elect such deferral.

(a) Annual Election to Defer Equity Compensatidror each Plan Year, a Non-Management Director etest to defer all, but not
less than all, of the Equity Compensation to




be otherwise paid to the Non-Management Directoséreh Plan Year, subject to the restrictions desdrherein.
(b) Time of Deferral Election

(1) Except as provided in Sections 4.2(b)(2) or &3Non-Management Director’s election to deferiggGompensation must
be filed no later than the December 31 precediedPtan Year for which the election is to be effesti

(2) Except as provided in Section 4.2(b)(2), ifiagividual first becomes a Non-Management Direcliaring a Plan Year, the
Non-Management Director’s election to defer Eq@tympensation with respect to such Plan Year mu§tdabwithin thirty
(30) days following the first date he or she becem@&lon-Management Director. For purposes of thies an individual will be
treated as first becoming a Non-Management Dirediving a Plan Year only if:

(i) he or she was not eligible to participate ia Blan or any other plan required by Section 4@9Bet aggregated with
the Plan at any time during the twenty-four (24)mioperiod ending on the date during the Plan Yieaor she becomes a
Non-Management Director; or

(ii) he or she was paid all amounts previously daoder the Plan and any other plan required by &edD9A to be
aggregated with the Plan and, on and before theafdhe last such payment, was not eligible tdiooe to participate in tt
Plan and any other plan required by Section 409Betaggregated with the Plan for periods after gagiment.

An Equity Compensation deferral election under Sastion 4.2(b)(2) will be effective only with resy to Equity
Compensation paid for services performed after slettion. With respect to any Equity Compensatiat is earned based on a
specified performance period (for example, an ahouquarterly retainer fee), the amount of Eq@iympensation payable to the
Non-Management Director for services performedradfte Non-Management Director’'s deferral electidl loe determined by
multiplying the applicable Equity Compensation bfyaction, the numerator of which is the numbecaendar days remaining in
the performance period after the election and #rethinator of which is the total number of calendays in such performance
period. For purposes of this Section 4.2(b)(2),date of a Non-Management Director’s election esdhate the deferral election is
received by the Plan Administrator or its designee.

(3) If a Non-Management Director has a legally Imigdriight to receive Equity Compensation in a sgjogat Plan Year and
such right is subject to a vesting period of astéaelve (12) months from the date the Non-Manag@rDirector obtains such
right, an election to defer such Equity Compensatiust be filed on or before the thirtieth (80 ¥ ddter the Non-Management
Director obtains the right to the Equity Compermatprovided that the election is made at leasivevgl2) months in advance of
the earliest date on which the Equity Compensat@nd vest. For purposes of this Section 4.2(b¥3)esting period will not be
treated as less than a twelve (12) month perioginéecause the vesting period ends upon the dealisability (as defined in
Section 1.409A-3(i)(4) of the Treasury Regulatioosjhe Non-Management Director, or upon a changmitrol event (as defined
in Section 1.409A-3(i)(5) of the




Treasury Regulations), provided that if death, loiig or a change in control event occurs anduesting period ends before the
end of such twelve (12) month period, a deferrattdn may be given effect only if the deferralotien would be permitted under
Sections 4.2(b)(1) or (2).

(c) Duration of Deferral ElectionsA deferral election made pursuant to this Secfiéhfor a Plan Year (or remainder thereof in the
case of a new Non-Management Director) is irreviecalith respect to such Plan Year after the ladast by which the deferral election
is required to be given to the Company for sucm Mear (or remainder thereof). A deferral electionone Plan Year will not
automatically be given effect for a subsequent Rear, so that if a deferral of Equity Compensat®desired for a subsequent Plan
Year, a separate election must be made by the Namalyjement Director.

(d) Restricted Stock UnitsAs described in Section 14.3 of the IncentivenPé&aNon-Management Director’s election to defer
Equity Compensation shall constitute an electioreteive such Equity Compensation in the form oftReted Stock Units. Such
Restricted Stock Units shall be issued pursuatitederms of the Incentive Plan and shall be sailbjeany restrictions, conditions and
limitations described or provided for in the IndeatPlan and in the agreements or other instrummrntkencing such Restricted Stock
Units.

(e) Deferred Equity AccountFor each Non-Management Director electing to detpiity Compensation under the Plan in
accordance with this Section 4.2, there shall bimtaiaed a deferred equity account (a “Deferredifggiuiccount”). A Non-Management
Director’s Deferred Equity Account shall, as of leaate Equity Compensation subject to a defereaitigin would otherwise be paid, be
credited with a number of Restricted Stock Unitsado the number of Shares represented by suctyEgompensation. The Deferred
Equity Account shall be a bookkeeping entry onlg ahall be utilized solely as a device for the measent and determination of the
amount to be paid or delivered to a Participanspant to the Plan, if any.

(f) Vesting. A Participant’s vested status with respect toohiber Deferred Equity Account shall be determihgdnd subject to
the terms of the Director Annual Grant giving rieesuch Deferred Equity Compensation.

(9) Voting and Dividend RightsAs described in Section 8.2 of the Incentive PéaRarticipant who has had Restricted Stock Unit
allocated to his or her Deferred Equity Account Wwidve no voting rights and will have no rightséaeive dividends or “Dividend
Equivalents” (as such term is defined in the InienPlan) in respect of Restricted Stock Units.

(h) Adjustments to Restricted Stock Uniffhe Restricted Stock Units credited to a Pardiot{s Deferred Equity Account shall be
subject to any adjustment in the number of Sharbgst to such Restricted Stock Units, as deterchinethe Board pursuant to
Section 4.2 of the Incentive Plan.

ARTICLE V
DEEMED INVESTMENT OF DEFERRED MONEY ACCOUNTS

5.1 Deemed InvestmentsEach Participant shall designate, in accordande aviy procedures, restrictions and conditions &stedd by
the Plan Administrator, the manner in which the anis credited to the Participant’s Deferred Monegdunt shall be deemed to be invested
for purposes of determining the amount of earnargslosses to be credited to such Deferred Money
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Account. For this purpose, a Participant may syebift all or any percentage of his or her Defeiviegthey Account shall be deemed to be
invested, in such percentage increments as the/Rlamnistrator may prescribe, in one or more of Bumds that have been designated as
alternative investments under the Plan pursua8etdion 5.2. A Participant’s designation shall renia effect until a new designation is made
in the manner required by the Plan Administratobject to the termination and/or replacement ofiadmas an available investment option anc
further subject to any timing restrictions imposgcthe Plan Administrator. If a Participant faitsgrovide a designation in the manner requ
by the Plan Administrator, the Participant’'s DeéerMoney Account shall be deemed to be investeddefault Fund designated by the
Company or its designee from time to time for spatpose.

5.2 Investment Funds The Plan Administrator shall specify the investmapiions that will constitute the Funds and mayngfeathe
available investment options from time to time. Fan Administrator may designate employees ofdbmpany or an Affiliate or other
individuals or entities to act, solely in an agecapacity, on behalf of the Plan Administrator tlis purpose. The Plan Administrator and any
employee of the Company or an Affiliate and otmelividual or entity designated to act on behalftaf Plan Administrator for the purpose of
selecting the Funds make no promise or guarantgeding the performance of any Fund and shall imavéability to any Participant,
Beneficiary or any other individual or entity witespect to the selection of the Funds or any deeréa lack of increase) in a Participant’s or
Beneficiary’s Deferred Money Account as a resulthaf performance or lack thereof of: (i) the Fusdkected by the Participant; or (ii) the
default Fund applicable to amounts for which aiBi@dnt or Beneficiary has failed to provide aneéstment designation in the manner requ
by Plan Rules. A Participant or Beneficiary assualbgsk associated with his or her investmentgieation or failure to provide an investm
designation, as well as all risk associated withithsecured nature of the Plan as described im8ekt.1.

5.3 Earnings Allocations. The balance of a Participant’s Deferred Money Actaiall reflect the result of daily pricing of thesets in
which such Deferred Money Account is deemed inveBtam time to time until the time of distribution.

5.4 Purpose of Investment ElectionsA Participant’s Fund elections shall be solelygarposes of calculation of the notional gains and
losses credited on the Participant’s Deferred Mohegount. The Company shall have no obligationetibaside or invest amounts as directed
by the Participant and, if the Company elects @& amounts as directed by the Participant, ticReant shall have no more right to such
investments than any other unsecured general oredit

ARTICLE VI
DISTRIBUTIONS

6.1 Distribution of Deferred Money Account.

(a) Distribution upon Separation from Servick Participant’'s Deferred Money Account shall zdoto the Participant in a single
lump sum payment of cash within the ninety (90) dasiod beginning on the date of the ParticipaGgparation from Service.

(b) Death of Participantin the event a Participant dies prior to the canoement of payment of the Participant's Deferrezh&y
Account, the Participant’s Deferred Money Accoumdlsbe paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary isiagle lump sum payment of cash
within the ninety (90) day period beginning on tiae of the Participant’s death.

7



(c) Amount of Distribution The amount distributed pursuant to Sections pdr(&) shall be the value of the Participant’'dédeed
Money Account as of the last day of the month pdewethe date of distribution.

6.2 Distribution of Deferred Equity Account.

(a) Distribution upon Separation from Servick Participant’'s Deferred Equity Account, if aralthe extent the Restricted Stock
Units credited to such Deferred Equity Accountwasted under the terms of the applicable Directomual Grant, shall be distributed to
the Participant within the ninety (90) day periajimning on the date of the Participant’s Sepandtiom Service, in the manner
described in Section 6.2(c).

(b) Death of Patrticipantin the event a Participant dies prior to the ca@noement of distribution of the Participant’s Deder
Equity Account, the ParticipastDeferred Equity Account, if and to the extent Restricted Stock Units credited to such Deferrgdity
Account are vested under the terms of the applkcBilector Annual Grant, shall be distributed te Brarticipant’'s Beneficiary within the
ninety (90) day period beginning on the date ofRaeticipant’s death, in the manner described &ti&e 6.2(c).

(c) Amount and Form of DistributionThe Company will distribute a Participant’s Deést EquityAccount, to the extent vested,
delivering a number of Shares equal to the numbRestricted Stock Units credited to the Particifmbeferred Equity Account as of
the last day of the month preceding the date dfildigion; provided that if less than the valueaoihole Share remains in the Deferred
Equity Account at the time of any such distributitiie number of Shares distributed shall be roungetb the next higher whole number
of Shares if the fractional portion of a Share riving is equal to or in excess of one-half ¢ / pf&h and otherwise shall be rounded
down to the next lower whole number of Shares. Siltdres shall be issued pursuant to the termsdhtientive Plan and shall be
subject to any restrictions, conditions and linittas described or provided for in the IncentiverPla

ARTICLE VII
BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION

7 .1 Beneficiary. Each Participant shall have the right, at any titoelesignate his or her Beneficiary(ies) (botimganiy as well as

contingent) to whom payment under the Plan shafhbde in the event of the Participant’s death.

7.2 Beneficiary Designation; Change of Beneficiaripesignation. A Participant shall designate his or her Beneficlay executing and

submitting a beneficiary designation form (whichyniiee electronic) to the Plan Administrator or iesijnee in the manner prescribed by the
Plan Administrator. A Participant shall have thghtito change a Beneficiary by executing and subrgit new beneficiary designation forn
the manner prescribed by the Plan Administratooriie acceptance by the Plan Administrator aiésignee of a new beneficiary
designation form, all beneficiary designations pvasly filed shall be cancelled. The Company arelRlan Administrator shall be entitled to
rely on the last beneficiary designation form filgdthe Participant and acknowledged by the PlamiAgstrator or its designee prior to his or
her death.

7.3 Acknowledgment. No designation or change in designation of a Bergeii shall be effective until received and ackredged by th

Plan Administrator or its designee during the Ragréint’s lifetime.



7.4 No Beneficiary Designation If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiasyprovided in this Article VII or if all desigrext
Beneficiaries predecease the Participant or dir poi complete distribution of the Participanbenefits, then the Plan Administrator shall di
the distribution of such benefits to the Participauestate unless the Participant is survived byoass in which event such distribution shal
made to the surviving spouse.

7.5 Divorce. Prior to the Participant’'s death and upon the eofty decree of divorce respecting a married Rpatit and his or her
spouse, any designation of such spouse as Bemgfafisuch Participant shall be revoked automdticahd become ineffective on and after
date the decree is entered. The automatic revaocatisuch Beneficiary designation shall cause tgi¢?pant’s benefit to be distributed under
the provisions of the Plan as if such spouse hadgmeased the Participant. However, a Participagtdasignate a former spouse as a
Beneficiary under the Plan, provided a properly ptated Beneficiary designation form is submittecibal acknowledged by the Plan
Administrator subsequent to entry of a decree wbrdie respecting the Participant and such formeuse.

7.6 Doubt as to Beneficiary If the Plan Administrator or its designee has aoyhl as to the proper Beneficiary to receive paymen
pursuant to the Plan, the Plan Administrator odésignee shall have the right, exercisable idigsretion, to withhold such payments until t
matter is resolved to the Plan Administrator'ssfatition.

7.7 Discharge of Obligations The payment of benefits under the Plan to a Beiaefishall fully and completely discharge the Compa
and all Affiliates from all further obligations uadthe Plan with respect to the Participant.

ARTICLE VIl
ADMINISTRATION

8.1 Duties of Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator shall administer the Plaadoordance with its terms and shall have all the
powers and discretionary authority necessary tryaart such terms. The Plan Administrator shalloete any certificate, instrument or other
written direction on behalf of the Plan and mayedirthe Employer to make any payment on behali@fPtlan. All interpretations of this Plan,
and questions concerning its administration andigaton, shall be determined by the Plan Admimisir in its discretion, and such
determination shall be binding on all persons, pkes otherwise expressly provided herein. The Riministrator may appoint such
accountants, counsel, specialists, and other pe®ihe Plan Administrator deems necessary aratdsiin connection with the administrati
of this Plan. Such accountants and counsel mayjérd not, be accountants and counsel for the Brapty an Affiliate.

8.2 Establishment of Rules and ProceduresThe Plan Administrator may establish such rulesmodedures as are necessary for the
proper administration of the Plan. All Participatgctions, including but not limited to electionghwespect to: (i) deferrals of Cash
Compensation and/or Equity Compensation; (ii) tbads which shall act as the basis for creditingarhings or losses on Deferred Money
Account balances; (iii) the form and timing of dilstitions; and (iv) Beneficiary designations, mbstmade in a form provided by the Plan
Administrator and must be made in accordance wighprocedures, requirements and deadlines estathlishthe Plan Administrator.
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ARTICLE IX
CLAIMS AND REVIEW PROCEDURE

9.1 Claims Procedure Any Participant or Beneficiary may file a writtelaitn with the Plan Administrator setting forth thature of the
benefit claimed, the amount thereof, and the Hasislaiming entitlement to such benefit. A claimder this Plan shall be adjudicated by the
Plan Administrator in accordance with this Artitie

(a) Initial Claim. The claimant initiates a claim by submitting he fPlan Administrator a written claim for benefits.

(b) Timing of Plan Administrator Respons&he Plan Administrator shall respond to suchnetait within ninety (90) days after
receiving the claim. If the Plan Administrator deténes that special circumstances require additioma for processing the claim, the
Plan Administrator can extend the response peryoaibadditional ninety (90) days by notifying tHaimant in writing, prior to the end
of the initial ninety (90) day period, that an adwial period is required. If the period of timeeistended because the claimant has falil
provide necessary information to decide the claima,period for the Plan Administrator to respondlishe tolled from the date on which
the notification of the additional period is semtlie claimant, until the date on which the claitqaovides the information. If the
claimant fails to provide necessary informatiomézide the claim within the time period specifigdthe Plan Administrator, the claim

shall be denied.
(c) Notice of Decision If the Plan Administrator denies part or all bétclaim, the Plan Administrator shall notify tHaimant in
writing of such denial.

(d) Deadline to File ClaimTo be considered timely under the Plan’s claimh @mview procedure, a claim for payment must hefil
with the Plan Administrator on or before the lagy @f the twelfth (120 ) month beginning after theedlate for the requested payment o

benefit.

9.2 Review Procedure If the Plan Administrator denies part or all of taim, the claimant shall have the opportunityddull and fair
review by the Plan Administrator of the denialfalfows:

(a) Review RequestTo initiate the review, the claimant, within siX60) days after receiving the Plan Administragarbtice of
denial, must file with the Plan Administrator a tien request for review.

(b) Additional SubmissionsThe claimant shall have the opportunity to subsmitten comments, documents, records and other
information relating to the claim.

(c) Timing of Plan Administrator Respons€&he Plan Administrator shall respond in writimgstuch claimant within sixty (60) days
after receiving the request for review. If the Phdministrator determines that special circumstaneguire additional time for
processing the claim, the Plan Administrator caem the response period by an additional sixty @@s by notifying the claimant in
writing, prior to the end of the initial sixty (6@py period, that an additional period is requitéthe period of time is extended because
the claimant has failed to provide necessary infdion to decide the claim, the period for the PAaiministrator to respond shall be
tolled from the date on which the notification b&étadditional period is sent to the claimant, uh#l date on which the claimant provides

the information. If the claimant fails
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to provide necessary information to decide thenthaithin the time period specified by the Plan Adisirator, the claim shall be denied.
(d) Notice of Decision The Plan Administrator shall notify the claimamtwvriting of its decision on review.

9.3 Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies No claimant may commence any legal action to recavgenefit under this Agreement or

to enforce or clarify rights under this Plan uitié claim and review procedure set forth hereintdegs) exhausted in its entirety. In any such
legal action, all explicit and all implicit deternations by the Plan Administrator (including, bot fimited to, determinations as to whether the
claim, or a request for a review of a denied clairas timely filed) shall be afforded the maximunfiedence permitted by law.

9.4 Deadline to File Legal Action No legal action to recover benefits under this Rlato enforce or clarify rights under this Planyma

be brought by any claimant on any matter pertaiminis Plan unless the legal action is commeicélde proper forum on or before the last
day of the twelfth (12 ) month beginning after ttate the claimant has received a denial on revidimiing exhaustion of the claim and
review procedure.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN

10.1 Amendments

(a) Right to Amend The Board shall have the right at any time andchftime to time, and retroactively if deemed neagssr
appropriate, to modify or amend in whole or in @y or all of the provisions of the Plan. The Cemgation Committee shall have the
right at any time and from time to time, and rettoeely if deemed necessary or appropriate, to fiyami amend in whole or in part any
or all of the provisions of the Plan, provided saebdification or amendment constitutes a non-maltarmendment. Any change that
would in any way increase the monetary benefitadipipants would be considered material and regajproval by the Board. Non-
material amendments consist of: (i) changes reduiyeapplicable law, (i) modifications of the adnsitrative provisions of the Plan to
cause the Plan to operate more efficiently, (liqoges required as part of the collective barggipiocess, and (iv) modifications or
amendments to incorporate changes provided thatrsdification or amendment does not materiallyéase Employer contributions.
Any amendment or modification to the Plan shalkffective at such date as the Board may determine.

(b) Effect of Amendment The right to amend described in Section 10.1(@y be exercised at any time, without the conseangf
Participant or Beneficiary; provided, however, thatamendment shall divest any Participant or Beiae§ of rights to which he or she
would have been entitled if the Plan had been tetaed on the effective date of such amendment &x@eto the extent that a
termination of the Plan pursuant to Section 10.2ld/oesult in an accelerated distribution of thetiegant’s benefits under the Plan; and
(ii) to the extent necessary to comply with anyleggble law, rule or regulation, including, but dimited to, Code Section 409A.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan and anynpayt hereunder may be amended unilaterally by tregdBat any time to make such
changes as may be required to comply with Sectd®h4

10.2 Termination of the Plan. The Board shall have the right to terminate theRlsany time. Upon termination of the Plan,

distributions in respect of amounts credited t@giBipant’s Deferred
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Money Account or Deferred Equity Account as of tlage of the termination shall be made in the maandrat the time heretofore prescribed.
If the Plan is terminated and a trust has beerbkstt@d (as described in Section 11.3), the trulpay benefits as provided under the amen
or terminated Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoihg, Board may, in its sole discretion, terminate Btan and accelerate the time and form of
payment of benefits under the Plan, only undefalewing circumstances:

(a) The Board may terminate and liquidate the Rlahin twelve (12) months of a corporate dissolattaxed under Section 331 of
the Code, or with the approval of a bankruptcy tpursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(A), providedttthe remaining unpaid benefits
under the Plan are included in the Participantgeetive gross incomes in the latest of: (i) tHeradar year in which the Plan termination
and liquidation occurs; (ii) the first calendar ygawhich such benefits are no longer subject solastantial risk of forfeiture; or (iii) the
first calendar year in which the payment is adntiats/ely practicable.

(b) The Board may terminate and liquidate the faconnection with the occurrence of a “changedntml event” (within the
meaning of Section 1.409A-3(i)(5) of the TreasupgRlations) (a “Section 409A Change in Controlfpyded that the following
requirements are satisfied:

(1) The Board takes irrevocable action to termirzaie liquidate the Plan during the period begintinigy (30) days
preceding the Section 409A Change in Control amingntwelve (12) months following such Section 408Aange in Control;

(2) The benefits of each Participant under the Blaohall other plans and other arrangements tear@ated as single plan
with this Plan under Sections 1.409A-1(c) and 1489)(4)(ix) Treasury Regulation (collectively,éfOther Arrangements”) are
distributed within twelve (12) months following tiate that all necessary action to terminate apddate the Plan and the Other
Arrangements is irrevocably taken; and

(3) All Other Arrangements are terminated and ligied with respect to each Participant who expeei@rsuch Section 409A
Change in Control. For purposes of any Section 408Ange in Control that results from an asset @gelransaction, the
applicable “service recipient” (within the meanioigCode Section 409A) with the discretion to licatiel and terminate the Plan, the
Plan and the Other Arrangements shall be the “semécipient” that is primarily liable immediatedjter the transaction for the
payment of the Plan benefits.

(c) The Board may terminate and liquidate the Ré&mny other reason, provided that:

(1) The termination and liquidation of the Plan sloet occur proximate to a downturn in the finahk&alth of the Company
and its Affiliates;

(2) The Company and all of its Affiliates terminabed liquidate all Other Arrangements;

(3) No payments in liquidation of the Plan are madthin twelve (12) months of the date that the @amy takes all necess:i
action to irrevocably terminate and liquidate th@nPother than payments that would be payable uhgeterms of the Plan if the
action to terminate and liquidate the Plan hadocotirred;
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(4) All payments are made within twenty-four (249mths of the date that the Company takes all nacgsstion to
irrevocably terminate and liquidate the Plan; and

(5) The Company and all Affiliates do not adopt &ther Arrangement at any time during the threeyé2y period following
the date the Company takes all necessary actioretmcably terminate and liquidate the Plan.

(d) The Board may terminate and liquidate the Riaon such other events and conditions as permitiddr Section 409A.
This Section 10.2 shall be construed and admimidtar a manner consistent with Section 409A andi&@ed.409A-3(j)(4)(ix) of the
Treasury Regulations.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Unfunded and Unsecured The Plan shall at all times be considered entinefinded and no provision shall at any time be made
with respect to segregating assets of the Compamyayment of any amounts under the Plan. No Raatit or any other person shall have an
interest in any particular assets of the Compangebgon of the right to receive a benefit undelam. To the extent the Participant or any
other person acquires a right to receive benefiteuthe Plan, the Participant or such other pesbaii have the status of a general unsecurec
creditor of the Company. The Plan constitutes aemesecured, unfunded promise by the Company éopdlyment of benefits payable under
the Plan to the Participants in the future. Nothéngtained in the Plan shall constitute a guarbgtthe Company or any other person or entity
that any funds in any trust or the assets of thagzoy will be sufficient to pay any benefit undee Plan. No Participant shall have any right
to a benefit under the Plan except in accordanttietive terms of the Plan.

11.2 Restriction Against Assignment The Company shall pay all amounts payable hereusrgrto the person or persons designated
by the Plan and not to any other person or eriktig right of any Participant to receive any besefitder the Plan shall not be alienable or
transferable by the Participant or the ParticimBeneficiary by assignment or any other method,sdrall not be subject to any right, claim,
lien, judgment, execution, alienation, sale, transdissignment, pledge, encumbrance, attachmeatrnishment by any creditors of any
Participant or a Participant’s Beneficiary. No pafra Participant Deferred Money Account or Deferred Equity Accosimall be subject to al
right of offset against or reduction for any amopayable by the Participant or Beneficiary, whetioethe Company or any other party, under
any arrangement other than under the terms ofthais.

11.3 Trust.

(a) Discretionary Establishment of Trustiotwithstanding anything to the contrary, the @amy may establish one or more
accounts, funds or grantor trusts (the “Trust”)eflect obligations under the Plan and may maké suestments as it may deem
desirable to assist in meeting such obligationg Chmpany may transfer money or other propertynjosaich Trust, and the Trust shall
pay Plan benefits to Participants and their Beragiies out of the Trust Fund. Such trust or truséy be irrevocable, but shall provide
in the event of the insolvency of the Company,aksets of the trust or trusts shall be subjedteataims of the Company’s creditors. No
Participant or Beneficiary shall have any preferkdm to, or any beneficial ownership interestany assets of the Trust, and
Participants shall have the status of general wmsdcreditors of the Company.
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(b) Interrelationship of the Plan and the Tru$he provisions of the Plan shall govern the sgifta Participant to receive
distribution of benefits under the Plan. The primrns of the Trust shall govern the rights of therPany and any delegate thereof,
Participants and the creditors of the Company ¢catssets transferred to the Trust. The Company atell times remain liable to carry
out its obligations under the Plan.

(c) Distributions From the TrusfThe Company’s obligations under the Plan mayalisfied with Trust assets distributed pursuant
to the terms of the Trust, and any such distribugball reduce the Company’s obligations undePllaa.

11.4 Withholding . The Participant shall make appropriate arrangemeititsthe Company for satisfaction of any fedestéte or local
income tax withholding requirements and other regfuents applicable to the granting, crediting, imgsor payment of benefits under the Plan
There shall be deducted from each payment made timel®lan or any other compensation payable t&#rdcipant (or Beneficiary) all taxes
which are required to be withheld by the Compangespect to such payment or this Plan. The Comphalf have the right to reduce any
payment (or other compensation) by the amount &t cafficient to provide the amount of said taxes.

11.5 Payment in Event of Incapacity If any individual entitled to receive any paymenter the Plan is, in the judgment of the Plan
Administrator, physically, mentally or legally ingable of receiving or acknowledging receipt of plagment, and no legal representative has
been appointed for the individual, the Plan Adntmaior may (but is not required to) cause the payrteebe made to any one or more of the
following as may be chosen by the Plan Administidtte Beneficiary; the institution maintaining timelividual; a custodian for the individual
under the Uniform Transfers to Minors Act of angtet or the individua$ spouse, child, parent, or other relative by blootharriage. The Pl
Administrator is not required to see to the pragaplication of any such payment, and the paymemipbetely discharges all claims under the
Plan against the Company, and the Plan to the eatehe payment.

11.6_Protective Provisions The Participant shall cooperate with the Companfubyishing any and all information requested bg th
Plan Administrator to facilitate the administratiohthe Plan and the payment of benefits hereundking such actions as may be requested &
the Plan Administrator. If any fact relating to arficipant or a Beneficiary has been misstatedctneect fact may be used to determine the
amount of benefit payable to such Participant areéBieiary.

11.7 Compliance with Section 409AThe Company intends that the Plan and all defemadier the Plan be structured so as to comply
with, or, as applicable, be excepted from, Secti@®A, such that there are no adverse tax consegsginterest or penalties incurred as a r¢
of such deferrals. Notwithstanding the Companyterition, if a deferral under the Plan, including @ayment, distribution, deferral election,
transaction or any other action or arrangementecoptated by the provisions of the Plan would viel@ection 409A or, if intended to be
excepted from 409A, would become subject to 4094¢ss the Board expressly determines otherwiseBdaed, or the Compensation
Committee as deemed appropriate, may adopt sudigslprocedures and/or amendments to the Plantade such other actions as it deems
reasonably necessary or appropriate, without theertt of any Participant, to (a) cause the Plartlamdespective payment, distribution,
deferral election, transaction or other actionroamgement to comply with 409A and/or, as applieatd be excepted from 409A and
(b) preserve the intended tax treatment of any pagiment, distribution, deferral election, tran&atbr other action or arrangement. In such
case, the related provisions of the Plan will bended modified, or, if necessary, rescinded, inclgdetroactively, in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 409A to the extent deteeahioy the Board, or the Compensation Committee

14



as deemed appropriate. This Plan will be constameadministered to the fullest extent possibladcordance with the Company’s intentions
as set forth in this Section 11.7.

11.8 Recovery of Overpaymentsin the event any payments under the Plan are madecepunt of a mistake of fact or law, the recipier
shall return such payment or overpayment to the fizom as requested by the Company.

11.9 No Rights to Continued Service CreatedNeither the establishment of or participation ia Blan gives any individual the right to
continued service on the Board or limits the righthe Company or its stockholders to terminatenodify the terms and conditions of service
of such individual on the Board or otherwise dehwany individual without regard to the effect tisach action might have on him or her with
respect to the Plan.

11.10_Participants Should Consult Advisors The Company, the Board and the Compensation Coesnitiake no representation or
warranty with respect to the tax, financial, esa#sning or other legal implications of particijat in the Plan. Participants should consult'
their own tax, financial and legal advisors witBpect to their participation in the Plan.

11.11 SuccessorsExcept as otherwise expressly provided in the Rikiobligations of the Company under the Plankangling on any
successor to the Company whether the succesdwr igsult of a direct or indirect purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise of all of the
business and/or assets of the Company.

11.12 Indemnification. To the extent provided for in the Company bylawsiarilar governing document, the Company shall mdigy
and hold harmless each member of the Board, eaotbereof the Compensation Committee, and each oféind employee of the Company or
an Affiliate to whom are delegated duties, respailises, and authority with respect to this Playagst all claims, liabilities, fines and
penalties, and all expenses reasonably incurrext byposed upon him or her (including but not lieitto reasonable attorney fees) which &
as a result of his or her actions or failure toiaaconnection with the operation and administratd this Plan to the extent lawfully allowable
and to the extent that such claim, liability, fipgnalty, or expense is not paid for by liabilingiirance purchased or paid for by the Compa
an Affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the @pany shall not indemnify any person for any sutioant incurred through any settlement
or compromise of any action unless the Companyeamgssn writing to such settlement or compromise.

11.13_Headings Headings and subheadings in this Plan are inséstembnvenience of reference only and are not todresidered in the
construction of the provisions hereof.

11.14 Construction of Provisions If any misunderstanding or ambiguity arises conicgrthe meaning of any of the provisions of the
Plan, the Plan Administrator has the sole righddostrue such provisions. The Plan Administratdesision is final. All pronouns and any
variations thereof shall be deemed to refer tanthsculine, feminine, or neuter, as the identitthefperson or persons may require. As the
context may require, the singular may be read agplilral and the plural as the singular. Any refeeein this Plan to a statute or regulation
shall be considered also to mean and refer to angesjuent amendment or replacement of that statwegulation.

11.15_Governing Law. This Plan shall be subject to and construed inra@eswe with the laws of the State of Oklahoma &oektent not
preempted by federal law.

[Signature on following page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has adopted this Plan as of the Efee€late and has caused the Plan to be executésl by i
duly authorized representative this 31 day of Ddmenn2012.

WPX ENERGY, INC.

By: /s/ Ralph A. Hill
Name: Ralph A. Hill
Title: President & CEC
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Exhibit 12

WPX Energy, Inc.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Millions)
Earnings:
$(344) $(224) $(B893) $29¢  $1,22(

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:

Less: Equity earnings, excluding proportionate stisom 50% owned investees and
unconsolidated majori-owned investee

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes and equity earnir (374

Add:

Fixed charges
Interest accrued, including proportionate sharmf&®% owned investee:

B0 (249 (200 (19 (20)
(248) (919 281  1,20¢

and unconsolidated major-owned investees (i 10z 117 124 10C 74
Rental expense representative of interest fe 5 3 5 3 3
Total fixed charge 107 12C 12¢ 10z 77
Distributed income of equity-method investees, editlg proportionate share
from 50% owned investees and unconsolidated mg-owned investee 12 17 19 9 11
Less:
) (©) 15 (%) 20

Capitalized interes
Total earnings as adjust
Fixed charge
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

$(26%) $(120 $(780 $37€  $1,26¢
$107 $12C $12¢ $102 $ 77
(b) (c) (d) 3.65 16.4;

(a) Does notinclude interest related to incomesaincluding interest related to liabilities faraertain tax positions, which is included in
provision (benefit) for income taxes in our Condated Statements of Operatio

(b) Earnings are inadequate to cover fixed charges3@® #illion.

(c) Earnings are inadequate to cover fixed charges2d9 #illion.

(d) Earnings are inadequate to cover fixed charge969 #illion.
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12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24,

25.

List of Subsidiaries of WPX Energy, Inc.
(all Delaware entities unless otherwise indicated)

Barrett Resources International Corporat
Bison Royalty LLC
Diamond Elk, LLC- a Colorado limited liability compar
Mockingbird Pipeline, L.P
Northwest Argentina Corporatic— a Utah corporatiol
RW Gathering, LLC
SW Gathering, LLC
WPX Energy Appalachia, LL¢
WPX Energy Arkoma Gathering, LL
WPX Enterprises, Inc
WPX Energy Gulf Coast, L
Assumed name in Texas: Williams Prod. Gulf Coad®, L
WPX Energy Holdings, LL(
WPX Energy Keystone, LL(
WPX Energy Marcellus Gathering, LL
WPX Energy Mi«-Continent Company, an Oklahoma corpora
WPX Energy Production, LL(
Fictitious name in Oklahoma: WEG-Production CompdiyC
WPX Energy Rocky Mountain, LL¢
WPX Energy RM Compan
WPX Energy Ryan Gulch, LLt¢
WPX Energy Marketing, LLC
WPX Energy Marketing Services Company, L
WPX Energy Services Company, Ll
WPX Energy Van Hook Gathering Services, L
WPX Energy Williston, LLC
Trade name in North Dakota: D3E & P LLC
WPX Gas Resources Compe

International subsidiaries:

a M DN

WPX Energy International Oil & Gas (Venezuela), |- a Cayman Islands corporati
Apco Oil and Gas International Ir—a Cayman Islands corporati

Apco Argentina S./~ an Argentina entit

Apco Austral S.A- an Argentina entit

Apco Properties Ltc— a Cayman Islands corporati

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No 333-178388&ppeng to the WPX Energy, Inc. 2011
Incentive Plan and WPX Energy, Inc. 2011 EmployeelSPurchase Plan of our reports dated Februgrg@B3 with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedule®X\&Energy, Inc. and the effectiveness of intermaitol over financial reporting of WPX
Energy, Inc., included in this Annual Report (FatfiK) for the year ended December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 28, 2013



Exhibit 23.2
NETHERLAND, SEWELL
m & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGINEERS AND GEOGISTS

We hereby consent to the references to our firthéncontext in which they appear, and to the egfegs to and the filing and incorporation by
reference of our audit letter as of December 3122thcluded in or made part of the Annual Reporform 10-K of WPX Energy, Inc. for the
year ended December 31, 2012. We also hereby cotustite incorporation by reference of the refeesnio our firm, in the context in whic
they appear, and of our audit letter as of DecerBheP012, and references thereto, into WPX Endrgy's Registration Statement on Form S
8 (No. 333-178388).

NETHERLAND, SEWELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.

By: /s/ C.H. (Scott) Rees |
C.H. (Scott) Rees lll, P.E
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Dallas, Texas
February 26, 2013

Please be advised that the digital document youwiareing is provided by Netherland, Sewell & Assatess, Inc. (NSAI) as a
convenience to our clients. The digital documeimtended to be substantively the same as thenalligigned document maintained by
NSAI. The digital document is subject to the parters limitations, and conditions stated in thgim@l document. In the event of any
differences between the digital document and tigirad document, the original document shall cohéired supersede the digital
document.




Exhibit 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned individuals, in his or her capacity asractor of WPX Energy,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“WPX Energy”), doesdby constitute and appoint each of James J. BamdeStephen E. Brilz as his or her
true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full powen@authority to sign WPX Energy’s Annual Reportform 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, and any and all amendmentgdharany and all instruments necessary or incaléntconnection therewith. Each said
attorney-in-fact shall have full power of subsiibi and each said attorney-in-fact shall havegdalver and authority to do and perform in the
name and on behalf of each of the undersignedyraad all capacities, every act whatsoever refguisi necessary to be done in or about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposesaa ef the undersigned might or could do in periomundersigned hereby ratifying and
approving the acts of said attorney-in-fact.

This power of attorney has been duly executed bélpihe following persons as of the 21 day of Fabyp2013.

/s/ Kimberly S. Bowers /s/ John A. Carrig
Kimberly S. Bowers John A. Carric

/s/ William R. Granberry /s/ Don J. Gunther
William R. Granberry Don J. Gunthe

/s/ Robert K. Herdman /s/ Kelt Kindick
Robert K. Herdmau Kelt Kindick

/sl Henry E. Lentz /sl George A. Lorch
Henry E. Lentz George A. Lorct

/s/ William G. Lowrie /s/ David F. Work

William G. Lowrie David F. Work



Exhibit 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Ralph A. Hill, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of WPX Energy, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 28, 2013

/s/ Ralph A. Hill

Ralph A. Hill
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rodney J. Sailor, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of WPX Energy, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financedarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céntrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 28, 2013

/s/ Rodney J. Sailor

Rodney J. Sailor
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WPX Enerng. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periogding December 31, 2012, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report8ach of the undersigned hereby certifies, in himcay as
an officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.@380, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarb@xkes- Act of 2002, that to his
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ Ralph A. Hill

Ralph A. Hill

Chief Executive Office
February 28, 201

/s/ Rodney J. Sailor

Rodney J. Sailor

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
February 28, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@anmission or its staff upon request.

The foregoing certification is being furnished e tSecurities and Exchange Commission as an exbitsie Report and shall not be
considered filed as part of the Report.
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CHaRMAN & CEQ Execurall CoMsiTTEl
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February 19, 2013

Director of Reserves and Production Services
WPX Energy, Inc.

One Williams Center, Suite 3600

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172

Dear Sir or Madam:

In accordance with your request, we have auditecettimates prepared by WPX Energy, Inc. and lisidiaries WPX Energy Appalachia,
LLC; WPX Energy Gulf Coast, LP; WPX Energy KeystoheC; WPX Energy Production, LLC; WPX Energy RockMountain, LLC; WPX
Energy Ryan Gulch, LLC; and WPX Energy Willistor,,& (collectively referred to herein as “WPX"), a@ecember 31, 2012, of the proved
reserves and future revenue to the WPX interesgiitain oil and gas properties located in the Wh&éates. It is our understanding that the
proved reserves estimates shown herein constitaied® percent of all proved reserves owned by WK .have examined the estimates with
respect to reserves quantities, reserves categorizéuture producing rates, future net revenunel the present value of such future net
revenue, using the definitions set forth in U.SciBiies and Exchange Commission (SEC) RegulatidhRule 4-10(a). The estimates of
reserves and future revenue have been preparedandance with the definitions and regulationshef 8EC and, with the exception of the
exclusion of future income taxes, conform to theSBAccounting Standards Codification Topic 932,r&gtive Activities—Oil and Gas. We
completed our audit on or about the date of thiedeThis report has been prepared for WPX Endrgy;s use in filing with the SEC; in our
opinion the assumptions, data, methods, and proesdised in the preparation of this report are@pjate for such purpose.

The following table sets forth WPX’s estimatestud het reserves and future net revenue, as of Omsredd, 2012, for the audited properties:

Net Reserve Future Net Revenue (M¢
Ol NGL Gas Present Worl

Categony (MBBL) (MBBL) (MMCF) Total at 10%
Proved Developed 23,60: 64,91( 2,152,05' 3,100,01. 1,914,02
Proved Undevelope 52,80« 45,44¢ 1,198,06. 2,291,44! 417 ,55(
Total Provec 76,40¢ 110,35¢ 3,350,12. 5,391,45 2,331,57

Totals may not add because of rounding.

The oil reserves shown include crude oil and cosdtm Oil and natural gas liquids (NGL) volumesexgressed in thousands of barrels
(MBBL); a barrel is equivalent to 42 United Stagedlons. Gas volumes are expressed in millionsubfacfeet (MMCF) at standard temperal
and pressure bases.

When compared on a well-hwell basis, some of the estimates of WPX are greatd some are less than the estimates of NetldeiS&awell &
Associates, Inc. (NSAI). However, in our opiniom thstimates of WPX'proved reserves and future revenue shown hemeiimahe aggregai
reasonable and have been prepared in accordarftéheiStandards Pertaining to the Estimating andithag of Oil and Gas Reserves
Information promulgated by the Society of Petroldangineers (SPE Standards). Additionally, thesienasés are within the recommended 10
percent tolerance threshold set forth in the SREBE&rds. We are satisfied with the methods andepges used by WPX in preparing the
December 31, 2012, estimates of reserves and freuemue, and we saw nothing of an unusual natatentould cause us to take exception
with the estimates, in the aggregate, as prepar&tmX.

4300 THANKSGIVING TOWER » 1601 ELM STREET » DALLAS, TEXAS THZ01-4754 « PH: 214-868-5401 « FaX: 214-0969-5411 nsai@nﬁ.m-p-errq com
1227 LAMAR STREET, SUITE 1200 « HOUSTON, TEXAS TT010-3072 « PH 713-654-4850 « Fao T13-654-4851 netherandsewell.com
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The estimates shown herein are for proved reseWPBX's estimates do not include probable or possibterves that may exist for these
properties, nor do they include any value for urslieped acreage beyond those tracts for which unoieee reserves have been estimated.
WPX has included estimates of proved undevelopserves for certain locations that generate posititee net revenue but have negative
present worth discounted at 10 percent based ocotigtant prices and costs discussed in subseparagraphs of this letter. These locations
have been included based on the operators’ dediatexat to drill these wells, as evidenced by WPiXternal budget, reserves estimates, and
price forecast. Reserves categorization conveyesfhéve degree of certainty; reserves subcategtioin is based on development and
production status. The estimates of reserves andefuevenue included herein have not been adjdistedsk.

Prices used by WPX are based on the 12-month uhtegigirithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-thoprice for each month in the period
January through December 2012. For oil and NGLwels, the average West Texas Intermediate posteel @ii$91.21 per barrel is adjusted
by area for basis differentials and by lease falityy transportation fees, and local price diffdials. For gas volumes, the prices used either
are the fixed contract price or are based on teea@e Henry Hub spot price of $2.757 per MMBTU argladjusted by area for basis
differentials and by lease for energy content,spamtation fees, local price differentials, andappropriate, plant shrinkage. The fixed contrac
gas price used is for the Piceance Basin propatidss held constant until contract expirationga@itract expiration, the price is adjusted tc
regional spot price, with adjustments, and heldstamt thereafter. All other prices are held contdtaroughout the lives of the properties. The
average adjusted product prices weighted by prastuctver the remaining lives of the properties$82.31 per barrel of oil, $37.01 per barrel
of NGL, and $2.39 per MCF of gas.

Operating costs used by WPX are based on histajmaiating expense records. These costs includectheell overhead expenses allowed
under joint operating agreements along with eseésmaf costs to be incurred at and below the disand field levels. Headquarters general anc
administrative overhead expenses of WPX are indudéhe extent that they are directly attributableach of the WPX Asset Areas. Capital
costs used by WPX are based on authorizationsfrereliture and actual costs from recent activigpital costs are included as required for
workovers, new development wells, and productianiggent. Operating costs are held constant throuighe lives of the properties, and
capital costs are held constant to the date ofredipee. Estimates do not include any salvage viduéhe lease and well equipment or the cos
of abandoning the properties.

The reserves shown in this report are estimatgsanmd should not be construed as exact quantRiesed reserves are those quantities of oil
and gas which, by analysis of engineering and dgeonse data, can be estimated with reasonable wirtai be economically producible;
probable and possible reserves are those addities@tves which are sequentially less certain t@bevered than proved reserves. Estimates
of reserves may increase or decrease as a resulr@et conditions, future operations, changeggulations, or actual reservoir performance.
In addition to the primary economic assumptionsulised herein, estimates of WPX and NSAI are base@rtain assumptions including, but
not limited to, that the properties will be deveddpconsistent with current development plans, ttieaproperties will be operated in a prudent
manner, that no governmental regulations or contrdll be put in place that would impact the abilitf the interest owner to recover the
reserves, and that projections of future producivdhprove consistent with actual performancethié reserves are recovered, the revenues
therefrom and the costs related thereto could be mioless than the estimated amounts. Becausavefigmental policies and uncertainties of
supply and demand, the sales rates, prices rec&ivéide reserves, and costs incurred in recovesualy reserves may vary from assumptions
made while preparing these estimates.

It should be understood that our audit does nostitoile a complete reserves study of the auditeanol gas properties. Our audit consisted
primarily of substantive testing, wherein we coneédca detailed review of all properties. In theawet of our audit, we have not independe
verified the accuracy and completenes
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information and data furnished by WPX with resgeadbwnership interests, oil and gas production] test data, historical costs of operation
and development, product prices, or any agreemelating to current and future operations of theperties and sales of production. However
if in the course of our examination something cameur attention that brought into question thadml or sufficiency of any such information

or data, we did not rely on such information oradatil we had satisfactorily resolved our questicglating thereto or had independently
verified such information or data. Our audit did mlude a review of WPX's overall reserves mamagpt processes and practices.

We used standard engineering and geoscience metiraglsombination of methods, including performaaonalysis, volumetric analysis, and
analogy, that we considered to be appropriate andssary to establish the conclusions set forthifteds in all aspects of oil and gas
evaluation, there are uncertainties inherent innt@pretation of engineering and geoscience daggfore, our conclusions necessarily
represent only informed professional judgment.

Supporting data documenting this audit, along wd#ta provided by WPX, are on file in our office.€Mfechnical persons responsible for
conducting this audit meet the requirements reggrdualifications, independence, objectivity, andfaentiality set forth in the SPE
Standards. We are independent petroleum engirgeokgists, geophysicists, and petrophysicistsgavaot own an interest in these propertie:
nor are we employed on a contingent basis.

Sincerely,

NETHERLAND, SEWELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.
Texas Registered Engineering Fir-2699

By: /s/ C.H. (Scott) Rees |
C.H. (Scott) Rees lll, P.E
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

By: /s/ Dan Paul Smit By: /s/ John G. Hattne
Dan Paul Smith, P.E. 490¢ John G. Hattner, P.G. 5!
Senior Vice Presidel Senior Vice Presidel
Date Signed: February 19, 20 Date Signed: February 19, 20
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